STOCK CODE
% o 1SR
376

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

ERETMEERBRAT
Annual Report
2020 | =2 % =

44

>

Y
FINANCIAL

mEE R



This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the Company’s website at
www.yff.com (the “Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented to receive the corporate
communications of the Company (the “Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website
and who for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the annual report posted on
the Company Website will promptly upon request be sent the annual report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means of receipt (either in printed form or
via the Company Website) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in printed form, and/or to change
their choice of the means of receipt of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the share
registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by sending an email to the share
registrar of the Company at yunfeng.ecom@computershare.com.hk.
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CEQO’s Statement
ITHERRE

In 2020, against the backdrop of the outbreak of the
Covid-19 pandemic which has caused disruptions to
business activities across the world, Yunfeng Financial
Group Limited (“Yunfeng Financial Group” or the
“Company”) continued to overcome difficulties, adapt
to changes and achieve breakthroughs in business
innovations and record growth in the insurance and
financial services businesses of the Group. In the
insurance industry, although the Hong Kong insurance
market has been negatively impacted by the sharp
decline in the number of tourists from mainland
China, under the initiatives introduced to expedite
the economic development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Hong Kong
government has continued to enhance the regulatory
system and encourage insurance intermediaries to
launch innovative products and services, which is
conducive to the sustainable development of the
insurance industry. Despite the unprecedented
challenges posted by the COVID-19 pandemic and
the turbulent macroeconomic conditions, the overall
performance of the Hong Kong capital market in
2020 was robust. During the year, the insurance and
financial services teams of the Group have grasped
opportunities to apply innovations and technologies
to enhance the competitiveness of our products and
services with a view to strengthening our position as
a leading integrated financial services group in Hong
Kong.

For insurance business, in 2020, YF Life Insurance
International Limited (“YF Life”) demonstrated
satisfactory business performance. In spite of being
under the shadow of the Covid-19 pandemic, YF Life
successfully managed to record net growth in its tied
agency force in 2020. It also achieved notable growth
in the number of in-force individual insurance policies,
premium income and net operating income compared
to the prior year. YF Life successfully boosted sales
by launching new products and actively promoting
its Voluntary Health Insurance Scheme (VHIS) and
Qualifying Deferred Annuity Policy (QDAP) products.
It will continue to pursue this strategy to further
strengthen sales. In addition, YF Life will continue
to optimise its product mix through promotion of
products with higher margins such as refundable
critical illness policies. To further improve the
information capacity and promote the usage of digital
platforms, YF Life has been actively developing virtual
face-to-face solicitation tools (SMART) to extend such
kinds of activities to most of its flagship products
and it will continue to enhance the online customer
servicing tool “YF LINK” so as to provide a better
user experience.
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For asset management business, in 2020, the
Company’s asset management business achieved
growth in both business size and revenue. A total
of 393 public funds from 21 fund companies have
been launched on Youyu Wealth. Regarding products
and special accounts, the assets under management
comprised two funds of funds, one note product, one
project fund and one discretionary fund account. In
addition, the Company took advantages of market
opportunities to make proprietary investments in
high quality equity projects and Chinese USD bonds,
which have generated satisfactory returns. To seize
market opportunities, the Company will, on one
hand, strengthen the cooperation between Youyu
Wealth and other channels to increase the sales of
equity-based funds, and on the other hand, enhance
the research and selection of funds to enhance the
competitiveness of fund products on the Company’s
platform. In respect of asset management products
and special accounts, the Asset Management
Department will continue to strengthen and deepen
cooperation with other departments of the Group and
external parties, launch asset management products
with “Yunfeng characteristics” and strategically
provide overseas high-quality asset management
products targeted at high-net-worth, ultra-high-net-
worth and corporate clients in order to contribute to
the brand building of Yunfeng in overseas markets.

For brokerage business, in 2020, the Company
successfully implemented its To-C strategy, with
multiple growth in the number of customers opening
new accounts, the number of eligible customers and
the number of active customers. The Company closely
followed all popular trends in the IPO subscription
market since the beginning of the year and increased
the overall limits for IPO financing available to its
customers. With respect to improvement in user
experience, online procedures for bank-to-securities
transfers were launched, which effectively improved
the efficiency of bank-to-securities transfers and
lowered error rate. The Company also launched
FPS as a new cash deposit method, improving the
efficiency of cash deposit. In addition to providing
quality trading services, the Company will continue
to fully enhance user experience in conducting online
transactions and leveraging the advantage of access
to capital for financial institutions, fully explore the
needs of customers including margin financing while
broadening the customer base. The Company will
expedite the integration of the Group’s ecosystem
by strengthening the interaction and integration of
its brokerage business with other business segments
amid the rapid development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
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CEQO’s Statement
ITHERRE

For employee stock ownership plan administration
(ESOP) business, in 2020, the Company successfully
signed contracts with a number of listed companies
and provided them with professional share incentive
scheme management services. Besides, it helped
clients improve management efficiency and reduce
costs through the exclusive “Youyu eKeeper”
platform. Over the year, the number of users of the
platform has grown steadily and the related securities
trading income as well as the asset management
scale have also shown notable growth. In addition,
the Company further expanded its customer resources
for future business by entering into cooperation
agreements with various renowned trust companies
and actively establishing partnerships with different
channels. Given the keen competition in the market,
the Company will focus on system optimisation,
providing more customised features, standardizing
and reducing manual processes and operating costs
and further strengthening flow of business from
employees by creating a one-stop automated all-
process management system. In terms of business
development, the Company will continue to actively
explore new channels to realise long-term cooperation
and provide business support to increase business
referral opportunities.

For the financial technology business, since its
establishment in early 2019, the business of the
Financial Technology Department of Yunfeng Financial
Group has been steady. While maintaining the
services provided to existing external clients, the
Company restated its positioning as a technology
services provider to support the Group’s businesses
and managed to concurrently execute internal and
external projects. The Company will continue to
apply technology to insurance, brokerage, fund and
corresponding marketing strategies to support the
Group’s business development. It will launch “Yunfeng
Youyu” online products and undertake continuous
upgrade of their core functions. The Company
will also commence the design and development
of account opening, approval and information
management systems to improve user experience
and enhance work efficiency of the customer services
and further build up our capacities on internal project
management and operation and data management.
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For the investment research business, in 2020, the
Company completed repositioning of its investment
research business, changing the focus from operation
of an official public account to asset investment
research, primarily on four major research business
sectors covering major asset classes allocation
research, Hong Kong equities strategy research,
Chinese USD bonds research and real estate
research. Regarding the outlook in 2021, the Company
will promote the implementation of a comprehensive
investment-oriented asset investment research system
and further refine the research areas and emphases,
so as to enhance its investment research capability.
For Hong Kong equities, the investment research will
be extended to key industries and individual stocks
to strengthen the investment research capability for
IPO targets, which is in turn conducive to building
investment portfolios. In respect of USD bonds
and real estate research, it will broaden the credit
coverage of real estate targets, strengthen the
daily dynamic tracking of USD bonds and provide
rapid feedbacks and in-depth analyses on industry
hotspots.

Looking ahead, the pace of global economic recovery
will depend on the degree of the Covid-19 vaccine
rollouts and the effectiveness of stimulus policies
introduced by governments of all major markets.
At the same time, the Group will prudently monitor
the impacts of such macroeconomic factors as the
relations between the United States and China and
the geopolitical environment on the execution of its
business development plans. The Group will continue
to focus on implementing its strategic plan to capture
growth opportunities in the life and health insurance
and wealth management markets in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area with a view to
successfully transforming itself into a comprehensive
one-stop financial services provider offering high-
quality online and offline insurance and wealth
management solutions to our customers.

Finally, we would like to express our sincere gratitude
to our Shareholders, business partners and customers
for their continued support and trust on us.

EHEBEBARAT
S

CEQO’s Statement
ITHERRE

REMBEKFTE 0 RER2020 FTHE KR
BN EERNERNEN  EOBRAREES
EASEEREME  ETRAEEEREW
T BREENE  DEETEMERMER
FORFEEBRRE - RE2021FEK > 2
AGHETEARRENEERTER  BWH
LA EEE — AL - IRFIRMFEED - B
BRI - BT A5 6 E 21T A {E R AR
IR IPO BAZRMEE S - BEREEHE - ET
BNMERRIE  SHEHEEEEHAES
EE MRXTEEHEEERK  HITERR
TRIR B BERE DA ©

REARR » 2REFEEKNL (G BURRH B
R EEEENEERERSEETEDSBUFR
RSB BER AR+ BB R 2 ) B E 5
BARNGEEARZERBE R H i EER R
R ENTE - ERKNEBERAASRERRA
MEEENSNEEKSE SESEESIRN
EEHERIE  BOREBZEN-WBAE
BMREREE  REFPRABENKLENKT
MR R IBEF TR ©

Ri%  RESURRNBOZISE  RHEE
BHENEFPHXENEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

OVERVIEW

During the Year, Hong Kong’s economy was affected
by, amongst others, the global trade conflict and the
outbreak of COVID-19 and financial markets continued
to face uncertainties and challenges. Despite this
difficult period, the Company has remained steadfast
in providing its customers with comprehensive
insurance and financial services, while maintaining
business operation and development. At the same
time, China’s economy has first shown significant
signs of recovery amid the global pandemic.
The Group will take this opportunity to achieve
breakthroughs and sustainable development in its
business.

The Group’s sources of revenue includes life
insurance premium income and other financial
businesses including subscription fees and
management fees for products launched by the Group,
platform fees for distribution of third-parties products,
administration fee for employees stock ownership plan
management services, brokerage commission income
and corporate advisory fee income etc. For the Year,
the Group’s revenue amounted to HK$7,763 million,
representing an increase of 28% compared to that
of HK$6,044 million for the year 2019. The revenue
included HK$7,723 million premiums and fee income,
representing an increase of 28% compared to that of
HK$6,016 million for the year 2019, and HK$39 million
of income from other financial services, representing
an increase of 39% compared to that of HK$28
million for the year 2019. The adjusted operating
profit is approximately HK$832 million, representing
an increase of 16% compared to that of HK$716
million for the year 2019. The Group’s consolidated
profit amounted to HK$949 million, representing an
increase of 54% compared to that of HK$615 million
for the year 2019. The net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$618
million, representing an increase of 141% compared
to that of HK$256 million for the year 2019. The
improvement of the Group’s results is mainly due
to satisfactory performance of insurance business,
the improvement in the operation of non-insurance
businesses, and the significant increase in realised
gains from equity investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN RO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
REVIEW

REMBRR

FEBMFRAEHMBRRENOT

The financial highlights of the Group were as follows:

Consolidated financial result analysis

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

REVBREDN
BE+-A=1+—HULFE BEEET

2020 2019 Change %
—E-ERF —E-hEF Bt %
Income A
Premiums and fee income REREAKRA 7,723 6,016 28
Profit after taxation BREIZIER 949 615 54
Net profit attributable to the EBEANELRRFEE
owners 618 256 141
Basic earnings per share (HK$) SREAXREFR(GBT)
(Note 1) (K1) 0.186 0.080 133
Final dividend proposed per EEoRARBERRKE
share - — NA &
At 31 December, HK$ million R+=A=+—H BEBE#T
2020 2019 Change %
—EEF —E-hEF #1t %
Total assets EEHEE 87,553 75,327 16
Total equity FER %R 19,342 15,463 25
Owner’s equity mE AES 13,381 10,103 32
Owner’s equity per share (HK$) #HEEASREZR (BT
(Note 2) (Mt 2) 3.46 3.13 11
Note 1: The denominator is weighted average number of Kt 1 : DRERNTZBEBRNIMMEFLITE -
ordinary shares of the Company.
Note 2: The denominator is total issued shares as of 31 Kiato - ST RABZEHEFET-_A=1+t—HMNE
December of the respective years. BITROEEH -
ERSRERBRAR

—ECEEFR



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

REVIEW (Continued)

Consolidated financial result analysis (Continued)

Analysis on profit for the year, HK$ million

REMBRE ()

REMBRBDN(E)
FEEBFDH - BEET

2020 2019 Change %
—EEH —E-hF 21t %
YF Life segment operating BERRoBLEERA
profit 962 850 13
Other financial services Hit 2 ®AiR%E N LD R D5
and corporate segment REE
operating loss (130) (134) (3)
Total operating profit KT A RE 832 716 16
Adjust for the following profit or HEELTEHRER
loss and expenses impact: 2E .
— Investment income from - BEEEENRER
disposal, fair value &% BRESTE
changes of risk hedging TEANAAREBEESE
derivatives and fair value BURFELEREN
change and impairment of NREBEEZBIR
certain investments =l 245 (82) NA £
— Staff share award — BIRMEBTE

amortisation expense e 12 7 71
— Legal and professional fee — WIBEBREINER

and other expenses for MEXEBER

acquisition of YF Life Hith &R (8) (46) (83)
— Finance cost (Note 1) — BB AN (A T) (132) (69) 91
— One-off adjustments — —REREHEFE2)

(Note 2) ) (1) 3 times 1&
— Consolidation adjustments — EOtRE(ME3)

(Note 3) 4 90 (96)
Profit for the year IEFE R F 949 615 54
Less: non-controlling interests & - JEIRIRAEZ (331) (359) (8)
Net profit attributable to the B AERER P

owners 618 256 141

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

10

The amount includes bank interest expenses and
other finance expenses incurred for the capital
required in the Group’s strategic investment.

One-off adjustments represent the impact of
professional consultancy fees incurred for non-
recurring project expense.

The consolidation adjustments represent the financial
impact arising from the acquisition of YF Life.

Certain comparative figure is restated based on
the finalised purchase price allocation of prior year
acquisition of YF Life.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS REUBRRA)
REVIEW (Continued)
Changes in owner’s equity BEEAEZEE
HK$ million BEET
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
Balance at 1 January —B—BZ&%E 15,463 15,354
Adoption of new accounting standard R EstER - (11)
Share based payment transaction URDERBEEERNRS (12) (7)
Issue of subscription shares BITRBRO 2,044 -
Acquisition of and capital injection to WEBERBRITE
YF Life - 328
Acquisition of additional interest in W iE BB R EEMER
YF Life — (1,561)
Profit for the year REEGER 949 615
Other comprehensive income and others E 2 E UK E i 898 745
Balance at 31 December +ZA=+—H 6% 19,342 15,463
Attributable to: LR :
— equity shareholders of the Company —ARAEERR 13,381 10,103
— non-controlling interests —JERER 5,961 5,360
Total equity RSB 19,342 15,463

The Group’s total shareholders’ equity amounted to
approximately HK$19,342 million as at 31 December
2020 as compared to the total shareholders’ equity
of HK$15,463 million reported at the end of last year.
The increase is mainly due to the improvement of
operating result for the year and the completion of
issue of subscription share of HK$2,044 million.

INSURANCE BUSINESS REVIEW

To facilitate a more thorough and comprehensive
review of the insurance business, YF Life, the related
financial data excludes the fair value accounting
adjustments made on the acquisition. Management
considers the full year operation and financial data
excluding fair value accounting adjustments made
on YF Life acquisition and intragroup transaction
elimination with other business segment of the
Group is able to provide reader with more relevant
information on the business performance of the
insurance business segment operating results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

OVERVIEW

During the year 2020, our insurance business
remained as authorized insurer licensed to carry on
life and annuity, linked long term, permanent health,
and retirement scheme management long term
insurance businesses in Hong Kong. It also operates
in Macau through a branch office and is licensed to
sell life insurance products in Macau.

Our insurance business division maintained diversified
product suite includes four flagship products: (i) the
“FLEXI-ULife Prime Saver”, an enhanced universal
life insurance plan; (ii) the “MY Lifetime Annuity”, a
plan providing guaranteed lifetime annuity income to
act as a safety net during the customer’s retirement;
(iii) the “Infinity Saver 2”7, a flexible insurance savings
plan allowing customers to accumulate capital with
potentially higher return; and (iv) the “PrimeHealth”
series which are critical illness products covering a
wide range of illnesses.

The tied agency force consisted of approximately
3,409 (2019: 2,973) agents in Hong Kong and Macau
as of 31 December 2020. In addition to the tied
agency force, we also utilise brokers and agency
intermediaries as well as banks and other financial
institutions to distribute insurance products. As of
31 December 2020, the insurance business division
has approximately 510 (2019: 442) employees and
more than 506,000 (2019: 491,000) in-force individual
policies.

During 2020, our insurance division continues to
develop its tied agency, brokerage and agency
intermediary and bancassurance distribution channels
to increase penetration in the market, to broaden
its access to potential customers and to meet the
evolving preferences of existing customers. Tied
agency is the most significant distribution channel in
terms of premium and fee income contribution and
we plan to continue to steadily grow its tied agency
force. We also seek to expand our brokerage and
agency intermediary distribution channel to serve
sophisticated customers who we believe are more
receptive to independent advice. For bancassurance
distribution channel, we will aim to strengthen
partnering relationships with existing banks and
financial institutions. Furthermore, our insurance
division has been exploring to re-formulate overall
strategy of online sales channel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW (Continued)

In addition, our insurance division aim to optimise
product mix by developing and promoting products
with higher margins, such as refundable critical
illness products. To further improve the information
capability and usage of digital platforms to match the
preferences of potential and existing customers, our
insurance division is actively developing virtual-face-
to-face solicitation tools and continues to enhance
online customer servicing tool.

Future development in the insurance business

In the year 2021 and coming years, our Group
will continue to optimise the product mix through
promotion of products with higher margins such as
refundable critical illness policies. To further improve
the information capability and usage of digital
platforms to match the preferences of potential and
existing customers, the insurance division has been
developing virtual-face-to-face solicitation tools
to extend such kinds of activities to most of our
flagship products and continues to enhance the online
customer servicing tool “YF LINK”.

EHEBEBARAT
S
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

TOTAL PREMIUM AND FEE INCOME

Total premium and fee income (“TPI”) measures
its business volumes by referring to the total TPI
reported under the Insurance Ordinance (“10”). TPI
consists of full amount of single premium, first year
regular premium and renewal regular premium before
reinsurance, and includes deposits and contributions
for contracts. In preparing the financial statements in
accordance with HKFRS, YF Life chooses to unbundle
the deposit component of insurance contracts from
TPl and such deposit component is credited directly
to the policyholders’ deposit upon receipt. Therefore,
the revenue recognized in the financial statements
prepared under HKFRS is less than TPI before intra-
group transaction eliminations.

RENBRABARE

RENERRARBREBBSEZ(REERG)
(TERBRARAI 1) 3R 5 BV RE B B A BB R
BHXKE -RENBARABBEEBEENR
B2 BFETHRENBRZANVERA
RE BEBENHRR - RE(BBHBRS
ZRDFEHFBHRRE  BEERBEERRE
RERWARDHFREERNFEIHD - M
ZRHEMBIRUEREETARESEANE
e EHt - RIB(E B IR E L B4R 89 8
T3 B B0 XX 5 1 85 A R A W s R
RERERHBARE -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+-HLFE

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hEF
HK$ million HK$ million
B&ET &8
Total premium and fee income reported REBERBGHRENRERER
under 10 ONL 10,329 8,881
Less: Premium deposits separated out B RRBERPEBES R
from insurance contracts and BERESNERRARER
recognition of fee income (2,604) (2,863)
Premium and fee income recognized in EENB BT ERSZERDEI
the income statements under HKFRS ERTEANREREARA 7,725 6,018

Management considers TPl as one of the important
measures of the Group’s operating performance and
believe they are frequently used by analysts, investors
and other interested parties in the evaluation of
insurance companies. The management also uses TPI
as an additional measurement tool for the purposes
of business decision-making. TPI is not a measure of
operating performance under HKFRS and should not
be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, profit
before tax in accordance with HKFRS.
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BUSINESS VOLUME

Management Discussion and Analysis

The tables below set forth the TPl of the Insurance
business by (i) geographical region, (ii) distribution
channel and (iii) product type based on internal

records.

U

By geographical region

E3 3

BEENWE DM

TRERRILHZ()VBEEE - ()2 HER
B () EmBEHIN TREBEBNRERE
WA 45 -

U

I E i

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLHFE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
HKS$ million % HK$ million %
BEET BEET
Hong Kong 58 7,179 70 7,007 79
Macau LY 3,150 30 1,874 21
10,329 100 8,881 100
(ii) By distribution channel (i) EHHERE
For the year ended 31 December
BET-B=1+-HLEE
2020 2019
e —E-NF
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Hong Kong Macau Total Hong Kong Macau Total
B il G BE sl A%
Tied agency BRAE 4,307 1,136 5,443 4,099 1,091 5,190
Brokers and non-tied RLAMEBR
agency e 2,289 151 2,440 2,370 22 2,392
Banks and other RITHNAMESH
financial institution HiE 583 1,863 2,446 538 761 1,299
7,179 3,150 10,329 7,007 1,874 8,881
ERSRERBRAR
—EEFFR 15



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS VOLUME (Continued)

(iii) By product type

EWKE(E)
(iii) RERER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEE

2020 2019
St 33 “E-0E
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET HEET
Hong Kong Macau Total Hong Kong Macau Total
i) RF CH &8 2P aF
Regular premium HRE
— First year - Bf 763 1,381 2,144 1,336 892 2,228
Regular premium HMRE
— Renewal — &8 6,140 1,702 7,842 5,274 933 6,207
Single premium BHRE 273 65 338 394 48 442
Fee income ERBA 3 2 5 3 1 4
7,179 3,150 10,329 7,007 1,874 8,881
EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW RAEBENHEEER

BUSINESS

The Embedded Value method is a commonly adopted
alternative method of measuring the value and
profitability of a life insurance company. Embedded
Value is an actuarially determined estimate of the
economic value of a life insurance business based
on a particular set of assumptions as to future
experience, excluding any economic value attributable
to future new business. Value of New Business
represents an actuarially determined estimate of
the economic value arising from new life insurance
business issued in the relevant 12-month period.

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the components
of embedded value. This methodology makes
implicit allowance for the time value of options
and guarantees and other risks associated with
the realisation of the expected future distributable
earnings through the use of a risk adjusted discount
rate and is consistent with the industry practice in the
market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW
BUSINESS (Continued)

The embedded value of the insurance business as at
31 December 2020 is HK$15,736 million (31 December

BEENWE DM

NEEENHELEEE)

ﬁi—v—vﬂi+ H + H 'T%'ﬁ%i%ﬂg
NEBEA15736EET(ZE—NE+=A

2019: HK$16,351 million) with breakdown as below. =+—H :163.51&EBx) » FHEWT °
HK$ million BEEETT
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 Change %
g 3 —E-NF
t=A=t—-B +=A=t-H 21t

Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW”) KREFEMF 1)

(note 1) 4,724 5,989 21)

Value of in-force (“VIF”) business BEMEBRNBRERRAZ

after CoC (note 2) BNEEME2) 11,012 10,362 6

Embedded value NEEE 15,736 16,351 (4)

Note 1:  The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong BraEt - RARFEHEEBLITREECLNEEF
Kong statutory basis, with marked-to-market B EERMRBRELIBNETEEE
adjustment to certain assets. The ANW change is TETEFTERAE KLHAEFESAT
driven by increase in liabilities arising from market BRETRIIENEEIEMESE -
interest rate drop.

Note 2:  The VIF is the present value of future estimated etz : BHEBBEEREEVNEBNARRMGEH
after-tax statutory profits from in-force business, BAEANEWERE  URBESIERT LB,
discounted at the risk discount rate. The VIF growth W] o ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬂ&%%ﬁuﬁﬁﬂ
is driven by new business acquired and favourable WERKER 35 W ARREBEREERT
actual experience, partly offset by future economic IREHELE -
assumption update.

For further detailed discussion and movement analysis BA—ZE—-—hhEFE+=-BR=+—HZ=-Z= E

of embedded value of insurance business from 31
December 2019 to 31 December 2020, please refer to
the Embedded Value section.

EHSURMARLT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT

RIEBEEB S BEEVBRE

REDHBNEZMHENERNBRBETHERE
ENEAQIABERRNEERNBR S EHA
2RI REC(ERBYBRELEREZFE

The key financial data of insurance segment is
presented under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) on a full year basis before any

fair value adjustment arising from the acquisition W2 o
accounting policy and intra-group transaction
eliminations:
2020 2019 Change %
—B-EHF —E-hF 1t
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BEET
Income WA
Premiums and fee income REREBRWA (Mita)

(note a) 7,725 6,018 28
Premiums ceded to reinsurer o HERE (Mt a)

(note a) (2,935) (1,948) 51
Net premium and fee income RENRERWAFEE 4,790 4,070 18
Change in unearned revenue REBWAEEEE

liability (214) (651) (67)
Net earned premium and fee WHIRERERABA

income HEE 4,576 3,419 34
Net investment and other BREFMEMURAFEE

income (note b) (Htatb) 6,103 4,676 31
Reinsurance commission and BREMASMER

profit 97 78 24
Benefits, losses and expenses #Aft - BEMNEA
Net policyholders benefit BREAM (M)

(note c) 3,273 3,197 2
Commission and related HEFMEEER

expenses 1,351 1,205 12
Deferral and amortisation of EEREEBEAN

deferred acquisition costs IEFEFN S (AfEEd)

(note d) (437) (853) (49)
Management and other EERAEMBX

expenses 754 736 2
Change in future policyholder RRREFEALH

benefits (note e) S8 (fite) 4,695 3,038 55
Profit before taxation PR AT R 1,140 850 34
Taxation i1E 50 49 2
Profit after taxation BRI &R 1,090 801 36
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

The increase of the balance mainly arises from the
newly launched short-term endowment product,
other new business and natural growth of in-force
portfolio.

The balance includes net investment and other
income, interest income from bank deposits and
other operating income.

The balance includes net claims, policy benefits
and surrenders, interest credited to policyholders’
deposits and dividends to policyholders.

The balance decreases due to higher amortisation.

The balance includes both change in future
policyholders’ benefits to both insurance and
investment contracts. The increase of the balance
mainly arises from the newly launched short-term
endowment product, other new business and natural
growth of inforce portfolio.

OPERATING PROFIT

For management decision making and internal

performance management purpose,

the Group

refers to the operating profit which excludes the
investment income from disposal, fair value changes
of risk hedging derivatives and impairment loss of
investments. The operating profit and profit for the
year grew by 13% to HK$962 million and 36% to

BEENWE DM

REBEB DB EEH BB (#)

Hiita :

Wb -

Kizte -

Biatd :

Kiite :

mEnR

ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁmmlgﬁaﬁ"%ﬂﬁﬁ HEMBRE
C HMHEBHNAEREASHWERER -

BRECEREFEMAMBEA - RITEX
MEWAFEMEEWA -

BERERENEE  REWSEMERRE
REZFHEANEAREFFEMRESAA
BRE o

BRESERRREFEARRBNERES
B W 2L - BRERAVIE AN £ i R IE
HIWEMBRER AHEBNENRAE
EHBERER -

AEBUKRE RN (TEREEEENRER
W BRERTEIANAAGEEZEBHURR
ENREBE)FAEEBARRABENE
EEW AEELLEAILER13% £9.62F
/ﬁ)’ﬁ&z'xﬁi]#/ %UWE%%;UO 91 BT ©

HK$1.09 billion respectively.

2020 2019 Change %
—B-EHF —E-hF 1t
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BEET
Operating profit (note 1) BERR (1) 962 850 13
Adjust for the following profit or FAEUTIEZELEA
loss and expenses impact: =% 3
— Realised capital gain/(loss) — BEREARKEGE
and short-term derivatives (BR)MEITET
market value fluctuation AMSEERBNER
and impairment loss on EREEX
investment 128 (49) NA
Profit for the year AEFEER 1,090 801 36
Note 1: Operating profit represents profit generated from Bzt 1 - RSN IEMBOETSEE AR ENRF o
core business activities.
Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁl‘ﬁﬂﬂ

TEFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENMAER

The following table sets out the key financial TREH TWBSARREENEALIAEBE
information with respect to the assets and liabilities FEMEBEABKE 28 - R BHAEAN
employed by the insurance division before any EENEBNETENBER -

fair value adjustment arising from the acquisition
accounting policy and intra-group eliminations.

As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—HA=+—H
2020 2019
—g-%E —F-NF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET
Investments ®BE 62,357 54,187
Cash and deposit BEMER 1,878 2,253
Deferred acquisition costs FIEREBEB/RA 5,998 8,208
Other assets HthEE 6,602 4,170
Total assets EEHE 76,835 68,818
Insurance contract provisions REEREES 54,287 47,957
Investment contract liabilities REGRAE 4,529 4,613
Other payables HAh S TR 3,262 3,382
Total liabilities BERE 62,078 55,952
Net assets EEFE 14,757 12,866

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INVESTMENT ASSETS

The table below sets forth the asset allocation of the
investment portfolio of the insurance division based
on the classification in conformity with the reports
provided to the management of the Company to
measure the performance of the investment portfolio
which can be reconciled to total investments carrying
amount in above table for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

BEENWE DM

REEE

TREBRRIBPIREGLAEERNIRESA
ENEEIBBRESE  UHEREASHA
Mo ZBEDEAUNREXRPINEBEE—Z -2
F+-A=T-BLEFEER=Z-NAF+ZA
St-HLEFERREREEETHR

As at 31 December

Rt=A=t-8
2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET H&EET
Debt securities BERES 45,967 38,370
Mortgage loans KIFER 6,547 7,023
Equity securities ERES 1,887 1,332
Cash for investment AREBENRS 515 1,082
54,916 47,807

Unit trusts and investment policyholder BUEERBREREFEA

plans related securities srEIfIEEERE & 7,915 7,150
62,831 54,957

Note: Certain comparatives have been adjusted to conform = ETHBHEBECHELRAR  UFEEREE

with current year end presentation. RAHFBAR

As at 31 December 2020, 91.7% (2019: 93%) of the
debt securities invested have Standard and Poor’s
rating of BBB- or above or equivalent rating from
other reputable rating agencies. As at 31 December
2020, 82.2% (2019: 96.3%) of the mortgage loans
have internal rating equivalent to Standard and Poor’s
ratings of BBB or above or equivalent ratings from
other reputable rating agencies.

The table below sets forth the total investment income
based on internal records:

BE-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H REGKEE
EHNN TR (ZE—NF :93%) EFEEE
BT BBB- S WA LS H {52 B 17 YT AR
BRREIH RIBEZZEFF+A=+—
H'822% (ZZE—h&F :96.3% HWIEHRE
WA TR EZEEHITIRAEBBBRU L
HEMEERIFNWIREBNESIRESE -

TREHTERAINCHENIRE WA

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

Interest income and others FE WA FIE A 1,974 1,703
Dividend income R E U A 166 151

The investment income excludes income arising from
investment-linked products.

ERSHERERAT
—ETFFR

REWATSREBESREENEA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

KEY OPERATIONAL DATA OF THE

INSURANCE DIVISION

The table below sets forth certain other key

operational data of the insurance division.

R

TREN TREDBHAMBEZELHE -

As at 31 December

Market position/share (by regular
premium income)

Number of employees

— Hong Kong

— Macau
Number of tied agents

— Hong Kong

— Macau
Number of brokers and non-tied agents
Number of bancassurance partners
MDRT qualifiers (Note 1)

Expenses ratio (Note 2)

Notes:

WSEN N (REHRE

LON)

BEHE
— &8
— BFT

BRAREHE
— B8
— BP

REANFBRAEHE
RITRESEBHEAE

BEERSERAE(ME1)

BRARMZ2)

1. Million Dollar Round Table (“MDRT”) is a global
professional association of life insurance and financial
services professionals that recognizes significant sales

achievements and high service standards.

2. Expenses ratio is operating expenses expressed as a

percentage of TPI.
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2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
12th/1.6% 12th/1.5%
g£124 F124L
1.6% 1.5%
486 421
24 21
2,373 2,003
1,036 970
527 502
6 5
356 178
7.3% 8.4%

BEBESE(MDRT)) RE2RASREBAN SRR
BEXAEHE  HIRKEEAHEXENS
BIRRISIREE o

BALERURENTEBNESLRTHER
CEE

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SOLVENCY
MARGIN

The table below sets forth a summary of the total
available capital and solvency ratio, the ratio
expressed as a percentage, of the surplus to the
required solvency margin of the legal entity carried
out the insurance business related activities, as
determined at the relevant time in accordance with
the Insurance Ordinance (Cap. 41 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“10”), as the case may be, as it may
be amended from time to time,, and its subsidiary
legislation and based on standards required by the
IO and methodology consistently applied by our
insurance division.

BEENWE DM

BB NMENEE

TRET A BEABEMNENA L RFR
B e R B RIBR IR ZE R B (BB A D56 41
) (TREGEG D RBRME - 78 N4
HIBET) ~ REMBER - WRERBIRDS
EREMRFRED S —BUE ARG ERE
HESERENZEERANTREXBERED
FREENEINRBBREDL

As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—H=+—H
2020 2019
—B-BF  —B-NF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEET B &
Total available capital A AERERE 6,868 6,801
Regulatory minimum capital RIEEEER 2,384 2,083
Solvency Ratio BEX 288% 326%

The solvency ratio was 288% at 31 December 2020,
down by 38% from 326% at 31 December 2019.
The lower solvency ratio was driven by increase in
liabilities arising from market interest rate drop.

EHEBEBARAT
S

R-ZZEZEF+ZA=+—H BEEXS
288% =T —-—AF+=ZA=+—HH
326% IR T38% - EEXRTHREHKMS
METRESIEHNEBEMATE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

OTHER BUSINESSES REVIEW
Brokerage Business

During 2020, the turnover of brokerage business
amounted to HK$20,490 million (2019: HK$9,875
million), representing an increase of 107%. The
brokerage team closely followed all popular trends in
the IPO subscription market since the beginning of
the year, increased the overall limits for IPO financing
available to its customers, utilised external funds
to provide margin financing facilities reserved for
customers with large subscription amounts in selected
IPOs, and allocate more resources from operating
activities to the provision of IPO financing for IPO
subscription activities. With respect to improvement
in user experience, online procedures were introduced
to improve the efficiency of funding transfers and
lowered error rate. Going forward, the brokerage
division will develop business in the following
aspects according to the Company’s To-C strategy:
1) riding on the launch of super APP and focusing
on IPO subscriptions, the division will respond to
and resolve issues encountered by customers on
a timely and orderly basis to fully enhance user
experience in conducting online transactions; 2)
leveraging the advantage of access to capital for
financial institutions, the division will fully explore the
needs of customers including margin financing while
broadening the customer base; and 3) the division will
contribute to the acceleration of the integration of the
Group’s ecosystem.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN
ADMINISTRATION

In 2020, the Employee Stock Ownership Plan
Administration (“ESOP”) division successfully signed
contracts with a number of listed companies and
provided them with professional share incentive
scheme management services. Besides, it helped
clients improve management efficiency and reduce
costs through the exclusive “Youyu eKeeper” platform.
The number of users of the platform has grown
steadily and the related securities trading income as
well as the asset management scale have also shown
notable growth. Going forward, the ESOP division
will focus on system optimisation, providing more
customised features and standardising, streamlining
and automating internal procedures to reduce manual
processes and operating costs. Moreover, it will
further strengthen flow of business from employees
by creating a one-stop automated all-process
management system and continue to strengthen
origination of new business and cooperation with
existing channels, actively explore new channels to
realise long-term cooperation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINTECH

In 2020, the Fintech Business Department was
established to formulate solutions for different
financial institutions. During the Year, our Fintech
division has successfully implemented an internal
project management system to enhance efficiency
of project execution and quality of deliverables while
achieved cost saving. Going forward, our Fintech
team will leverage on the existing expertise and
efficiently apply technology to insurance, brokerage,
fund and corresponding marketing strategies to
support the Group’s business development and
launch “Yunfeng Youyu” online products and achieve
continuous upgrade of their core functions to bring
user experience up to the middle to upper market
level.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

In 2020, the Group’s asset management business
continued to enhance its existing advantages in
overseas asset allocation. Going forward, although
the real economy will remain relatively fragile, the
global stock indexes have repeatedly reached new
highs amid massive liquidity in capital markets. To
seize market opportunities, the asset management
division will, on one hand, strengthen the cooperation
between Youyu Wealth and other channels to increase
the sales of equity-based funds, and on the other
hand, enhance the research and selection of funds to
enhance the competitiveness of fund products on our
platform. In respect of asset management products
and special accounts, the asset management division
will continue to strengthen and deepen cooperation
with the Group and external parties, launch asset
management products with “Yunfeng characteristics”
and strategically provide overseas high-quality asset
management products targeted at high-net-worth,
ultra-high-net-worth and corporate clients in order
to contribute to the brand building of Yunfeng in
overseas markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the pace of global economic recovery
will depend on the degree of the Covid-19 vaccine
rollouts and the effectiveness of stimulus policies
introduced by governments of all major markets.
At the same time, the Group will prudently monitor
the continuing impacts of such factors as the
heightened tensions between the United States and
China, the higher geopolitical risks and the uncertain
macroeconomic environment on the execution of its
business development plans. The Group will continue
to focus on implementing its strategic plan to capture
growth opportunities in the life and health insurance
and wealth management markets in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area with a view to
successfully transforming itself into a comprehensive
one-stop financial services provider offering high-
quality online and offline insurance and wealth
management solutions to our customers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fixed bank
deposits with original maturity over 3 months and cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$4,293 million
(2019: HK$2,555 million). As at 31 December 2020,
the Group has HK$1,554 million (2019: HK$1,499
million) bank borrowing outstanding and HK$1,641
million (2019: HK$1,561 million) shareholder’s loan
outstanding. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2020 is 14.18% (2019: 16.52%), which was
measured as total debt excluding those operation
related liabilities to total debt excluding those
operation related liabilities plus equity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Details of movements in share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 42(e) to the
financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK FACTORS

In 2020, the Group carried out timely and complete
identification and evaluation to manage the key risks.
The identified risks are being monitored according to
the risk appetite and also the related regulation by the
board of directors and also the related committees
assisting the board.

U

(ii)

Strategic Risk

Management recognised the importance of
incorporating insurance business with the
financial service ecosystem of the Group.
On the other hand, management is keen on
enhancing the business process and integration
with financial technology to create values to all
customers of the Group. The overall enhancement
and integration process creates uncertainties
and increase degree of difficulties on related
risk management requirement. Management
proactively devotes sufficient resources to
support and enhance the ongoing process.

Insurance Risk

Management considers insurance risk mainly
comprised:

Product design risk — potential defects in the
development of a particular insurance product.
To mitigate the risk, each of the new products
is required to go through pre-launch reviews
by various departments, including product
development, actuarial, legal and underwriting to
ensure the risk being aligned with the Group’s
risk appetite.

Lapse risk — the possibility of actual lapse
experience that diverges from the anticipated
experience assumed when products were priced
as well as financial loss due to early termination
of policies or contracts where the acquisition
cost incurred may not be recoverable from
future revenue. Management carries out regular
studies of persistency experience which will be
assimilated into new and in-force management
and build in measures including surrender
charges to manage the financial impact upon
early termination by policyholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Insurance Risk (Continued)

Pricing or underwriting risk — the possibility
of product related income being inadequate
to support future obligations arising from a
product. Further details related to this risk and
the related mitigation and monitoring measures
is set out in Note 5 “Insurance and financial
risk management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Claim risk — the possibility that the frequency or
severity of claims arising from insurance products
exceed the levels assumed when the product
were priced. Further details related to this
risk and the related mitigation and monitoring
measures is set out in Note 5 “Insurance and
financial risk management” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Market Risk, Credit Risk, Foreign Exchange
Risk and Liquidity Risk

The details of the market risk, credit risk, foreign
exchange risk and liquidity risk identified and
their related mitigation and monitoring measures
are detailed in Note 5 “Insurance, financial risk
management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect
loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, personnel and systems or from
external events. The Group manages the risk
primarily through risk and control self-assessment
and reviews losses and fraud issues and provides
guidance, training and assistance to relevant
personnel for ongoing risk management purpose.

Risk and management control

Detailed risk and management control is set out in
corporate governance report section in this annual
report from page 61 to 64.

28

R\ Bg R & (%)
(i) REzEER(H)
EEILREAR — EREBVRATEN

(iii)

(iv)

XEEMELENARREBHTEME B
B 5% 2 B 2 A B L B PR K R S IR R B D
EZHBHNEGHUBRRM ISR
MR ERE ] -

BRER — REERBERAOERIBRE
REBBEMEEBRMRRKRKFEHT
BEME o 5 B8 P2 E B % AR B R B P MK I B
BEEBNESHFRIANS M BRERM
H5[ RNV BRARER] -

miEEAk - FRAAR - MERBRNRD
EEREE

SRR N TERE  SRER - SMER
B A% B & £ [ B K HL AR B O R B B A
REREERFBRNE M BHRRMES
(RN T EpR EE | o

KEEkR

%«M EﬂIEE‘ﬂEAW EIBIJIL*E }\Eﬁ%\gﬁ
TE:W&&:SZ&I**B%#%‘&E@E}%EEF&
BEEANER AEEFTERBEKRI
ZHE BRI UEXBANEREE
REERER AHEEASRMES -
FZINFEHE  UEBREFENRBERER
E’g o

JeR, B 0 3 42 )

HANERNEREEHRENAFRECRR
64 HEXERMEID

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

At the year ended December 2020, the Group
did not have any charges on assets, other than a
security deposit of HK$150,000 (2019: HK$300,000)
for banking facilities and HK$7,542,647,000 (2019:
HK$5,609,487,000) of investment together with
HK$309,648,000 (2019: HK$259,250,000) of fixed bank
deposit in favour of Autoridade Monetaria de Macau
to guarantee the technical reserves in accordance
with the Macau Insurance Ordinance.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments are set out in note 45 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segments are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

STAFFING AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 708
(2019: 654) full time employees, 553 (2019: 485) of
which were located in Hong Kong, 24 (2019: 21) in
Macau and 131 (2019: 148) in the People’s Republic
of China. The remuneration of employees includes
salary retention package and discretionary bonus. The
Group also adopted share option and share award
schemes to provide an incentive to the employees.

The remuneration policy and package, including
the share option and share awards, of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and
reviewed annually by the management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWE DM

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION CONDUCTED
DURING THE YEAR

As disclosed in the circular issued by the Company
dated 21 September 2020 (the “Circular”), the
Company entered into subscription agreements on 7
September 2020 with 1) Jade Passion in relation to
the subscription of 484,665,279 ordinary shares of
the Company at the subscription price of HK$3.17
per ordinary share (the net price is approximately
HK$3.165 per share after the deduction of the related
expense) and 2) MMI in relation to the subscription
of 160,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Subscription Price of HK$3.17 per ordinary
share (the net price is approximately HK$3.165 per
share after the deduction of the related expense)
(together refer to “Issue”). The market price of the
Company’s ordinary share on 7 September 2020
was HK$3.37. As both Jade Passion and MMI are
substantial shareholders, they are connected persons
of the Company. Accordingly, the entering into of
the subscription agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The total consideration for the Issue was
HK$2,043,588,934 settled by cash. With its vision, the
Group intends to utilise financial technology services
to further establish a financial services ecosystem
and provide a wide range of financial services and
products. The directors considered that the Issue
strengthened the Group’s capital base and enhance
the Group’s financial capabilities, which would be
beneficial to further optimizing the Group’s existing
business and financial conditions and achieve the
goal to diversify the development of the Group’s
business. The Group would continue to focus on
the development of existing business, and actively
seek and develop new growth points, including but
not limited to, the establishment and acquisition of
projects which could create synergy effect with the
existing business and diversification of the Group’s
business.

The subscription of ordinary shares has been
completed and total proceed of HK$2,043,588,934
was received on 29 October 2020. After the
completion, Jade Passion held 1,827,641,279
representing 47.25% of total issued ordinary share of
the Company and MMI held 960,000,000 representing
24.82% of total issued ordinary share of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

Subscription agreement dated 7 May 2015

The unutilized proceeds of HK$120.9 million up
to 31 December 2019 from the share subscription
agreements dated 7 May 2015 have been fully utilised
during the year for the establishment of a private
wealth management platform and the development
of a financial services ecosystem purposes. Such
usage is in accordance with the intended use as
set out under the section “Use of Proceeds” of
the Company’s circular dated 18 August 2015, the
subsequent adjustment in use of proceeds as set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
October 2016 and the interim report of the Company
dated 29 August 2019.

Subscription agreements dated 7 September 2020

For the proceeds from subscription shares have
been utilised subsequent to the subscription as
set out under the section “Use of Proceeds” of the
Company’s Circular dated 21 September 2020, the
table below sets out the proposed application of net
proceeds and usage up to 31 December 2020:
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29 October  Proceeds up
2020 to to Expected timeline for
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Proceeds 2020 2020 proceeds
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Strategic investment  E{BIRE (#iF 1) 1,224.6 - 1,2246  Expected to be fully utilised
(note 1) on or before Dec 31, 2023
BFE2023F12 312
AR
Asset management  BEEBENR(H:22) 306.1 (23.4) 282.7  Expected to be fully utilised
business (note 2) on or before Dec 31, 2023
B 20235 12931 BE2
HZEAFA
Securities brokerage ~ EHFELER (HF3) 306.2 (284.1) 221 Expected to be fully utilised
business (note 3) on or before Dec 31, 2021
BEE2021F12 831 A
ARAFA
Working Capital EEBES(MH4) 204.1 (37.9) 166.2  Expected to be fully utilised
(note 4) on or before Dec 31, 2022
FE2022 512 A31 B2
AR
Total: ‘st 2,041.0 (345.4) 1,695.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1.

mainly utilised on potential strategic investment
for business diversification and enhancement.

mainly utilised on asset management platform will
launch the financial products from time to time,
in order to achieve positive synergies between
the Company’s capital management and growth
of its asset management business, and facilitate
external fundraising for such products.

mainly utilised on the securities brokerage
business (i) when more cash is required to
be injected into the business to increase its
liquid capital resources in accordance with the
increased trading volumes; and (ii) the securities
financing business when more cash is required
to be injected into the business to support
higher demand for IPO loans or margin financing
transactions.

mainly utilised on general working capital
which covers expenses incurred in the ordinary
course of business of the Group, including
but not limited to manpower, rental expenses,
data license and network expenses and office
equipment expenses.

Remark: The expected timeline of utilising the

remaining proceeds is subject to significant
uncertainties including but not limited to
the negotiation with counterparties, market
conditions and demand, global economic
environment, investment sentiment and
regulatory approval (if applicable) for the
above purposes. The Company adopted
a treasury management model that may
involve (but shall not be limited to) holding
fixed income instruments and high quality
financial investments in order to maximize
the Shareholders’ interest as a whole.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period are set out
in note 53 to the financial statements.
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information
REEBEGEERNNBYREMKRE

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

We have reviewed the Embedded Value of YF Life
Insurance International Limited (“YF Life”) (“the YF Life
EV”) set out on pages 35 to 43 of the Annual Report
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company”
or “Yunfeng Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020 (“the EV information”).

The directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparation and presentation of the EV
information in accordance with the general principle
and methodology of traditional embedded value and
industry practice for publicly listed companies in
Hong Kong. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the maintenance of underlying data and
information on the in-force business and preparation
of the EV information which is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
performing EV calculations; selecting and applying
appropriate methodologies; and making assumptions
that are consistent with market information and are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility, as independent actuaries, is to
perform certain review procedures set out in our letter
of engagement and, based on these procedures,
conclude whether the EV methodologies and
assumptions are consistent with industry practice for
publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, the general
principle and methodology of traditional embedded
value and available market information.

We have reviewed the methodology and assumptions
used in preparing the EV information, including the
following:

° The YF Life EV as of 31 December 2020;

o Value of one-year new business of YF Life issued
during the year ended 31 December 2020; and

o Movement analysis of the YF Life EV and
sensitivity analysis of value of in-force business
and value of one-year new business of YF Life.
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information

NEBEERFMNBUREM®RE

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(Continued)

Our review procedures included, but were not
limited to, discussing with management of Yunfeng
Group the methodology and assumptions, inspecting
documentation relating thereto, and considering
whether the methodologies are consistent with the
general principle and methodology of traditional
embedded value and industry practice for publicly
listed companies in Hong Kong and whether the
assumptions are consistent with available market
information.

The preparation of EV information requires
assumptions and projections to be made about
future uncertain events, many of which are outside
the control of Yunfeng Group. Therefore, actual
experience may differ from these assumptions and
projections, and this will affect the value of in-force
business and the value of one-year new business.

In forming our conclusion, we have relied on the
integrity, accuracy and completeness of audited and
unaudited data and information provided by Yunfeng
Group. Our work did not involve reperforming the EV
calculations, nor verifying the data and information
underlying the EV information.

Based on our review procedures, we have concluded
that the methodologies and assumptions used in
preparing the EV information are consistent with
industry practice for publicly listed companies in Hong
Kong and with available market information.

This report has been prepared for and only for the
Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with
our letter of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person whom this report
is shown or in whose hands it may come.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd.

Xiaobin Yuan, FSA

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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BACKGROUND

The Group mainly consists of two major
segments including life insurance business and
financial services in the areas of investment
holding, asset management, pensions, other
businesses and corporate services. Life Insurance
business is operated by YF Life, a 69.8% owned
subsidiary, which is the most significant part of
the Group in terms of total asset and profitability.
To provide additional information of the insurance
business of the Group, the Group disclosed the
Embedded Value (“EV”) of the segment.

DEFINITION

EV is a measure of value of shareholders’
interests in the earnings distributable
(“distributable earnings”) from assets allocated
to the in-force business after sufficient allowance
for the aggregate risks in the business.

The EV equals to:
o Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW?”), plus

° Value of the in-force business before cost of
capital (“VIF before CoC”), minus

° Cost of Capital (“CoC”)

The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong
Kong statutory basis, with marked-to-market
adjustment to certain assets of our insurance
business segment.

The VIF before CoC is the present value of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits from in-
force business, discounted at the risk discount
rate as at 31 December 2020. Cost of Capital is
the difference between the amount of required
capital as at 31 December 2020 and the present
value of future releases, allowing for future after-
tax investment earnings on the capital.

Similarly, the new business value is calculated
as the difference of new business value before
CoC and CoC arising from new business sales in
the period. The new business value before CoC
is the present value, discounted at issue date,
of future estimated after-tax statutory profits
emerging from new business sales in the past 12
months, ie 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

EHSREBARAT

=

E_TFFR

Embedded Value
NEEE

46 85
A=

AEBMIEZAMBELE - ASRBRER
MNERRE REREER BEEE
BRARE  HbEXEBNEERBEE
B ASRMEBHERE69.8%EHH
MT%’RT%L%F@“”*  RRBEREE
RENBNENTHARAEENREER
AR o BIREAEERBER N
&R AEBREZDHNASEE -

T
WAFTE;—E%TH-_%W BRETIRT D E

BED ﬁx&%i%ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬂ’]? a0
mﬂFﬂxiﬁéﬁnE’J BItEERE

A

il
i

S HE
KPARFEE ML

9‘,;

e BAREBHREAMAZANE
B BE

LI N SN

KARFEEEBEEEEZLNEE
FE 2EEMREXZIBNETE
E%Eﬁ&ﬂﬁ‘l‘f‘;?ﬂ*" °

BREBNBREARARN A NEERE
BMEBHARRMGTHBEEENBHR
B U-FE_TF+_-_A=1+—HWHA
BAERRTUMR BARAR-ZTZ
EE+ A=+ -BFELSRHEX
REBETHECHNEZH  XEREARKRE
AR ERE WS -

R HEFEELREHEANNRE
AR EREERREBHEEE
ENERRA BN EZ=RTE - KA
ZFEWI—‘J%UE’J%E%Z‘%E{EEL%mTIH
‘I'—H_-f' E)%ﬁ%?’]’%fﬁ’*?iﬂ’ﬂi;ﬁ
AR EEERNBNRE (R BT H R
B e

35



Embedded Value
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the
components of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and
guarantees and other risks associated with the
realisation of the expected future distributable
earnings through the use of a risk adjusted
discount rate and is consistent with the industry
practice in the market.

In determining the value of in-force business, our
insurance segment’s in-force policy databases as
at 31 December 2020 were used. New business
volumes and mix were based on the actual
business written by our insurance segment in
the 12-month period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020.

It should be noted that, in assessing the total
value of a life insurance company, the value
attributed to future new business can be
determined as the product of the one-year new
business value and a multiple which reflects an
allowance for future new business sales and the
risks associated with it at the assumed profit
margin.

The Group has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”), an international firm of consulting
actuaries, to examine whether the methodology
and assumptions used by us in the preparation
of the Embedded Value as at 31 December 2020
is consistent with standards generally adopted by
insurance companies in Hong Kong.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The calculations of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value of insurance business segment
are based on certain assumptions with respect to
future experience. Thus, the actual results could
differ significantly from what is envisioned when
these calculations were made. In addition, the
insurance business segment is held through a
69.8% owned subsidiary of the Group. With the
Embedded Value and the New Business Value
of the insurance business being presented on a
100% basis below, the related value assessment
should be considered accordingly.
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5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE

5.1 Embedded value

Embedded Value

5. BEERBRASEER
51 AEEE

31 December

NEEE

31 December

2020 2019
—EC-EE —E-hEF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Adjusted Net Worth KRARFEE 4,724 5,089
Value of in-force business before BMERINBREARRARH
cost of capital BEE 13,287 12,386
Cost of capital B (2,275) (2,024)
Embedded value NEEE 15,736 16,351
Attributable to: LR
Owners of the Company ARATRERKRR 10,984 11,413
Non-controlling interests IS 4,752 4,938
Embedded value ANEEE 15,736 16,351
5.2 New business value 5.2 HEKERE
For the past For the past
12 months 12 months
as of as of
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
8Bz Bz
—E-EE —E-hEF
+=A +=A
=+—HILEHW =+—A8HLH
1218 B 1218 A
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
New Business Value before cost of HIBRE 2 B 2N B 19 ET ¥ 76
capital BE 668 630
Cost of capital B (127) (107)
New Business Value after cost of HBRE RN KA E R £ TS
capital BE 541 523
EESREBRERAR
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Embedded Value
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE
(Continued)

5.3 Movement analysis of embedded value

BERBASEE®E)

53 AEEEEBIM

2020

—EEF

Notes  HKS$ million

Krat BEET

Embedded Value as at 1 January R—B—HMREERE 16,351

New business value EKERE a 541

Expected return on Embedded value REEEERKE b 1,342

Assumption and model changes e SR E 1L c (2,375)

Investment return variance REORERE d 152
Other experience variance and exchange Hh&EBH=RENEREE

rate impact e (275)
Embedded Value as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HMHRE

[ELE 15,736

Note:

a)

b)

New business contribution from sales
of new business in the past one-year

Return on value of in-force business
plus expected interest on Adjusted Net
Worth

Impact of assumption and model
changes on the future distributable
earnings of the in-force business

Differences between the actual
investment returns and expected
investment returns

Differences between the actual
experience and expected experience
for mortality, morbidity, lapses, and
expenses

Bfat -
a) BE-FARAHMEBHESHER

b) BMEBHERM ELERAEF
BEFEHIF &=

c) MBRMEBBIHBUERLK
KA EWRSEHIE

d ERREEREBHRERR
ZENER

e) EBRKEMEETE- BFEE.-
RRERMNEANWFARER2H
HEE
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE 5. BERBRASEEGE)
(Continued)
5.4 Key assumptions 5.4 FERR

Our policies state that it adopts a
best estimate approach in setting the
assumptions which are used in the
calculation of its Embedded Value and New
Business Value. The assumptions were
based on the actual experience of YF Life
and certain industry experience.

The basis and assumptions used in the
calculations are summarised below. These
assumptions have been made on a “going
concern” basis.

Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate represents the
long-term post-tax cost of capital of the
hypothetical investor for whom the valuation
is made, together with an allowance for
risk, taking into account factors such as the
political and economic environment in Hong
Kong.

We use risk discount rate of 8.75% for 31
December 2020, and 9% for 31 December
2019, respectively, as the base scenario
assumption for both in-force and new
business.

Investment returns

Future investment returns have been
calculated as the weighted average of the
investment returns on existing assets and
new assets.

The investment returns on existing assets
and new assets have been determined by
book yield, the forward rate yields available
on US government bonds, credit spreads
that reflects the allowance for risk of default
and equity return of underlying assets
respectively.
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B o

KMo BIERS.75% M 9% 1 E
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE
(Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Credit rate

The crediting rates for universal life business
have been set to reflect regulatory and
contractual requirements, policyholders’
reasonable expectations and earn rate
assumptions. The crediting rates were
worked out as earn rate less crediting rate
spread.

Mortality

The mortality assumption is based on
both emerging experience and industry
experience, reflecting its expectation of how
experience will emerge.

The experience mortality rates have been set
as a percentage of HKA93 mortality table
with an adjustment of increased mortality
at older ages (“Adj. HKA93”). There were
also adjustment factor for non-smoker and
smoker.

Morbidity

Morbidity rate assumptions have been set as
a percentage of the reinsurance rates due to
the lack of credible claims experience.

Lapse

The lapse assumptions were based on YF
Life’s experience and adjusted to reflect
the results of its recent experience. The
assumptions have been set with reference
to pricing assumptions where credible
experience data is not available.

The lapse assumptions vary by products and
policy duration.

5.
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5.4 TERRKR(E)
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5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE
(Continued)
5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Operating expenses
Operating expenses have been projected
based on unit expense assumption.
Projected excess or saving of expense
compared with unit expense assumption has
not been included in VIF or new business
value. The historical excess or saving of
actual expense compared with unit expense
assumption has been included in ANW
component of EV.
Inflation rate
Future inflation rate was assumed to be
2% per annum for 2020. This assumption
is based on expectations of long-term
consumer price and salary inflation.
Taxation
A tax rate of 0.825% of net premium income
has been assumed for 2020.
Required capital
The embedded value projections assume
that it maintains required capital at 150% of
minimum solvency margin.
Statutory valuation
The distributable earnings are based on
statutory reserve in accordance with the
Hong Kong reserving regulations.
Reinsurance
The cost of the financial reinsurance is
modelled based on reinsurance contract
terms. The cost of surplus reinsurance
contract is not material and has not been
explicitly modelled, but reflected in the
margins added to the mortality and morbidity
rates.

*%%Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ
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Embedded Value
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Embedded Value

NEEE

5.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE
(Continued)

5.5

Sensitivity testing

We performed sensitivity analysis on the
value of in-force business and the new
business value as at 31 December 2020, by
independently varying certain assumptions
regarding future experience. Specifically, the
following changes in assumptions have been
considered.

New money yields increased by 100
basis points per annum

New money vyields decreased by 100
basis points per annum

Risk discount rate increased by 50
basis points

Risk discount rate decreased by 50
basis points

10% increase in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 110% of the central
assumptions)

10% decrease in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 90% of the central
assumptions)

10% increase in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in mortality and
morbidity rates and loss ratios (i.e. 90%
of the central assumptions)

10% increase in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)

5.

BERBASEE®E)

5.5

SRR
R=F=2F+=A=+—H &
FMBEREENBAEARERNHE

LERE  HAMEBEENHES
BEETTHAMLEI - AEM
= BAEZETHRRWEL -

o HIBEEWRETFEIM100E

B
o HIBEEWSEFHD1001E
B

o  ERBRIIBINS0MEI T

o  RERBRIHMDS0EHTF

e EBRREEMAMRRE R M
10% (BNEZERFZAI110%)

o EBERZEMIAMRERFD
10% (BNEZE/RRI0%)

« RTEABHEEURIAKES
110% (EDE2ERH9110%)

o RUEMBHFEUREBRER
10% (ENEZERRHI90%)

o EIFAEEERILIN10% (B
HEBREZMW110%)

o EEMEEZEMMD10% (B
EEBKRHI0%)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE

(Continued)

5.5 Sensitivity testing (Continued)

Embedded Value

NEEE

5. BERBRASEE®AE)

5.5 SUBMRE(E)

Value of New
in-force business
business value after
after cost
cost of of capital
For the year 2020 capital Assumptions
HIBRE A& HIBRE A
R #E W o %N
—B-EHF BREKEE MEBEE
Assumptions HKS$ million  HKS$ million
B& HEET BEET
Base scenario EARRE 11,012 541
New money yields increased by FIREEWRREESFIEM100
100 basis points per annum [ER 12,178 680
New money yields decreased by FimEEWRESERL 100
100 basis points per annum 18 27 8,146 403
Risk discount rate increased by 50  [E k2 B85 3R =18 i1 50 1E 25+
basis points 10,145 476
Risk discount rate decreased by 50 [E\ 2 B3R 2=iF 4 50 {E 25 F
basis points 11,972 613
10% increase in lapse rate and skip EAR R & R E R N
premium rates 10% 11,009 535
10% decrease in lapse rate and BREMNIRRERRD
skip premium rates 10% 11,026 548
10% increase in mortality and RTERMBHRUARIBAE
morbidity rates and loss ratios EH10% 10,038 462
10% decrease in mortality and RTRMBHRUARIBAE
morbidity rates and loss ratios WA 10% 11,998 621
10% increase in acquisition and EERMAEFEREM10%
maintenance expenses 10,858 510
10% decrease in acquisition and ERMNERERRL 10%
maintenance expenses 11,167 572
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABER

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Yu Feng, aged 57, was appointed as the
Chairman and a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee in November
2015. Mr. Yu is the co-founder and chairman of
Yunfeng Capital, a private equity firm founded by Mr.
Yu together with other entrepreneurs in 2010.

Mr. Yu is a director of YFHL, Key Imagination and
Jade Passion. YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade
Passion are substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Yu obtained an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School, the PRC in March 2001
and a master of arts degree in philosophy from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1991.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Ke, aged 56, was appointed as executive
director, vice chairman and chief executive officer
in October 2020. Mr. Zhang is a partner of Yunfeng
Capital. He was the chief strategy consultant of China
Taiping Insurance Group Limited, vice chairman
of Taiping Life Insurance Limited (“Taiping Life”),
chairman of Taiping Poly Investment Management
Co., Ltd., director of Shanghai Rural Commercial
Bank Co. Ltd., the secretary of the party committee,
director and general manager of Taiping Life, general
manager of Taiping General Insurance Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhang is the vice-president of the Insurance
Association of China, chairman of China Insurance
Marketing Elite Alliance Council (“ 7 B4R b & $5 45 5
BB EE "), global international director of LIMRA-
LOMA, a full member of Geneva Association, part-
time visiting professor of Sichuan University and is a
senior financial manager.

Mr. Zhang obtained a doctoral degree in economics
from Sichuan University in December 2006 and
a bachelor’s degree in philosophy from Sichuan
University in July 1985.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Huang Xin, aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee in November 2015. Mr. Huang is a partner
and a member of the investment committee of
Yunfeng Capital. Mr. Huang served as vice president
of Shanghai Kaituo Capital Limited from 2006 to
2010, where he was in charge of various investments.
Mr. Huang was vice president of finance at Target
Media Holdings Limited from 2005 to 2006, where Mr.
Huang managed its daily financial operations and led
its equity financing and merger and integration with
Focus Media Holding Limited. Mr. Huang worked at
General Electric Company from 1997 to 2005.

Mr. Huang is currently a director of Sanxiang
Impression Co., Ltd (stock code: 000863) which is
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a director
of YTO Express Group Co., Ltd (stock code: 600233)
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr.
Huang is a director of Jade Passion, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a master of business
administration degree from China Europe International
Business School, the PRC in October 2011 and
a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1997.

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, aged 41, was appointed as a non-
executive Director in November 2015 and was re-
designated as an executive Director and appointed
as interim chief executive officer in February 2020.
She has ceased to be the interim chief executive
officer of the Company in October 2020. Ms. Hai is a
managing director of Yunfeng Capital and specialises
in investments and management related to the
financial services industry, especially for investments
in Internet Finance and strategic management
in insurance company. Prior to joining Yunfeng
Capital, Ms. Hai was an actuarial partner at Deloitte
China from 2012 and was engaged in the provision
of consulting services to overseas and domestic
insurance companies. Ms. Hai has also worked at
HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited in Hong Kong from
2010 to 2012 and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the
United Kingdom from 2002 to 2010.

Ms. Hai is a qualified fellow member of the Institute
and Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom and a
fellow member of the China Association of Actuaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed, aged 54, was appointed
as a non-executive Director in November 2018. Mr.
Ahmed is also a director of YF Life. Mr. Ahmed is
the chairman, president and chief executive officer of
MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Ahmed joined MMLIC, the parent holding company
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company, in
October 2015 as Executive Vice President and Chief
Human Resources Officer. Mr. Ahmed brings with him
an impressive history of more than 20 years of global
financial services and leadership experience, ranging
from operating to human resources roles. He joined
MMI from Citigroup, Inc. in London where he was
Managing Director and Head of Human Resources
for Europe, Middle East and Africa as well as the
Global Head of Recruitment for the firm. Previously,
he led global shared services in the operations and
technology division for all of Citigroup employees.

Prior to joining Citigroup in 2010, Mr. Ahmed began
his career at Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, rotating
through various roles including corporate finance,
operations, credit and human resources. He then
spent 17 years at Morgan Stanley in New York, Tokyo,
Sydney and Hong Kong, during which time he held a
range of roles including Chief Administrative Officer
and Head of Human Resources, Asia.

Mr. Ahmed is a non-executive director on the board
of Nippon Wealth Insurance in Japan, a subsidiary
of Nippon Life. He is on the Advisory Board of NPX
Capital, Korea since October 2019 and also on the
Advisory Board of Essenlix Corp., US since November
2020. Prior to the current board directorship, he
also served on the board of Temasek Management
Services, Singapore between 2010-2018, Human
Capital Leadership Institute in Singapore from 2017-
2019, and Bank Handlowy, Poland and Citibank
Turkey, both between 2012-2015.

Mr. Ahmed holds a bachelor of science degree in
computer science, a bachelor of arts degree in
international relations, and a master’s degree in
business administration, all from Tulane University. He
is based in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Michael James O’Connor, aged 52, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in March 2020.
Mr. O’Connor is the General Counsel of MMLIC,
leading its legal, compliance, government relations,
internal audit and corporate governance functions.
MMLIC is the sole member of MMI, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. O’Connor was
appointed as a manager of MMI, a substantial
shareholder of the Company on August 2020.He is a
member of MMLIC’s Executive Leadership team. Mr.
O’Connor initially joined MMLIC’s Law Division in 2005
and from 2008-2011, he led the company’s corporate
law and government relations teams. From 2011 to
2017, Mr. O’Connor served in a number of business
leadership positions at MMLIC, first as Chief of Staff
to MMLIC’s CEO Roger Crandall and later as head of
corporate development and mergers and acquisitions
and then as head of MMLIC’s international insurance
operations.

Prior to joining MMLIC, Mr. O’Connor served from
2002-2005 as U.S. General Counsel of Irving Oil
Corporation, an independent global petroleum refiner
and marketer. From 1995 until 2002, Mr. O’Connor
practiced corporate law at Goodwin Procter LLP
in Boston, where he was a member of the M&A/
Corporate Governance and Securities & Corporate
Finance practice groups. Mr. O’Connor received
a B.A. in Legal Studies from the University of
Massachusetts at Amherst. He earned his J.D. from
the Boston University School of Law, where he was a
G. Joseph Tauro Distinguished Scholar and an Editor
of the Boston University Law Review, and his M.B.A.,
majoring in Finance, from the Wharton School of
Business at the University of Pennsylvania.

ERSHERERAT
—ETFFR

EERSREEABER

FHTES(E)

Michael James O’ Connor %4 @ 52 5%
RIBEZEF= Hﬁ;&%ﬂ-‘ﬂ?#iﬂ TE
¥ o O’Connor%t £ EMMLICHY #2 5% £ &
B BExE 28 BBER "ATEZ
&m%%ﬁ%m’MMUC%MWWEQE’
BARBZEERRE - HEMMLICHITSE
EBKE c O'Connor EER=—E=F ﬁ)\ﬁ
EEZEEAMMIZEE Mw%¢ﬁ12£§
BRER o O’Connorf‘ﬁiﬁ—?ﬂfi"_ TEREMA
MMLICA#EH » —EENFEZE-ZE——FE
1£E§’D\ﬁﬁﬁm¥/£iﬁﬁl£&ﬁ%§1%l%ﬁﬁk °
—E-——FZ-F—+FHE > O’'Connor’k
EthEMMLIC%{IE%ﬁ% RV £EE
FEMMLIC 1T B 42 :ﬁzRoger Crandall #y 2 &
B ERERHBEE - MMLICEB{R B

MMAMMLICZHI » O’'Connort E R =FE
—EECEERFHBEEBE LA HRE
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁlrvmg il Corporatlon eSS
F'EJ , fﬁ%’”%’&T,ja'EO/J?Zi@EEEl@@EﬂT%
TR > EO0HE ARERRESRE
XBMENPIEZE - O'Connor A S EEFEHE
REMRFTFORERLEETEN  HEE
BT RE LB B ARE LB IHA
G Joseph Tauro B E MK T E KB EE
TmimEE  UREBSINEE KBEEGER
ﬁﬁi‘él%’s’ﬁﬁﬁi&u FIELRE o

47



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Daging, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee in February 2016. In
March 2019, Mr. Qi was appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Qi is currently
a professor of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business where he previously served as director and
associate dean of the executive master of business
administration department. Mr. Qi’s research interests
primarily focus on financial accounting, financial
reporting and their impact on corporate business
strategy. Mr. Qi has published many articles in
accounting and finance journals. Mr. Qi worked
at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the
Feature Syndicate of the Department of Home News
for Overseas, Xinhua News Agency prior to joining
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2002.

Currently Mr. Qi serves as independent director
of Sohu.com Inc. (NASDAQ: SOHU) and Momo
Inc. (NASDAQ: MOMO), all of which are listed on
NASDAQ; and independent non-executive director of
Haidilao International Holdings Limited (stock code:
06862), Bison Finance Group Limited (stock code:
00888), SinoMedia Holding Limited (stock code:
00623) and Jutal Offshore Qil Services Limited (stock
code: 03303), all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Qi served as an independent non-
executive director of Honghua Group Limited (stock
code: 00196) from 18 January 2008 to 1 January
2018, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
an independent non-executive director of Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (stock code:
03699) from 29 January 2016 to 20 September
2016, a company delisted from the Stock Exchange
on 20 September 2016. Mr. Qi had also been an
independent director of Focus Media Holding
Limited (NASDAQ: FMCN) and AutoNavi Holdings
Ltd. (NASDAQ: AMAP), all of which were listed on
NASDAQ, an independent director of Bona Film Group
Limited and iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. which
were listed on NASDAQ and ceased to be public
companies, and an independent director of China
Vanke Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000002; and listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02202).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Qi graduated with a doctoral degree in accounting
from The Eli Broad Graduate School of Management
of Michigan State University in the U.S.A. in 1996. He
also obtained a master’s degree in management from
University of Hawaii in the U.S.A in 1992 and dual
bachelor’s degrees (in biophysics and international
news) from Fudan University in 1985 and 1987
respectively.

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard, aged 72, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in August 2011. Mr. Chu was the vice
president, Asia and chief representative, China of
Teck Resources Limited. Mr. Chu was responsible
for the development of an Asian strategy for the
company, monitoring China’s economic performance
and promoting business development opportunities
in China. Mr. Chu held various positions including
corporate controller for Teck Resources Limited from
1978 to 2007 and was the vice president, Asia and
chief representative, China from 2007 to April 2011.

Mr. Chu serves as an independent non-executive
director of Grandshores Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 01647), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and was a member of
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Mr. Xiao Feng, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee in
March 2019. Mr. Xiao is currently the vice chairman
and executive director of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd. (FE B @m#ZE R B R 2 A). Mr. Xiao has
more than 27 years of experiences in finance, asset
management and securities management and had
served key positions in different institutions including
securities management office of the People’s Bank
of China, Shenzhen Branch from 1992 to 1993,
Securities Management Office of Shenzhen from 1993
to 1998 and Bosera Fund Management Co., Ltd. from
1998 to 2011. Since 1998, Mr. Xiao has also been
appointed as the director, chairman or president of
various finance company, fund or asset management
company, trust company and insurance company.

Mr. Xiao obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in
Chinese from Jiangxi Normal University in 1983 and a
doctoral degree in economics from Nankai University
in 2003.
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EERSREEABER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Dai Shuyan, aged 44, joined the Group in
November 2020, is the Senior Managing Director of
the Group. Ms. Dai has over 18 years of experience
in insurance industry and team management. Before
joining the group, Ms. Dai was the chief actuary and
deputy general manager at Taiping General Insurance
Co., Ltd., also she worked in China Taiping Insurance
Group Limited (“China Taiping”) as deputy general
manager of marketing department and general
manager of business management department.

Ms. Dai graduated from Central University of Finance
and Economics with master’s degree in finance and
received a bachelor’'s degree in international finance
from Dalian University of Technology. She is also an
associate member of China Association of Actuaries
and Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, aged 46, joined the Group in
November 2015, is the Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and a Senior Managing Director
of the Group, and the executive director and senior
vice president of YF Life. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Chan was the deputy general manager of finance
department of China Taiping and had served several
positions including chief financial officer and company
secretary in China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 00966), the subsidiary of China
Taiping for over 11 years. Prior to this, he worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for 7 years.

Mr. Chan is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
associate member and practicing member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. It believes that a high standard of
corporate governance provides an effective framework
and solid foundation for attracting and retaining high
calibre and talented management, promoting high
standards of accountability and transparency and
meeting the expectations of all the Shareholders.

The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group stress the importance of a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all the Shareholders.

Throughout the Year, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Code,
except for the following deviation which is summarised
below:

Code Provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The Company
deviates from this provision because the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of
the Company states that one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not a multiple of
three, then, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at each annual
general meeting, and offer themselves for re-election.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures
have been put in place to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practice in this aspect provides
sufficient protection for the interests of Shareholders
to a standard commensurate with that of the CG
Code.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as stated
in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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TEERBRE

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s strategies, policies and business plans,
regulating and reviewing risk management and internal
control systems, formulating the Group’s corporate
governance policy, and supervising the management
of the business operations of the Group to ensure
that its business objectives are met. The Board
also ensures adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the Board members. The senior
management of the Group is responsible for the day-
to-day operations of the Group and accountable to
the Board.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ke

(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed
Mr. Michael James O’Connor

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daqging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

The current Directors and their brief biographical
details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, there are no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members and between the Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Company has been maintaining the number of
independent non-executive Directors at not less than
one-third of the number of the Board members with
a number of at least three and has ensured that at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by the Listing Rules. The participation
of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings independent judgement to ensure the interests
of all Shareholders have been duly considered.

For a Director to be considered independent, that
Director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of Directors, the Board follows the requirement set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 and the Company considers that
they are independent.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are
complementary, but importantly they are distinct
and separate with a clear and well established
division of responsibilities. The Chairman, Mr. Yu
Feng, is responsible for setting strategic targets,
providing leadership to the Board, monitoring Board
effectiveness and fostering constructive relationship
between Directors. The CEO, Mr. Zhang Ke, is
responsible for managing the business of the Group,
attending to the formulation and implementation of
Group’s policies, and assuming full accountability for
the Group’s operations.
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TEERBRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and at least 4 times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to the Directors the information
on the activities and developments in the businesses
of the Group on a timely basis and, when required,
additional Board meetings are held. In addition,
the Directors have full access to the information of
the Group and to independent professional advice
whenever should they consider necessary. During
the Year, a total of 7 Board meetings and 2 general
meetings, including an annual general meeting and
an extraordinary general meeting were held and the
attendance of each Director is set out below:

ETEEHERER  BFELETI4R-RN
EEEHNER 2 FEBSREEAER
HOEFRHEEEAEEXRBEHNRREE
B WREFENETRINESSSE - It
S BB RRERAEFTEN2HESEE
EERRBYINERER - RAFE » AR
BHETIREZTEEZN2ARRAE &
F1ARFBEAREGN1IRARREIAE » &
EECHEBREINMT

Number of meetings attended in the year ended 31 December 2020/

Number of meetings eligible to attend

BECT-RETCACT-REREEAY/REASNNEERY

Board NC RC AC AGM EGM
R #M B9 RRESF RR%&H
34 zEE ZEE ZEE  REWH)  Re&HE)
Chairman iE
Mr. Yu Feng (non-executive Director) — E¥%4(#8/78%) mn 202 - - 11 11
Executive Directors HnEs
Mr. Huang Xin EEfE m - 33 - 1/1 1/1
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou (re-designated as ~ BEZt(R-B_FF_B-1=
executive Director on 23 February RRAEAHTES)
2020) 0 - - - 1 i
Ms. Li Ting (resigned on 23 February ~ B4+ (R-F-FF-B-1=
2020) AEHT) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Ke (appointed on 8 October RT %4 (R-E=FF+ANRE
2020) Zf) 11 - - - - 11
Non-executive Directors FurEE
Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed £ 4 i - - - 01 1
Mr. Gareth Ross (resigned on 27 Gareth Ross £ (R=2=F£=f
March 2020) ZHEABE) 072 - - - - -
Mr. Michael James OConnor Michael James O'Connor 4 (=
(appointed on 27 March 2020) ZEEZACTLREZA) 55 - - - 0/ 0/
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Qi Daging ERELE 7 2/2 33 2/2 1 1
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard RFTHE m 22 33 22 1/1 1/1
Mr. Xiao Feng e 6/7 112 23 22 1/1 1/1
Note: Kzt
NC - Nomination Committee NC - REZEE=
RC - Remuneration Committee RC - N ZEES
AC - Audit Committee AC - B EEE
AGM - annual general meeting held on 19 June 2020 RERAFAE - RTE-ZEFEXA+ABETHRE
BE A
EGM - extraordinary general meeting held on 9 October 2020 BREESRAE - RZE-FBFE+ANBETHRES
BIXE

The Chairman also held a meeting with independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Directors during the Year.
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PROFESSIONAL TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the
Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company.

During the Year, all Directors have received the
following trainings:

CEERRE

EEEREI

PRES(BEBYFHTES ) BREMRS
BRESZHREEY THRARENERRE
B8N LEZESBRIE -—EAREN
REAEBEBR LT RRAESAREZEE
REESE-

RAFE  2RESCEZ THIEI:

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

Directors relevant topics
FBLEES EBERRE
BE= & H fth AH BA SR 28 2 1Z 3
Chairman EE
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
October 2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that
possesses an appropriate balance and levels of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
essential to support the execution of its corporate
and business strategies and to enhance the quality
and effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity
will strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in
driving business results; enhancing good corporate
governance and reputation; and attracting and
retaining talent for the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and
ethnicity, gender, age and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration factors
based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board composition
under major criteria for diversity was summarised as
follows:
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Board considers that the current Board
composition is diverse and meets the criteria of the
board diversity policy. Accordingly, no measurable
objectives have been set for implementing the said
policy. The Board will review the policy from time
to time to ensure that the Board Diversity Policy is
complied with.

A copy of the Board Diversity Policy is published on
the Company’s website for public information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Regarding the corporate governance function, during
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conducts,
corporate governance policies and practices
and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report. Besides, the Company has set up three
committees including, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
Each committee has its specific terms of reference
with reference to the CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr.
Qi Daqing with existing members of Mr. Huang Xin,
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Xiao Feng. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters such as making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management,
and to assist the Group in the administration of the
fair and transparent procedure for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) was adopted by the Remuneration
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
3 meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management of the Group by assessing their
performance and with reference to their expected
duties and responsibilities and the current market
condition and made recommendation to the Board.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the
Year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
The remuneration of the senior management during
the Year falls within the following bands:

yMEES(#)

RAFE  HFMEESSEITIRNEE - HFME
EECBEBMEERRURTSENRBR -
ERNTASHESKSRERABZHME
B YMESTRMUEBER

RAFE  BRAESHNHMKESH NP BRE
MFE13 SREEBNFMNFTIER:

Number of Individual

BE AR
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /& T £ 3,000,000 % 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 - HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 /& T £ 5,000,000 % 7T 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr. Yu
Feng with existing members of Mr. Qi Daqging and Mr.
Chu Chung Yue, Howard. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee have been determined with
reference to the CG Code and posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least once every year, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting individuals
nominated for directorship (if necessary), assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the CEO. In considering the nomination
of new directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
the review of the Board Diversity Policy, considering
factors including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service of Board members, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy (if any), and
monitor the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives (if any).

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 1
January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The objective
of the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Policy sets out
formal procedures for selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual
vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board
upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate
by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall include but not limited to
his or her integrity, accomplishment and experience,
in particular, in the industry of the Group’s
businesses, commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest and ability to contribute to the
diversity of the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 2
meetings. The Nomination Committee considered
the appointment of Mr. Zhang Ke as an executive
Director, vice chairman and chief executive officer,
Mr. Michael James O’Connor as a non-executive
Director and the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election based on the nomination policy. In
considering the nomination of appointment and/or re-
appointment of directors, the Nomination Committee
assessed the relevant candidates on criteria such as
integrity, experience, skill, professional qualifications,
independent mind and ability to commit time etc, and
made recommendation to the Board for approval. The
Nomination Committee also reviewed the structure of
the Board and the Board Diversity Policy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung
Yue, Howard, with existing members of Mr. Qi Daqging
and Mr. Xiao Feng.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and is a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr.
Chu has appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors,
to review the Group’s interim results and annual
results and to monitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group, to review the scope, extent
and effectiveness of the Company’s financial controls,
risk management and internal control systems,
internal audit and to review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year.
There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, inter alia, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, financial
reporting and risk management matters of the Group.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed, and had
meetings and discussions with external auditors,
on the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is
as follows:

TEEBRE

BB AT =
FTEFETRB 2 ERBSIWNT ¢

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

RIBZEE R-ZZE—-NF

Nature of services RISHEE +=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Audit services BT R 10,579 10,562

Non-audit services IEE TR 738 767

Total st 11,317 11,329
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING THE 4 BB IS 3R 5 1 B AT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
for preparing financial statements which give a true
and fair view.

The statement of the auditor of the Company on their
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

While the Group pursues growth in business, it also
recognises the importance of effectively managing
various risks associated with its operations. The
Group aims to achieve a good balance between
risks and growth by implementing appropriate risk
management and internal control.

The Board has the responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

As the insurance business has become Group’s
dominant business, to achieve comprehensive risk
management, the Group conducts risk management
and internal control at the main subsidiary (insurance
business) level as well as the Group level, and has
built a comprehensive system for which the Board
has ultimate responsibilities, and the risk management
and internal control systems covering all business
lines are supervised directly by the management and
supported by relevant professional committees with
close cooperation of all business functions.

ORGANISATION

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
which it is willing to take whilst achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control
systems (including their effectiveness) to safeguard
Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.

The board of directors of the main subsidiary of the
Group (insurance business) (the “Board of Subsidiary”)
has established its own audit committee and board
risk committee which are responsible for overall risk
management and internal control and report to the
Board of Subsidiary together with the management
of the main subsidiary of the Group (“Management of
Subsidiary”). Management of Subsidiary establishes
and supervises the risk management committee which
identifies, prevents and controls various risks and
reports to the board risk committee. The internal audit
functions are conducted by the key management
appointed by the Management of Subsidiary and
report to the Audit Committee. Overall, the Board of
Subsidiary reports to the management of the Group
on risk management and internal audit matters.

The internal control system of the Group is mainly
composed of operations, finance, risk management,
information technology, legal, compliance, and
audit functions, which is responsible for the risk
management of non-insurance business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Currently, the risk management framework of
the main subsidiary of the Group includes three
lines of defences of the overall risk management
model organized by key business functions, risk
management, compliance and legal, and internal audit:

The first line of defence is in charged by a team of
highly experienced and competent senior management
from key business functions. In particular, the risk
management policies and procedures are put in place
to safeguard a prudent underwriting policy.

The second line of defence is taken by the risk
management, compliance and legal department, as
well as the board risk committee of the Board of
Subsidiary which manage the respective business
risks including insurance risk, currency exchange
risk, investment and interest rate risk, credit risk,
operational risk, and regulatory and compliance risk.

The third line of defence is maintained by the internal
audit department. The audit committee of the Board
of Subsidiary will oversee and monitor through a risk-
based approach to its work, providing assurance
to the Board of Subsidiary and Management of
Subsidiary.

At Group level, the industry standard “Three Lines
of Defense” for the management of risks was
also adopted, comprising (1) first line of defence:
various business departments manage risk that they
respectively own; (2) second line of defence: the
risk management, legal, compliance and operation
function, which defines and co-ordinates the
operational risk strategy and framework, and is
responsible for the statistics and reporting of various
risks; and (3) third line of defence: internal and
external function provides independent assurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW

The review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems is
conducted annually. Issues raised for improvement
had been identified and appropriate actions were
recommended. The major risks and benchmarks are
set out in Report of the Directors on pages 70 to 73
of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW (Continued)

In 2020, the management of the Group regularly
conducted risk assessment and management, and
to review the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The risk committee of the Board of
Subsidiary held 3 meetings and weekly management
meetings were also conducted to discuss routine risks
monitoring.

During the Year, the Audit Committee of the Board
has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and considered that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Various risks were identified, monitored and
reported by risk management function, legal function
and compliance function. Corresponding measures
against those risks were implemented. In 2020, the
risk management department implemented the internal
audit function at the Group level and conducted
internal audit mainly on department’s operational
risks including description of existing workflow and
cases sampling inspection, which focuses on the
inspection of problems and deficiencies that have
occurred, in addition to tracking and recording
follow-up improvements. For the main subsidiary
of the Group (insurance business), internal audit
department has conducted internal control reviews
for various business functions throughout the Year
including operational, management information
systems and regulatory compliance reviews. The audit
engagements are performed according to the risk-
based and strategically-aligned audit plan which was
approved by the audit committee of the Board of
Subsidiary.

The Risk Management and Internal Control Reports
were presented to the Audit Committee of the Board
for review in March 2021 and the reports show that
as of the time when the annual review is conducted,
all risk assessment tests and risk monitoring reports
showed stable trends and favorable results and
no major risk incidents or events that have caused
significant financial losses to the Group have been
identified.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice
of timely, accurate and sufficiently details disclosure
of material information about the Group. With the
guidelines of the Company regarding the disclosure
of inside information, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside
information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide
about the need for disclosure.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Company:

— is well aware of its obligations under the SFO,
the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that information which is considered as inside
information should be announced promptly when
it is the subject of a decision

— conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the SFC

— informs all Directors, senior management
and related staff of the latest regulations and
requirements according to the letters issued or
announcements published by the SFC and the
Stock Exchange

— has developed procedures and mechanisms for
the disclosure of inside information

— has included in its compliance manual a
strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of
confidential, sensitive or inside information, and
has communicated this to all staff

— has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the
Company’s affairs. Only Directors and delegated
management of the Company can act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to
enquiries on designated areas
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
reports to the Board, and is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
information flows and communications among
Directors as well as with Shareholders and the
management.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, the company secretary of the
Company, has complied with the training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

How Shareholders Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

An EGM may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders or by such Shareholder(s) who made the
requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to section
566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance and the
articles of association of the Company. The objects
of the meeting must be stated in the requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited
at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening an
EGM.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders
representing not less than one-fortieth (2.5%) of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders; or not less
than 50 Shareholders on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per Shareholder, of not less
than HK$2,000, may make requisition in writing for
proposing resolution or business to be dealt with at
the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in section
615 of the Companies Ordinance for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suites 3201-3204, One Exchange Square, 8
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2845 9036/(852) 3102 9022
Email: ir@yff.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY

The Board is committed to providing clear and
full performance information of the Group to the
Shareholders through the publication of interim and
annual reports. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports sent to the Shareholders,
additional information of the Group is also available to
the Shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting for which at least 20 clear business
days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors
(including chairman/members of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee) as well as the representative of external
auditor, should attend and answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. All resolutions at
the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Group’s share registrar.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on
its effort to promote transparency and foster investor
relationships. Comments and suggestions are always
welcomed.

Further, the Company has adopted a dividend policy
on 1 January 2019. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Board,
depending on results of operations, working capital,
financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Board may consider relevant from time to time.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the constitutional documents
of the Company during the Year. The latest version of
the articles of association of the Company is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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The Directors submit herewith their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements. An analysis of the revenue and the results
of the Group by business segments during the Year
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review and future development of
the Company’s business are set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) section in this
annual report from pages 8 to 26. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indictors is also provided in MD&A in
this annual report from pages 8 to 30. Discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group and
key relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”) of this annual report. MD&A and ESG Report
also form part of this report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring
that the risk management practices of the Group
are sufficient to mitigate the risks present in our
businesses and operations as efficiently and
effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of
this responsibility to various operational departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business
and prospects may be affected by the following
identified risks and uncertainties. The Group adopts
risk management policies, measures and monitoring
systems to prevent and control the exposures to the
identified risks.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Regulatory risk

Our businesses operate in highly-regulated markets
and our success and operations can be impacted
by changes to the regulatory environment and the
structure of these markets. The Group pays close
attention to financial regulatory and legislative
developments of the markets it operates and actively
monitors and consults with regulators of the markets
on changes which could impact our business. Many
of our key businesses are also subject to direct
regulatory oversight and we are required to maintain
the appropriate regulatory approvals and licenses
to operate, and in some cases adhere to certain
stringent financial and capital covenants.

Insurance risks

The Group prices its insurance products based on
estimated benefit payments reflecting assumptions
with respect to mortality, morbidity, longevity,
persistency, interest rates and other factors. If
actual policy experience emerges that is significantly
and adversely different from assumptions used in
product pricing, the effect could be material to the
profitability of the Group. For participating whole
life products, the insurance company’s dividends to
policyholders primarily reflect the difference between
actual investment, mortality, expense and persistency
experience and the experience embedded in the whole
life premiums and guaranteed elements. The Group
also makes use of reinsurance to mitigate the impact
of its underwriting risk.

Market risks

Market risk comes from the changes in market
value of investment exposures, which are caused
by changes in market prices. The Group monitors
daily market price fluctuations and major news with
evaluation of their potential impact on the company,
and monitors the company’s exposure to the risk.
Market risks disclosure and an overview of market
risks are provided in weekly and quarterly reports.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Currency exchange risks

For the main subsidiary of the Group (insurance
business) (the “Main Subsidiary”), the currency
exchange risk is mainly related to certain insurance
policies that are not denominated in United States
(U.S.) dollars. However, most of the insurance
policies are denominated in U.S. dollars. As the Main
Subsidiary of the Group’s investments are primarily
made in U.S. dollars, coupled with the fact that
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the U.S. dollar,
management of the Main Subsidiary does not consider
that the currency risk is material.

For investments made in non-U.S. dollars, Main
Subsidiary mitigates currency risk through the use of
cross-currency swaps and forward contracts. Cross-
currency swaps are used to minimize currency risk for
certain non-U.S. dollar assets and liabilities through
a pre-specified exchange of interest and principal.
Forward contracts are used to hedge movement in
exchange rates. In year 2020, HKD liabilities were
closely hedged by currency swaps and forward
contracts and HKD bond.

Investment and interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the potential for interest rates to
change, which can cause fluctuations in the value of
investments and in the amounts due to policyholders.
To the extent that fluctuations in interest rates cause
the duration of assets and liabilities to differ, the Main
Subsidiary controls its exposure to this risk by, among
other things, asset and liability matching techniques
that account for the cash flow characteristics of the
assets and liabilities.

The main subsidiary of the Group tends to match
dollar duration of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income with its statutory
liability dollar duration under current statutory
regime of Hong Kong, to minimize the volatility
in the statutory solvency ratio. Thus it allows a
certain level of mismatch between asset and liability
duration under economic basis. On the other hand,
to prepare for the new risk-based capital regime, the
Main Subsidiary has started lengthening of the asset
duration (amortised cost investment) in the upcoming
years and will continue to maintain its dollar-duration
matched position under the current statutory regime.

After assessment of the ability of the Group to
withstand adverse change in interest rates, the
Group’s investment and interest rate risks are under
control.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Credit risks

Credit risk is the risk that issuers of investments
owned by the Group may default or that other parties
may not be able to pay amounts due to the Group.
The management of the Group’s credit risk mainly
focuses on whether various credit risks are within the
scope of the Group’s institutional regulations and are
summarized in the weekly risk report. The Group’s
stock margin business has been carried out smoothly
by the end of the year, and it has been significantly
improved when compared with that in 2019. The risk
management department prepares separate reports on
margins and trading limits every day. In the context of
the quite volatile stock market this year, it promptly
reminded the business and reduced the margin
exposure, avoiding possible losses from credit risks.

The Main Subsidiary attempts to manage its
investments to limit credit risk by diversifying its
portfolio among various security types and industry
sectors as well as purchasing credit default swaps
to transfer some of the risk if necessary. Considering
the resilience of the business to counterparty default
events, the credit risk exposure is maintained within
acceptable levels.

Cyber risks

Cyber risk means any risk of financial loss, disruption
or damage to the reputation of an organization from
some sort of failure of its information technology
systems, mainly including the security of network
equipment and possible external attacks.

For the year of 2020, the top cyber threats under
concerns also includes:

a) Data loss or theft. Confidential or restricted
information has been exposed to an unauthorized
party, internally or externally.

b) Attrition or denial of Service. An attempt to make
online service unavailable by overwhelming them
with traffic from multiple sources; attacks that
compromise, degrade, or destroy systems, or
networks, over time.

c) Supplier or third Party Breach. When a third
party that the Group has a business relationship
experiences a breach where the Group’s
confidential or restricted information has been
compromised.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Cyber risks (Continued)

d) Improper usage. Any unauthorized activity
resulting in violation of the Company’s
technology acceptable use policy by an
authorized user.

e) Insider threat. An insider threat can occur
from people who have some level of access to
the Group’s networks, computer system(s) or
data, including: employees, former employees,
contractors, business associates, or anyone who
intentionally misuses that access to negatively
affect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of the Group’s information or information
systems.

f) Malware or ransomware. Software that is
intended to damage or disable computers and
computer systems.

The cyber risk was monitored and the risk
management and internal control report in year 2020
showed that the number of incidents was stable and
manageable. There was no cyber issue to be alerted.

Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk caused by the fact that
actual losses, incurred for inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and operation systems, or
from external events. The sources of operational risk
are relatively wide. System, personnel, process and
other types of problems can lead to operational risks
which may be transformed to other types of risks. It
summarizes the risks a company undertakes when it
attempts to operate within a given field or industry.

The Group reports and tracks various operational
risks that have occurred to ensure the problems
are corrected and resolved. For the potential risks
discovered and recorded, the risk management
department has conducted research and discussion
with various relevant departments on preventive
measures and emergency measures and attempts to
avoid unexpected risk events. Emergency drills for
each business line and support department have been
conducted. Solutions for the problems found were
formulated.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year, and the
statement of financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in the financial statements
on pages 136 to 141.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the Year (2019: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 42(e) to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 42(c) to
the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 338.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year
are set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
on 21 July 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”) which
has a life of 10 years from the date of adoption.
The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 1 year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to the participants (being any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Directors or
consultants of each member of the Group, provided
that the board of Directors may have absolute
discretion to determine whether or not one falls within
the above category) and for such other purposes as
the Board may approve from time to time.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company
can grant options to participants for a consideration
of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the participant.

No participant shall be granted an option, if the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted
to such participant under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant would exceed 1% of
the shares in issue unless such further grant has been
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with
the participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

Where the Board proposes to grant any option to a
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to him in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) bhaving an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000,

such proposed grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case,
the Company shall send a circular to its Shareholders
containing all those terms as required under the
Listing Rules. The participant concerned and all
connected persons of the Company must abstain
from voting in favour of the resolution at such general
meeting. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve
the grant of such options must be taken on a poll.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted hereunder
shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date on which the option is offered to a participant,
which must be a trading day; (b) a price being the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

According to the Share Option Scheme, unless
otherwise determined by the Board, there shall be
no minimum holding period for the exercise of the
options but the options are exercisable within the
option period as determined by the Board and in any
event such period shall not be longer than 10 years
from the date upon which any particular option is
granted.

The total number of share option that could be
granted was 38,449,452, representing approximately
10% of the total issued shares of the Company on
the date of passing the resolution to refresh the Share
Option Scheme limit at the annual general meeting on
26 March 2012.

As at the date of this report, the total number of
share option that can be granted was 27,954,040,
representing approximately 0.72% of the total issued
shares of the Company.

During the Year, no share options had been granted,
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Board had approved the adoption of two share
award schemes respectively on 30 October 2014 (the
“2014 Share Award Scheme”) and on 12 December
2016 (the “2016 Share Award Scheme”).

The purposes of the above share award schemes are
to (i) encourage or facilitate the holding of Shares
by the selected participants; (ii) encourage and
retain such individual to work with the Group; and
(iii) provide additional incentive for them to achieve
performance goals.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)

The maximum number of shares can be issued or
purchased under the 2016 Share Award Scheme and
the 2014 Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares
in issue from time to time (i.e. 322,332,639 Shares,
representing 8.33% of total issued Shares as at the
date of this report).

2014 Share Award Scheme

Since the date of adoption of 2014 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 30 October 2014) (the “2014 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, a total of
9,330,239 Shares have been awarded under the 2014
Share Award Scheme, representing about 2.09% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the 2014
Adoption Date and about 0.24% of the total issued
Shares as at the date of this report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded
under the 2014 Share Award Scheme and as at 31
December 2020, 26,667 Shares were held by the
trustee under the 2014 Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme are
set out in Note 43 to the financial statements. Details
and other principal terms of the 2014 Share Award
Scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 October 2014.

2016 Share Award Scheme

Since the date of adoption of 2016 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 12 December 2016) (the “2016 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, 9,330,239
Shares have been awarded pursuant to the 2014
Share Award Scheme while 43,040,000 Shares have
been awarded pursuant to the 2016 Share Award
Scheme, representing in aggregate about 2.18% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the 2016
Adoption Date and about 1.11% of the total issued
shares as at the date of this report.

TMF Trust (HK) Limited (“TMF Trustee”) and Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited (“BoCom
Trustee”) have been appointed as the trustees for the
administration of the 2016 Share Award Scheme. TMF
Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of the
selected participants who are not connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.
BoCom Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of
the selected participants who are connected persons
of the Company. BoCom Trustee and/or TMF Trustee
shall not be entitled to exercise any voting rights in
respect of any Shares held under the trusts.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2016 Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under
the 2016 Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December
2020, 15,395,000 Shares were held by TMF Trustee
under the 2016 Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme are
set out in Note 43 to the financial statements. Details
and other principal terms of the 2016 Share Award
Scheme are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 12 December 2016, 11 January 2017
and 24 January 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ke (Vice chairman and Chief Executive
Officer) (appointed on 8 October 2020)

Mr. Huang Xin

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou (re-designated as executive Director
on 23 February 2020)

Ms. Li Ting (resigned on 23 February 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed

Mr. Michael James O’Connor (appointed on 27 March
2020)

Mr. Gareth Ross (resigned on 27 March 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

In accordance with article 103(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Yu Feng, Mr. Zhang Ke,
Mr. Hunag Xin and Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the Year and the Company
considers that they are independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the information of the Directors
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the publication of
the Company’s 2020 interim report and up to the date
of this report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
Year and up to the date of this report included: Mr.
Yu Feng, Mr. Huang Xin, Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, Mr. Zhang
Ke, Mr. Qi Daqging, Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed, Mr.
Chan Man Ko, Mr. Ng Yu Lam Kenneth, Ms. Liu Shu-
Yen, Mr. Liu Zhiguang, Mr. Leung Pui Hong, Mr. Ku
Sangi, Mr. He Shigiang, Mr. Wong Yin Hing, Mr. Lam
Shing, Ms. Zhang Ting, Ms. Jiao Qi, Ms. Wang Jing’,
Mr. Liu Shaojie', Mr. Brian Eden’, Mr. Neil Gray', Ms.
Qin Li?, Mr. Tay Keng Puang? Ms. Liao Yee Ching?,
Ms. Li Ting?, Mr. Cai Junyi?, Mr. Zhang Hongbin?, Mr.
Thomas Parsons JR?, and Mr. Leon Rhule?.

Notes:

1. Companies in which they serve as directors are
incorporated in places other than Hong Kong

2. No longer directors of the subsidiaries as at the date of
this report

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which requires the Company to give
a period of notice of more than one year, or to pay
compensation or make other payments equivalent to
more than one year’s emolument.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short
positions of each director of the Company and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
the Model Code under the Listing Rules, or known to
the Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company and the underlying Shares:

Name of Director

EENS B/ EENE

Capacity/Nature of interests

EERFERTRASRAERQFHEAHE
BB 2R ﬁ@ RESTER
ZREERHK

RZBZEE+ZA=+—H AREAEES
FEEETHAERARQAANEEMABE EZE
(EERBLERBEKRAEXVE) 2R G - 48
BRORESTEECTHENEAATARER
SERHEKRAEI2HKREFEZETMA » HE
RIEELERYE MM%W%&Lmﬁ%TM
ZESJRMERDNTARBER - RAATEA
BREBRK ﬁMT

RAEAREBEREEBERG ZHFR -

Number of Shares held

FEROEA
Percentage
Long of
position  shareholding

R BREDL

Mr. Yu Feng (note 1)
Corporate interest

BHEFSE (Mt 1) M EHEEREE LB
Note:
1. Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and a non-executive

Director, was interested in 1,827,641,279 Shares through
Jade Passion, a company which is owned as to 73.21%
of its issued share capital by Key Imagination. 91% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination is owned by YFHL,
the issued share capital of which in turn, is owned as to
70.15% by Mr. Yu Feng.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

BEERFETHAERAAT
BB R > HEARODRESHE
ZREERBKE(E)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying

shares of associated corporations:
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RAEBEEROREBERG ZFR -

Number of Shares held in
Associated Corporation

RAERZE RO EE

Name of Associated
Corporation

HEEE RS

Name of Director

ESHS

Capacity/Nature of
Interests

B0 RE@EME

Percentage

Long of
position shareholding
He BERESL

Yunfeng Financial
Holdings Limited
ERSRMIERERAE

Key Imagination Limited

Key Imagination Limited

Jade Passion Limited

Jade Passion Limited

Notes:

Mr. Yu Feng

R#TE

Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1)

R SEE (M 1)

Mr. Huang Xin (Note 2)

BEBEEWFZ2)

Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1)

RS (M 1)

Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest

BEREAAER
i

Held by controlled
corporation/
Corporate interest

M EHEEEE
EEER

Held by controlled
corporation/
Corporate interest

HMZEHEEFE
EEER

Held by controlled
corporation/
Corporate interest

M EHEEEE
EEER

BiEE:

94 70.15%
9,100 91%
900 9%
7,321 73.21%

1.

Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director, was interested in 9,100 shares, representing 91%
of equity interest in Key Imagination through YFHL, the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu Feng was
also interested in 7,321 shares, representing 73.21% of
equity interest in Jade Passion through Key Imagination.
Both Key Imagination and Jade Passion are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Huang Xin, an executive Director, is the sole
shareholder of Perfect Merit Limited which owns 900
shares, representing 9% of the equity interest in Key
Imagination.

EHEBEBARAT
S

1.

AEBEERFTAAFHTESERLEZBR
AT ZEERREHESHIZR M Key Imagination
#H 9,100 B 17 » 1h Key Imagination 2 91%
BRAE o EHEELETEBKey Imagination R Jade
Passion 48 7,321 lR IR {7 1k Jade PassionZ
73.21% PR #E o Key Imagination & Jade Passion
HERATZEERR ©

KRB ZEPITESEE %K% HPerfect Merit
Limited 2 M — % 3 > Perfect Merit Limited
# A Key Imagination 900 KR 5 @ {5 Key
Imagination 2 9% R #E °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates
had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and/ or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code adopted by the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, at no
time during the Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors (including their
respective spouses and children under the age of 18)
to acquire benefits by the means of the acquisition of
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company was notified
of the following substantial Shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests, being 5% or more of issued Shares
and recorded in the register kept under Section 336
of the SFO.
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R-ZZBZE2F+ZA=1+—R ' AQAEHE
THEERRREMA L#E  RBESR
HIEIRAIZE 336 IRFE2ELMARQITE #
TR 5% ML £z -

Number of Shares held

RO #E

Long Percentage of

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests position  shareholding
TERRMER B, RENE Ha ERED
Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest
B E M) HEREEEEE SEEES
Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
ERSRERBRABT(MET) MEEFZEEE LEEE
Key Imagination Limited (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited (/3% 1) MZEHEERE FEER
Jade Passion Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Jade Passion Limited (473 1) ERBEA BRER
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Held by controlled corporation/ 960,000,000 24.82%
Company (Note 2) Corporate interest
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance HERHEEEE LEES
Company (#fz#2)
MassMutual International LLC (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 960,000,000 24.82%

MassMutual International LLC (#72£2)

Notes:

EREEA BEER

BEE

1. Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director, was interested in 1,827,641,279 Shares through
Jade Passion, a company which is owned as to 73.21%
of its issued share capital by Key Imagination. 91% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination is owned by YFHL,
the issued share capital of which in turn, is owned as to
70.15% by Mr. Yu Feng.

2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company was
interested in 960,000,000 Shares through its 100%
controlled corporation “MassMutual International LLC”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
there were no other persons who had an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Company & 8 2 100% = I8 2 & MassMutual
International LLC #% 960,000,000 Bz B& 13 °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance (i) to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or his connected entities was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the Year or at the end of
the Year, nor (ii) between the Company, or one of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group, other than being a
director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following persons, among others, are connected
person of the Company:

— MMI, which holds approximately 24.82% of
the issued Shares, and hence a substantial
shareholder and a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.07 (1) of the Listing
Rules;

— MMLIC, the sole shareholder of MMI, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules; and

— Barings LLC, a limited liability company
organized in the State of Delaware, the U.S.A.
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
MMLIC, and hence an associate of MMI| and a
connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.13 (1) of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Group conducted the following transactions which
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company that are not exempt from annual reporting
requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, in
respect of which a circular dated 21 December 2017
(the “2017 Circular”), an announcement dated 15
November 2019 (the “2019 Announcement”) and an
announcement dated 30 December 2020 were issued.

1. Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement
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1. RENMERERGSE

Parties: MMLIC and YF Life

HESVRE MMLIC K& BB Rk

Date: 15 December 2017

B : —E-tF+=ZA+AHR

Principal terms: Between 2004 and 2014, YF Life underwrote approximately 300 life insurance

policies which included a claims payment endorsement by MMLIC, which
would be triggered in the event of insolvency of YF Life. Pursuant to the
Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement, MMLIC will continue to provide such
endorsement to the outstanding policies until such policies mature.

Upon the occurrence a triggering event, namely the solvency ratio of YF Life
ceasing to be at least 150% and such cessation not being remedied within
a certain agreed period, a change of control of YF Life, or the independent
Shareholders failing to approve the fee payable to MMLIC for maintaining
its endorsement to the outstanding policies, MMLIC will have the right to
require YF Life to cede to MMLIC the rights and obligations of YF Life under
the life insurance policies which include the claims payment endorsement
by MMLIC, and YF Life shall transfer assets (of a value equivalent to
the obligations or liabilities of YF Life attributable to such life insurance
policies) to MMLIC. The Company and YF Life consider that it is extremely
unlikely that the aforementioned triggering events will occur. The value of
the obligations to be assumed, and therefore the amount of assets and the
selection of the assets to be transferred, will be determined by MMLIC and
YF Life in good faith if any triggering event takes place.

The initial term of the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement will be three
years from 16 November 2018. The Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement will
be automatically extended for successive three-year terms. The Company
intends that the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement shall continue until
the expiry or lapse of the life insurance policies which included a claims
payment endorsement by MMLIC. All such policies were underwritten by YF
Life between 2004 and 2014 and no such policies which include such claims
payment endorsement by MMLIC have been underwritten by YF Life since
then. The Company intends that the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement
shall be renewed if there are any such policies subsisting upon the expiry of
the initial term of the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement. The Company
will re-comply with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules as
and when the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement is renewed after the

expiry of the initial term.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BEXZRFERERS (#)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

1. Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement 1. REMMNERE RS (E)
(Continued)

86

EEMRA

Pricing terms:

The Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement was negotiated by the Company,
YF Life and MMI on an arm’s length basis and entered into on normal
commercial terms.

TEENFEE-NFE BBEREBERARLYI0NERRE  ZEREEER
MMLIC R REZ MM INIER - SRS HEBBREBEEGRISEMN - RER
M IERE B - MMLIC K EE B REMRERMUZZMMER  EERED
Hi e

HERE-ABRSHE  DEBRBVEGREILEIBRER150% BZALIER
RREETHEMBAME  BBRREBNEFESBHAQANBE LRI REER
MRS HB R ERERMINERT @ MMLICXAHWER > MMLICKEREZREE
g HEREBRREEREMMLIC REE AT IR ASRMAERT WEFM
2% VTEEBRRRESEE (HEEASZABEERBREZSSRFRESIENER
FEME)EZTFMMLIC - AAFREBBRIEA/ESHE LRBRBANTREMS
B MEEM@ssais SESNIBNER  UREAMEEREENSHEMN
2E > BKHEMMLICHBBRREZEE -

REMMERERHZNDSFHEE - -—NF+-A T+ BBHABHP=F - R
EfMERERHZEEDEIEZE=F - ALAVEEREMMERE B G = EHE
B EEASRBREERIANY  BFEMMLIC Z2RERIEMMER - IEEE
REN-_ZTNFEE_T-NFEHHIHABBREARF  MEBBERR B LHEZRA
MMLICIRHRBEXNHNRE - MEMNEBERERNRENNERERAHRNLSFH
EREFE  ARQCAREERENNERERAHBEEREMNERERBRANS
FHERRBER  ARARASENBTLTRAUBTHEARE -

REWNEREAHBRBIEALT BERBEMMIEZEQAFPELEFTRETHE

RFRET AL ©

YF Life will pay to MMLIC an annual fee calculated and paid semi-annually at
a rate of 0.18% of the average account value of the outstanding policies as
consideration for maintaining the claims payment endorsement.

The fee rate was determined based on arm’s length negotiation with
reference to the average default rates of corporates with investment credit
ratings ranging from A- to BBB- published by S&P Global.

The reason for YF Life entering into the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement
is that certain life insurance policies underwritten by YF Life included a
claims payment endorsement by MMLIC which would be triggered in the
event of insolvency of YF Life. Given that the claims payment endorsement
by MMLIC is a term of the relevant life insurance policies and YF Life cannot
unilaterally revise or cancel the claims payment endorsement term without
the consent of each of the relevant policyholders, there are no comparable
arrangements which YF Life may obtain from independent third parties
to replace the claims payment endorsement by MMLIC under such life
insurance policies.
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EHEBEBARAT
S

=0 FREFSREBE TN INERNEE -

BENERATREELSEEELBHRHNREEATAN FA-EBBB-WATT
RN EMERE -

EBERBITIREMMNERERAGENEAREERBARZETASRERE
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REMBRESEARDZANER B SEUEREFIEMMERER - MEEBR
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The Company believes it is important to assure policyholders that the
acquisition of YF Life will not result in any change to the terms of their
existing policies, including the claims payment endorsement by MMLIC.

ARG IREFAARBUEEBEBRREEZISHRERAERE(ERE
MMLIC 1E H By 32 88 S BOB DD AR MVIRREMEM BB+ D EE -

The maximum aggregate annual amount of fees payable by YF Life to MMLIC
for the years ending 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019, 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 shall not exceed the caps set out below:

BE-_Z2-N\E+-A=+—H8 -ZZFE—-h&F+=ZA=+—H ZE2E=ZZF+=AH
=+—-HARZEZ—EF+-A=+tHLEE  BERBRESMMLICHERESFEEER
BEERSHBE T LR :

Proposed Annual Cap for the Year Ending 31 December

(HKD’000)
BEt-RA=1-HL%FE
WREFELR(FET)
2018 2019 2020 2021
A o L =« A =
Total fees ~ HAHE 5,611 5,835 6,068 5,500
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Principal terms:

ERMHRMA -

Barings LLC is an investment adviser and has provided investment
management services to YF Life since 2000. Pursuant to the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement, YF Life will engage Barings LLC as its investment adviser
to acquire, manage, service and dispose of investments for YF Life.

The assets and the type and amount of assets to be managed by Barings
LLC pursuant to the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement will be
determined by the investment committee of YF Life. Barings LLC will
manage all fixed income portfolio investments for YF Life for a period of
three years from 16 November 2018.

The initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement will be
three years from the 16 November 2018. The Barings Investment Advisory
Agreement will be automatically renewed for successive one-year terms.
Either party may terminate the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement upon
30 days’ written notice to the other party. Following the initial term of the
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, and subject to the satisfactory
performance of Barings LLC, the relevant expertise and the pricing terms,
Barings LLC shall continue to be the preferred manager of YF Life’s fixed
income investment portfolio. The Company shall re-assess the investment
needs of YF Life closer to the expiry of the initial term of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement and if the Company considers the continued
provision of such services by Barings LLC to YF Life to be beneficial to
YF Life, the term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement may be
extended. The Company will re-comply with the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules as and when the Barings Investment Advisory
Agreement is renewed after the expiry of the initial term.

The Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was negotiated by the
Company, YF Life and MMI on an arm’s length basis and entered into on
normal commercial terms.

Barings LLCR —XRERME  BE-_ZTETETFE-—HOBERBEHREETER
% REBEREZANS - BBRIREEEBarings LLCARRERR » A8E
REUEE - BE - RBIEERE -

REFEREFAMHEHRBarings LLCEEMNEERZSEENERLMNEE - &
HEBRMBEZESEE - Barings LLCEABBRREEMEEEREAER
& B-E-N\Ft+-AtABEHAAH=F-
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BEREZADBNANLSEFRAA T -NF+ B+ BEFEBM=F - FER
ERAME S EDETEE-—F - EAN - A UOEMTEHIOREEBARKL
BEREZANR - RBEREFAMBIALS FHER - RIFBTFBarings LLCRE
fE47 - BB AB R EEMR - BlBarings LLCEEERBERRBETWRSERE
HE - ARABRBEIBEREAADBANLTFHERSERTLEBRR2RE
FE2 . BARAR R/ Barings LLCABBRRSEREAERESSHEERRE
B BEREDAMZFHVER - EBEREZABBRAS FHERREESR

B ANBEENETLHTRAUBETHERRE

BERABABBNEALT - HERBEMMIEAT EEREE W REREEBER
Y .

YF Life will pay to Barings LLC fees calculated at rates based on asset
type. The fee rates range from 0.25 basis points to 100 basis points. Such
fee rates were determined based on arm’s length negotiations taking
into account (i) the type of assets to be managed by Barings LLC and (ii)
preferred partner status granted by the Company to MMI under the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement.

The Company has assessed the business needs of YF Life for the services
under the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement. The Company considered
(i) the historical amounts of fees paid by YF Life to Barings LLC; (ii) the
historical fee rates charged by Barings LLC; and (iii) the fee rates for
comparable services offered by two other competent independent third
party service providers which the Company considered to be fair and
representative given that such independent third party service providers
offer comparable investment advisory services to clients in Hong Kong. The
Company considers that the fee rates offered by Barings LLC are in line
with the market rates offered by other competent independent third party
providers for comparable services as a whole.

BEBRMBEOBarings LLCEXNEREERRREBETENER - BEXNF0.25
BEEZZ100EEL - FEEEXRNEZE () Barings LLCEEMNEEHAE (i) A2
FARBEEBRSEHRZEOMMIRTFHNELESEBHBNUELSATEFEE

ARG CHEREREZAGRETRELERREBZEBLFTE - XATAEEZH ()
BiERK M Barings LLCXf2ELE ALK | (i) Barings LLCBUBZBELEE ;
R EtmRBRELE = A HERREZTELBREER(ARZBLE=
REMEFEEBATPFRUETLBREZARYE A2 ARALBEBLAFTRAR
xM) c RAFFAAHBarings LLCRHUZEXERBEAMBHBYE =S HERR
HemEER—H o
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Reasons for the
transaction:

RZEH :

Annual caps:

FELER:

In connection with underwriting insurance policies, YF Life invests policy
premium, to generate sufficient return for satisfying future insurance claims
and dividend obligations. Barings LLC has assisted YF Life in executing its
long term investment asset allocation strategies since the year 2000. The
continuation of Barings LLC’s asset management services will not only avoid
the operational risks resulting from contracting a new asset manager but will
also avoid any material disruptions in the execution of YF Life’s long term
asset allocation strategies.

RERREMS  BEBERBRENRE  UELERUESKRRRBEREURSAS
EWER - Barings LLCE-ZZZFE—EHHPERRBRITERAREEER
EXW o Barings LLCEEEERBNEFES T ENREEFTEESETNERN
RERR  TARRBBERBRBEERBERBAITHIENEMERPE -

The maximum aggregate annual amount of fees payable by YF Life to
Barings LLC for the years ending 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019, 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021 shall not exceed the caps set out
below:

BE-_Z2—\+=-ZA=+—-H - ZZ—-hE+-A=+—-HB ZZ-ZTF+-A
=t+t—HRZZEZ—F+ZA=1THLFE  BERKBESBarings LLCHWRSHF
EERAETSBERATY LR :

Proposed Annual Cap for the Year Ending 31 December
BET-A=T-HLEEW

REFELR
2018 2019 2020 2021
—E-N\F “B-NE ZBCEE —B--F
Total fees ERaE US$8,000,000  US$10,500,000  US$12,500,000 HK$111,000,000
(equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to
approximately approximately approximately
HK$62,590,000)  HK$82,150,000) HK$97,798,000)
8,000,000%x  10,500,000%7  12,500,000%7 111,000,000 %87
(HERH (BERY (BERY
62,590,000 82,150,000 97,798,000
A7) B B
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HESPIE MMI & & B R B
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Principal terms:

FEHRMR

Pricing terms:

ERSHERERAT
—ETFFR

MMI will provide certain treasury and financial reporting services relating to
investment or portfolio management such as classification, monitoring and
allocation of purchases and sales of securities, compiling and monitoring
pricing and fund performance for alternative investments, preparing risk
sensitivity analysis, impairment analysis, facilitating cash management and
managing specified cash accounts to YF Life.

The term of the services will be beginning on 16 November 2019 and
ending on 31 December 2021, provided that the term of any Service may

be terminated earlier by YF Life in accordance with the Extension to the
Transitional Services Agreement.

MMI H—rf‘]%’Lﬁ[ﬁ?ﬂ%iﬂkﬁ:ﬁhﬁﬁﬂA“@ﬁFﬁEI’JEﬂ%*qﬁ&ﬁﬂ%iﬁiﬂﬁi% an
ﬁ%;;ﬂ’] D EERIE SERENEERESRRNFEERER - BB
2~ BED *ﬁE’J,F%J CRERSEEUREEBERERS ©

BBEKE-Z-NEFE+-A+ANBEZZT--F+-_A=1t—-HREH  EHEARK
BHHRIEHEBRREBBBEREHFRELL -

YF Life will pay to MMI a monthly service fee which shall be the greater of:

(i) 0.00275% of the Average Portfolio Book Value for the relevant month;
and

(i) US$116,667.
The service fee shall be payable to MMI monthly in arrears.

Pursuant to the Extension to the Transitional Services Agreement, the
service fee is subject to the following caps:

(@) US$250,000 for the period from 16 November 2019 to 31 December
2019;

(b) US$2,277,000 for the year ending 31 December 2020; and

(c) US$2,619,000 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
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3. Extension to the Transitional Services 3. EHBEERBHSEE)

Agreement (Continued)

Furthermore, YF Life has the right to terminate any portion of the Services
by giving three months prior notice. In the event one or more (but not all) of
the Services are terminated, prior to the expiration of the term, MMI and YF
Life will negotiate in good faith a pro rata reduction of the remaining balance
of the service fee.

The fees for the Services were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and taking into account the current size and the
anticipated growth in the investment portfolio of YF Life managed by MMI
and with reference to the prevailing market rate charged by independent
third party service providers in the ordinary course of business.

The Company has compared the fees payable by YF Life to MassMutual for
the Services with the prevailing market rate offered by two other competent
independent third party service providers which the Company considered to
be fair and representative given that such independent third party service
providers offer comparable services in Hong Kong. The Company considered
that the fees payable by YF Life to MMI are no less favourable than the
prevailing market rate offered by other competent independent third party
service providers. In view of this and taking into account that the Services
are currently provided by MassMutual to YF Life, the Company considers
it is beneficial to and in the interests of YF Life for it to enter into the
Extension to the Transitional Services Agreement.

EEHRAR BRERBEDMMIEZNNAEREERSH:
() HEAHFHREASKEERO.00275% ; &
(i) 116,667 £ T o
RBELER — BB B MM °
RIBLEHBERB W= - RBELRAT ¢
(@ BZZ-—NAE+—A+RBE=ZE—hAFE+=-A=+—HHH  250,000%

JT
by BE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—-HLFE 2,277,000E7x;: K&
(c) BE-ZZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFEE 2,619,000%T
o BERRBEREA=ZEAZEBEN  KIERENEAED - MR —ERZE
(B3E2 ) WKL RAGZR®RA > MMINEBRBSESRHE - RLEHIRE
RIS E R FISRID D o

RBEARAERETLAFHRAE  ARZEMMIEENEBRBRIREASHERN
BENENER  U2ERBBELE=FHEBRWERZRTHEMEERN
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Reasons for the
transaction:

RZEH :

Annual caps:

ARB KB BRERSEEREHEET RIS E MM B 2 B F EEH i S E
BUBE=AHEMRM2RTHEMEL(HRZBLE=ZSRBHEHEETBREMH
ALBERE  ARARBLELBBELIFRAREKMN) - A 2ARDHBERBREMMIE
N2BRTBEREMBERBYES = HEFEHRZBITHE EXNFEHREEE
MMIBAIRBERBERBHZOBBRIERERYE  A2ARBBITERBER
BinREARRAFSBBRROFIE

The Services are currently provided by MMI to YF Life under the Transitional
Services Agreement. The Company believes that the continued provision of
the Services by MMI to YF Life is economically efficient as it will cost YF
Life more to establish the necessary systems and recruit the appropriate
staff if YF Life were to carry out the Services itself.

MMIIE,HTF]F%ﬁﬁ iR UL RIBERBIHEER T RS - A2 FMEIE ZZDI%'LﬁF@
TEATHRRE BERREZETEZHNRERELLENRZARALRESENS
T AEMMIEEDBEERREARBEEEEENS -

US$250,000, US$2,277,000 and US$2,619,000 have been set as the annual
caps for the amounts of service fees payable by YF Life to MassMutual
under the Extension to the Transitional Services Agreement for (i) the period
beginning on 16 November 2019 and ending on 31 December 2019, (ii) the
year ending 31 December 2020 and (iii) the year ending 31 December 2021,
respectively. These annual cap amounts have been set out in the Extension
to the Transitional Services Agreement and have been determined with
reference to the current size and the anticipated growth of the investment
portfolio of YF Life managed by MassMutual. As at 31 December 2018,
the book value of YF Life’s asset portfolio managed by MassMutual was
US$4,990.5 million.

FELR: BERRARE B E IR % 17 7 L& 21 FE @ MM 32 15 B BR #% & 250,000 = 7T ~ 2,277,000
E£575%2,619000 RO RRER(E-F—NE+-A+ABE-B—NE+=
B=+—HHHE (\(BE2=Z=ZEF+=-A=1+— Elﬂ:ﬁr_&(lu)éki—g_ F
TZA=+—BLEFENFELR -SLFELREBSHNERBIE RS HE ':PEIJ
Ho ARBEMMIEENEBRERREAENEANRENARERME - BE=
—NFE+ZA=Z+—HB MMIEEBENEERMEELASHIREER49. 9051e-j<7c °
The aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect RNEBFMIILHBEREEHZE - FEMM
of the Extension to the Transitional Services EREARERTEREZHBENE
Agreement, the Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement EoE-EE+ A=+ —-B X2
and the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement for 4858 49 9 Bl 16,203,000 & 7T ({5 =
the year ended 31 December 2020 is approximately —EEELFRLYI1%) ~ 5,170,000
HK$16,203,000 (being 91% of the annual cap for TUE == _iﬂi}"tl}ﬁ ’385%) R
2020), HK$5,170,000 (being 85% of the annual cap for 84,292,000 8 T =SS FEE LR

2020), HK$84,292,000 (being 86% of the annual cap
for 2020) respectively.

ERSHERERAT
—ETFFR

#86%) °
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All the independent non-executive Directors,
having reviewed the transactions under the Policies
Endorsement Fee Agreement, the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Extension to the
Transitional Services Agreement (the “2020 CCTs”),
confirmed that such transactions had been entered
into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the respective agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholder as a whole.

The Company has engaged its external auditor to
report on the 2020 CCTs in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the
work performed, the external auditor of the Company
has confirmed in its letter to the Board that nothing
has come to its attention which caused it to believe
that:

(i) the 2020 CCTs have not been approved by the
Board;

(i) the 2020 CCTs were not entered into, in all
materials respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

(i) the aggregate amount paid by the Group in
respect of the 2020 CCTs has exceeded the
annual cap of 2020 as disclosed in the 2017
Circular and the 2019 Announcement.

During the Year, the Group did not have any
connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

A summary of all related parties transactions entered
into by the Group during the Year is contained in
Note 46 to the financial statements. All the related
parties transactions described in the said note do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction”
or “continuing connected transaction” under the
Listing Rules, other than transactions under the
Policies Endorsement Fee Agreement, the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement and the Extension to
the Transitional Services Agreement as described in
Note 46 which falls under the definition of “continuing
connected transaction” under the Listing Rules and
was disclosed previously by the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR
CUSTOMERS

During the Year, revenue derived from the Group’s
5 largest customers accounted for approximately
1.2% of the total revenue for the Year, with the single
largest customer contributing approximately 0.3%.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the
opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no value to
disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none
of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the issued Shares, had an
interest in the major customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations is made by
the Group (2019: nil).

ERSHERERAT
—ETFFR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practice of
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision as set out in the
articles of association of the Company that provides
for indemnity against liability incurred by directors and
executive officers of the Group is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this report, there was
sufficient public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by KPMG who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for reappointment of KPMG will be proposed for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung
Yue, Howard with Mr. Qi Daqging and Mr. Xiao Feng
being the other members. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

By order of the Board
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

Zhang Ke
Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Our Business

Listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Main Board,
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited principally engages
in the provision of insurance products through YF Life,
as well as other financial services covering brokerage,
investment research, corporate finance, asset and
wealth management, employee stock ownership plan
administration services and fintech business.

Through YF Life, we are authorized by the Insurance
Authority to conduct long-term insurance business in
Hong Kong. Based in Hong Kong with branch offices
in Macau, we provide a wide range of insurance
products including life insurance, medical insurance,
annuities, pension and mandatory provident fund
schemes to customers. YF Life is one of the first (and
one of the few) insurance companies to introduce
annuities to the region.

Reporting Reference

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance in order to constantly improve its
environmental and social surroundings while providing
sustainable returns to shareholders.

To communicate our efforts on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) matters, this Environment
Social and Governance report (“ESG Report”) has
been prepared in accordance with “comply or explain”
provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In the preparation of this ESG Report,
the Group follows the four reporting principles of
materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance as
set out in the ESG Guide.

Scope and Boundary of the ESG report

This ESG Report covers the ESG policies and
procedures of the Group’s operation in all
jurisdictions for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The boundary of the ESG Report covers our dominant
insurance business under YF Life, and other non-
insurance financial services including brokerage,
investment research, corporate finance, asset and
wealth management, employee stock ownership plan
administration services and fintech business.
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RE - #HEREREE

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)

Unless otherwise specified, the boundary of the
reported ESG data covers all offices of the Group
in Hong Kong S.A.R. (“Hong Kong”), Macao S.A.R.
(“Macau”) and the Mainland of People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). They include:

— Three Company offices in Hong Kong, Beijing
and Shenzhen;

— Thirteen YF Life offices and one warehouse in
Hong Kong; and

— Five YF Life branch offices in Macau.
Contact

The views and opinions of our stakeholders are
important for the continuous improvement of our
business and ESG performance. Any constructive
feedback regarding this ESG report are welcomed and
may be sent to this email: ir@yff.com.

OUR APPROACH TO ESG
Governance and Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems
(including reviewing their effectiveness) to safeguard
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

The board of directors of the main subsidiary of the
Group (insurance business) (the “Board of Subsidiary”)
has established its own audit committee and board
risk committee which are responsible for overall risk
management and internal control and report to the
Board of Subsidiary together with the management
of the main subsidiary of the Group (“Management of
Subsidiary”). Management of Subsidiary establishes
and supervises the risk management committee which
identifies, prevents and controls various risks and
reports to the board risk committee. The internal audit
functions are conducted by the key management
directly appointed by the Management of Subsidiary
and report to the audit committee. Overall, Board of
Subsidiary reports to the management of the Group
on risk management and internal audit matters and is
supervised by the Board.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR APPROACH TO ESG (Continued)

The internal control system is led by the senior
management of the Group including executive
directors together with heads of business functions
composed of operations, finance, risk management,
information technology, legal and compliance, which
is responsible for the risk management of non-
insurance business.

As we are primarily engaged in the financial and
insurance service sector, we are required to comply
with all related laws and regulations including the
Securities and Futures Ordinances and the Insurance
Ordinance etc. The overall governance effort is led by
senior management of the Group including executive
directors together with heads of business functions
and implemented primarily through our operations,
finance, risk management, information technology,
legal and compliance teams.

For details regarding corporate governance
discussions, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report section of the Annual Report 2020.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The opinions of our stakeholders are crucial to the
Group’s development and we place great emphasis
on communicating with different stakeholders. As an
integral part of our business, we engage with different
stakeholder groups on an on-going basis throughout
our daily operations. Through our interaction with
different stakeholder groups, we have summarised
and presented in the below table their key concerns:

Table 1 Summary of stakeholder communication
channels

Communication and feedback
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Employees Meetings Monthly Talent attraction,
Performance reviews Annually development and retention
Internal email correspondences Event-driven basis
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RE - #HEREREE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND Mz ERE BB EEEM ML E)
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)
Communication and feedback
Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
FEEREER BERRERE AR BEES:
Shareholders Annual general meetings (“AGM”),  Annually for AGM Business development
extraordinary general meetings  Event-driven basis for other  Financial performance
(“EGM™) channels Corporate governance
Announcements, annual reports, Major corporate actions and
interim reports, circulars transactions
& RRBFAS(BRRBEAL)) KR SFEHRRAFTAE EBRE
BRXE(RREFIAE]) Hit RE2SHEHEE BBRE
DNEEH PHRERER EXER
IERATHRRS
Regulators Correspondence mails/emails Event-driven basis Compliance with regulations
Phone calls Business updates
Site visits
EEHM B/ EBAR SHEBEE BiER
B EHEH
EHRR
Clients Know-your-client (KYC) onboarding Meeting/phone call, emails  Product and trading system
process on event-driven basis quality and development
Face-to-face meetings with our Electronic trading platform  Fair and transparent dealing
business representatives on event-driven basis practice
Phone calls and emails with our Enterprise branding
client service representatives
EF BEEFoIBRE REHEHEE SR/ ERRXZRBERRER
BEBARCEHEES g5 BE DYER RS EP
BERPRBARZEFREHAR REABHEECEFRS TR LX@E
Business partners On-site visits Event-driven basis Business development
Meetings Fair business practice and

BRBH

Media

e

Communities

HE

100

Conference calls
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Press releases
Marketing campaigns
Exhibitions

HER
EHTE
RE
On-site visits
Meetings
EiRR

¥
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SHEREE

Event-driven basis

SHEBEE

Event-driven basis

SHEREE

market reputation
Sound financial strength and
management

ERER

NYBEBARTIZEE

B2 HKER

Business development and
strategies

Product and service
promotion
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Policy and commitment to
communities
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT Continued)

Materiality assessment

To determine what ESG issues are material to our
operations, we conducted interviews and surveys
with management with hands-on knowledge of our
operations as well as close relationships with our
business partners. The results are reviewed from time
to time based on changes in the Group’s business
operations and updates on sustainability reporting
standards to ensure the applicability of the material
issues to the Group’s operations.

With no major changes to the Group’s businesses,
we continue to consider the overall social aspects to
be more material than that of environment aspects,
with the most important matters being anti-corruption,
customer privacy, and the health and safety of our
employees. We will continue to review our materiality
results based on stakeholder opinions and any
changes in our business operations and sustainability
reporting trends.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE

To enable us to deliver value to our shareholders and
serve our clients, we endeavour to attract and retain
the best talents. We are committed to maintaining a
non-discriminatory workplace where all employees
are provided with opportunities to reach their full
potential. We maintain a policy of equal employment
opportunity, and all human resources decisions
including recruitment, promotion, salary administration
and training opportunities are based on bona fide
occupational requirements, but not individual traits
like race, colour, religion, age, gender or medical
history.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Employment
Talent recruitment and retention

To recruit and retain high-calibre talents, we provide
competitive remuneration packages to attract and
motivate our employees. We offer competitive
remuneration, share option and share award schemes,
retirement and medical benefits, insurance coverage
and leave entitlement commensurate to market
standards. The remuneration package of employees
is reviewed regularly based on individual performance
and market conditions. As part of the effort to retain
talent, we offer internal mobility opportunities, which
drive the overall efficiency of operations through
better matching of required skills with talents. All the
above details are documented in the two Employee
Handbooks of the Group and YF Life, along with
other provisions like employment terms, remuneration,
benefits, training and regulations, and business
conduct.

Diversity and equal opportunity

The Group adopts an equal employment opportunity
policy and is committed to maintaining a non-
discriminatory workplace where all employees
are treated with fairness and respect. We make
recruitment and other employment-related decisions
based on bona fide occupational requirements, and
prohibit discrimination, harassment, bias or prejudice
on the basis of an individual’s traits, including
but not limited to gender, disability, family status,
race, marital status or pregnancy. Employees are
encouraged to report any potential violations to the
human resources department and violations may
result in disciplinary action or even termination of
employment.

At the Board level, we have adopted a board diversity
policy in October 2013 which sets out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
Under the policy, the Group seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including professional qualifications and
experience, cultural and educational background,
race and ethnicity, gender, age and length of service.
For further details, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Labour Practices

We strictly adhere to Employment of Children
Regulations and other regulations under the
Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong together with
other relevant laws in other jurisdictions, which
prohibit any illegal employment of children or forced
labour. To prevent child labour, we perform checks
on candidates’ relevant information including personal
identification and other documents to verify their
age. Through the two Employee Handbooks of the
Company and YF Life, we communicate to employees
their employment terms and conditions, to ensure
that they clearly understand their employee rights and
benefits.

Our Workforce

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 708
employees, among which male and female employees
represent 46.2% and 53.8% of the total workforce
respectively. Geographically, about 77.8% of our
employees are stationed in Hong Kong, with another
18.6% residing in the PRC and the remaining 3.5%
in Macau. By age group, 33.5 % of our employees
are below 30 years of age, with another 56.2% aged
between 30 to 50, and the remaining 10.3% above 50
years of age.

The overall turnover rate was 18.2% in 2020, and
breakdown of turnover by gender, geographical region
and age group is provided in the table below.

Breakdown of turnover rate

Employee turnover
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Turnover rate
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—E-FF —E-FF
Turnover by category REREDSTMABTRKER EERKE ABERKLEE (%)
By gender #1145l
Male B 63 21.6%
Female peg i3 61 15.6%
By geographical region 1 ih 32 = 19
Hong Kong %é 64 12.4%
Macau ! 1 4.3%
PRC EP@IW& 59 42.0%
By age group mERA
Below 30 30T 55 23.9%
30-50 30-50 66 17.1%
Above 50 500 &£ 3 4.7%
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Regulatory compliance

During the reporting period, the Group adhered to the
Employment Ordinance and other relevant regulations,
and was not aware of any material non-compliance
regarding employment, child or forced labour.

Employee Health and safety

The well-being of our employees directly affects the
Group’s productivity and we make every effort to
increase the awareness of all staff members regarding
occupational health and safety issues within the
Group.

While there is no significant health and safety risk in
the office environment, we take all practical measures
to ensure a safe and healthy working environment
and communicate with employees to enhance their
awareness. We seek to promote the well-being of
employees by providing medical insurance coverage
to our employees, covering services like clinical visits,
hospitalisation benefits, dental benefit, specialist visits
and health check-ups.

During the COVID-19 outbreak, we have also taken
various measures to protect our colleagues and
prevent the spread of disease in our offices. For
instance, we adopted flexible working arrangements
and a split team system to minimise the chance
of infection from daily commuting and interactions
between colleagues. Employees who went back to our
offices are required to wear masks in offices and lifts,
and the Company provided two masks per day for
each employee. We also followed the government’s
instructions, and all unnecessary business trips were
cancelled and employees were required to report
any trips to foreign countries to the human resources
department. In the event that there was any confirmed
case of COVID-19 in buildings our employees live in,
or if they were involved in any infection cluster, such
employees were required to alert the human resource
department and work from home until receiving a
negative COVID-19 test result.

During the reporting year, we adhered to relevant laws
and regulations and were not aware of any incidence
of material non-compliance relating to health and
safety.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Development and training

The Group emphasises the importance of the on-going
professional development of our employees, and
seeks to provide different training and development
opportunities to assist their career progression.
Through a relevant, systematic and organised training
platform, we aim to align the knowledge and skill sets
of our staff members with our business objectives and
operation requirements, in order to enhance efficiency
and productivity. We believe that upskilling our staff
members can help reduce overall operational risks in
the long run.

At YF Life, staff training is broadly categorised into
three main types for new, existing and management
staff. Upon joining YF Life, employees receive basic
training on legal compliance, company product
knowledge, service selling techniques and mentor
training in person. For staff with management roles,
we offer leadership-related training to assist them in
discharging their management responsibilities.

To ensure that our agents act in line with the
regulatory requirements, we offer regular legal
compliance e-refreshers on different compliance
topics including anti-money laundering, direct
marketing and data privacy. Agents must complete
the required compliance training or their agent
contract may be terminated. For insurance sales to
mainland clients, we have also established an Internal
Compliance Guide for Sales to PRC Clients outlining
the requirements for agents working on sales to
clients from PRC.

Besides the abovementioned regular training, we
also encourage our employees at YF Life to pursue
further development by joining the Designation
Programs offered by the Life Office Management
Association (LOMA). The Designation Programs offer
various topics including customer service, reinsurance
and compliance, allowing staff to learn more about
various facets of the insurance industry and fulfil
their self-improvement commitments. To encourage
participation, we offer full refund on the registration
fees for each course passed as well as exam bonus
and examination leave to eligible staff.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Development and training (Continued)

For our staff engaging in non-insurance businesses,
we also offer internal and external training to promote
and cultivate the ongoing professional development
of our staff. On a regular basis, staff members are
provided with internal seminars including various
team building sessions, FATCA' and CRS? updates,
SFC?® seminars with regulatory updates and financial
reporting updates. In the reporting year, we have
also provided trainings covering topics like anti-
money laundering and counter financing of terrorism,
cybersecurity and data breach, and refresher training
on compliance matters for our staff. We also support
our employees to seek external education relevant
to their job duties, and provide benefits including
examination leave and fee reimbursement, subject
to approval of their department head and senior
management.

Operation Practices
Product responsibility

The Group emphasises quality in providing insurance
products and other financial services to our valued
customers. Both industries are highly regulated
by the governing bodies and regulators such as
the Securities and Futures Commission, Insurance
Authority, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority and Monetary Authority of Macau. We
comply strictly with the local laws and regulations
such as sales practice, KYC check, credit control,
compliance, risk disclosure, information protection
and data security as well as trademarks and
intellectual property. To ensure that our employees are
capable of providing quality services to customers, we
regularly provide our employees with refresher training
on relevant regulatory requirements.

In 2020, there was no incident of material non-
compliance against the relevant laws and regulations
relating to our products and services.

! Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act
2 Common Reporting Standard
8 Securities and Futures Commission
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Operation Practices (Continued)
Providing quality insurance product and services

Our insurance products are developed to protect
customers from unexpected events and support
their long-term life planning. It is therefore vital that
our insurance products are of high quality and meet
relevant regulatory requirements. We collaborate with
different institutions from time to time to conduct
market research to keep abreast of the latest market
trends and to ensure our products meet the needs of
our customers.

As the bridge connecting our products to the
customers, we ensure our agents provide quality
services. Our agents are all properly licensed
according to the rules promulgated by the Insurance
Authority of Hong Kong and the Monetary Authority
of Macau, and have satisfied all legal and internal
standards of YF Life before being permitted to
distribute YF Life insurance products. Besides strictly
following the Insurance Authority’s Code of Conduct
for Licensed Insurance Agents and the industry best
practices, our agents are also required to conduct
business in accordance with our “Agent Handbook”.
We regularly communicate and educate our agents
with respect to our insurance products to allow proper
and accurate representations of product features to
customers.

We also have an “Internal Compliance Guide for PRC
sales” in place to ensure our staff and agents are fully
aware of the “Dos and Don’ts” when dealing with PRC
clients. The policy covers daily practices, from sales
and mentoring to internal training and qualification
requirements. Agents are required to strictly follow the
internal qualification requirements with no exceptions.

The monitoring of our service quality also extends to
the post-sales period. We follow industry practices
as issued by the Insurance Authority, such as making
audio-recorded calls to reaffirm client’s understanding
of the insurance policy purchased, including both
investment-linked and life insurance products. In
addition, we make use of third-party Mystery Shopper
Programmes on an irregular basis to review and
assess the selling practice of our agents.
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RE - #HEREREE

Operation Practices (Continued)
Providing quality financial products and services

For our investment products, we have an investment
committee which is chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, which oversees all investment
decisions and the new financial products/services
launching process. An internal approval process is
used to govern the new product launching process
and mitigate relevant risks of new products. The
launch of new products requires approvals from all
relevant middle and back office functions to ensure
that relevant market practices and regulations are
met.

It is also important that we empower our customers to
make informed decisions in relation to their wealth and
investment opportunities. Our staff receives training
on product sales best practices from time to time, and
we ensure that throughout our promotion campaigns
and press releases, our communication materials
convey clear, concise and transparent information to
allow customers to make informed decisions. We have
a chatbot to provide automatic replies to frequently
asked questions from customers, and when clients are
not satisfied with the answer they receive, they will be
directed to our customer service representatives.

Customer privacy and feedback
Information security and business continuity

As a financial institution, we rely on information
systems to deliver quality services to our clients
and are committed to protecting and managing
our information resources to enable us to meet our
regulatory responsibilities. To provide guidance on
cybersecurity efforts, we have in place a group-
wide Cybersecurity Policy and a separate Information
Security Policy for YF Life.

We need to deal with sensitive information of our
clients and it is important that we take all necessary
steps to protect such information. We adhere strictly
to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong and any violation of data privacy obligations is
subject to disciplinary actions. There are also internal
compliance manuals to guide us on the proper
handling of customer information. Varying access right
levels have been set to prevent unnecessary access
to sensitive client information and prevent information
leakage.
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Operation Practices (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback (Continued)

Information security and business continuity
(Continued)

The protection of information from external threats is
also of critical importance when protecting customers’
privacy. Our IT security efforts are guided by the
Group Cybersecurity Policy. From time to time, we
also invite external service providers to provide
cybersecurity training and update our staff on the
latest cybersecurity risks.

We fully understand the significance of service
stability to our clients. We have established a
business continuity plan (“BCP”) with comprehensive
and systematic measures in place to deal with
potential threats from major unexpected events and/or
operational disruptions to ensure business continuity
and services to our customers. We back-up our data
servers regularly and in case of server breakdown, we
can switch to the back-up server within a short period
to ensure minimal disruption to our services.

Customer Feedback

We welcome customer feedback and collect their
opinions through various channels, including our
staff, website and customer service hotline. We also
regularly seek inputs from our front-line business
units to look for areas that require improvement. We
promptly handle all complaints from our customers,
and meet the response pledge as prescribed by
regulatory requirements.

Anti-corruption

We strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations
and conduct our businesses with high standards of
business integrity and ethical dealing. Upon joining the
Group, all new employees are provided with internal
guidelines including the Corporate Compliance Guide
and different compliance manuals regarding their
professional obligations to transact business affairs in
a legal and ethical manner.
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Operation Practices (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

The Group is committed to ensuring strict compliance
with all applicable anti-money laundering (“AML”) laws
and regulations to prevent the use of its products
and services for money laundering and terrorist
financing purposes. For our insurance business,
an AML policy is established with reference to the
Insurance Authority’s Guideline on Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing. Under
the policy, any identified suspicious client activities
would be reported to relevant authorities immediately.
From time to time, updates are made to the AML
policy to incorporate the latest legal requirements
which our employees should follow. Any report made
with sufficient supporting evidence will be promptly
investigated and appropriate actions will be taken to
handle the situation.

For our other financial services regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”),
regulated entities under the Company are governed
by our AML/Know-your-client (“KYC”) policy, and are
required to perform KYC procedures prior to entering
into business relationships with proposed customers.

To assist individual employees across levels and
divisions/departments to disclose (at a high-level)
information related to any misconduct or malpractice
they are aware of, a formal Whistleblowing Policy
of the Company and a Speak-up Policy for YF Life
are in place to protect any employee who reports
misconduct. Under these policies, the reporter’s
identity is protected and we take all reasonable steps
to ensure that the employee suffers no detriment for
making reports in good faith.

Besides internal guidelines, we also provide
employees with regular training to ensure clear
understanding of the Group’s compliance
requirements. For example, employees of the
Company receive annual refresher training and
updates on important compliance guidelines, and
at YF Life the Independent Commission Against
Corruption is invited to provide annual seminars to
strengthen employees’ awareness towards possible
misconduct. To enhance corporate management, we
standardise and systemise our expenditures through
the Regulations on Financial Expenditure Management
by clearly documenting the various approval
requirements of different expenditure by their nature
and amount.
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Operation Practices (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

In 2020, there was no reported non-compliance or
concluded cases relating to corruption or money
laundering.

Supply chain and counterparties management

At YF Life, we appoint various service providers to
support our operations, particularly on IT services.
When selecting these service providers, we consider
different factors including price, capability and
credentials of suppliers, availability of local support
and possible synergy from leveraging on other
services.

For our other financial services, effective counterparty
and transaction due diligence processes are the
foundation of our approach to form long-term
partnerships with our valued business partners.
We promote an ownership system where service/
business users within the Company are responsible
for selecting the counterparties and entering into
transactions. The users are responsible for gathering
sufficient information and using an appropriate
mechanism to address different business, financial,
and legal and compliance related concerns raised
by relevant internal functions. Once all concerns
are addressed and cleared by the relevant internal
functions governed by the internal new business
approval process, the proposed transactions are then
recommended to senior management for final approval
and execution. Significant concerns and issues
identified will be escalated to the senior management
and Risk Oversight Committee for thorough review
and discussion to determine the next course of action
to be taken.

As part of the implementation of the counterparty
management policy, our risk management, finance,
legal and compliance teams review the transaction
terms and related documents and determine the
need for, and depth of, additional due diligence of
counterparties including counterparty risk and the
corresponding extent of on-boarding procedures
required. We have outlined the activities and types of
counterparties that the Company does not associate
with, such as those where there is evidence of forced
or child labour and certain transactions involving
market misconduct, mis-selling or those with negative
publicity. For service quality maintenance purpose,
we continue monitoring the market reputation and
business practice of all existing counterparties.
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RE - #HEREREE

Operation Practices (Continued)

Supply chain and counterparties management
(Continued)

In relation to the sourcing of professional service and
financial data providers, the Company has established
proper tendering and quotation procedures to
engage the most suitable service providers with
criteria tailored for covering areas such as product/
service quality together with internal control and
risk management requirements to manage various
operational risks including credit, reputational and
concentration risks. Consequently, in addition
to pricing evaluation, all relevant factors will be
considered in the selection of counterparties/service
providers.

For internally-developed service provision processes
with the aim to maximise automation and segregation
of duties to reduce human error, we have set up
a project management and quality control team to
liaise with different areas of operations including the
development of different product initiatives, financial
infrastructure and applications by developing a
procedural manual and conducting regular progress
meetings. The teams ensure quality services
and products as per the standard set by senior
management.

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY
Environment
Use of resources

As a financial institution, the Group mainly conducts
its businesses in the office environment and has a
less significant environmental footprint compared
to other sectors. However, we still seek to minimise
resource consumption and adopt environmental best
practices in our operations by regularly reviewing our
environmental practices and considering additional
eco-friendly measures, sustainability targets and
practices.

Concerning energy consumption, our server units and
data centres consume the most energy. While we do
not have control over the energy use in the rented
data centres, we have long adopted in-rack cooling
for server units at YF Life’s data centre for better
thermal management, thus reducing overall energy
consumption.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Environment (Continued)
Use of resources (Continueqd)

In our offices, we reinforce the principles of reduce,
recycle and reuse, to further minimise our already
low impact on the environment. We have adopted
various green practices to reduce the consumption
of resources (including electricity, water and paper).
Examples of such green practices are:

— Switching off idle lightings, air conditioning
and electrical appliances to reduce energy
consumption;

— Encouraging double-sided printing and using
recycled paper for printing and copying; and

— Setting up recycling bins in office areas

As part of our effort to reduce our environmental
impact, we have been progressively digitalising our
business operations. FinTech mobile applications
were launched in 2019 to support eFNA, online
applications, electronic policy issue, online payment,
ePolicy Services and claims, etc. In the coming
years, we will continue to enhance these applications
to enrich the functionalities and improve customer
experiences as well as reducing our environmental
impact while improving efficiency in our operations.

Details of electricity, water and paper consumptions
at our offices are summarised in the table below.

Summary of resources consumptions
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Use of resources Unit 2020

FRER By —E-EF

Electricity kWh 3,059,234

S FEREF

Water 4 m3 472

K 4 MK

Paper (A3)° Sheets 110,110

4% (A3)° [

Paper (A4)° Sheets 7,908,469

45 (A4)° [

4 Since the water consumption of some offices was 4 HRBOMAEZENAKESHAEYEEEEEE
managed by the buildings’ property management, we | RMEEZESERNAKEEE - BRE
cannot obtain the actual water consumption data. Hence WRAKEHRTZERLAE  HPEFEQRANE
the reported water consumption excluded these offices, BRAZMAERBLAZ  HEEBERBREBSNRA
which include the Company’s Hong Kong office and ZUROEERRBRPPLE

Beijing office, ten YF Life Hong Kong offices and four YF
Life Macau offices.

5 Excluding the Company’s Beijing office where such data is
not tracked.
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RE - #HEREREE

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Emissions

Due to the nature of our business operations, we do
not produce significant direct environmental emissions
such as air emission, discharges to water and land as
well as generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes, and do not consider such emissions to
be material. However, we are aware of the carbon
emissions caused by our electricity consumption
and strive to minimise electrical consumption in our
offices, servers and data centres.

In 2020, there was no material non-compliance
regarding environmental emissions reported.

The environmental and natural resources

As a financial institution, the impact of our business
extends beyond our own operations to the impact our
investment strategies have on the environment. While
we have not formulated specific policies or guidelines
on the ESG considerations of our investment
strategies, ESG considerations are indirectly
addressed as described below.

At YF Life, we have appointed Barings to be the
investment manager of our fixed-income assets
portfolio, who is a signatory of the United Nation’s
Principle of Responsible Investment and has
incorporated ESG factors into its rigorous investment
analysis process. Such integration of ESG factors into
the investment process provides better insights into
long-term risks and opportunities and enhances the
stability of our portfolio.

For our wealth management services, we seek to
work with top-tier fund managers which we believe
have incorporated fundamental ESG considerations
into their investment decisions. We select mutual
fund partners by focusing on new industries and
avoid investment in industries with obvious negative
ESG impact. As part of our due diligence procedures,
we also conduct news search on funds to better
understand their performance. Any negative news
identified, including ESG-related ones, may trigger
further investigation or clarification with the fund
managers, depending on the nature of the issue.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Community Investment

The Group is committed to participating in community
events. When approached by charitable organisations,
we perform due diligence on their background,
mission and plan. If they match with the Group’s
vision, we will provide financial and other assistance
to the maximum practicable extent, on a case-by-case
basis.

YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program

The “YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program” was a first
of its kind programme started by YF Life Insurance
International Ltd. in 1999 to provide simulated
astronaut training for children from Hong Kong,
Macau and China. Since its inception, this program
has helped over 150 children make their space
dreams come true. With its all-round, innovative and
unique training methodology, the program is designed
to spark and nurture children’s interest in space
exploration and advanced aerospace technology, as
well as strengthen the parent-child bond through a
series of parent-child collaboration activities. The
program’s slogan “It is Possible!” encourages children
to take on challenges and go beyond their comfort
zone.

With the spread of COVID-19 and in the interests of
all participants’ health and safety, the 2020 YF Life Jr.
Space Camp Program was temporarily suspended. We
will continue to monitor the situation of the pandemic
and restart the program when feasible.

Participation and sponsorships in social and
environmental events

Besides our flagship YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program,
we also actively participate in different charitable
events organised by non-governmental organisations
(“NGOs”). In 2020, we continued to participate in and
make monetary donations to the Dress Casual Day
and Love Teeth Day organised by The Community
Chest. In addition, we participated in the AVS Flag
Day organised by the Agency for Volunteer Service
and the World Sight Day 2020 organised by Orbis in
Hong Kong and Macau.

We also made in-kind donations to different NGOs
during the year, including food donation to Food
Angel, and 1,600 pieces of Fook Calendar to two
NGOs under The Community Chest.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program (Continued)

Participation and sponsorships in social and
environmental events (Continued)

To raise awareness on climate change, we
participated in the Green Low Carbon Day 2020 co-
organised by The Community Chest and the Earth
Hour 2020 organised by the World Wide Fund for
Nature. Staff members were encouraged to participate
in these events and make donations to show their
support.

In the face of COVID-19, in addition to responding
to the threat with strengthened protection for our
customers by offering them free Hospital Income
Benefit, we also extended this benefit to non-YF Life
customers in both Hong Kong and Macau. In addition,
we donated hand sanitisers to various member
agencies of The Community Chest dedicated to
serving the visually impaired.

A APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX

Aspects
Col

A Environmental
BE

A1 Emissions

a) Policies and
b) Compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

23587

BHEBERMBREREHN - OIKRTHHHES B

ENBEEERRYNELESH :

(@ BE R

(b) BIFHBITABEALENHEEEERAM
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A APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING A [Ktég : &

GUIDE INDEX (Continued) ERHE

Aspects Section
il 321

A1A1 The Types of Emissions and respective emission -

data
BRI R E AR BE A B

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) -
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
MERBATENE (LEE) R (ER)ZE (1L
BEEEM - BERETEHE) °

A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, -
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FECEEREEYEE UHHE) R (WER)ZE
(M BEEEN - BIERETE) -

A1.4  Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) —
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

FEEEEREEYAE (UMTE) R (NER)EE
(M BEEEN - BERETE) °

A1.5  Description of measures to mitigate emissions Emissions

and result achieved B
MBS ENBERIERE -

A1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Emissions
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and BEW
results achieved

HLEEEEREEREZEYNG L BEEEEN
BHRERAERR -

EERESHEBERAT

—ETFFR

wE

%‘i‘l Fﬁ((f—iﬁ HER

=

Remarks

st

Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of air emission
was generated.

HREMNEZMEE - RE
EEERBENETESRE
) o

Greenhouse gas
emissions are not
identified as material
to the Group. We will
continue to observe any
regulatory changes to
review our disclosure in
the future.

R 2 SRS HE R R B R
FEEBEE - HMEE
BEBREESL  FARKE
BARRAEBAEE -

Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of hazardous
waste was generated.

HREMHNEZEE - RE
EXERBENEEER
) o

Non-hazardous wastes
are not identified as
material to the Group
and no data was
tracked.

BEBEZRY AR AL AR
SEBEEZE  FitRERH]
HHEEBUE -
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A APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (Continued)

A2

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3

118

Aspects

ik
Use of Resources
Policies on the efficient use of resources,

including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BERFER
ERERERER(BIEER - kREMEMEH
BUR ©

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
“000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

?**E’*“i PINEERREEER(NE - [H)
BEEUUTETERFE) REE(MUSESE
u BIERETE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

REKEREE(MUSEBREN - BEREIEHE) °

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and result achieved.

MgeRER AT ERAERR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

SR EUGE AR E A B EMRERE - UREA AKX
M EIRFIGHR o

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

R m T ABRMBNESE (UUMEETE)
R)BEEEMNEE -

» R (aniE

The Environment and Natural Resources

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

BRARER

BEREBITAHRERRREFERNERTENBE -

Mgk : BEBRXS Fﬁ((i—iﬁ HER
ERHEECI)ES (&
Section Remarks
=4} fae
Use of
resources
EREIR
Use of
resources
FRER
There was no issue in
sourcing water that is fit
for purpose.
EEBERKRELEREREE
R RE o
Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of packaging
material was used.
HREMOELEEE K
BERERHMENBEN
*SI. o
The
environment
and natural
resources
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A APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (Continued)

Aspects
]

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of

R -8 RER

Section

1]

activities

on the environment and natural resources and

the action taken to manage them.
BB EBHRER RARERNE
BDERRBELENTH -

=

YERDIR

wE

Fﬁ(f—iﬁ

=

HER

Remarks

L

The Group’s businesses

are mainly conducted in
offices and hence there
is insignificant impact

on the environment and

natural resource.

REENEBETEZERAE
T AUHEBRENAA
BERNFEIK -

B Social
e
B1 Employment Employment
3

Policies on employment and compliance

with local laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer on the following

aspects:

Compensation and dismissal
Recruitment and promotion

Working hours and rest periods

Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination
Diversity

Other benefits and welfare

e o o o o o

(3

BRRRHBRRETRUATIEHETABEXR
FENAHERRBAG

N K R
BERER
TR H R R
FERSRRIKR
%k
Hipfsid

&R

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region.

=R BEEL  FREIRMBESE S NEER
2 o

Employment

&R

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.
R FRERI R RE S

Employment
&=
MIEERKLEE o

*%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TEFR
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A APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (Continued)

B2

B3

B4

B4.1

B4.2

B5

120

Aspects
il

Health and Safety

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

RERZZ

FERMZE2IFRERREREREBELRE
MEHEREBETHBRTABEARENHEEEERR
Bl

Development and Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

R R

BERAEEREITTEBENANERRENEBUR
R NES o

Labour Standard

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

T AR

BEBLETRRFL TRBBITABEALEN
HERRBFHEBEERRD -

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

H R R ES BB R E T REHET

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

HMEZRRERBREERE BB RTINS -
Supply Chain Management

Policies on managing environmental and social

risks of the supply chain.
HEEEE

FREEMEENRERESRBNEE -

REC(RE - HER
SI)&El )

i

Remarks

S

Section

1]

Employee
health and
safety

BERERZZR

Development
and training
B R BRI

Employment

&R

Employment

(]

Employment

&R

Supply
chain and

counterparties

management

HEREN X5 Y

FEE
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING

GUIDE INDEX (Continued)

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B7

B7.1

B7.2

Aspects
]

Product Responsibility

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.
EmER

FERAEERIRBNRERZ2 BS  B£R
RABBEURBR T ERHBRTABERZEN
HERURBFHEEERRRG -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

sub ect to recalls for safety and health reasons.
NOEXRERBBTRZERRERAMALD

H&(H’Jﬁ A

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures

HliEERTARREREWER

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.
HICHEEERARERALBESE  UREBRHTRE

BRI o
Anti-corruption

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

RES

BEGLLEE 9% B ARBERYRTAR
EAFENBRKETHBEERRM -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.

mﬁﬁwmﬁﬁ'kﬁﬁﬁékmﬁ5§%%§%
RAARMMEE REFAER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.

?%%@?ﬁ&%ﬁ&ﬁvu&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ&

EER

EHSURMARLT

_7_

TEFR

RE - HEREREBE

g - EBXR S Fﬁ((i—iﬁ HtER
ERBEESIDRS| (&
Section Remarks
-] B
Product
responsibility
EmEE
- Not applicable to the
Group’s busmesses
HAEENXEBTE
- Not applicable to the
Group’s busmesses
HAEENXEKTE
Product
responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption

RES
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A APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (Continued)

B8

122

Aspects
]

Community Investment

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

HERE

BREUHESAREEBITACEMELEFTEN
ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%%xﬁibé%lﬁ%iEﬂﬁE’ﬁ&% °

Fﬁﬁ ERRZM(RE  HER
ERWmERESI)ES (&)
Section Remarks
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Community
investment
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
136 to 337, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

THEMEBERAT
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BB AR S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract provisions

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies at note 2(h).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has significant
insurance contract provisions
comprised of policyholders’
deposits, future policyholders’
benefits and unearned revenue
liability amounted to HK$54,488
million representing 80 per cent
of the Group’s total liabilities.

The computation of future
policyholders’ benefits involves
the use of a reserving model
and significant judgement over
uncertain future outcomes,
primarily the ultimate total
settlement value of future
policyholders’ benefits. The
estimation of these future
policyholders’ benefits includes
the determination of economic
assumptions, including
investment yields and associated
discount rates, and operating
assumptions including mortality,
morbidity, expenses and lapses.

We identified valuation of
insurance contract provisions as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement involved.

*%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the valuation of insurance contract
provisions with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

* assessing the Group’s
methodology for calculating the
insurance contract provisions
and the movements in insurance
contract provisions during the
year, including consideration
of whether the movements are
in line with the assumptions
adopted by the Group, our
understanding of developments
in the business and expectation
derived from market experience;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the key assumptions adopted
over the calculation of insurance
contract provisions based on the
relevant experience studies and
future expectation;

e testing the design,

B A RS

BYZHMBERERTHEEERA
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REEEEEEZ A 1E1E

FRHGE R BEHAMN 31 FIBEE2(h) B9 &
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implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls
over the valuation process,
including the accuracy and
completeness of policy data
input into the actuarial models,
assessment and approval of
the methods and assumptions
adopted over the calculation of
insurance contract provisions as
well as appropriate access and
change management controls
over the actuarial models;
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BB AR S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract provisions
(Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
our audit

* sample testing the future
policyholders’ benefits
calculation of material product
groups;

* assessing the methodology
and assumptions used by the
management in the Liability
Adequacy Test (“LAT”)
calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assumptions used in the
valuation of insurance contract
provisions are compliant with
the relevant accounting standard
requirements and appropriately
represent the sensitivities of the
liabilities to alternative scenarios
and inputs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of investments measured at fair value

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies at note 2(j).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2020, the fair
value of the Group’s investments
carried at fair value totalled
HK$34,884 million, of which
HK$7,370 million was classified
as level 3 investments under the
fair value hierarchy.

The valuation of level 3
investments within the investment
portfolio involves significant
judgement due to the lack of
readily available pricing sources
and the expert judgement
involved in determining
the appropriate valuation
methodology and assumptions to
be used.

We identified the valuation of
investments measured at fair
value as a key audit matter
because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing
level 3 investments and the
significant degree of judgement
exercised by management.

*%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
fair value of level 3 investments
with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists included the
following:

e assessing the design and
implementation of key controls
over the valuation of level 3
investments;

o assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation methodologies;

* assessing the reasonableness
of a sample of the valuation
assumptions;

o evaluating the valuation
assessment and resulting
conclusions to determine the
appropriateness of the valuations
recorded;

* assessing the appropriateness
of the use of the net asset value
reports provided by external fund
administrators or the quoted price
provided by external calculation
agent when these are the pricing
source of the level 3 investments
at reporting date; and

* assessing whether the disclosures
in relation to the level 3
investments are compliant with the
relevant accounting requirements
and appropriately present the
sensitivities in the valuations
based on alternative outcomes.
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B ZBETHRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Recoverability and amortisation of Value of

Business Acquired

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies at note 2(h(v)).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group has reported Value of
Business Acquired (“VOBA”)
of HK$9,013 million and
amortisation of the VOBA of
HK$324 million for the year.
The recoverability assessment
and amortisation of the VOBA
are based on the achieved and
projected future premium and
profit profile, which involves
management making assumptions
about future outcomes.

We identified the recoverability
and amortisation of VOBA as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement.

128

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the recoverability and amortisation
of VOBA with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the VOBA amortisation factors
which includes assessing the
appropriateness of assumptions
relating to the projected future
gross premium and profit profile;

o testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of VOBA;

* assessing management’s
recoverability assessment of the
VOBA in the connection with the
LAT calculation; and

°* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to the
valuation and amortisation of
VOBA are compliant with the
relevant accounting standard
requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies at note 2(h(iv)).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group has reported deferred
acquisition costs (“DAC”) of HK$
1,931 million and amortisation of
the DAC of HK$ 492 million for
the year. The amortisation of the
DAC is based on the achieved
and projected future premium
and profit profile, which involves
management making assumptions
about future outcomes.

We identified the amortisation of
the DAC as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the significant
degree of management judgement
involved.

*%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
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How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
amortisation of the DAC with the
involvement of our internal actuarial
specialists included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the DAC amortisation factors
which includes assessing the
appropriateness of assumptions
relating to the projected future
gross premium and profit profile;

* testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of DAC; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to the
amortisation of DAC is compliant
with the relevant accounting
standard requirements.
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B ZBETHRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 22(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies at note 2(d).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2020, the
Group has recognised goodwill
of HK$1,826 million for the
acquisition of YF Life Insurance
International Limited (“YF Life”).

There is a risk that the carrying
value of goodwill may not be
recoverable in full through the
future cash flows to be generated
from the relevant cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the
goodwill has been allocated. To
assess the recoverable amount of
goodwill, management calculated
the appraisal value of YF Life
as they considered this is the
appropriate estimation of the
recoverable amount of YF Life.

We identified the impairment
assessment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement and
estimation involved, particularly
in the determination of the
assumptions used in the
calculation of the appraisal value.
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How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
impairment assessment of goodwill
with the involvement of our internal
actuarial specialists included the
following:

* assessing management’s
identification of CGU and the
allocation of goodwill with
reference to our understanding
of the Group’s business and the
requirement of the prevailing
accounting standards;

* assessing the appropriateness
of the methodology used to
calculate the appraisal value;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the selected assumptions
based on our understanding of
developments in the business
and expectations derived from
market experience; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assessment of potential
impairment of goodwill are
compliant with the relevant
accounting standard
requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Other matter

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The reconciliation between HKFRSs and
US generally accepted accounting principles included
in note 50 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

B A RS

VERBMBESHERESHEEARL
BRI 8 (4

HittE 1|

EPMNEFRATHESUBRRBERZER -
MEESOFTHC( BB B R EZEANEXE AR
S ER CENHRDBBEIDHIME5] - I
FESMBHRRNVBARTD - ZEFEER
BATHEESUBRRBAMRANETER -
EMRD  ZEEEERBERTEEP I

2% -

R <

REVBBRRREZBARSEUIINER

EFAHEMEEAE - AttEEEETER
FHRANZHES  EFEEFEUBHRERR
EPIZBERE -

EMERSUBHRRNBEREL TREHAE
B BT THZEAMEEEREAEAN
EEEW o

FRRMUGESMBHRERNES » RANEE
EHBEAMER  EHBREYD  ZEHMESR
EREGSYBBRRARMEETBRETHAT
BRBREFEERNEBRELTFEFEEARER
BRALAYIE R

EREMSATHIE  UREMIAB/EME
EFEERERRL  RMFEREZFE -
KEEFE @ RIRBEM®RS -

131



Independent Auditor’s Report
bR 3 TS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BIUYZBMBERELRESHEBEGRA
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Lok Man.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

e WS R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE_F#{+ _F=+—HIFFZ

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 B 5l 5 )

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
Income LON
Premiums and fee income RERERHIA 6 7,723,441 6,016,075
Premiums ceded to reinsurer DHRE (2,934,969)  (1,948,003)
Net premium and fee income RERERKBAFEE 4,788,472 4,068,072
Change in unearned revenue REBBAEEES
liability (525,825) (715,649)
Net earned premium and fee WERERE AR R
income 4,262,647 3,352,423
Brokerage commission, interest KLemE - FIEWAT
and other service income H b PR AU A 33,944 18,566
Subscription, management and R BEEER
rebate fee income B3R E WA 5,432 8,850
Consultancy and advisory income BRI R &AW A - 1,060
Net investment income REWR AN FEEE 7a 3,691,641 3,290,299
Overlay adjustment BERAE (119,419) (93,666)
Other income Hi = 7b 2,697,478 1,624,033
Reinsurance commission and profit FE{R A< %A 97,301 78,204
Total income ON-CEL 10,669,024 8,279,769
Benefits, losses and expenses B BEMER
Net policyholders benefit FREGA 8 (3,272,837) (3,196,552)
Commission and related expenses {H& M 1HEEE A 9 (1,349,851) (1,199,947)
Deferral and amortisation of IEAER BB A HYIEIER
deferred acquisition costs and BERWEBEENER
value of business acquired 743,691 913,505
Management and other expenses  EIER HABX (940,046) (1,001,438)
Change in future policyholder ARREFEAGTEE
benefits 10 (4,727,089) (3,076,718)
Total benefits, losses and expenses #A1{¥ - EIEF1E 4 %E (9,546,132) (7,561,150)
Finance cost Rl E YA 11(c) (170,385) (103,488)
Share of result in associates e N TEEMNE 303 (1,080)
Profit before taxation RRBL AR 11 952,810 614,051
Tax (expenses)/credit BmE(XH) Ee 12 (3,823) 699
Profit after taxation BRBL &R 948,987 614,750
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE _FH#{ _F=+—HIFFEZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 8 %))

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bzt FET FET
Profit attributable to: T5& F EAEER
Equity shareholders of the AR ERRR
Company 618,315 255,619
Non-controlling interests JEIERR RS 330,672 359,131
948,987 614,750
Earnings per share attributable KA FRERRREMN
to equity shareholders of the BREF
Company
Basic (HK$) HEARGET) 15(a) 0.186 0.080
Diluted (HK$) 5% (8 T) 15(b) 0.186 0.080

The notes on pages 148 to 337 form part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE_F#{+ _F=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 B 5l 5 )

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Biat FET FET
Profit for the year after taxation = *FE¥i®m™ 948,987 | 614,750
Other comprehensive income for AREEHME2EWE
the year
Item that will not be reclassified HETEEH > BABREN
subsequently to profit or loss: BH :
Equity investment at fair value UAREBEFEEEZE
through other comprehensive AHRM2EKRENRERE
income — net movement in fair — PRAEEREEZEFE
value reserve (non-recycling) (T ajEEE ) 732 4,084
Items that may be reclassified HEgngEiosERE8a0
subsequently to profit or loss: Y=
Net movement in the fair FREEMEEKREPERN
value reserve during the AREBEEFEEEFEE
year recognised in other
comprehensive income 17 1,166,122 1,143,832
Net movement in fair value of BERARTLUAREEEZR
financial asset at fair value HEBTABENEREE
through profit or loss under
overlay adjustment 17 119,419 93,666
Exchange differences arising on RENBEIEBEEEECER
translation of results of foreign =5E
operations 3,085 (5,172)
Unrealised loss related to EEREES A A8 I Uk i
amortisation of deferred =W EBHEBNARER
acquisition costs and value of E5i8
business acquired 23, 24 (986,349) (1,033,200)
Unrealised gain related to REEAW A S H RN
amortisation of unearned revenue = REBRZE — RBEEE
liability — Insurance contract EHE
provisions 31(iii) 527,205 477,873
Unrealised gain related to REEIWA S H BN
amortisation of unearned revenue  KEBHRWz@E — RESH
liability — Investment contract afE
liabilities 32(iii) 67,838 64,251
898,052 745,334
Total comprehensive income for ZAEE2EINFHELE
the year 1,847,039 1,360,084
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE _FH#{ _F=+—HIFFEZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 8 %))

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bzt FET FET
Total comprehensive income EEEmEk a4
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the ARAERRR
Company 1,246,308 702,384
Non-controlling interests PR R 600,731 657,700
1,847,039 1,360,084

The notes on pages 148 to 337 form part of these
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRI R

At 31 December 2020 R=ZF=FF+=-H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ¥l 5)

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Assets EE
Property and equipment YERRE 18 600,451 495,328
Statutory deposits SEEFER 19 5,721 3,243
Deferred tax asset EERIEEE 37(b) 150 44
Investments in associates REEQNTNIRE 20 30,074 27,860
Goodwill and other intangible BERHEMELEE
assets 22 1,909,079 1,923,360
Value of business acquired Wi EKER 23 9,012,571 10,057,446
Deferred acquisition costs ELEREREFHA 24 1,931,197 1,128,980
Investments ®E 25 62,807,704 54,822,243
Advance reinsurance premiums BN BRERE 26 1,289,587 1,455,458
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding RARERZBREQAEHE
claims 53] 55,443 48,349
Insurance and reinsurance BEWRE R BREER
receivables 27 3,755,753 1,579,543
Other accounts receivable and H b fE U AR X R FE ST A
accrued income 28 158,878 124,446
Other receivables, deposits and HEWR - Ze Rk
prepayment it HmE 29 954,639 627,511
Bank balance — trust and IRITEREE — Bt
segregated accounts BARP 30 747,841 478,465
Fixed bank deposits with original REHRZR=M@AW
maturity over 3 months RITEHER 30 236,733 385,417
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEER 30 4,056,734 2,169,751
87,552,555 75,327,444
Liabilities aE
Insurance contract provisions RiEREEES 31 54,487,776 46,455,874
Investment contract liabilities RECREE 32 4,492,855 4,364,600
Outstanding claims RIREERK 33 184,160 161,913
Reinsurance premium payables EBABREBERE 34 321,989 529,562
Other accounts payables H A AT BRRX 35 869,533 578,545
Other payables and accrued Hi A FIE M BT R X
expenses 36 2,520,712 2,436,967
Tax payable P BE1E 37(a) 13,893 52,086
Financial liabilities at fair value DAREESEBEESEHFTA
through profit or loss BElesmas 38 618,561 630,569
Lease liabilities HEEE 39 286,412 326,584
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEE B 37(b) 1,220,317 1,267,384
Bank borrowings SRITIER 40 1,553,503 1,498,758
Shareholder’s loan RRERK 41 1,641,077 1,561,444
68,210,788 59,864,286
NET ASSETS EEZFE 19,341,767 15,463,158
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI

At 31 December 2020 R=—F—F#+=-F=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FiET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARMGEE
Share capital &N 42(e) 11,872,683 9,829,094
Reserves ] 1,507,893 273,604
13,380,576 10,102,698
Non-controlling interests Bl 5,961,191 5,360,460
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 19,341,767 15,463,158

Approved and authorised

directors on 26 March 2021

Zhang Ke
R A

for issue by the board of

Executive Director, Vice Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

HITEE FIEFRRITHAE

The notes on pages 148 to 337 form part of these

financial statements.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

BEEER=EC

B o

Huang Xin
BE

—F=Z B+ RBREXLFFA

Executive Director

HITEE

F148 B EF 337 Eff st ARG ES FIERERM

MRER D o

141



F—HILEE

A=

FFEL

=

—E—=F

BIEOYSH 097096 ee9TN0L  Gwr) s W) (e ol 8es wrle  ez'te  pe0'ests A0 A Sl A 6402 /3238 4¢ Je aouefeg
- - - (e89) 088 - - - - - - = YU yBNATTHE assal elded pue Aojnjels o} uoneydoiddy
- - - iyl - - - - (IN - = - FEyEE S18SSE Panfenal 0 JUallaIleY
pESHL  6oSeee Sl - - (2219 1807 gy - - - - BOEZRHEEEY ol au)lof ool nsualeidico RO
05149 lerese  6l9%T  6l9%e - = = = = = - - EE Jeak auy 1o} Jioig
(1459 - (1159 = = = = = = (159 = - LYWHERONYESTHY  SU0jesURl) peseq-aieys pass b3

00092 000826 = = = = = = = - - - freipisqns
ETEOENEZHL-  peuno fjoyn-uou e o} Uoinguiod [eyde)

bop'los’s)  Govgess)  ewoeus  eweL - - S = - - - - sauBipISans
s e ITE T UL 5048301 [eUORIPPE J0 UOBISINDIY

g Feh 1§02 J8qu08q ¢

HETH-LSH-L5U-§-F8  papua deak aup doj Kynba ur sobueys)

BOC'SH  LTrHY ot (9% eesed ) (osy'y) 161'6¢ 059 £60'8 (/343 7606286 BRTE-H-U-sTHOEEE 6402 Kienuer | Je aduefeq pajsnipy

B SIT)

/

(950 (z88%) (0859 (0gc9) = = = = = = = = ELIE AR LA 9} Su4yH 1o uondope 1si4

7 ot o TU o V147 B (087'9) (oct) 161°6¢ 059 £60'%¢ (1343 7006286 (HE)BBZH-+ZH=+EV-&TH  (pOIeISOY) 8107 4aquoaq 4¢ Je doueleg

X o3-S

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (¥

\

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n

1§t g4 1§t 1¢4 1@t 1#4 1@t 1§t g4 1§t g4 1§t
000$YH  CO0SYH  O00S¥H  O0OSXH  000$YH  000$YH  000SYH  COOOSMH  000SMH  O0OSMH  0008YH  000.$WH
kE s LEE S Bk B8 Y8¥E  (OEkY) (EBR) 48 gEEN B2 ¥l

b EES ue L1 NAGRT £ S E221 2
BEYY Hhfy  EEOHE
[Bi0] SR [RIOMONS SS0) EITE IV (Bujofoar — (Buofiosl)  aieses EITE allayos [eydeo
Bujou00 polenwnody [eydeapue  ebueyoxy  -Uou) EITE uofeners  Welfed  piemesleys  aieyg
-UoN fioymelg aNiBSo) oMeled eSSy peseq fiq pey
aNjeA Jie4 -8IRUS SalRyg
JEERTRETY

fueduior) 8y Jo siapjoyaseys Kb o} gigemauy

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2020

142



X o3-S

F+
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

N

n

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

+—HILEE

Z =4=

=

—E—=F

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

c CRMBUWEHANSYYHENE LCCESHBYIE

"SjusWele]S [BlOoUBUI} 9S8y} Jo Jed wuo) Jg¢ 01 g | sebed uo sejou ay]

190E'1  boKI06's  olcose’sh  oer'sw  GL0'9 (e259) 098 02850k 888 §Lt's (A5 I A BEWH-HHatEcY 020 49qua0a( 1§ 18 soueleq
- - - (04) 019 - - - - - - - YEYENTLTHE ouesol bydeo pue fioynes o uopeudoddy
- - - - - - - - - - - - mw&m%w $]aSSe pan(ensl Jo Justiailjey
w%0'8 oS00 g6l - - o0’ wl ue - - - - BREZGEEEy  Jeal oy Jo owoou ansuayaidlid JauQ
19696 0086 GiEBl Gl - - - - - - - - MEE Ty Jzah 8} Jof Jjoig
(6h0'zH) - (60’2 - - - - - - (6b0'ZH) - - UXUBYYESTHY SU0joBsU) Paseq-aieys paos fynb3
et - st - - - - - - - - 6866407 04l $BIBYS UOIdOSqNS J0 8nSs|
EERE 10307 J8quia98q 1§
HETH-1ZH-158-83s papua Jeak ayy Joy fynba ui sabueyy
9GM'EOMSH  00Y'00E'G  869T0N0L  (GLz0e)  gor'99 (Boo')  fesg) mwo'ley  8eg) wh'ie (oez'se) 7606286 BY7H-H-%&04C 0207 Menuer |
H-+ZH=+HU-8H PUB 6107 489833 1§ 18 Bdue[eq
vyt vyt zgd rgt zgd zgt zgd vyt zgd zgt Zg4 vyt
000SYH  000SYH  O00SYH  O00SYH  O0OSXH  O0OSMH  OOOSHH  OOOSMH  O00SHH  O00SYH  000SYH  000SWH
£g TaNEE K HEEE ¥y 4¥%s  (deky) (BER) 43 gERy Bz 4
VLS 48 L] YEEE  THE BHURE
BEYY  BEYY oW EEOWY
[e0] Sisalolul  [ejorgng  SSO| aniasal aMiasal (Buijokoa)  (Buijokos))  enasal EIVELEY EITEITRY [eydes
fuijjouod pajeinwnaay [eydea pue  obueyoxy  -uou) EIVERL]] uonenjerss  juswfed  plemealkeys oleyg
-UoN fioniers aNiasal anenlie  Jassy paseq fiq pray
anjen Jie4 -3leyg SaJeyg
BIERBaL Y

fuedwo au jo siapjoyaieys fnba o} sjgeInqURY

ERSREBERAR

143

TEFH

=

—==-=



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE_F#{+ _F=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 B 5l 5 )

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FHET FET
Profit before taxation BRBE AT A 952,810 614,051
Adjustments for: P
Net gain on financial assets and URARBEFEEHEHEZH
financial liabilities at fair value ABEHNEREERESR
through profit and loss BEzWRFE (1,350,924) (1,132,980)
Net gain on disposal of financial HEUARBEFEEHS
assets at fair value through other Bt AR EKENE
comprehensive income REEW R T (98,620) (19,798)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HERBHERATENESH
financial assets measured at BEN(KR) EEFE
amortised cost (8,067) 220
Dividend and distribution income LA AEETEBHE B
from financial asset at fair value ABRNEREENRE
through profit and loss Mo ERUW A (235,760) (255,480)
Impairment loss of debt instrument IR SR AT ER LA RE
measured at amortised cost B2 BES BT AHM
and fair value through other ZHBENER T AERE
comprehensive income B 137,992 18,650
Impairment loss of investment in an B¢ N TR 2 RESE
associate - 35,000
Depreciation and amortisation HE R 157,922 139,516
Finance costs & RS 170,385 103,488
Interest income FEWA (19,455) (48,456)
Equity-settled share-based VARE 22 4 B0 AR D 2 13 =2
payment expenses B (12,019) (6,541)
Effect of shadow accounting on FrETHRBERNER
change in value of business BE - RELERBEESHAN
acquired, deferred acquisition MAZBHBASENZE
costs and unearned revenue
liability (391,306) (491,076)
Share of result of associates B N\ TmEEME (303) 1,080
Interest credited to policyholders’  {REEFFHE ANEREFE
deposits 2,784,500 2,690,237
Effective interest income of RENBRFE WA
investments (107,485) (100,979)
Other movements in investment REREMHVEMES
and others 249 17,822
1,979,919 1,564,754
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE _FH#{ _F=+—HIFFEZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 8 %))

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BtaE FET FET
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Change in financial asset and UanEBEFEEHSE
financial liabilities at fair value AEENEREENEH
through profit or loss =Ripwd - 2| 32,149 29,766
Increase in other accounts HAth FE UK BRFXIE AN
receivable (34,233) (29,812)
Increase in other receivables, HitEWFRIE » FRRFEMS
deposits and prepayments FRIEIE N (259,357) (87,452)
Increase in bank balances — trust  $R{TEAZEIE N — SFERBL
and segregated accounts BRP (269,376) (38,502)
Increase in other accounts payable  E b fE{ BRFR 1% 0 290,988 56,681
Increase in accrued expenses and  fEFTE AR HttE(TFIE
other payables 40 230,207 1,586,709
Decrease in value of business WS EBE R
acquired 1,044,875 1,018,216
Increase in deferred acquisition EERERES R AIG N
costs (802,217) (898,522)
(Decrease)/increase in unearned KREFWASECRD)
revenue liability 4 (69,217) 173,524
Decrease/(increase) in advance BABRERERLD
reinsurance premiums (38n) 165,871 (1,444,806)
Increase in reinsurer’s share of RRERZBREAMDEE
outstanding claims & (7,094) (17,147)
Increase in insurance and FE W AR B A BB AR B FRE 0
reinsurance receivable (2,175,327) (1,335,621)
Decrease in policyholders’ deposits {REFH A 7R (2,042,681) (2,030,219)
Increase in future policyholders’ RIIREIFH AL
benefits 4,727,089 3,076,718
Increase in outstanding claims FRR BE FRIE A0 22,247 38,090
(Decrease)/increase in reinsurance B BRBIRE CRL),
premium payables 0 (207,573) 215,551
Others Hib 3,304 (12,006)
Cash generated from operation KEEEEE RS 2,629,574 1,865,922
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z - ZFE_ =&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 B 5l 5 )

FtoASt—ALEE

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
Note HK$’OOO HK$’000
Kt FET FET
Operating activities REEH
Cash generated from operations REERELTNIRS 2,629,574 1,865,922
Interest received 2 RIS 769 1,141
Interest paid EFE (46,665) (15,740)
Tax paid: 2IFHE
Hong Kong profit tax paid B2 EBRER (88,387) (2,071)
Overseas tax paid BB N (795) (2,348)
Net cash generated from RETHEENRSTHE
operating activities 2,494,496 1,846,904
Investing activities RETH
Payment for purchased of property BEY¥ KRB N
and equipment (156,710) (81,964)
Payment for purchase of intangible BEE&EFEEMNR
asset (45) (233)
Proceeds from dividend and UAREBETTEEHRS Ef)‘l‘
distribution income from financial ABRNEREENRE
assets at fair value through profit ~ o & U
or loss 54,311 80,352
Purchase of/payment for BE B ANULAR
acquisition of financial assets EEFEAEZHTAHE
at fair value through other tEmEKENEREE
comprehensive income (9,055,787) (9,037,401)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEMUARBEFEEHE
assets at fair value through other Bt AHMEEKRENS
comprehensive income RS E Z TS FUE 5,395,801 3,480,808
Proceeds from disposal of financial HELA R EES B A RS
assets at fair value through profit EJJE‘I‘)\TE%:&E’J%E&*&EEZ
or loss FIEEE e 2,962,427 2,322 348
Purchase of/payment for ﬂ%;—./iﬁb{l\ REEE
acquisition of and contribution BHEHZSHTABERZEME
made to financial assets at fair ENKWBNEE
value through profit or loss (2,436,149) (2,150,555)
Decrease/(increase) in fixed bank  FREHIRZA=ZEANEE
deposits placed with original RITEFRL, ()
maturity over 3 months 148,684 (126,167)
Purchases of amortised cost BEEBENLTRE
investments (3,667,004) (4,272,765)
Proceeds from sales, maturities $HE - ZIEARAEE B R A
and repayments of amortised REMEMIA
cost investments 1,449,527 1,154,514
Purchases of policy loans BEREEN (2,575) (626)
Proceeds from sales, maturities HE - —“Uﬁﬂﬂlﬁlﬂ X
and repayments of policy loans 8T 1,692 316
Interest received ELEIISE 24,251 46,479
Net cash used in investing activities REZFBEA ZH ST (5,281,577) (8,584,894)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE _FH#{ _F=+—HIFFEZ

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
Note HK$’OOO HK$’000
Kt FET FET
Financing activities MEES
Payment made for interest XNHEAE — FIEHD
component of lease liabilities (9,543) (10,384)
Payment made for capital XAHERE — EXKD
component of lease liabilities (124,296) (106,087)
Proceeds from issuance of BITRERHDZ
placement shares FriS I8 2,043,589 =
Net proceeds from issuance of f‘ﬁ%’i\\ ABTE LR 2 FrE
preference shares by a subsidiary  FX/F%E - 76,063
Drawndown of bank borrowings hHﬁEfﬂ‘é—i%’\ 843,300 1,406,800
Repayment of bank borrowings EZERITHER (788,232) (1,106,800)
Interest paid 2R (57,871) (65,484)
Capital injection from non- QFEHﬂEﬁTﬂﬁ]—?WE’RE
controlling interest to a subsidiary  {EHHEE - 328,000
Policyholders’ account deposits REFEAZRBNERES
for insurance and investment BZEFfH#E
contracts 4,741,469 4,931,169
Policyholders’ account withdrawals REFEAZRBINRES
for insurance and investment [E 2 BRFIREL
contracts (1,981,003) (1,729,217)
Net cash generated from METBHMEE RS FE
financing activities 4,667,413 3,724,060
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BRERBELSZEEBEEH M
and cash equivalents ORd) B8 1,880,332 (3,013,930
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HWRERAELE
1 January E1E B 2,169,751 5,184,229
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEEZFFHNTE
changes 6,651 (548)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-A=+—HHNEER
31 December Re%EEA 4,056,734 2,169,751
The notes on pages 148 to 337 form part of these E148HEE BT EMTRLETFREMBHREN
financial statements. HEED ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

148

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong, the shares of which are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
registered office of the Company is Suites 3201-
3204, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place,
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are long term
assurance business, the provision of securities
brokerage, consultancy and advisory services
and investment research, wealth management,
employee stock ownership plan administration
and principal investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which
is the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

—REHR

E#cemEERERAR(TA27E DR
EREEMRIZEBRAT  HROES
BERHAREMAERAT LT - AAF 2
HMRERENVREEBRRELES S
RS EH 1 3201-3204 F »

FEBECTEEBRRARRBREE
B RERSLL CEREFTARR
B MEEE BIEREEE
REERE - AEEXEMBEATZE
BB R AMFBRRU B RRMEE21 -

REMBHRRUBITEY  BRERE
REAZHEEE  REBEAEN -
BHEYUREL 2 TASE -

FESTEHER
(a) &FREH

FMBHREEREBEHMLE
BEHMNAEEANEBYB®RSE
RN (LRBES A E A E 5
(BB BH/RELER) -(EBES
ERIMER) EBARSFRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTBEAE)
(Continued)
(a) Statement of compliance (Continued) (a) EREBHGE)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial information.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries including
the consolidated structured entities (together
referred to as “the Group”) and the Group’s
interests in associates and joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investments
in certain debt and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments are stated
at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

BESHMASEM T E TN
RETI(ERMBREER) - &
LRERERAEFEMNAATENNG
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2E CRAUBRERARK - B
BEEREINHEES

(b) MBHERZEHRERE

BE-ZE-EF+ZA=t—-HL
FENGREUBBMIBRELD AN
EMBAR (B AEE]) UK
AEEMBFEEHEQNRNEELE

= N 2

R fEES ©

MU LAT sl 2 & 5t BUR Fr AR 92 -
BRNETEBMERESFURITE
TMIANRERAE D REEIK
Sh MMM BMRHEAZTER
EDEERAEE -

EEERTRETE(EBUBER
SEADNHBRRSEFLHEHS
SAHRMER  UREE - 8F -
WA HREBEERZEN
F B fEEF AR o B LS A
HERRXERBEUEERMER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 4.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions, cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

2
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(b)

(c)

MBBR2MREE(F

FEEMAANEBEBRREETEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHBEKR#E)
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MEARKRIFERER (&
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, no gain or loss is recognised.

FEREREEYIFHADNFEE
FEFEFEENHEB LA ER - MA
EEYREHRELESNIFE AR
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B EE 5T M IF i R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

2

152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(t)(ii)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

The Group serves as the manager of funds.
The funds invest mainly in equities, debt
securities and monetary market instruments.
The Group’s percentage ownership in these
structured entities can fluctuate from day
to day according to the Group’s and third-
party participation in them. Where the
Group is deemed to control such funds, with
control determined based on an analysis
of the guidance in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, they are consolidated,
with the interests of parties other than
the Group being classified as liabilities
because there is a contractual obligation
for the relevant group entity as an issuer
to repurchase or redeem units or return
of capital in such funds for cash. These
are presented as “Third-party interests in
consolidated funds” within financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill

(e)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(t)

(if)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

When an investment in a joint venture
is held by, or is held indirectly through,
a group entity that is a venture capital
organisation and similar entities, the Group
may elect to measure investments in those
joint ventures at fair value through profit or
loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(t)(ii)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEHE#E)
(Continued)
(f) Associates (Continued) (f) HEQAR(EF

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Classification of insurance and investment
contracts

Contracts under which the Group accepts
significant insurance risk from another
party (“the policyholder”) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event (“the insured event”)
adversely affects the policyholder are
classified as insurance contracts. Insurance
risk is risk, other than financial risk,
transferred from the holder of a contract
to the issuer. Financial risk is the risk of
a possible future change in one or more
of a specified interest rate, security price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of prices or rates, a credit rating or
credit index or other variable, provided in
the case of a non-financial variable that
the variable is not specific to a party to
the contract. Insurance contracts may also
transfer some financial risk.

Insurance risk is significant if, and only if,
an insured event could cause the Group to
pay significant additional benefits. Once
a contract is classified as an insurance
contract it remains classified as an
insurance contract until all rights and
obligations are extinguished or expired.

Contracts under which the transfer of
insurance risk to the Group from the
policyholder is not significant are classified
as investment contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Classification of insurance and investment
contracts (Continued)

Contracts with a discretionary
participation feature (“DPF”)

Certain insurance contracts issued by the
Group contain a DPF. A DPF is a contractual
right held by a policyholder to receive, as a
supplement to guaranteed minimum benefits,
additional benefits that are likely to be a
significant portion of the total contractual
benefits, whose amount or timing is
contractually at the Group’s discretion and
is contractually based on:

(i) the performance of a specified pool
of contracts or a specified type of
contract;

(i) realised and/or unrealised investment
returns on a specified pool of assets
held by the Group; and

(iii) the profit or loss of the Group.

Insurance contracts

(i) Recognition and measurement
Revenue

Premiums in respect of insurance
contracts are recognised as revenue
when due. Fee income is recognised as
revenue when services are rendered.
Premiums and fee income exclude any
taxes or duties.

Reinsurance commission refers to the
amount paid by reinsurers to reimburse
the expenses associated with issuing
a policy. It is recognised as revenue
when due. Profit commission is the
reward paid by reinsurers for favourable
experience.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Claims

Claims include maturities, annuities,
surrenders and death claims. Maturity
and annuity claims are recognised as
an expense when due for payment.
Surrender claims are recognised when
notified. Death claims are recognised
when notified.

Outstanding claims includes estimates
of both claims that have been reported
but not paid and those that have been
incurred but not reported, also includes
estimates of all future expenses
associated with processing and
settlement of these claims.

The estimation process is primarily
based on the assumption that
experience is an appropriate indication
of future events, and involves a
variety of actuarial techniques that
analyse experience, trends and other
relevant factors. The amount recorded
represents the best estimate based
upon currently known facts and
actuarial guidelines.

Policyholders’ deposits

Policyholders’ deposits include deposit
components of insurance contracts,
liabilities for universal and variable life
products, annuities and investment
related policies and contracts. These
liabilities are established by contract
deposits, increased by interest credited
and decreased by interest debited,
contract fees and contract withdrawals.
Interest credited represents the interest
accrued to universal life contracts
account balance based on the credited
rate declared by the Group from time to
time. For linked contracts, it represents
the earnings credited to the account
balance based on the performance of
selected investment choices. Interest
credited is recognised as expense when
paid in payable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Future policyholders’ benefits

Liability for future policyholders’
benefits of insurance contracts
for traditional life contracts and
additional coverages offered under
policy riders are calculated using
the net level premium method and
assumptions as to investment yields,
mortality, withdrawals and dividends.
The assumptions are based on best
estimate projections of past experience
from the commencement of each
contract and include provisions for
possible adverse deviations. The
assumptions are made at the time the
contract is issued and do not change,
unless a loss needs to be recognised.

The reserves for participating whole
life products are calculated using the
net level premium method based upon
prescribed estimates as to investment
yield, mortality, withdrawals. Dividends
are also included. Reserves for accident
and disability contracts are based upon
mortality, morbidity and withdrawal
assumptions which are based on the
Group’s own experience and certain
reinsurance tables. Unpaid disability
claim liabilities are established based
on disability payments earned from the
last payment date to the valuation date.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

160

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Unearned revenue liability (“URL”)

Amounts assessed against
policyholders’ account balances that
represent compensation to the Group
for services to be provided in future
periods are not recognised in the period
assessed. These amounts are reported
as unearned revenue liability and
recognised in the income statements
over the period benefited, using the
same assumptions and factors utilised
to amortise deferred acquisition costs.

Shadow accounting is applied so that
the URL balance is also adjusted by
an amount that represents the change
in amortisation of URL that would
have been required as a charge or
credit to profit and loss had unrealised
amounts recorded in fair value reserve
been realised. These adjustments are
charged or credited to the fair value
reserve.

The accounting treatment for URL
arising from insurance contracts is also
applied to investment contracts.

Embedded derivatives in insurance
contracts

Features contained within insurance
contracts that would be considered
derivatives if they were stand alone
instruments which have not been
separated and measured at fair value if
those embedded derivatives are closely
related to the host insurance contract.

The Group has taken advantage of
the exemption available in HKFRS 4
Insurance Contract not to separate
and measure at fair value policyholder
options to surrender insurance
contracts for a fixed amount even if the
exercise price differs from the carrying
amount of the host insurance liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(iii)

(iv)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Reinsurance

The Group cedes reinsurance in the
normal course of business for the
purpose of limiting its net loss potential
through the diversification of its
risks. Assets, liabilities, income and
expense arising from ceded reinsurance
contracts are presented separately from
the related assets, liabilities, income
and expense from the related insurance
contracts because the reinsurance
arrangements do not relieve the
Group from its direct obligations to
policyholders.

Only rights under contracts that
give rise to a significant transfer of
insurance risk are accounted for as
reinsurance assets. Rights under
contracts that do not transfer significant
insurance risk are accounted for as
financial instruments.

Reinsurance premiums for ceded
reinsurance are recognised as an
expense on a basis that is consistent
with the recognition basis for the
premiums on the related insurance
contracts.

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

The Group’s DAC is an intangible asset
comprised of incremental direct costs
of contract acquisition and the portion
of employee total compensation and
payroll-related fringe benefits directly
related to time spent performing the
following acquisition activities: (a)
underwriting; (b) policy issuance and
processing; (c) medical and inspection;
(d) sales force contract selling; and (e)
other direct costs that would not have
been incurred if the contract had not
been acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

(iv) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC?”)

(Continued)

Incremental direct costs of acquisition
include commissions or volume-
related sales bonuses and medical
and inspection fees for a successful
contract acquisition. The portion of
employee compensation and related
benefits include only those costs
directly related to time spent performing
those activities for actual acquired
contracts. Related benefits include
medical insurance, Group life insurance
and retirement plans.

The Group also defers the commissions
and volume-related expense allowances
for successful contract acquisitions in
transactions with our career agents. All
other acquisition-related costs such as
soliciting potential customers, market
research, training, administration,
unsuccessful acquisition or renewal
efforts and product development
is charged to expense as incurred.
Administration costs, rent, depreciation,
occupancy, equipment, and all other
general overhead costs are also
charged to expense as incurred.

DAC for universal life and investment-
type products are amortised with
interest spread over the expected
life of the contract in proportion to
the estimated gross profits from
investment, mortality, expense margins
and surrender charges. Amortisation
interest rates are based upon rates in
effect at the inception of the contracts.
The amortisation rate is periodically
updated to reflect current period
experience or changes in assumptions
that affect future profitability, such
as investment returns, asset growth
rates, lapse rates, expenses, surrender
charges and mortality experience.
These changes result in adjustments
to the DAC balances in the period that
the Group changes its assumptions,
as well as changes in prospective DAC
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(iv)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC?”)
(Continued)

DAC for traditional life and non-
medical health products are amortised
in proportion to anticipated premiums.
Assumptions as to anticipated
premiums are made at the date of
issuance and are applied during the
lives of the contracts consistently.
Deviations from estimated experience
are included in profit or loss when they
occur.

Shadow accounting is applied so that
the DAC balance is also adjusted by
an amount that represents the change
in amortisation of DAC that would
have been required as a charge or
credit to profit or loss had unrealised
amounts recorded in fair value reserve
been realised. These adjustments are
charged or credited to the fair value
reserve.

The accounting treatment for DAC
arising from insurance contracts is also
applied to investment contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

(v)

Value of business acquired (“VOBA”)

VOBA, in respect of a portfolio of
long-term insurance and investment
contracts, is an intangible asset that
reflects the estimated fair value of in-
force contracts in a life insurance
company acquisition and represents
the portion of the purchase price that
is allocated to the value of the right
to receive future cash flows from the
business in-force at the acquisition
date of a subsidiary. VOBA is based
on actuarially determined projections,
by each block of business, of future
policy and contract charges, premiums,
mortality and morbidity, separate
account performance, surrenders,
operating expenses, investment returns
and other factors. If this results from
the acquisition of an investment in
a joint venture or an associate, the
VOBA is held within the carrying
amount of that investment. The VOBA
is amortised over the estimated life
of the contracts in the acquired
portfolio on a systematic basis. The
rate of amortisation reflects the profile
of the value of in-force business
acquired. The carrying value of VOBA
is reviewed annually for impairment
and any reduction is charged to the
consolidated income statement.

Shadow accounting is applied so that
the VOBA balance is also adjusted by
an amount that represents the change
in amortisation of VOBA that would
have been required as a charge or
credit to profit or loss had unrealised
amounts recorded in fair value reserve
been realised. These adjustments are
charged or credited to the fair value
reserve.

The accounting treatment for VOBA
arising from insurance contracts is also
applied to investment contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Insurance contracts (Continued)
(vi) Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period,
liability adequacy tests are performed
to determine if the insurance contract
provisions, less deferred acquisition
costs and VOBA, are adequate. Current
best estimates of all future contractual
cash flows and related expenses, such
as claims handling expenses, and
investment income from assets backing
the insurance contract provisions
are used in performing these tests.
If a shortfall is identified the related
deferred acquisition costs and VOBA
are written down and, if necessary,
an additional provision is established.
The deficiency is recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the
year.

Investment contracts

Investment contracts are recognised as
financial liabilities in the statement of
financial position when the Group becomes
a party to their contractual provisions.
Contributions received from policyholders
are not recognised in the consolidated
income statement but are accounted for as
deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

All investment contracts issued by the
Group are designated by the Group on
initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss. This designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement
inconsistency that would otherwise arise if
these financial liabilities were not measured
at fair value since the assets held to back
the investment contract liabilities are also
measured at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of investment
contracts are included in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Investments

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which
transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how
the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 5. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(x)(iii)).

— fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEHE#E)
(Continued)
(i) Investments (Continued) (i) REGE

— FVPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2(x)(ii).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

U]

Investments (Continued)
Overlay approach

The Group has applied the overlay approach
under HKFRS 4, to reclassify between profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
the difference between amounts recognised
in profit or loss under HKFRS 9 and those
would have been reported under HKAS 39,
for designated financial assets including
hybrid debt instruments (recognised on
bifurcated basis), unit trust and partnership
investments on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. A financial asset is eligible for
designation if 1) it is not held for an activity
that is unconnected with contracts in the
scope of HKFRS 4; and 2) it is measured
at fair value through profit or loss under
HKFRS 9 but would have not been under
HKAS 39. The overlay impact is shown in
the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables
are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

2

TESTHREE)
() ®&EGE
BEHE

(k)

)

REBERAKEBYHHREER)
B4 REBEEINEHE D BEE
REMEEKE  RBE(EBYK

EEADFIFNBETAEINE
MERB(E BT ER)E 395K
EHNERZR - EETHEER
BESEHIA(EBEA) B
EERERNZBEATANERRE -
MRNEMEENIFBAFDTH
(BBMBREERDFIFHER
EEEBENED ) EREERE
(BBMBRELERDFEIRUAR
BEFEEHSHITAEHES
BRE(EBSFHERNE395KAF
URREBEEFEEHSETAEY
B BEZEREEFNSEEE
*%J c BEAENEENGESWERT
HI7R e

fTEEmIA

TTEERMTANRAREBENIKE
B MEBE|EHAR > 2ABEDE
Hit8 o  AEBESRMEPREHR
SREQAAEE  AEENRES
BRKERSDHET - A W
BREHESREESR RGN
FEHRIINEENFREEZHPNITE
TE:  BIFfEENEFARSSNER
ARBHENEENEERSR -

FE A B R B Lt B A4 TR TH

PR BR A R A B SRIE D IR 1
REEERR  HEBRBHEXET
IR BROFRRBRISSEEN - BIEZR
MTERATIER

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVPL
when the financial liability is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) those
designated as at FVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading or contingent
consideration may be paid by an acquirer
as part of a business combination may
be designated as at FVPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a
Group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKFRS 9 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 5.

2

TESTEER#E)

(n)

UAREEFEEESBT AERE
HNERasE(#)

WEBTIER  FEEENTHME
BB TRE N IEREKS 6
—#oHNRAKBUINEREE
RAOSEIARAREESURRE
EFfEEEZH RS

e ZETEEBRIAEZFRDREL
Rt 2RNERN T —BE
=

s THRAGAN-—AUBEEN
THEBEIMEN D KU
ARABEEEFHEERT
fiy - AR5 A< 5= 1 B8R 3L E Y
REEEERRERKUAREH
HERZEEDRBREMAE
®

e HAMBE -EHHIZEHRAR
METANSR-—MD - M
(BBEFTERDEIRETH
BEpaHER(EERER)E
ERURAREBEFEBRS
st A °

UAREBEEFEEHESHTAER
MEMEBERANEBETE ME
HABEENEMREHEENE
HmIER - NEEZRANWREHEIE
FETEERERBERINE
ARE - R ABERMESFMN
FAEE -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



2

Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Shorter of lease term
and useful lives

— Leasehold
improvements

— Office furniture
and equipment

5 years

— Computers
equipment

3 to 20 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in
consolidated income statement on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Leased assets (Continued)

172

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for
the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Leased assets (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
calculated to write off the cost of leased
assets, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Shorter of lease term
and useful lives

— Properties leased
for own use

Shorter of lease term
and 5 years

— Office furniture
and equipment

Shorter of lease term
and 3 to 5 years

— Computers
equipment

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘Property and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Insurance and reinsurance receivables
and other receivables

Insurance and reinsurance receivables and
other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment losses, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment losses.

Reinsurance premium and other payables

Reinsurance premium and other payables
are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Intangible assets

The intangible assets that are acquired
by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note2(t)(ii)). Amortisation begins
when the asset is available for use, ie when
it is in the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Computers software 3-5 years
Intangible assets, such as trade name, are
not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set
out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on
the following items:

— financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
debt securities, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other
receivables and loans to joint
venture);

— debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling); and

— loan commitments issued, which
are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in bond funds, equity
securities measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments,
expected cash shortfalls are measured
as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be
due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the
loan and (ii) the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive if the loan is
drawn down.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continueqd)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

— loan commitments: current risk-
free rate adjusted for risks specific
to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continueqd)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continueqd)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(t) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(Continueqd)

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of
initial recognition for the purpose of
assessing ECLs is considered to be
the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of a loan commitment,
the Group considers changes in the
risk of default occurring on the loan to
which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve

(recycling).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continueqd)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(x)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHBEG#E)
(Continued)
(t) Credit losses and impairment of assets t) GEHEXREEREE
(Continued)
Credit loss from financial instruments LT AN HE%(E
(Continueqd)
Write-off policy Ve e

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current
assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

— property and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

— intangible assets;

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

in the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there
is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2

TESTEER#E)

(t)

FREAREERE(HE)

(i) BftFmBEEABEE)

T2 Bl BT IR

EEEIMEBREEY
ExHREEESNHE
AU E R REES
BESHEBEDAPER -
RRETEHETEIN
HEBESEL DR
BARLEDEEZR
TEHET(HZMAE
TNEMAEENEREE
B REBEREEBIRD =
BErn(gzEET)RE
EENRBEE B
EENREEATSRD
EEREMER 2 REE
A & AR AN (a0 RE§
B)RFSHBENEEN
BE(NEEE) -

Bl E TR

REAEBUIINEEM
= MRABLUEETR
B HBANETHBLR
EEK 21 BB
EREEEED; B
BRREBETEED -

Fir 88 (3] 49 8K B /&5 48 LA
LEFERBEIEM
HESEMECSEEN
EERAESEA/MR - Fr
B2 [0 YR E B R R
f@%iEWﬁkﬁé

183



Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 2(t)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

The fair value of share awards and share
options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
awards and options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share awards and share options that are
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share awards and options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the share-based payment reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included
in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case they are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities are
those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the
contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

() The accounting policies for the
recognition of revenue from insurance
contracts are disclosed in note 2(h).

(i) Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established. Dividend income from
listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

2

TESTEER#E)

(x)

W A FERR (A

EeRas—ErE12EA N LN
BERNAEFREHEARENZN
BEANIDE - WABUEZE
FRIAME —ERERS P RHRE
WHRRTRBBFIRARE - R
BERAEBRERFNRETR - B
EREE -—EAXEERHEEAR
ENZNREARBOE - ZEE
THRANBUABSEBRINRETS
BEEEENFAEXE -  REEEK
(BB B|MELRIE155KF
BRZBAIE3ERNEZBRE
FE ERMEHRB12EAIUAT
> THERBE AR D K EM
SFEPHRYEE-

BEAKE KSR H MR AR
RNE-—SHBUOT :

() EERBERBRAEINE:
BURE B EE2(h) ©

(i) FEMREMKREWAERR
W B R TR B AR R R B R
I RENBRERAEREE
B B IRERR SRR

(i) FIBWABEE LR REES
RIE LR  BRGEBAE
TR 52 73 4F IR PO RO TR 6 3R
R AR EREAERTRN
MR E -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Brokerage and commission income is
recognised on trade date basis.

(vy Service fee income, including
advisory fee income, handling fee
income, custodial service fee income,
subscription fee income, placing and
underwriting commission and financial
management are recognised when the
underlying services had been provided.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

Exchange differences relating to investments
at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments are included
in gains or losses from trading securities or
financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to fair value
through other comprehensive income debt
instruments are included in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Items of statement of financial
position, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to the
consolidated income statement when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course
of the regulated business activities. The
Group has classified the “bank balances —
trust and segregated accounts” within the
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to
respective clients and other institutions on
the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies.

The Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.
The cash held on behalf of customers is
restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

TESTEER#E)

(aa) Segment reporting

(aa) DKL

Operating segments, and the amounts
of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

(ab) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESTBER#A)
(Continued)
(ab) Related parties (Continued) (ab) BAEE 5 (&
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any (i) MUATHERER AEAER
of the following conditions applies: R ABEAEEEEE -
(1) The entity and the Group are (1) ZERHELAEEARE—
members of the same group (which SEXREEIZAR M
means that each parent, subsidiary BARKREZRKE QA
and fellow subsidiary is related to EBEEEEH)

the others);

(2) One entity is an associate or joint 2 —EEBAS BEZ
venture of the other entity (or an HENRREEREH
associate or joint venture of a ARE—BERFEBEER
member of a group of which the EQARzBEARRE
other entity is a member); EhE);

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of B MEERYRE-%=
the same third party; FREEh%E

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a 4 —EHERBAZE="HER
third entity and the other entity is ZEELE MB—EB
an associate of the third entity; RBAF=F2HENT ;

(5) The entity is a post-employment (65) ZERDAAEERHE
benefit plan for the benefit of rEBEEHEBKER ZE
employees of either the Group or ERHEANZBEBEE
an entity related to the Group; FlstaEl

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly 6) ZEBRBZ()AMAAAL
controlled by a person identified in ZH RS
(i);

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has (7) EHWMEBGHNOEARNFRE
significant influence over the ATHZERBEARE
entity or is a member of the key ENhRERHER(SZE
management personnel of the BEQRMNEREEA
entity (or of a parent of the entity); =17
or

(8) The entity, or any member of 8) ZERIHFEBEEEN
a group of which it is a part, FAKREATRAEE
provides key management RAEBEE QA ARMEE
personnel services to the Group or REEABRE -
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are —FEANTHRIEEEEERER
those family members who may be expected SW AR EZBARNZTZEAT

to influence, or be influenced by, that person EWRERE ©
in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, and a
number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group as follows:

o Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

None of the developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

(@) Actuarial assumptions on future
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC

The process used to determine the
assumptions is intended to result in
estimates of the most likely outcome with
reasonable provisions for possible adverse
deviations.

The assumptions that are considered
include the expected number and timing of
deaths, surrenders, discount rates, renewal
expenses and inflation over the period of
exposure.

(i) Mortality

Prudent mortality tables and industry
mortality tables with margins are
used. They are compared with the
Group’s internal mortality experience
on a regular basis to ensure their
appropriateness.
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

194

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Actuarial assumptions on future
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Mortality (Continued)

Basically, the Group’s valuation of non-
annually renewable premium traditional
products is based on the following
mortality tables (except for some minor
blocks of policies):

— 70%/75% of Hong Kong Assured
Lives Mortality Table 1993 with old
age adjustment;

— A1967-70 Assured Lives Mortality
Table (Ultimate).

Both of the above tables are subject to
a four year age setback adjustment for
females.

Morbidity

Morbidity is based on the reinsurer’s
risk premiums which are relevant to
its market experience. It is compared
with the Group’s internal morbidity
experience on a regular basis to ensure
its appropriateness.

Withdrawal
Withdrawal rates are determined with

reference to pricing assumptions and
actual experience.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Actuarial assumptions on future
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC
(Continued)

(iv) Discount rates
Discount rates are determined from a
prudent assessment of the yields on
existing financial assets and the yields
obtained on sums to be invested in the
future.
The Group’s valuation of non-annually
renewable premium traditional products
is based on the discount rate of 1.5%
to 5%.

(v) Renewal expenses and inflation
The level of renewal expenses is based
on pricing assumptions. It is compared
with the Group’s internal expense study
result on a regular basis to ensure its
appropriateness.
The inflation rate assumption is 2%.
It is compared with the Hong Kong
Consumer Price Indices on a regular
basis to ensure its appropriateness.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4 EEZESHHERGHTIEREERRZEZ
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BEERRE)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(a) Actuarial assumptions on future (a) BRRREFE AL WBEEK
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC EBEEREEREESHNEANEER
(Continued) & (&

(vi) 1R &L F] o] 8 5 3= 2L Y&

(vi) Change in assumptions and

196

sensitivity to changes in variables

Sensitivity tests are conducted
using varying mortality, morbidity
and discount rate assumptions to
measure the impact of deviations from
anticipated experience.

The Group performs this sensitivity
analysis for non-annually renewable
premium traditional products to
estimate the sensitivity of reserve to a
particular movement in an assumption
with all other assumptions remaining
unchanged. Since the changes in
the assumptions of withdrawal,
renewal expenses and inflation only
have minimal impact on the future
policyholders’ benefits, they are not
considered in this sensitivity analysis.
The following table demonstrates the
resulting impacts:

BE

FEATENETE - BHEEMN
RO REBRETHRBMER A -
Ut B AR E -

AEEHFFERBRNESRE
mETT BB D AT - BURER
FIBEEMBRAREAET -
SHEBEHSEZENHRE -
HRERAR - EREHNERR
RNBEEHRREREFAA
MASEREMTE  BAltE
ERHRMEITFRATER -
TRERTHEEENTZE

2020 2019

Change in Change in

profit after profit after

Change in tax and tax and

Variables variables equity equity
—ECEF —E-F

BEERAM &R AR

2E BENEL IR IREESZ L
HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Discount rate BhEIE =& +1% 655,561 562,691
-1% (762,739) (654,223)

Mortality/morbidity TR BRFE +10% (81,606) (74,952)
-10% 84,127 77,086

Universal life, variable universal
life, deferred annuities and annually
renewable premium traditional products
whose future policyholders’ benefits
are independent of mortality, morbidity,
discount rates, withdrawal, renewal
expenses and inflation are excluded
from this analysis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Actuarial assumptions on future
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC
(Continued)

(vi)

Change in assumptions and
sensitivity to changes in variables
(Continued)

The fair values of investments are
sensitive to interest rate changes.
As the Group’s main products are
universal life products, interest rates
may have an impact on the products’
guaranteed minimum payouts and on
interest credited to account holders.
As interest rates decrease, investment
spreads may contract as interest
rates approach minimum guarantees,
potentially resulting in an increased
liability of the Group. As long as the
total interest credited is higher than
the guaranteed minimum amount,
the Group has discretion on the
crediting rate. The Group’s exposure
to interest rate risk associated with
these types of products is therefore
minimal. The Group may be exposed
to interest rate risks in connection with
traditional insurance products, which is
considered inconsequential in view of
the Group’s product portfolio. As such,
no sensitivity analysis for the underlying
interest rate risk is performed.

(vii) Amortisation of VOBA and DAC

The Group selects appropriate
methodology and assumptions for
the amortisation of VOBA and DAC in
accordance with the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The assumptions
used in the estimation of the future
gross premiums and profit are aligned
to those assumptions used for the
future policyholders benefit in majority
of instances.
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

198

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Determination of consolidation scope and
business combination

All facts and circumstances must be taken
into consideration in the assessment of
whether the Group, as an investor, controls
the investee. The principle of control sets
out the following three elements of control:
(a) power over the investee; (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from involvement
with the investee; and (c) the ability to use
power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns.

An investor’s initial assessment of control
or its status as a principal or an agent
would not change simply because of a
change in market conditions (e.g. a change
in the investee’s returns driven by market
conditions), unless the change in market
conditions changes one or more of the three
elements of control listed above or changes
the overall relationship between a principal
and an agent.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group assesses the variable returns arising
from other equities and uses plenty of
judgements, in combination with historical
exposure to variable returns, to determine
the consolidation scope.

Note 21 provides detail information
about the acquisition of subsidiaries,
note 22 provides detail information about
key assumptions used in the goodwill
impairment assessment.

4

EESHABKR AT IREREZ
BEERR &)

(b) EHEENEESHNEE

AEAEEESREERTESIR
EHERE AEER-—UYBERE
MeBZHFRABE=FEHER
E 3 Hﬁkﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ()
SHEREHUSMARIZFAIE
HAVE P RER K (c) B mﬂhé
%%f% FEREENDHREH
\Hg o

BREEEGHE AT EEREES
FEABRBAZENTITEEER
AT RN TR SBIRE
HEROHMhE)MEIRES . B
TR B B E B RE = 1B
REZHRN-—ERZHEEZRLESE
b REETEAEREANZERS
BIBERL o

REE S| E P ARTMEAMRAE
EEE’JW%@%&  WERKREH

B BRESBETEEREAR
LHEESHHEE -

Eﬂﬂ

e 21 IR BB 7 2 B+ Al
=8 22 RHEEBHERERT
EREANEERKRNFMAEE -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Classification and fair value of derivative
and financial instruments

Under HKFRS 9, classification of financial
instruments depends on the contractual
cashflow characteristics (the Solely Payment
of Principal and Interest (“SPPI”) criteria)
and driven by the business model of the
entity. A financial asset that does not meet
the SPPI criterion is always measured at
FVPL, unless it is an equity instrument
for which an entity applies the election to
measure at FVOCI. Management judgement
is involved throughout the assessment.

The Group selects appropriate valuation
techniques for financial instruments
which are classified as level 2 and 3
investments in accordance with the Group’s
significant accounting policies. Note 5
provides detailed information about the
key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of material financial
instruments.

Expected credit loss estimation

The Group selects appropriate methodology
and assumptions in accordance with the
Group’s significant accounting policies. Note
2 provides detailed information about the
key assumptions used in the determination
of the expected credit loss of financial
instruments classified under amortised cost
and for debt instruments carried at FVOCI.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5

200

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

The Group operates in a business
environment which is subject to various
risks and uncertainties. Such risks and
uncertainties can be classified into two
categories, insurance risks and financial
risks.

(i) Insurance risks

The Group manages insurance risks
through prudent pricing guidelines,
reinsurance and underwriting
management and monitoring internal
and external emerging trends and
issues.

The Group’s underwriting strategy
seeks diversity to ensure a balanced
portfolio and is based on a large
portfolio of similar risks over a number
of years and, as such, it is believed
that this reduces the variability of the
outcome. This strategy is cascaded
down to individual underwriters through
detailed underwriting authorities
that set out the limits that any one
underwriter can write in order to ensure
appropriate risk selection within the
portfolio. Adherence to the underwriting
authorities is monitored through a
scheduled underwriting audit. In
addition, the Group has an Underwriting
Committee to establish policies and
procedures to supervise and assess
the insurance risks and to periodically
review and monitor the overall
underwriting management process. The
Group also has a Claims Settlement
Committee to establish policies and
procedures to supervise the claims
settlement policy. The committee
monitors the adequacy of the Group’s
reserves for the settlement of claims,
reviews significant claims or major
events, and investigates any fraudulent
claims.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies

for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(i)

Insurance risks (Continued)

The Group reinsures a portion of the
risks it underwrites in order to control
its exposure to losses to avoid the
risk of concentration and to protect
capital resources. Such transfers
of risks do not relieve the Group
of its primary liability and, as such,
failure of reinsurers to honour their
obligations could result in losses.
The Group reduces this risk by
evaluating the financial condition of
reinsurers and monitoring for possible
concentrations of credit risk. The
Group has a Reinsurance Committee
to establish policies and procedures
to properly and regularly supervise
and review proposed and existing
reinsurance activities covering ceded
risks to reinsurers. The committee also
periodically reviews and monitors the
financial stability of reinsurers.

Concentration of insurance risks

The table below illustrates the
concentration of risks based on seven
bands of contracts grouped by benefits
assured for each life assured.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 REITHEREER#E)

(a) EREEEEREERRANEHE
B MY BUR (A
(i) REERE (&)

AEED HBREAROED
Rk DUEEIHEERERE - KU
BRETEBLREERE
R o S E R TR
SENEREF - FHit - BR
BABKREBITHERR LS
EYBX - AEEBBFEE
R B X B) B9 B B AR 0 A BE 42 7]
REH RS A D E R
Rk - NEEZRBBRRE
B DHIEBEMER KU
BENEHEENEEEZZN
RENBREEE  SFYE
REBDBND HEAR - ZEE
SEEEHESNEEBRRA
AN BREN -

1R B2 /2 2 19 5 P 2
TRHEATERLESFEE

MEMERE  MELSRE
BEBEZRANREDE -

201



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENEEEREEE)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERBRERBRNEEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk Fe BB ER (48 )
(Continued)
(i) Insurance risks (Continued) (i) REREE(E)

1R 2 JEL B2 £ 55 7 2 ()

Concentration of insurance risks

202

(Continued)
Sum insured Sum insured
before reinsurance after reinsurance
BREANZRE BREANRRE
HK$’000 % HK$°000 %
HK$’000 FET FEn FiEn
2020 “ECEF
0-500 0-500 26,728,165 14 36,164,952 43
501-750 501-750 20,097,085 1 28,239,835 34
751-1,000 751-1,000 26,385,052 14 19,121,205 23
1,001-1,500 1,001-1,500 30,709,608 16 30,826 0
1,501-2,000 1,501-2,000 21,817,767 12 77,928 0
2,001-2,500 2,001-2,500 12,552,838 7 4,669 0
>2,500 >2,500 49,340,411 26 7,723 0
Total mct 187,630,926 100 83,647,138 100
Sum insured Sum insured
before reinsurance after reinsurance
BREATNRRE BREANRFE
HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
HK$’000 FET FiE7 FET
2019 —E-hE
0-500 0-500 26,704,703 15 36,090,151 44
501-750 501-750 20,258,023 11 28,353,735 35
751-1,000 751-1,000 25,976,464 15 16,869,339 21
1,001-1,500 1,001-1,500 30,353,799 17 - -
1,501-2,000 1,501-2,000 20,128,668 11 - -
2,001-2,500 2,001-2,500 11,556,369 6 - -
>2,500 >2,500 43,967,215 25 - -
Total met 178,945,241 100 81,313,225 100
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks

Exposure to credit,

rate
the

liquidity, interest
and currency risks arises in
normal course of the Group’s

business. The Group is also exposed

to e

quity price risk arising from its

equity investments in other entities.

Thes

e risks are limited by the Group’s

financial management policies and
practices described below.

(1)

*%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

Credit risk

The Group has exposure to
credit risk, which is the risk that
a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Key
areas where the Group is exposed
to credit risk are:

— amounts due from issuers of
debt securities;

— bank balances;

— insurance and reinsurance
receivables;

— commercial and residential
mortgage loans;

— other unsecured receivables;
and

— derivative financial

instruments.

The Group manages its financial
assets to limit credit risk by
diversifying its portfolio among
various security types and
industry sectors. The Group
has an Investment Committee
to supervise and control
investments and related financial
matters. Investment policies and
guidelines have to be approved
by the committee. In addition,
the committee periodically
reviews investment strategies and
investment performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(1) Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, 0.01%
(2019: 0.11%) of the Group’s
debt securities represented
investments in asset-backed
and mortgage-backed securities
in the United States of America
and PRC which are exposed
to sub-prime credit risks. The
Group does not originate any
residential mortgages but invests
in residential mortgage loan pools
which may contain mortgages of
subprime credit quality. Residential
mortgage loan pools are pools of
homogeneous residential mortgage
loans substantially backed by
Federal Housing Administration
and Veterans Administration
guarantees. As of 31 December
2020, the Group had no direct
subprime exposure through
the origination of residential
mortgage loans or purchases of
unsecuritised mortgage whole-loan
pools. The Group has implemented
a stringent review process for
determining the fair value of
securities containing these risk
characteristics. At 31 December
2020, 91.8% (2019: 93%) of the
debt securities have Standard and
Poor’s ratings of BBB- or above
or equivalent ratings from other
reputable rating agencies. At 31
December 2020, 82.2% (2019:
96.3%) of the mortgage loan
have internal rating equivalent
to Standard and Poor’s ratings
of BBB or above or equivalent
ratings from other reputable rating
agencies. For the year ended
31 December 2020, impairment
losses were recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
Further details of the impairment
losses are set out in note 7(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENEEEREEE)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERBRERBRNEEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B Y BUER (78
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZEEE(E
(1) Credit risk (Continued) (1) 1E/HEEE)

In respect of bank balances, all
of them are due from authorised
institutions in Hong Kong, Macau,
the People’s Republic of China,
the United Kingdom and the United
States of America. Management
periodically reviews the credit
ratings of these authorised
institutions.

With respect to the recoveries
due from reinsurers, the Group is
exposed to the credit risk that the
amounts due under a reinsurance
contract may not be paid. For the
management of the underlying
risks, please refer to note 5(a)(i).

In respect of loans to
policyholders, direct premium
receivables and other loans to
agents and staff, management
monitors the repayment status on
an ongoing basis. Other unsecured
receivables mainly comprise
accrued interest income on debt
securities, where the credit risks
are limited by the diversification
of its investment portfolio as
mentioned above.

The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in
the statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from insurance
and reinsurance receivables, other
account receivables and other
receivables are set out in notes 27,
28 and 29.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(2) Liquidity risk

The Group has to meet daily calls
on its cash resources, notably
from claims arising from its life
insurance contracts. There is
therefore a risk that cash will not
be available to settle liabilities
when due. The Group manages
this risk by setting a minimum
level of liquidity cash that will be
available to cover claims maturities
and surrenders.

(i) Financial liabilities

The following tables show
the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of
the reporting period of
non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest
date can be required to pay:

5

2020
it a2

RN @ EREE &)

(a) EREEEEREERRANEHE

BEYBUR ()

(i) EEBEEE
(2) FBESER

AEBEARREEERSE
ERFR TERBE
Pa 5 B RE K o A Bt A
ZREFEUEE DY
BENRER - AEEEBE
BRETBRIAAER
HmMERRENRKER
BESKFREZLE
Fﬁo

() =Z=HEE

TERHEIWTAEH
ETEEREERN
REMRZBTE
EZHAHARR - Jh#%
EEABEERESR
ERAEETEEA
T z&E B EBF
HEH :

09
Dk

Total

contractual

Carrying undiscounted
amount  cash flows

HHEN

FEE RERELE

Total
Within contractual Within

fyearor Morethan  Camying undiscounted  fyearor  Morg than
on demand fyear  amount cashflows o demand 1 year
ELE] RS T2

REREE 1ENL  HEE RoRBSE REER  1EML

HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSI000
f&r  FET fET FET fET TEr fEn T
Reinsurance premium payables EfiERIERE 01969 3219080 321,989 - BN 59562 520562 -
Other accounts payables ~ ERERER 86953 86953 869,533 - BM5 GBS 5T -
Other payables and accrued ~ EERFERERER
Xpense 25012 25072 250712 - QBT 243967 2436987 -
Financial liabilties at far value WA A EEREE
through proft o loss TABRNSHEE  ofese1 6185 - G856 630569 630569 - 605
Lease liabltes HEREER WG4 298500 140000 158500 65 MLM6 15248 257M8
Bank borowings BOES 1553503 15609%8 1,560,038 - 1408758 1506760 82413 150435
Shareholder's loan RRER 166007 1802162 8365 1008467 1561440 1640077 1,641,077 -
TRHTET 8083404  5AG686T 2585537 7560420 T7BAS5 5403812 2350703
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(i)

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 REMNeEEREE#E)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEEZRBRERBRINSER
for mitigating insurance and financial risk Fe BB ER (48 )

(2) Liquidity risk (Continued) (2) mEEZEE(E)
Liabilities under insurance and (i) RERRESEHE
investment contracts TEE
The following table presents TREH T REF
the estimated timing of REGRETEE
payments for the amounts EEXNRE KRR
recognised in the statement KPFBERESEN
of financial position arising AT IR/ - &
from liabilities under LEERBEEBER
insurance and investment BEREARRER
contracts. These contracts DLERNRERZE
typically include policyholder EEREENER
surrender or transfer options BEEHARE o
at a value equal to, or below,
the carrying value of those
liabilities.

2020 2019
“E0%F ZE-nE
1year More than 1year More than
Total or less 1 year Total or less 1 year
&% 1F9FR  1ENE g 1EIFER 1ENE
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Fér  FEr  TEr  TEn  FEr FEn
Insurance contract RBaEERS
provisions 54,487,776 3,198,767 51,289,009 46,455,874 3,319,010 43,136,864
Investment contract RECEER
liabilities 4,492,855 229,851 4,263,004 4,364,600 213450 4,151,150
Outstanding claims FER 184,160 184,160 - 161913 161913 -
59,164,791 3,612,778 55,552,013 50,982,387 3,694,373 47,288,014
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(3) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential
for interest rates to change, which
can cause fluctuations in the
value of investments and in the
amounts due to policyholders.
To the extent that fluctuations in
interest rates cause the duration of
assets and liabilities to differ, the
Group controls its exposure to this
risk by, among other things, asset
and liability matching techniques
that account for the cash flow
characteristics of the assets and
liabilities.

(i) Interest rate profile

RN @ EREE &)

(a)

EEEREEEREERBRANSEE
B MY BUR (A

(ii) & m/mEbe (E
(3) FIEERZ

FERBEFNEEHN
ARG HAREEHRKR
EEENENREREE
ASEMNEE - WRF
ERHEREENER
WHBEEZE AMAXEHR
BERBEENMABTEREK
(R BEEENMERE
WIRESREBB)EHHE
R A o

() FIEmREER

The following table details TRFMAEEG
interest-bearing financial EEmEENEH
assets and financial liabilities EERBEHARN
at the end of the reporting = o
period.
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets SEEE
Statutory deposits SEEFER 5,721 3,243
Debt securities and EXBESRIBIFER
mortgage loans 51,073,548 44,004,452
Loans to agents and staff [REREIEHL
B 19,723 32,379
Cash and cash equivalents & RIEZEEER LA
and deposits with banks &&= 8 & ZI 2y
maturing more than three $R4T1E5
months 4,293,467 2,555,168
Financial liabilities TRAas
Bank borrowings RITER 1,553,503 1,498,758
Shareholder’s loan BRERER 1,641,077 1,561,444
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(3)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

While it is more difficult
to measure the interest
sensitivity of the insurance
and investment contract
liabilities than that of the
related assets, to the extent
that the Group can measure
such sensitivities the Group
believes that interest rate
movements will generate
asset value changes that
substantially offset changes
in the value of the liabilities
relating to the underlying
products.

Financial assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2020, it
is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of one
percentage point in interest
rates would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax by
approximately HK$6,991,000
and HK$17,149,000 respectively
(2019: increase/decrease by
HK$14,746,000) and decrease/
increase the equity by
approximately HK$1,657,528,000
(2019: HK$1,397,427,000)
respectively so far as the
effect on interest-bearing
financial assets is concerned.

The sensitivity analysis
above has been determined
assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting
period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(4) Currency risk

The Group’s currency exchange
risk is mainly related to certain
policies that are not written
in the United States dollars.
However, most of the policies
are denominated in the United
States dollars. As the Group’s
investments are primarily made in
the United States dollars, coupled
with the fact that the Hong Kong
dollars are pegged to the United
States dollars, management does
not believe that the currency risk
is material. For investments made
in non-United States dollars, the
Group mitigates currency risk
through the use of cross-currency
swaps and forward contracts.
Cross-currency swaps are used to
minimize currency risk for certain
non-United States dollar assets
and liabilities through a pre-
specified exchange of interest
and principal. Forward contracts
are used to hedge movements
in exchange rates. As such, no
sensitivity analysis is prepared for
currency risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEEREERRNEHE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk BB R (48)
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZAEREE)
(4) Currency risk (Continued) (4) EXEkE(E)
()  Exposure to currency risk ()  EBEEmEEHO
The following table details the TR A EER
exposure at the end of the REMARE BT
reporting period to currency Eﬂézﬁﬁ'ﬂm%ﬁi
risk arising from financial SEFELEEER
assets or financial liabilities 8 2 TRAE o
which are presented in Hong
Kong dollars.
2020
cgoEk
United
States Camadian ~ Macau  British  Australian Chinese  Japanese  Thailand  Singapore
Dollars ~ Dollars ~ Patacas  Pounds  Dollars Euros  Renminbi Yen Baht  Dollars
in fim  AR% 3 A7 Er AR BT iR
HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSDDD  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSUDD  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSO00
. TEn TEn FEn TR FRT TEn TEn TEr 0 FEi
Financial assets ~ £REE
Investments RE 51,461,235 - - - - - - - - -
Iswanceand ~ EWRERERR
feinsurance B
receivables 73,258 - 151 - - - - - - -
Otheraccount  EHENER
receivables 43,087 - - - 16 - 6,873 - - 2
Other receivables  HfEUENE 583,07 - - 407 54 20 4350 - - -
Cahandcash ~ BEREEZEER
equialentsand  ARE=BR %
deposits with ~ ERRAER
banks maturng ~ AIBLEF
more than three
months and
segregated
accounts - 1,389,162 14 97,806 511 3,852 8,581 26,665 329 1 4
Derivative financial 4 4BIE
instruments 99,028 - - - - - - - - -
53,648,867 14 97,957 918 3,982 8,871 37,889 329 1 [X]
Financial liabilities £BEE
Reinsurance EfERERE
premium
payables o 119,760 - 202209 - - - - - - -
Derivative financial H44BIE
instruments 151,788 - - - - - - - - -
Other accounts ~ EHERED
payables 260,032 14 - 66 2 - 12,967 50 - 2
Other payables Hﬂﬁﬁgﬁ%\lﬁ 700,416 - 10,006 - - - 9,140 - - -
Investment contract AEAFEEE
[iabilties N 2,036,409 - 71,165 - - - - - -
Qutstanding claims A RE 77,043 - 544 - - - - - - -
Leaseliabilities ~ MERE - - 50,850 - - - 10,174 - -
3,345,648 14 346,297 66 Al - 32,281 50 - 2
Notional amount ~ EE-REHTEARN
of currency- 2528
related derivative
contracts 23,032,985) - - - - (38379 - - - -
EHRSREEERAT
—ETFFR 211
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENEREREE#E)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEEZRBRERBRINSER
for mitigating insurance and financial risk PR (42)
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZEEE(E)
(4) Currency risk (Continued) (4) EBE#EE(E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i)  EBEEEfEHOE)
(Continued)
2019
“E-0%
United
States  Canadian ~ Macau British ~ Australian Chingse ~ Japanese  Thailand ~ Singapore
Dollars Dollars ~ Patacas ~ Pounds  Dolars Euros  RenminDi Yen Bant  Dollars
30 LV 5t & i Br  ARE A o5 S )
HRSO00  HKSO0  HKSUD  AKSDOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSDOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0O
FEr  TEr it TEr  TEn FEr FEL fE TEn TEn
Financial assets ~ £REE
Investments R& 44,004 452 = - - - - - - - -
hswanceend  EHRERBRRE
feinsurance &5
receivables 432,676 - 14 - - - - - = =
Otheraccount ~ EfEWES
receivables 56,984 - - - a7 - 572 - - 2
Other receivables  EfoEUzE 446,556 - il 122 m 127 13 6
Cohandcash ~ BEREEZERR
equientsand  ARE=BR%
depositswith MRS
banks maturing ~ AIBLEF
more than three
months and
segregated
accounts - 1,100,766 14 35,558 1,007 3,599 4,467 19,163 879 23 26
Derivative financial 4 4RTE
instruments - - - - = = = = = =
46,041,434 14 35,699 1,178 3,768 4739 26,952 892 A 34
Financial liabilities $BE[
Renswance  ENERERE
premium
payables o 408,636 = = = = = - - - -
Derivative financial Hj44BIE
instruments 20,366 - - = = = = = = =
Otheraccounts ~ EHIERER
payables 200,682 14 - 64 20 - 5315 - - 2
Other payables  ZHEfFE 1,013,599 - - - - - 1019 - %
Investment contract AEAHEE
liabilities 2,015,623 74259 - - - - -
Qutstanding claims &JREEST 58,886 - 831 - - - - - - -
Lease liabiities ~ HEEF - 37,188 - - - 13431 -
4,639,792 4 12218 64 2 - 28,944 - - 58
Notional amount ~ EEREFEARN
of currency- 7528
related derivative
contracts (19,714,613) - - - - (1589) - - - =
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5

Notes to the Financial Statements

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(5) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price changes arising from equity
investments and derivative
instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
held by the Group. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the
fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are dealt with
in consolidated income statement.

The portfolio of unit trusts backing
linked insurance contracts, which
the Group carries on its statement
of financial position at fair value,
has exposure to price risk.
However, such price risk is fully
borne by the policyholders as the
benefits payable are linked to the
price of the securities.

The portfolio of unit trusts backing
non-linked insurance contracts,
which the Group carries on its
statement of financial position at
fair value, also has exposure to
price risk. This risk is defined as
the potential loss in market value
resulting from an adverse change
in prices.

At 31 December 2020, the
unit trusts backing non-linked
insurance contracts were classified
as fair value through profit or loss
under overlay approach at their fair
value of HK$871,782,000 (2019:
HK$1,078,639,000).

EH S MEMARLT

7

TEFR

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(5) Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, it is
estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2019: 10%)
in the market value of Group’s
unit trusts backing non-linked
insurance contracts, with all other
variable held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s
total equity by HK$87,178,000
(2019: HK$107,864,000).

For the other investment under fair
value hierarchy level 2 and 3 that
is either backing linked insurance
contract and those that are not
related to insurance contracts,
their price risk impact on the
Group’s profit or total equity is
further analysed under fair value
measurement.

(6) Fair value measurement

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents
the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments
measured at the end of
the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair Value Measurement.
The level into which a
fair value measurement is
classified is determined with
reference to the observability
and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

214
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

Fair value
measured using
only Level
1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted
quoted prices in
active markets
for identical
assets or
liabilities at the
measurement
date

— Level 1
valuations:

Fair value
measured using
Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable
inputs which
fail to meet
Level 1, and not
using significant
unobservable
inputs.
Unobservable
inputs are
inputs for which
market data are
not available

— Level 2
valuations:

Fair value
measured using
significant
unobservable
inputs

— Level 3
valuations:

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 REITHEREER#E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5

216

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

The Group has established
and maintained policies and
guidelines that govern its
valuation methodologies and
their consistent application.
These policies and guidelines
address the use of inputs,
price source hierarchies and
provide controls around the
valuation processes.

These controls include
appropriate review and
analysis of prices against
market activity or indicators
for reasonableness, approval
of price source changes,
price overrides, methodology
changes and classification
of fair value hierarchy levels.
The valuation policies and
guidelines are reviewed and
updated as appropriate.

5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

Annually, the Group conducts
reviews of the primary pricing
vendors to validate that the
inputs used in that vendors’
pricing process are deemed
to be market observable as
defined in the standard. While
the Group was not provided
access to proprietary models
of the vendors, the reviews
have included on-site walk-
throughs of the pricing
process, methodologies and
control procedures for each
asset class and level for
which prices are provided.
The review also included an
examination of the underlying
inputs and assumptions for a
sample of individual securities
across asset classes, credit
rating levels and various
durations, a process the
Group continues to perform
for each reporting period.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

In addition, the pricing
vendors have an established
challenge process in place for
all security valuations, which
facilitates identification and
resolution of prices that fall
outside expected ranges. The
Group believes that the prices
received from the pricing
vendors are representative
of prices that would be
received to sell the assets at
the measurement date (exit
prices) and are classified
appropriately in the hierarchy.

218
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continueqd)

*%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

The Group reviews the fair
value hierarchy classification
at each reporting period.
Overall, reclassifications
between levels occur when
there are changes in the
observability of inputs and
market activity used in
the valuation of a financial
asset or liability. Such
reclassifications are reported
as transfers between levels at
the beginning of the reporting
period in which the changes
occur. Given the types of
assets classified as Level 1
(primarily equity securities
and mutual fund investments),
transfers between Level 1
and Level 2 measurement
categories are expected to
be infrequent. There were
no such transfers during any
period presented. Transfers
into and out of Level 3 are
summarized in the schedule
of changes in Level 3 assets
and liabilities.

The fair value of short-term
debt instruments, a maturity
less than 30 days, is assumed
to be equal to the book value.
The Group generally uses
unadjusted quotable market
prices from independent
brokers, when available,
to determine the fair value
of debt instruments with a
maturity greater than 30 days.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 REINSHERERHE)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEEZRBRERBRINSER
for mitigating insurance and financial risk Fe BB ER (48 )
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZEEE(E)
(6) Fair value measurement (6) R 1EEE(E)
(Continued)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) ROAEBEFTEN
measured at fair value tREERARE
(Continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy DAEEER(E)
(Continued)
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into 31 December 2019 categorised into
H-8-%FtZA=1-R R=B-nFr=A=1-8
NOAREHEAE WAAEEHENE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

F1ER EVE EXEE #18% BV EXEE
HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§000 HK 000
4 fr T Tér 4 Tt

Recurring fair value measwrement ~ REZEEFHENAARE

Assets/abilties) g2 /(86
Financial assets at far value through profit JAA BB BEATAEH
o loss: HEmEE
— Private crecit and other trust product - AERREMETER
type funds i - - 635,657 - - 660,355
— Credit linked obligation note - EREESEREE - - - - - 2813
— Listed equity - ke 287,363 - - - - -
— Unlisted equity - ¥LikE - 2,758 S - = -
~ Leveraged and structured note - ERRGRIFERE
investment - 2501431 18,078 - 2,531,873 12,559
= Unit trust - Blifit 584,733 7,915,620 267,048 598,394 7,462,946 167,950
— Interest in a joint venture - RAgLENER - = 107,240 = = 100273
— Insurance contract related - RECFEBNGERE
partnership investment - - 1,814,439 - - 1,569,168
= Mutual fund - #EES - 269 - 160,936 212 -
Financial asset at fair vaue through other - JAREE: 8 BESE AL
comprehensive income ANBNEREE
— Debt securities - Eifs 391,458 15,704,855 4,512,536 - 11,590,267 4,450,348
— Perpetual capital measured at far -~ - HAAEEE2AE
vlue =L - 78,029 - - .97 -
Financial iabiltes designated at fair value A ABEREALZHIA
through profit o loss ERNcHER
— Preference share liabity - Bihak - - (387,655) - - (389,570
— Third-party interests in consolidated ~ — E=RMALHEEN
furcs B - -y - -
— Investment contract liabilties - REAREE - (4,492,855 - - (4,364,600) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level
2 except for HK$1,504,000
amount of FVOCI debt
instrument transferred from
level 1 to level 3 (2019:
HK$12,796,000 of FVOCI
debt instrument transferred
from Level 3 to level 2). The
Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5

RN @ EREE &)

(a)

EEEREEEREERBRANSEE

BEYBUR ()

(i) Z@mEE)

(6) RIEEE(E)

(1)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENEEEREEE)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERBRERBRNEEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B Y BUER (78
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZEEE(E
(6) Fair value measurement (6) R 1EEE(E)
(Continued)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) ROAEBEFTEN
measured at fair value tMEERAE
(Continued) (#&)
Valuation techniques RS [EEEEE

and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those
insurance contract related
assets and liabilities

The Group determines the
estimated fair value of its
investments using primarily
the market approach or the
income approach. The use
of quoted prices for identical
assets and matrix pricing
or other similar techniques
are examples of market
approaches, while the use
of discounted cash flow
methodologies is an example
of the income approach. The
Group attempts to maximise
the use of observable inputs
and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs in
selecting whether the market
or the income approach is
used.

HEEBHE=ER
HE=ZERIAIE
EEFETER 1 E
BT HEA B

AEBETEFEAD
55 WA KRR E
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities

U.S. Treasury securities
and obligations of U.S.
government corporations and
agencies — These securities
are principally valued using
the market approach. Level 2
valuations are based primarily
on quoted prices in markets
that are not active, or using
matrix pricing or other similar
techniques using standard
market observable inputs
such as the benchmark
U.S. Treasury yield curve,
the spreads versus the
U.S. Treasury curve for
the identical security and
comparable securities that are
actively traded.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities (Continued)

Debt securities issued by
foreign governments and
state and local government
securities — These securities
are principally valued using
the market approach. Level 2
valuations are based primarily
on matrix pricing or other
similar techniques using
standard market observable
inputs including benchmark
U.S. Treasury or other yields,
issuer ratings, broker-dealer
quotes, issuer spreads and
reported trades of similar
securities, including those
within the same sub-sector
or with a similar maturity or
credit rating. Valuations based
primarily on matrix pricing,
discounted cash flow models
or other valuation techniques
that utilize significant inputs
that are unobservable or
cannot be derived principally
from, or corroborated by,
observable market data or
from inputs including quoted
prices for identical or similar
securities that are less liquid
and based on lower levels of
trading activity than securities
classified in Level 2 are
classified as Level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continueqd)

*%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities (Continued)

Assets-backed securities
(“ABS”) and mortgage-
backed securities (“MBS”)
— These securities are
principally valued using the
market approach or the
income approach. Level
2 valuations are based
primarily on broker quotes,
matrix pricing, discounted
cash flow methodologies
or other similar techniques
using standard market inputs
including spreads for similar,
actively traded securities,
spreads versus benchmark
yields, expected prepayment
speeds and volumes,
current and forecasted loss
severity, issuer credit ratings,
weighted average coupon,
weighted average maturity,
average delinquency rates,
geographic region, debt-
service coverage ratios and
issuance-specific information
including, but not limited to:
collateral type, payment terms
of the underlying assets,
payment priority within the
tranche, security structure,
deal performance and loan
vintage. If the matrix pricing,
discounted cash flow models
or other valuation techniques
utilise significant inputs that
are unobservable or cannot
be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable
market data, the fair value
measurement is classified as
Level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continueqd)

Debt securities (Continued)

Corporate securities — These
securities are principally valued
using the market or the income
approaches. Level 2 valuations
are based primarily on quoted
prices in markets that are not
active, broker quotes or using
matrix pricing or other similar
techniques that use standard
market observable inputs such
as benchmark yields, spreads
versus benchmark yields,
new issuances, issuer rating,
duration, and trades of identical
or comparable securities.
Privately placed securities are
valued using discounted cash
flow models using standard
market observable inputs,
and inputs derived from,
or corroborated by, market
observable data including
market yield curve, duration,
call provisions, observable
prices and spreads for similar
publicly traded or privately
traded issues that incorporate
the credit quality and industry
sector of the issuer. This
level also includes securities
priced by independent pricing
services that use observable
inputs. Valuations based
on matrix pricing or other
similar techniques that utilise
significant unobservable
inputs or inputs that cannot
be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable
market data, including
adjustments for illiquidity, delta
spread adjustments or spreads
to reflect industry trends or
specific credit-related issues are
classified as Level 3. In addition,
inputs including quoted prices
for identical or similar securities
that are less liquid and based
on lower levels of trading
activity than securities classified
in Level 2 are classified as Level
3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continueqd)

*%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Unit trusts and equity
securities

These securities are
principally valued using the
market approach. Level
2 valuations for equity
securities are based on
quoted market prices adjusted
for certain factors, such as
foreign market differential.
If quoted market prices
are not available, values
provided by other third-party
organisations are used. If
values from other third parties
are unavailable, certain equity
securities, including privately
held securities classified
within equity securities, are
valued using the market and
the income approaches.
Valuations are based primarily
on matrix pricing, discounted
cash flow methodologies or
other similar techniques using
inputs such as comparable
credit rating and issuance
structure. Certain of these
securities are valued based
on inputs including quoted
prices for identical or similar
securities, discounted cash
flow, solvency margin ratio
analysis and portfolio yields.
These valuations are based on
lower levels of trading activity
than securities classified in
Level 2 and are classified as
Level 3.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

228

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial
instruments

These financial instruments
are primarily valued using
the market approach. The
estimated fair value of
derivatives is based primarily
upon quotations obtained
from counterparties and
independent sources, such
as quoted market values
received from brokers. These
quotations are compared to
internally derived prices and
a price challenge is lodged
with the counterparties and
an independent source when
a significant difference cannot
be explained by appropriate
adjustments to the internal
model.

When quoted market values
are not reliable or available,
the value is based upon an
internal valuation process
using market observable
inputs that other market
participants would use.
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5

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Significant inputs to the
valuation of derivative
financial instruments include
Overnight Indexed Swap and
London InterBank Offered
Rate basis curves, interest
rate volatility, swap yield
curve, currency spot rates,
Cross currency basis curves
and dividend yield curves.
Due to the observability of the
significant inputs to these fair
value measurements, they are
classified as Level 2.

The use of different
assumptions or valuation
methodologies may have
a material impact on the
estimated fair value amounts.
For the periods presented,
there were no significant
changes to the Group’s
valuation techniques.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

230

RN @ EREE &)

Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERBEREANSEHE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk Fe BB ER (48 )
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZEEE(E)
(6) Fair value measurement (6) R 1EEE(E)
(Continued)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) ROAEBEFTEN
measured at fair value THmEERERE
(Continued) (#&)
Derivative financial fTEEMIAE)
instruments (Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair EBEZERALIEE
value measurements FTEHEE
Significant
Valuation unobservable Range Weighted
techniques inputs Min Max average
B
fhEHd FIER L] nETHY
BE BAE
Financial assets: tHEE:
Financial asset at fairvalie ~ EZEETAALEERE
through profit or loss under  BEREFABRNE
overlay adjustment; HEE !
— Partnership investment - A¥RE Netasset  Netasset NA NA NA
value value
BERE BERE TER TR TER
Financial asset atfarvale ~ HAAEGEEESEHA
through other comprenensive At 2ENEAEH
income: (]
— Corporate securities - Nf% Matrix pricing ~ Credit spread 75PS  1593BPS 175BPS
and DCF 201g: 2018 01g:
66BPS)  1150BPS)  146BPY)
EEEEUR ERFZE  7T5EEY  1503fBEY  175fEY
ERERE (2019: 2019: (2019:
66fE%) 1150BEH)  146f8EH)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continueqd)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Information about Level 3
fair value measurements
(Continued)

A description of the sensitivity
of the estimated fair value
to changes in the significant
unobservable inputs for
the more significant level 3
insurance contract related
asset and liability classes is
as follows:

Partnership interest —
the fair value estimation
is based on the net asset
value attributable to the
Group determined by the
respective fund managers.
If such net asset value
attributable to the Group
is not yet readily available,
adjustments to the fair value
of the funds are made based
on the latest net asset value
with adjustments based on
subsequent contribution
made and distribution
received by the Group. As
at 31 December 2020, it is
estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in net
asset value by 10% would
have increased/decreased the
Group’s other comprehensive
income by HK$181,444,000
(2019: HK$156,917,000) under
overlay adjustment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continueqd)

Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Information about Level 3
fair value measurements
(Continued)

Corporate securities —
Internally-priced corporate
securities classified in Level
3 include certain below
investment grade watch list
and distressed fixed maturity
securities. For securities
where discounted cash
flows are used, the primary
unobservable input is the
internally-developed discount
rate. Significant increases
in the discount rate would
result in a significantly lower
fair value, with the opposite
being true for decreases in
the discount rate. In certain
cases, the Group uses an
estimated liquidation value
of the borrower or underlying
assets. The Group also
applies market comparables,
such as earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA)
multiples for certain
securities. In isolation, an
increase in the value of
these inputs would result
in an increase in fair value,
with the opposite being
true for decreases in the
value of these inputs. As
at 31 December 2020, it is
estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in credit
spread by 100 BPS would
have increased/decreased the
Group’s other comprehensive
income by HK$279,202,000
(2019: HK$106,738,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those non-
insurance contract related
assets and liabilities

Information about Level 2
investment

Perpetual capital — the fair
value is based on brokers
quote. As at 31 December
2020, it is estimated that
with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase
in quoted price by 5% would
have increased/decreased the
Group’s other comprehensive
income and equity after tax
by HK$3,257,000 (2019:
HK$3,227,000).

Unlisted equity securities —
the fair value is based on
recent transaction price, As at
31 December 2020, it is
estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in recent
transaction price by 5% would
have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit and equity after
tax by HK$1,188,000 (2019:
HK$Ni).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1)

5

(a)

RN @ EREE &)

EEEREEEREERBRANSEE

B MY BUR (A

(i) LREEBE

Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value

(Continued)

Derivative financial

instruments (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 and Level 3
fair value measurements for
those non-insurance contract
related assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Information about level 3

investment

Unlisted fair value through
profit or loss investment
FEMUAAEEGER
HEHH ARG ZRE

Trust products

EHER

Private credit funds and interest in
a joint venture

AAEREERRAELXMNER

Preference share liability

BERERE

Third-party interests in
consolidated funds

REfEENE= SRR
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Valuation technique
R E R

Recent transaction price

BHRZEK
Net asset value
EEFE

Discounted cashflow

ERRERE

Net asset value
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Significant unobservable
inputs
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BERZEK
Net asset value
EEFE

Expected distribution from
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per annum and net asset value
of underlying fund investment
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 and Level 3
fair value measurements for
those non-insurance contract
related assets and liabilities
(Continued)

A description of the sensitivity
of the estimated fair value
to changes in the significant
unobservable inputs for
those non-insurance contract
related level 3 asset and
liability classes is as follows:

Fund investments — the
fair value of private debt
securities investment fund
and interest in a joint venture
holding based on the net
asset value attributable to
the Group determined by the
respective fund managers.
If such net asset value
attributable to the Group
is not yet readily available,
adjustments to the fair value
of the funds are made based
on the latest net asset value
with adjustments based on
subsequent contribution made
and distribution received by
the Group.
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B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continueqd)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those
non-insurance contract
related assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Credit link obligation note
investment — the fair value
based on valuation model
and price quote provided by
the arranger of the note with
ongoing monitoring of our
investment committee and
risk management team in
conjunction with additional
information compiled by
portfolio manager including
performance and covenant
compliance information as
provided by the independent
trustee.

Preference share liabilities
and third parties interest in
consolidated funds - the fair
value of the financial liabilities
are determined mainly
based on the fair value of
the fund investments as the
principal investment of the
consolidated funds and the
effective interest of the third
parties in those consolidated
funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

RN @ EREE &)

(a) EREEEEREERRANEHE
BEYBUR ()

(i) ZEEE(E)
(6) RAABEFE(E)

(Continued) ( ,%:
2020 2019
33 —E-NF
Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
Change in the relevant tax and tax and
equity price risk HERERR retained retained
variable: SyYEDH % profit % profit
% i
piegilpl A
RE&EA RERA
% i0pZ % 02
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEBT
Trust type fund products 5 TEAELER
Increase & 5 12 5 1,153
Decrease B (5) (12) (5) (1,153)
Joint controlled entity HEnHEE
Increase 120 10 10,724 10 10,027
Decrease e (10)  (10,724) (10)  (10,027)
Private credit funds AAERES
Increase 12 10 63,542 10 64,980
Decrease Ho (10)  (63,542) (10)  (64,980)
Preference share liability BLREE
Increase )l 10 - 10 -
Decrease B (10) - (10) =
Third party interest in REFESH
consolidated fund E=HER
Increase il 10 (21,801) 10 (22,916)
Decrease e (10) 21,801 (10) 22,916
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

(1)

5 RENEHER

(a)

F‘?E’JBZ%( g)

B (&)

EEEREEEREERBRANSEE

(i) ZHBERE(E)

Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value

(6) RIEEE(E)

(1)

o

Z N EEEDN
THEERAS

i

(Continued) (#&)
The movement during the FRE=ZBHLIA
year in the balance of Level 3 Eﬁ% %H’Jﬁi‘-%ﬁﬂ
fair value measurements is as BT
follows:
Financial assets at fair value URAAEEZTEA
through profit or loss ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ#l Bzl
THEE
2020 2019
—ECEE —E—NE
HK$’OOO HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 807,641 721,200
Capital injection/purchase xEBE 191,028 216,166
Settlement on disposal and JEE&FEIEIEEZ
redemption of products F (82,043) (133,161)
Realised (loss) gainon 2% HIENEE
disposal (Eﬁa)%ﬁ (16,257) 4,636
Exchange alignment IMNERRITEERR (7,377) (3,300)
Fair value change of BREWNAREE
investment #E (150,095) 2,100
At 31 December Wt=A=+—8 742,897 807,641
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

RN @ EREE &)

(a) EREEEEREERRANEHE
BEYBUR ()

(i) ZEEE(E)
(6) RAABEFE(E)

(Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) ROAEBETER
measured at fair value tREERARE
(Continued) (48
Financial assets at fair UAAEEFEA
value through other HEEEFAEME
comprehensive income (debt B W2 % i EE
securities) (EHE%)

2020 2019

—B-EHF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 4,450,348 3,626,407

Purchase and issuances PRIB 122 1T 144,152 723,279

Settlements #E (64,704) (216,353)
Net realised gain (loss) to FFABEHNE#E

profit or loss F R (E18) (84,961) 1,264
Net unrealised gain to other T AHMZ2E U

comprehensive income B R B IR R U 67,701 315,751

At 31 December Rt+t=—BA=+—H 4,512,536 4,450,348

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

240

(1)

5 RENEHER

(a)

B (&)

EEEREEEREERBRANSEE

BEYBUR ()

(i) ZHBERE(E)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

(6) RIEEE(E)

oy
n

(1) BAREBEEE
THEERAS

<

(Continued) (&
Financial assets at fair value UAAEEFEA
through profit or loss under HEEHABmH
overlay adjustments BEREEAEN 2
MEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,749,677 1,403,208
Cost of investment BANRERA
purchased 392,838 497,361
Distribution received W28 7 B (242,085) (257,702)
Earnings reinvested ENREN Wz 137,267 124,165
Disposal RE (4,528) (3,803)
Net realised gain to profit or T AEZZAVEIEF
loss g 216 440
Net unrealised gain (loss) sFAEMEE WS
to other comprehensive AR IRF WS
income (B#E) 79,675 (1,196)
Transfer into level 3 BAE=BH 1,504 —
Transfer out of level 3 EHE=ER - (12,796)
At 31 December R+=—A=+-—H 2,114,564 1,749,677
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

(Continued)

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 REITHEREER#E)

(a) EREEEEREERRANEHE
BEYBUR ()

(i) ZEEE(E)
(6) RAABEFE(E)

Financial assets and liabilities (1) BRAAEBEFEZR
measured at fair value tREERARE
(Continued) (&
Financial liabilities at fair UAAEEFEA
value through profit or loss BEE A BEmL
THERE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 630,569 503,130
Share issued/contribution BREZIT, U B
received HE 37,658 131,727
Distribution to third party PBEE=FR
investor BEA (5,508) (25,899)
Exchange alignment IMNERRITEER (799) —
Fair value change NAEBETEE (43,359) 21,611
At 31 December Rt+t=ZA=+—H 618,561 630,569
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B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

242

5 REITHEREER#E)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EkREEEZERBERBRINSER
for mitigating insurance and financial risk PR IR (48 )
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) EmEEEE)
(6) Fair value measurement (6) XA EEE(E)

(Continued)

(2) Fair value of financial assets (2 FEAAREBEIEK
and liabilities carried at other HEMEERERE
than fair value HNAREE
The carrying amounts of N6 B R B AN SR
financial instruments carried SHR AN A BRIV & &t
at cost or amortised cost TERKRAEE =
were not materially different HRAZZ-H1&#H
from their fair values as at —E-ZEF+=H
31 December 2019 and 2020 =+t—HWARE
except for the following BERRFKR BE
financial instruments, for RAERUT £/
which their carrying amounts ITE HEEE-
and fair value and the level AREEEARE
of fair value hierarchy are EEREZENT :
disclosed below:

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020
2020 categorised into
RZEZSE+ZA=1-H
ZBIEE WAREBHESE
Carrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
REE
g8 DAEE  F1EBR  F2ER FIER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET A7 FET FET A7
Debt securities BRES 21,503,917 30,223,711 - 23,012,254 7,211,457
Loans and receivables ERRENF 6,420,273 6,858,859 - - 6,858,859
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2019
2019 categorised into
RZE-nE+-A=1+-H
ZE-NE WANEEHENS
Carrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RAE
B OMEE  F1EBR  FE2BR  F3EAR
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
&1 &7 &7 tE7r &7
Debt securities E%ES 18,511,569 20,811,021 — 18,037,374 2,773,647
Loans and receivables ERREY 6,881,023 7,240,918 - — 7,240,918
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement
(Continued)

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

)

Fair value of financial assets
and liabilities carried at other
than fair value (Continued)

Loans and receivables —
The fair value of mortgage
loans is established using a
discounted cash flow method
based on credit rating,
maturity and future income.
The fair value for impaired
mortgage loans is based on
the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s effective
interest rate or the fair value
of the collateral if the loan
is collateral dependent.
A significant increase/
(decrease) in the discount rate
would result in a significant
decrease/(increase) to the fair
value.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5

RN @ EREE &)
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EEEREEEREERBRANSEE

BEYBUR ()

(i) LREEBE

(6) RIEEE(E)
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A REEIER
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5 REITHEREER#E)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEEZRBRERBRINSER
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B HOBER (48 )
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) =@EEE
(7) Financial assets and liabilities (7) ZEETHRHBEHEHEE
subject to offsetting, enforceable FIEE - AJZHBITH
master netting arrangements EFEEEE e
The following summarises gross TERBETITIEEEN
and net information of derivative EENABNFEE
assets and liabilities, along with B UREFFHELEER
collateral received and posted in HEEBNEWAE 2
connection with a master netting HRIKF R
agreement:
2020
b b 22
Gross
amounts Net Dueand Collateral Net
Gross offset  amount  accrued posted amount
REi% HER BEEH
ot ot BE  EHeE il B
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEx TET TET TEx TET FEr
Other accounts receivable  EftFEWRER 38,576 (27,903) 10,673 - - 10,673
Other accounts payable ~ EftEf 8z 246,794  (27,903) 218,891 - - 218,891
Derivative assets TEEE 110,001 (10,973) 99,028 3,946 (99,528) 3,446
Derivative liabilities fTEER 63,232 (10,973) 52,259 (83) (99,528) (47,352)
2019
ZE-NE
Gross
amounts Net  Dueand Collateral Net
Gross offset amount  accrued posted Amount
[E:R: HER B2
ag ek 7 EAeE il RE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEx TET T T TEx TiEx
Other accounts receivable  EftfEUTER:! 41,161 (29,775) 11,386 - = 11,386
Other accounts payable — HMEMERZR 145494  (29,775) 115,719 - - 115719
Derivative assets fTEEE 29,421 (16,815) 12,606 171 (12,324) 453
Derivative liabilties el 24857 (16815 8,042 B11) (13338  (5,607)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(7) Financial assets and liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements
(Continued)

The Group’s principal derivative
market risk exposures are interest
rate risk, which includes the
impact of inflation, and credit
risk. Interest rate risk pertains
to the change in fair value of the
derivative instruments as market
interest rates move. The Group is
exposed to credit-related losses
in the event of non-performance
by counterparties to derivative
financial instruments. In order
to minimize credit risk the group
and its derivative counterparties
generally enter into master
agreements that require collateral
to be posted in the amount owed
under each transaction, subject
to minimum transfer amounts.
These same master agreements
allow for contracts in a positive
position, in which the group is due
amounts, to be offset by contracts
in a negative position. This right
of offset combined with collateral
obtained from counterparties,
reduces the Group’s exposure.
The Group regularly monitors
counterparty credit ratings and
exposures, derivatives positions
and valuations, and the value
of collateral posted to ensure
counterparties are credit-worthy
and the concentration of exposure
is minimized. The Group monitors
this exposure as part of its
management of the Group’s overall
credit exposures.

EH S MEMARLT

7

TEFR

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5

RN @ EREE &)

(a)
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(7)

FEITHREZBEE
B & ~ AEHBTHY
EFEEEAE G (F)

AEBENEENMEIA
miEREREERRE
Bk BEBERMNEE
BP0 E o FEE MR
Eﬁi?ﬁi%ﬂ_k"“ibﬁ PTE
TENAREBEEZDSE
B o ﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁ%ﬂlﬂ
MRXBHFIEN &
EEKEEEESERER
MEX - BTERERK
EARR AEERH
TERRZEF RS
BRI EHE  BERER
MUBERSZARANE
HBRR BEZHREE
BELEMR - ELEMEE
9 15 = L FT R IO IE ®
AR ER(H P ARE
ESRINBEE)HEH
MRREEIEE - ESEK
HERRXZHFRS
MIKFmELES - B
TAEBNEBEE -
ZI-‘%I;E,HH?T’Q&%%T
FHE AN = MEE
E-TEmBET MMM
B URBEANERR
BE UBRXZHF
BEERFEE t¥RARSE
HERERE AEH
BE Jﬂiﬂﬁﬁ’ ERHHE
%ﬁ%lﬂ BEERRE
i

245



Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(7) Financial assets and liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements
(Continued)

If amounts are due from the
counterparty, they are reported as
an asset. If amounts are due to
the counterparty, they are reported
as a liability. Negative values in
the carrying value of a particular
derivative category can result from
the counterparty’s right to offset
carrying value positions in other
derivative categories.

The uncertainties about the
amount and timing of claims
payment are typically resolved
within one year.

The tables below reconcile the “net
amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position”, as set out above, to
the other accounts receivable
and other accounts payable
together with derivative financial
instruments classified under
other payables presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.

246
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(7) Financial assets and liabilities

subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 REITHEREER#E)

(a) EREEEEREERRANEHE
BEYBUR ()

(i) Z@mEE)
(7) RETEFEHNEZHBEE

B & ~ AEHBTHY
EFEEEAE G (F)

(Continued)
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net amount of financial assets 340 £ X Fr I FAIK £
after offsetting as stated BrEeRMEETHE
above 10,673 11,386
Financial assets not in scope of I 3FAIKHILEEE
offsetting disclosure RAZEmEE 148,205 113,060
158,878 124,446
Net amount of financial N | 3P 5 A 8
liabilities after offsetting as BremBEFE
stated above 218,891 115,719
Financial liabilities not in scope I FEAIK LK B & E
of offsetting disclosure AZEmes 650,642 462,826
869,533 578,545

6 PREMIUMS AND FEE INCOME

Premiums and fee income represents gross
premium income and fee income received in
respect of life and annuity, linked long term,
retirement scheme management categories | and
Il of long term business.

6 FRERBRABRA

RENRBRABAERASNES  HE
R REEBZRAFEEEE1E
MEISBRINRERBERWRANRE -

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Premium and fee income from REEEINEREREAKA
insurance contracts 7,674,237 5,961,032
Fee income from investment RESRNERKBA
contracts 49,204 55,043
7,723,441 6,016,075
ERSRERERAT
—B-BEEH 247



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

7A

248

NET INVESTMENT INCOME 7TA REWAFR
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Interest income from unlisted debt RETEBEFFRIEHER
securities and mortgage loans Z R B WA 2,008,279 1,810,687
Bank and other interest income RITREMF S WA 19,455 39,224
Net realised gain on disposal of tﬂﬁi EURAREETEZR
securities designated at fair value BETTABRNESZ
through profit or loss EEIELBZ@/? 502,870 217,373
Net unrealised gain on financial asset POy (i EETLE
and financial liabilities designated at AEBENEHEERESH
fair value through profit or loss BEZRERKEFHE 716,328 936,699
Net realised gain on fair value through LA AREBETEHHES S
other comprehensive income debt AHMEERRNERE
securities HFZ BB IWNRFEE 98,620 19,798
Net realised gain/(loss) on debt U\ﬁﬁfﬁﬁizl-‘“fiZﬁi%%%f
securities measured at amortised cost ZB# B W (FE)
,ﬂﬁ 8,067 (220)
Impairment (loss)/reversal of assets AT EZEENR
measured at amortised cost BE(EER) #Em (72,148) 8,349
Impairment loss of fair value through LARBEFEEHEZE
other comprehensive income debt AHME RSN ERE
securities & Z BIEE 8 (65,844) (26,999)
Impairment loss on investment in an BEARREZRERSE
associate - (35,000)
Dividend and distribution income B E Mo B A 235,760 255,480
Net derivative gain/(loss) PTEIRWE (F5E)F
25 131,726 (21,092)
Other investment loss HithiR EEE (10,891) (7,666)
Net unrealised gain of fair value through BEFE T LA S ﬁﬁ%‘l‘
profit or loss financial assets under EHHE% EJJ.:‘I‘)\TE S E
overlay adjustment REE 2 RERNRFEHE 119,419 93,666
3,691,641 3,290,299
Total interest income from financial assets BE_—_E_ZE+_B=+—HLE
at fair value through other comprehensive E UAARBEFEBEHEHZFHTAH
income amounted to HK$740,776,000 (2019: HmEEREZNEREEN %IJ SELON -
HK$720,989,000) and from amortised cost 28 5 740,776,0008 T(=Z & — h & :
financial assets amounted to HK$1,281,069,000 720,989,000 T) » MM AETRMEE

(2019: HK$1,119,879,000) for the year ended

31 December 2020.

HA B U A A 1,281,069,0008 T (==
— % :1,119,879,00038 ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

7B OTHER INCOME 7B Hfthlt A
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trustee fee income EEBWA 28,452 26,334
Income from modified coinsurance ER BN ERREHRERA 2,560,558 1,530,040
Other income HAblUg A 108,468 67,659
2,697,478 1,624,033
8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT 8 FERFE#HH
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Net claims, policy benefits and BN - REHKAM

surrenders (note a) BR&(HiFa) 416,275 482,165

Interest credited to policyholders’ REFEANTFRETFE
deposits (note b) (H1zEb) 2,784,500 2,690,237
Dividends to policyholders (note c) REFEARE (Mitc) 72,062 24,150
3,272,837 3,196,552

EHSHEBARAT
N
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT 8

(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Claims, policy benefits and surrenders

BREBNE)

(a) B RELHAHNBRE

2020
i
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AB - FEUR  BEEER  BAGEHEER
BEARSR ERE] EKE wst
HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Gross benefits incurred: BEEWEEE:
— Benefits payable - Efffaft 679,592 1,273 27,829 708,694
— Change in outstanding claims — RREHRZ21t 20,139 - 2,108 22,247
699,731 1,273 29,937 730,941
Amount recoverable from EWBRIBARSHE :
reinsurers:
— Benefits recoverable — e K& (307,523) - (50) (307,573)
— Change in outstanding claims — KRB &1t (4,105) - (2,988) (7,093)
(311,628) - (3,038) (314,666)
Net amount B 388,103 1,273 26,899 416,275
2019
“Z-nE
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
5 FeURk  RIGEEE  RAGEER
BEARSR 18 ERE @it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Gross benefits incurred: BEENREE !
— Benefits payable - Efffaft 648,469 1,244 40,479 690,192
— Change in outstanding claims — KREHRZ21t 38,672 - (582) 38,090
687,141 1,244 39,897 728,282
Amount recoverable from ERBEREAREE
reinsurers:
— Benefits recoverable — e K& (227,618) - (1,352) (228,970)
— Change in outstanding claims — RREHRZ21t (18,499) - 1,352 (17,147
(246,117) = - (246,117)
Net amount B 441,024 1,244 39,897 482,165

Benefits payable comprise claims, policy benefits

and surrenders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT 8 FERF#HLF#E)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o ()
(b) Interest credited to policyholders’ deposits (b) RAREFEAERNFE
2020
—ECER
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AE - FEUR  BEEER  BRAGEHER
BEARER ERE] K wst
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts REBERE 2,545,301 21,961 - 2,567,262
Investment contracts REEME 217,238 - - 217,238
2,762,539 21,961 - 2,784,500
2019
ZE-NF
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AE FEUR  BAGHEEE  BAGEER
BEARAR 18 %38 a5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts RERERE 2,463,853 14,730 - 2,478,583
Investment contracts RESR 211,654 — — 211,654
2,675,507 14,730 - 2,690,237
EEREHEEERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3 3% B &%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT 8 FRF#HM#)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o ()
(c) Dividends to policyholders (c) MREFEARENRE
2020
—ECER
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AE - FEUR  BEEER  BRAGEHER
BEARER ERE] K st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts RiEEE 72,062 - - 72,062
2019
ZE-NF
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AE FEUR  BAGHEEE  BAGEER
BEARBR 18 %38 Bt
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts RERERE 24,150 - - 24,150
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

9 COMMISSION AND RELATED EXPENSES

9 RAENHEEER

2020
g Sl 323
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked  management  management
long term category | category llI Total
B FeUR  BHGEEE  BAGEEER
BEARDR ERE EKE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts AR 1,325,693 184 7,859 1,333,736
Investment contracts RESHE 16,115 - - 16,115
1,341,808 184 7,859 1,349,851
2019
—E-NE
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category lll Total
ASFEUR  BIGEERE  RAGEIER
#EARER F18 %38 st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts REEE 1,174,328 260 8,707 1,183,295
Investment contracts RERR 16,652 - - 16,652
1,190,980 260 8,707 1,199,947
10 CHANGE IN FUTURE POLICYHOLDER 10 RRREFFALGTEH
BENEFITS
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Increase in future policyholders’ benefits FRIRREZHH ALEIN —
— insurance contracts (note 31) REeEE (faE31) 4,718,917 3,066,008
Increase in future policyholders’ benefits RIIREFH AL EMN —
— investment contracts (note 32) REER (K1aF32) 8,172 10,710
4,727,089 3,076,718

EHSHEBARAT
N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11 BRFEADEF

254

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

BRBLADERI S MBR (FEA) ¢

(crediting):
2020 2019
—ECTH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(a) Staff costs BT A
Equity-settled share-based AR i I LARR 47 (88 [0 )
payment expenses (reversal) S zBX (B 43)
(note 43) (12,019) (6,541)
Salaries, allowances and benefits % » LR EYFIZH
in kind 442,266 417,925
Retention package EB{TiEE 4,266 34,937
Social welfare HEEAN
Staff (note a) BT (ffita) 29,130 30,784
Agents e 21,453 25,583
485,096 502,688

Notea: The Group operates the Mandatory Provident

Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) for all qualified
employees in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2019: HK$30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees.

The domestic employees of the Group in the PRC
participate in state-managed social welfare plans,
including social pension insurance, unemployment
insurance, health care insurance, housing funds and
other social welfare plan operated by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments. According
to the relevant regulations, the premiums and
welfare benefit contributions borne by the Group are
calculated and paid to the relevant labour and social
welfare authorities on a regular basis. The social
pension insurance and unemployment insurance are
defined contribution plans. The contributions to the
defined contribution plans are expensed as incurred.

During the year, wealth management products and
securities brokerage transaction fees approximately
amounted to HK$66,000 (2019: HK$495,000) were
waived as part of staff benefit scheme.

Hi#a:

AEBREBREMLABETEEAAE
EBEBERHIEEHEANZERIZHERE
MABEFE(REETE ) - BESE
B2 EREHICENRTE ABYNE
TABE - BEBRELSE EXHES
HERRESHEBASS5% BT E/EH
= ; BS B iEE A E LR A30,000
BT(=F— L5 : 30,0008 T) o @5
BEHMMRENEERE - STEEEHEAE
BEEIHERE BASTABENESE
EO

AEBTASRPERANES S MAER
EENAEEANTE - SFEHEEN TR
MERABFESEENEESRE - KF
REE - BRERR  EEAEERAMEE
BAGTR - BRIEBEERD - AEBEEEN
RERBANERERFEL N THEH
BERAEEAIM - BEESRBRAZE
R DR ERNE - HREHEKED
BREBRERTAER -

TEEER BUERRESELERSE
#) 7366,000 % T (== — fL & : 495,000
BT ERAETREAFEN MO T U
RBR o
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11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

11 BRBIADRER (&)

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(b) Other operating items HihR&1HH
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE < 10,579 10,562
Legal and professional costs EEREXEEMER 24,246 27,763
Operating lease payments — REHEFIE — YEHES
property rentals 4,385 6,704
Depreciation and amortisation ERE#HE 157,922 139,516
Information, data and B - BB RBAEX
communication expenses 28,746 26,698
Net exchange (loss)/gain INE U R (518 ) /FEE (16,152) 28,483
Disposal loss for BEEEE
— fixed assets — BEEE 64 154
Entertainment and travelling BERER 2,755 7,647
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(c) Finance costs 7l R A
Bank loan interest RTEFRFE 57,548 66,016
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBRE 9,543 10,384
Preference share liability BERERE 23,267 23,082
Other interest expense Hb & pi s 260 1,388
Shareholder’s loan interest BRERERFE 79,767 2,618
170,385 103,488

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 GERBERZAEH
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) mEWERZBWEBENE
statement represents:
2020 2019
—B-%F —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax AHABE
Hong Kong BB
Provision for the year REEEE 49,963 48,626
Over-provision in respect of prior DEFEEBBR
years (40) (40)
Overseas ST
Provision for the year REEEME 967 1,562
Under-provision in respect of prior DEFEEEBTE
years 100 168
Macau B
Provision for the year REEEME - =
Over-provision in respect of prior DEFEEHBR
years - —
50,990 50,316
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary = EELSMED
differences (47,167) (51,015)
3,823 (699)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
2020 is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying corporation under the
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated
at the same basis in 2019. The provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is taken
into account a reduction granted by the
Hong Kong SAR Government of 75% of
the tax payable for the year of assessment
2019-20 subject to a maximum reduction
of HK$20,000 for each business (2019:
a maximum reduction of HK$20,000 was
granted for the year of assessment 2018-
19 and was taken into account in calculating
the provision for 2019).

The provision for Macau Complementary
Tax is calculated at tax rate of 12.0%
(2019: 12.0%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year. Taxation for overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant countries.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

12 GEWBRZAEHR (&)
(a) HEWBRZBBWBBAR  (F)

MEZMBATMES » 20088 T
W ERBRERIZ8.25% HH - 82 T
FE R B % A B 2 16.5 % B o 3%
MEBARMEBEBANSHBER =S
—NWEWHERREEHE . —_2=F
FENEBANEHRERBRTRES
BERNBRE-—E—HhEZE=Z
FRNEESNNEMNRE - 5
THEMEZ M E20,0008 T (=Z=F
—hE :  ZBE-—NE=ZE—hFF
HEERZR%E 20,0008t @ 578
—E-NERERSTR)

PR B BB D R F R (L ET R
RB BN 2B ER12.0%(ZF— N
F112.0%)5tE c BIHIHE QA
gﬁﬁumﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁz
& o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 REWERZABHR (&)
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEZHMEEFIREABR R
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: EWEER
2020 2019
—E-%% —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation BANER 952,810 614,051
Notional tax on profit before RBEHEBERESENN
taxation, calculated at the rates ERAB R ERANER
applicable to profits in the EHEMIE
jurisdictions concerned 204,353 105,496

Tax effect of surplus transferred from #EEHE B RHEASKHES

Hong Kong long term individual life — HIZRERMITI L

business (273,523) (188,694)
Notional tax on net premiums written &8 & 218 A S E &

in respect of Hong Kong long term  #M{RBFHEMNBEHIE

individual life business 47,956 47,263
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAMBUMA 2GS E (29,560) (4,157)
Tax adjustment in respect of prior DAFERERARE

years 60 128
Tax effect of non-deductible NGRS e 5%

expenses 28,505 25,955
Tax effect of unused tax losses ARE R B SRR R A

previously not recognised RNEENHESE (1,801) (441)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERBEBE 2K E

recognised 74,730 61,500
Tax effect of reversal of taxable FE 4075 2 B = R B B Y

temporary difference =7 (47,167) (51,155)
Others Hith 270 3,406
Tax expenses/(credit) BiEXE(EE) 3,823 (699)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

13 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

13 EEM<

RIS B( 2 T 1) 58 383(1) HER( 2
ABBRESHEER)AF)E2 BB H

Ordinance and part 2 of the Company (Disclosure ZESEMEUT :
of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulations are as follows:
2020
k3.3
Salaries, Contributions
allowances Discretionary  to Mandatory Share-based
Directors’  and benefits honus Provident payments  Resignation
fees in kind Fote i Fund Sub-total (note i) payment Total
koD Berd Bal . ARGRERL s .
 £35 Eils W) DEEUR Nt ONRBE) BRAR 3t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
741 7Ar 7Er 741 7L 741 741 FAr
Chairman iE
Yu Feng JH - - - - - - - -
Executive directors §figs
Zhang Ke (note i) SA(Hi) - 2161 - 5 2,166 - - 2,166
Hai Olivia Ou frote i) BB - - - - - - - -
Huang Xin B - - - - - - -
Li Ting (note ) 31 - 124 - 5 1219 - 5,000 6,279
Non-executive directors FinEs
Hai Olivia Ou (nofe i) B - -
Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed - - - -
Michagl James 0'Connor Michael James
(note vi) 0'Connor (Aézw) - - - - - - - -
Gareth Ross (note v Gareth Ross (#zi) - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive  BHUEH{TES
directors
Chu Chung Yue, Howard KT 360 18 - - 318 - - 38
Qi Daging ERE 492 12 - - 504 - - 504
Xiao Feng [ 240 12 - - 252 - - 252
Total a5 1,092 341 - 10 4519 - 5,000 9,579
Notes: Hiat

i The discretionary bonus amount represents bonus

accrued and approved for the year 2020.

It represents the estimated value of share award
granted to the individuals under the Company’s
share award scheme. The value of these share
awards are measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 2(v).

Appointed as an executive director, vice chairman
and chief executive officer effective on 8 October
2020.

Re-designated as an executive director and
appointed as interim chief executive officer effective
on 23 February 2020 and ceased to be the interim
chief executive officer effective on 8 October 2020.

EH S MEMARLT

7

TEFR

[ HIERASHEARNR-"Z_ZFERTR
ez RETIEAL -

ii EARBA QR R R B EIR T EA B
DRBOEEE - ZZRORBTIN
BEREEESFTEERKZ2(v) FRER
BRONNRRZBRETE ©

iii N-ZZ-_ZFE+ANBEEEHTES
BRESRRBTHRAREIS -

iv REIE-EF-A-L+=HRAFHTES
I = 1 5 R B ﬁftﬁli@ﬁ jtﬁ—q— kS
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

13 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13 ESME @)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o ()
v Resigned as executive director and chief executive v R-EB-EF_F-+=HBRERTES
officer effective on 23 February 2020. RITHAEH -
vi  Appointed as independent non-executive director on vi REEZEFE=A-+tHEEZEBILHE
27 March 2020. HITESHK -
vii  Resigned as independent non-executive director on vii REE-EF=ZA-t+tHBEBMYIEH
27 March 2020. TEBRE -
2019
“E-NE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  Discretionary to Mandatory Share-based
Directors’  and benefits bonus Provident payments  Resignation
fees in kind (note ) Fund Sub-total (note i payment Total
BooRER  BERA Bl WRiAERZ
gzpe MR W)  DELR Nt NERBE) BB it

HK§ 000 HK8 000 HK§ 000 HK8 000 HK8'000 HK§ 000 HK8'000 HK§ 000
4 TEr Tér 4 TE&r [ 4 T&r

Chairman IE

Yu Feng E# - - - - - - - -
Executive directors Hgs

Huang Xin B& = = - - - - - -
Li Ting 3k - 1,644 - 18 1,662 - - 1,662
Non-executive directors FyEs

Hai Olivia O et - - - - - - - -
Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed - - - - - - - -
Gareth Ross Gareth Ross - - - - - - - -

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors

Chu Chung Yue, Howard 5T 360 18 - - 378 - - 378
LiLjun E 5 3 . _ B . _ B
Qi Daging EXE 49 12 - - 504 - - 504
Xiao Feng ER 183 9 - - 192 - - 192
Tot 85 8 76 - B 8w - -y
The executive directors’ emoluments shown FRHiTESHEEEAERQATRA
above were mainly for their services in SESEKEEERMRE

connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors and independent FREHITEERBIFHTESHE
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown FEREARNQARZEZREEE °

above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

14 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 14 EEHAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest ERfuMEREMALTH  BE—UA
emoluments, none (2019: none) is a director BEE(ZE-NE 8) BEENMEF
whose emoluments is disclosed in note 13. The BERKME13 AU (ZFE—hLF: A
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the MIATHMESEREDT ¢

five (2019: five) individuals are as follows:

2020 2019
—g-®F —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e ERREYFRZ
kind 34,263 38,055
Discretionary bonus BB AL 9,860 23,350
Equity-settled share-based payment DEREENURGHER
expenses (note 1) BRI (Arat 1) - -
Contributions to Mandatory Provident &% AL KR
Fund and retirement scheme RRGTEIERX
contribution 2,313 2,256
46,436 63,661
Note 1:  These represent the estimated value of share Kzt 1 - BLEHFTRERBERQTANBK MR
award granted to the individuals under the B 21 % 5 5 L6 1Bl A BY AR 17 2R B ik 5T
Company’s share award scheme. The value of BE ZEEROEBHEBERRE
these share awards are measured according MzE2(v) ol BB M BEREN
to the Group’s accounting policies for share- REMAREESFBERTE MR
based payment transactions as set out in BZBEX ZEEEDEBIIME
note 2(v) and, in accordance with that policy, EaITENRTMEUNETEENE
includes adjustments to reverse amounts STRIEFEE o

accrued in previous years where grants of
equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

EHSREBARAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

14

15

262

INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 14 EEHALHE)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The emoluments of the five (2019: five) FEBREHFALT(ZE—NE  E8)2
individuals with the highest emoluments are e ER LT EE :
within the following bands:
Number of individuals
EEAZ
2020 2019

—g-%f i
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7t 27,500,000 % 7 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 % 7t £ 8,000,000 & 7 =
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 7t £ 8,500,000 & 7t
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 &7t £ 9,500,000 % 7t

HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000

HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000

9,500,001 # 70 Z 10,000,000 & 7T

10,000,001 7t £ 10,500,000 & 7T
11,500,001 7t £ 12,000,000 # 7T
13,000,001 7t £ 13,500,000 # 7T
19,500,001 7 7t £ 20,000,000 & 7T

I el ol aa

_

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

15 BREF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable

to equity shareholders of the

Company

for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK$618,315,000 (2019: HK$255,619,000),
and the weighted average number of

shares in issue during the year

ended 31

December 2020 of 3,319,175,720 (2019:

3,207,904,727).

BREXER

BEREAEBAIDIZRBEZ-_S-_ZFF
+ZBA=+t—BLEEEZ2XRQATE
HIREEAER 618,315,000 7T
(ZE—N%F : 255,619,000/8 )
rEE-ZE-ZEFE+=-A=1+—H
IEFEREETRAO ZMEFEHIEH
3,319,175, 720 R (= & — h & :
3,207,904,727 B )5t & o

Weighted average number of ordinary B NEFIGE
shares
2020 2019
ZB-EF —E-REF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HWERTEER 3,223,326,394 3,223,326,394

Effect of issue of subscription shares
(note 42(e))

Effect of shares held by share award
scheme

BORBROD22E
(Hiat42(e)

111,270,993

RIBH B RE B ER

eEE

(15,421,667) (15,421,667

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

RtT=ZR=+—-RE#TRHG

2 IS8

3,319,175,720  3,207,904,727
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK$618,315,000 (2019: HK$255,619,000),
and the weighted average number of shares
during the year ended 31 December 2020 of
3,319,175,720 (2019: 3,207,904,727).

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

15 BRER (&)
(b) EBREFERF

ERBEREANNRBE_ZS=_ZF
+ZB=1t—HLEFEZERQATE
= IR R (& 618,315,000 78 T
(ZE—N%F : 255,619,000/ T)
rEE_ZE_ZEF+-F=+—H
IEFEREETRAO ZMEFEHIE
3,319,175,720 R (= & — h F :
3,207,904,727 B )5t & o

HEN 2 AT Y (5)
2020 2019
—g-%5  —F-N%

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

RTtZA=+—HHEE
iR o0 S 19 21

3,319,175,720  3,207,904,727

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) at 31 December

RTt-A=1t—HHEE
iR o S 19 21 (#58)

3,319,175,720  3,207,904,727

16 SEGMENT REPORTING

The operating segments have been determined
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.

After the completion of the YF Life acquisition,
the Group is largely dominated by the insurance
business. As a result, management decided to
streamline and regroup the operating segments.
Insurance business is considered as an operating
segment and other operating segments that
existed prior to the acquisition are consolidated
as financial services and corporate to reflect the
long term business development focus.

EERTREEARATF
—ECEEFR

16 o EHwE

RETBIOREBERDAHNTESHEH
I AR AR R IR R AR H R ORE 2
EMEE - AEEZEEXEBDIREA
AR FTRMZE m &R E B E
THERER FAEEIZEEDHBAR
—ERBEREBEN  BEHZEAER
AN 2 Bk K AT 1S 2 B R B A 4K

&R WA °

WRBEERRE  AERENEIEXERR
Rz - Bt - EEEARAERMELNMEAL
B0 RIBEBWHRR/EE D - H
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263



Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

264

Consequently, the Group currently has two
operating segments:

Insurance business — engage in the writing
of long term assurance business

Other financial services and corporate
includes

a)

Securities brokerage — engages in
securities brokerage and provision of
custodian and other services;

Wealth and asset management
— provision of fund and asset
management services as well as
financing and investing solution for
corporate clients;

Consultancy and advisory services —
provision of corporate advisory, placing
and underwriting advisory services to
corporate clients;

Principal investment — utilise capital
1) to provide funding on developing
financial products and the funds
managed by wealth management
team 2) to improve returns on the
Group’s capital and cash flow
management based on treasury
management model that may involve
(but shall not be limited to) holding
fixed income instruments, high grade
equity instruments and other financial
investments;

Financial technology activities —
includes administrative expenses,
research and development costs,
staff costs and data and technology
related expenses related to the
Group’s financial technology activities
to support other financial services
function; and

Corporate service includes central
administrative and financing functions
to support other operating segments.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those followed by the
Group in the last annual financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment revenue represents the revenue
generated by each operating segment from
external customers. Inter-segment revenue
represents inter-segment services which
were transacted with reference to the normal
commercial price made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

Segment results represent specific operating
performance of the reported segments by
allocating all specific and related operating and
finance costs, excluding other corporate, general
administrative, and financial expenses, taxation
and non-operating costs. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker, at
the relevant times, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16 T E|E (&)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DEBBRARFEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_FEF+-A=+—HL
FE
Other
financial
services
Insurance and
business corporate Total
N RS mA
RBER NERE b
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Premiums and fee income RERERWA 7,723,441 - 7,723,441
Premiums ceded to reinsurer PHRE (2,934,969) - (2,934,969)
Net premium and fee income RERERRARE 4,788,472 - 4,788,472
Change in unearned revenue liability REHWASEED (525,825) - (525,825)
Brokerage commission, interest and other &A% + AIEWANE MR EWA
service income - 33,944 33,944
Subscription, management and rebate fee 328« EREREREWA
income - 5,432 5,432
Consultancy and advisory income BRREARA - - -
Inter-segment income AEEWA 1,635 7,360 8,995
Reportable segment revenue THRED P 4,264,282 46,736 4,311,018
Allocated net investment income, other EARREWAFE - HttS2 A
operating income and gains kg 6,195,267 171,734 6,367,001
Share of result of associates A AXANE - 303 303
Allocated operating costs AR A (9,353,961) (188,409) (9,542,370)
Allocated finance cost EAERRERR (7,794) (30,488) (38,282)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RE2 B8,/ (BE) 1,007,794 (124) 1,097,670
Elimination of inter-segment (loss)/profit RSB (HE) /FmEE (1,200)
Reportable segment profit derived from REBREMPALZARES B
Group’s external customers il 1,096,470
Unallocated legal and professional fees, APRLRRERAS  HENAR
finance cost and other operating expenses ~ Efth& %5 % (143,660)
Taxation BE (3,823)
Profit for the year KEERR 948,987
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed and ~ AEEEEEENHMEFEENHR
other intangible asset for the year ENEH (185,076) (25,772) (160,848)
Bank interest income RITFSHMA 11,694 7,497 19,191
Reportable segment assets (including IREIHERE (BERBE QAN
investment in associates and those Eﬁ&&%ﬁ%@ﬁ@fﬁﬂﬁﬁ”
identified intangible asset at acquisition WEFEE BeRBESER
of YF Life, cash and cash equivalentand ~ BAIBRCHERZR={EAMNRT
fixed bank deposits with original maturity ~ E&173%)
over 3 months) 81,442,764 4,365,942 85,808,706
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ FRERBIBEEMILE (FHZ
during the year other than associates ATl 257,028 3,890 260,918
Cash and cash equivalent and fixed bank ~ BERBLEEER %IJJ? EHRER
deposits with original maturity over 3 ZEANRITERFH
months 1,880,711 2,412,756 4,293,467
Investment in associates REEARNRE - 30,074 30,074
Reportable segment liabilities HREIHEE (63,449,832) (4,820,726)  (68,270,558)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16 D EBIRE (47
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) DBBRAREEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HL
FE
Other
financial
Insurance  services and
business corporate Total
, AR aA X
REBEH AEILS -y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TiEx A7 T
Premiums and fee income REREAWA 6,016,075 = 6,016,075
Premiums ceded to reinsurer PHRE (1,948,003) = (1,948,003)
Net premium and fee income RERERAKAFH 4,068,072 - 4,068,072
Change in unearned revenue liability RABUAERLZE (715,649) - (715,649)
Brokerage commission, interest and other &2 + FIEWANE MR WA
service income - 18,566 18,566
Subscription, management and rebate fee i  EBERERERA
income - 8,850 8,850
Consultancy and advisory income BRRZARA - 1,060 1,060
Inter-segment income 2BERA 1,741 12,936 14,677
Reportable segment revenue RS A 3,354,164 41,412 3,395,576
Allocated net investment income, other EARREWAFE - RS2 A
operating income and gains Rz 4,843,432 55,438 4,898,870
Share of result of associates NG - (1,080) (1,080)
Allocated operating costs EA RS (7,294,518) (227,845) (7,522,363)
Allocated finance cost EABRRERR (7,820) (27,028) (34,848)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RENDAE /(BB 895,258 (159,103) 736,155
Elimination of inter-segment (loss)/profit ~ THMED(BE),/ FlEk (7,000)
Reportable segment profit derived from ASERBNPAL 2 TREDT
Group’s external customers ey 729,155
Unallocated legal and professional fees, RAE f?&ﬁ%%ﬁi MERMER
finance cost and other operating expenses ~ Eft& % (115,104)
Taxation BE 699
Profit for the year KEERF 614,750
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed and ~ AFEETEENEMENEEN T
other intangible asset for the year EREE (108,191) (31,880) (140,071)
Bank interest income FANERA 25,032 13,372 38,404
Reportable segment assets (including RSN PEE (BEREZ N TN
investment in associates and those Eiﬁw\&u&ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁéﬂﬁﬁu
identified intangible asset at acquisition WEFEE BeRBESER
of YF Life, cash and cash equivalentand ~ BAIREHRZRA={HAMNRT
fixed bank deposits with original maturity ~ E&173%)
over 3 months) 71,464,563 2,100,893 73,565,456
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ FRERBIBEEMNILE (FH =
during the year other than associates AH) 117,366 4,954 122,320
Cash and cash equivalent and fixed bank ~ B&RHESEERNETHRSR
deposits with original maturity over 3 HANSTESEE
months 2,253,331 301,837 2,555,168
Investment in associates REEARNRE = 27,860 21,860
Reportable segment liabilities BN (55,422,342) (4,446,476)  (59,868,818)
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16 T E|E (&)
(b) Reconciliation of segment assets and (b) PBEERABBNEE
liabilities
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets TiREDILEE 85,808,706 73,565,456
Elimination of inter-segment asset KD FEEEER
transfer (11,500) (14,500)
Elimination of inter-segment K 8K 5 T FE LK
receivables (70,363) (49,118)
85,726,843 73,501,838
Goodwill SRS 1,825,562 1,825,562
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 150 44
Consolidated total assets EtEERE 87,552,555 75,327,444
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AREDEEE 68,270,558 59,868,818
Elimination of inter-segment K 8 IS ETE BT
payables (73,663) (56,618)
68,196,895 59,812,200
Tax payable FEASBLIE 13,893 52,086
Consolidated total liabilities AR ERE 68,210,788 59,864,286
(c) Geographical segment information (c) WESHER

The Group’s customers, operation and
administration are mainly located in
Hong Kong and Macau. Research and
development for financial technologies
divisions are located in PRC.

(d) Information about major customers (d)
No customer account for more than 10% of

the total revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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17 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

Reclassification adjustments relating to

17

Hftt 2 W@
Htt2mWSESARN D NEEEHRD

components of other comprehensive income HAE
2020 2019
—E-%2F —FNF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
Debt securities classified as UAREBEEIFEEHESH
fair value through other FFAEMEERENE
comprehensive income: HES
Changes in fair value recognised FREREHN L AEEES
during the year 1,194,458 1,090,061
Reclassification adjustments BEAEBZNWEEETEN
for amounts transferred to DERE
profit or loss:
Net gains on disposal HEWESFE (98,620) (20,161)
Impairment losses REEE 65,884 73,205
Others Hith 4,400 727
Net movement in the fair FREEMZEKEPE
value reserve during the RNAREEREES
year recognised in other FE
comprehensive income 1,166,122 1,143,832
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
Financial asset at fair value BREBELUAAEBHETE
through profit or loss under BEHZBT ABZNE
overlay approach: MEE :
Changes in fair value recognised FRBEAN D R EELE
during the year (32,967) 57,085
Reclassification adjustments EAEFWEIEETER
for amounts transferred to DERE
profit or loss:
Net (gains)/losses on disposal HE(WR), BEEE - -
Net movement in the fair FREHMEERE T E
value reserve during the RN AAEBEREERD
year recognised in other R
comprehensive income (32,967) 57,085

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg
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17 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 17 HttZ2HEW R (F)
(Continued)
Reclassification adjustments relating to Ht2mEmRESARBLNWEHBEN 2
components of other comprehensive income BREE)
(Continued)
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FET
Equity and other fund BRBELERAUARE

investment classified as fair B2 BHEFHTAE
value through profit or loss aHREREMESR

under overlay approach: &

Changes in fair value recognised FRERNALEEEZ
during the year 152,386 36,581

Reclassification adjustments EAEBRWHIEETER
for amounts transferred to DERE
profit or loss:

Net losses/(gains) on disposal HEBE (hR)FE - =

Deferred taxation IEFEFLIE - =
Net movement in the fair FREEAMEE KRGS E

value reserve during the RO AN EERESS

year recognised in other FEE

comprehensive income 152,386 36,581
Net movement in the fair BRBEERERNEHMEME

value reserve during the KEPEANDIAEE

year under overlay approach  f&EEEFE
recognised in other
comprehensive income 119,419 93,666
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18 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

18 MERRHE

Properties Office
|eased for Leasehold  equipment and Computers Motor
ownuse  improvements furniture equipment vehicles Total
ERMEENE  EENREE  BOREREA H Py EL ] it
HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
74T &1 -2 &1 74T 23
Cost A
A RRNRPZAZIA m = e [ 20
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note) FR(ERUBRSEN)E 68
) 24317 - 223 - - 296,540
At 1 January 2019 H-E2-1§-A-H 204317 25,963 12,457 134,367 726 467,830
Additions g 88,648 16,330 19,879 70878 - 195,735
Write off and disposal BiERE - [4818) (1,090) (189) - (6,097)
Exchange lignment ARERAFER - (19 (%2 (49) - (220)
bl REAFFAZIR s L ELE S gy BEY
At 1 January 2020 H-2-2E-f-5 382,965 37,356 31,194 205,007 726 657,248
Addtions g 99,324 2543 1218 129,088 - 260,873
Write off and disposal VENRE (33,284) (7,129 (1,59) (11,969) (126) (54,700)
Exchange alignment NEERNEER - 40 20 180 - 840
bty RERRRLZASR W . L T Lo
Accumulated depreciation SRR
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 H-2-15--H - 13,840 6,035 16,743 726 37,344
Charge for the year KEETH 106,866 7,351 4,591 11,861 - 130,689
Write off and disposal BEnRE - (4.818) (959) (166) - (5,943
Exchange alignment IHERAEER - 1) 28 1) - (170
vkl REAREZAZIR [ . L . g wo A
At 1 January 2020 W-E-5E-3- 106,886 16,282 9,639 28,387 726 161,920
Charge for the year REESH 121,436 10,698 6,169 13,081 - 151,384
Write off and disposal BiERE (28,940) 7109 (1,359) (11,956) (126) (30,079)
Exchange alignment NERRAEER - 22 17 156 - 585
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BET2A=1-H 199,382 20,160 14,600 29,668 - 263,810
Net carrying amount LT
At 31 December 2020 R-B-RETZA=1-H 29,623 3,710 2420 292,638 - 600,451
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AETZRA=1-R 216,079 21,074 21,555 176,620 - 495,328

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 and
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019

to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously as operating leases under
HKAS17.

THEMEBERAT
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18 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18 YIXRKRE#)
Right of use asset EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use FREEERENEZEWER WIREF
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BT :

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
—g2-8F —E-hF

+=A +=A
=t—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Ownership interests in leasehold land LA T RIgAESHIRH B A
and building held for own use with B FEZ LT ERE
remaining lease term of: R
— Less than 10 years — +EUR 249,623 276,079
Office furniture and equipment carried ZRENERANFNENPEAE
at depreciated cost EEINSE L 13,439 17,179
Computers equipment carried at RENERARSIRNE
depreciated cost B 3,119 5,321
266,181 298,579
The analysis of expense items in relation to STAEBENESHBEEREE AT :
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:
2020 2019
—EB-RE —Z-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FBT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use RENEEERNEREES
assets by class of underlying asset ENFEEAR
Properties leased for own use BRAMEEYE 121,436 106,886
Office furniture and equipment PRAERLKERE 4,231 2,802
Computers equipment BRI 2,202 2,044
127,869 111,732
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18 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

18 MERFRE#E)

Right of use asset (Continued) EREEE (A
2020 2019
i —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FBT
Interest on lease liabilities HEESENFIE 9,543 10,384
Expense relating to short-term leases ‘EHHEREMFEIEREE
and other leases with remaining HR=-Z2—h&E+=A
lease term ending on or before =+—HHZRIERN
31 December 2019 HEHEENER - 4,779
Expense relating to leases of low-value KEEEEHRE (EHEERE
assets, excluding short-term leases EEBERMNHENER
of low-value assets - 431

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were HK$99,800,000 (2019: HK$113,007,000).
This amount is primarily related to the capitalised
lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities as of 31
December 2020 are set out in notes 30 and 39,
respectively.

As of 31 December 2020, there are no leases
subject to variable lease payment arrangement.

RNEE - EHEEESL T 99,800,000
B (= & — i §:113,007,000%
) WM MR E RN EE R
TERHENEEVRERE -

BN -_ZE-ZEFE+-A=1+—HHEE
IE%,;.LtH,mﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂhE% FH A DMK
15 2 RIEMAIEE30H 39 ©

ai— o E'E—I— ﬁ + E ZIKE
EREERASESTREZHFNES -

19 STATUTORY DEPOSITS 19 ZERFK
2020 2019
—7— ﬂE :ﬁ—j‘[)fﬁ
HK$’OOO HK$°000
FHET FET
Statutory deposits EEF 5,721 3,243
The Group has deposited in the name of the AEBERBERB(ZFEAEHINET772)
Director of Accounting Services with a bank EFRLULEKXEBEZRBZMRITMNRZ AT
a sum of HK$1,551,000 (2019: HK$1,540,000) UREERFA—2£% 51,551,000
pursuant to section 77(2)(e) of the Hong Kong B (ZZE— N5 : 1,540,00058 7T ) KUK
Trustee Ordinance and also with the exchanges Ig o
and clearing house.
All of the statutory deposits are expected to be e LA EFERFEHNR —FRWE -
recovered after more than one year.
*%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁmﬂﬁ

=
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20

21

274

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

20

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material

BENTRE

BAHELFEANSE AT OEEE
£ o

2020 2019
—EC-EHF —E-h1EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FHET
Aggregate carrying amount of RFEMBERRPERMS
individually immaterial associate WAE R E AR RE
in the consolidated financial wE
statements 30,074 9,308
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEEREZEHE AT
share of those associates’ L
Profit from continue operation BHERE R 303 142
Other comprehensive income Hth 2w 1,912 (167)
Total comprehensive income ZHENEEEE 2,214 (25)
An associate with carrying amount of —RBR-ZE-NFRRREABEL LD
approximately HK$19 million that was considered AR E D EJ(EE HENE1,9008 &
a material associate in 2019 is considered not TIR-E_ZFRERARBBTERNEZ
material in 2020. A
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 ABARZERS
(a) Details of the subsidiaries principally (a) EYELREXEREEZHE
affected the results and assets of the "\T?’F
Group
The following list contains the details of THRAHIHBAEEMNESE - EE

the Company’s subsidiaries as at which
principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

FEEREAFENWEB LA
B BREBHEPEN  AFEEHR
MR EEBMR

Proportion of ownership interest

frERERLA
Particular of issued

Place of shares/registered Group’s

incorporation  and fully paid-up effective  Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business ~ capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities

BRATA BRTRG/ERR  AEENE  mK0F AWERY
AER BEny BERAWE1) RiER ek BF IZER
Yunfeng Asset Management Hong Kong 7,910,000 shares 100% - 100% Provision of assets management

Limited services

EREEEEARAA B 7,910,000 ki RUEEERRS
Yunfeng Securities Limited Hong Kong 133,000,000 shares 100% - 100% Securities broking
ERESERAA B 133,000,000 B B4

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 AMBARZER (&)
(a) Details of the subsidiaries principally (a) EREAREEEBEREEZHE
affected the results and assets of the "T?F(s)

Group (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FfrERREL A
Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Held by a
Name of company and business capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
s ARA BRARG /MR ARENE  AADE  AKELF
ARER ey BERE (Wi 1) Rk KB BE TEER
Yunfeng Financial Markets Limited Hong Kong 125,000,000 shares 100% 100% — Securities broking, securities placing
and underwriting, and provision
of consultancy and advisory
services
ERSRTEERAR &8 125,000,000 R 3 RHEL EHRERTH  BARZ
AR
Youyu Insurance Consultancy Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - 100% Insurance agency and consultancy
Limited service
ERARBREARAR B 100 R RERBR BRI
Youyu eKeeper Services Company Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100% Provision of employee stock
Limited ownership plan administration
BARRREARAR &8 1R RUSTHRHEER
Youyu Smart Technologies Hong Kong 7,500,000 shares 100% = 100% Provision of financial technology
Limited services
BRBENRARAA B 7,500,000 R4 RAS AR
Yunfeng Financial International ~ Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited
ERSRERERERAR &8 1R REZR
Yuvan Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% = 100% Investment holding
BEARAA &8 1R REER
Youyu Global Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% — Provision of administrative services
RARRERAA B 1REH RETHRS
YF Life Insurance International ~ Hong Kong 3,716,000,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Long term assurance business
Limited
EERRERERAA B 3,716,000, 000 R B3 RREARBEH
Protective Capital (International) ~ Hong Kong 78,610,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
Limited
RRERRERRAA B 78,610,000 KB4 RitGaRE
YF Life Services Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
B 2k RUtRERE
YF Life Guardian Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
B 2Rk Rt RS
YF Life Trustees Limited Hong Kong 73,000,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of trustee services
ERETARLT B 73,000,000 i 3 RUETRE
ERSRERBRAR
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

276

Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the

Group (Continued)

21 KB DRz s (4F)

(a) FEREXEBMEREAREEZWE
REFEE)

Proportion of ownership interest

frERERLA
Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Held by a
Name of company and business capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
LA BRORG/EMR  AKENE  AALE  HKELR
AER BEnd HERAWE1) RiER ek B TEER
YF Life Insurance Consultants Hong Kong 50,000 shares 69.8% = 69.8% Provision of agency services to non-
Limited life insurers
EERRERARAA B 50,000 k%4 BESRARARKRERH
YF Life Investors Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares 69.8% = 69.8% Provision of general services
BRYEERARAT B 5,000,000 R 3 RUEGERE
Beijing Yunfeng Universal PRC Registered capital 100% = 100% Provision of advisory service,
Investment Consultancy RMB70,000,000 marketing and promoting
Limited (note 2) Paid-up capital products and public relations
RMB48,022,624 services
IRERRRREFAARAT  HE AMERARE RUGEARE - SRAREERRD
(Wit2) 70,000,000 708 L BERS
#E5: AR%
48,022,624 10
Beijing Youyu Technologies PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Provision of internet and multimedia
Limited (note 3) RMB4,000,000 systems and application
Paid-up capital development
RMB1,600,000
YREAREERAANZS) %A AR ARR ERENSRRZGNRRERRE
4,000,000 8
4K AE%
1,600,000 70
Shenzhen Youyu Smart PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Technological development
Technologies Limited (note 3) RMB100,000,000 of computer software and
Paid-up capital hardware, technical consulting,
RMB8,010,000 technology services, database
and computer network services
RmEREENRARAA hE ifEs: AR% ERBARES CRARE R
(Hi3) 100,000,000 708 Ml BIEE - HEERERER
S8R \RY B
8,010,000 7t
Majik Cayman GP 1 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US1 each 100% = 100% Fund management
RERE 1REREE X2 ESER
kf
Majik Cayman GP 2 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US1 each 100% = 100% Fund management
RERE W§§§Eﬁ1%ﬁz ESER
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21 INTERESTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the
Group (Continued)

21 KB DRz s (4F)

(a) FEREXEBMEREAREEZWE
REFEE)

Proportion of ownership interest

FaRRitA
Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Held by a
Name of company and business capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
LA BRARG/ERE  ASENE  AA0T  AKELH
ARLR Eenk HERK Wit 1) RiEd o B TEER
Majik Cayman SPV 3 Limited Caymans Island  Authorised capital 100% - 100% Investment holdings
US$50,000 divided common
into 2,500,000 share
preferred shares
and 2,500,000
ordinary shares.
Each share is at
US$0.01 par value
each. 152,903
common shares
and 500,000
preferred shares
issued
HEHE REER50000£7 100% REZR
742,500,008 % LER
12,500,000 5
k- SREESH
001%7nAE CR
17152903 REBR
#1500,000 R E %R
Majik Access USD Fund 1 LP. ~ Caymans Island  US$114.2 million 65.7% - 65.7% Investment
HEHE 11REET e
Note 1: The class of shares held is ordinary Kzt - MREERBAN FERDZ
shares unless otherwise stated. BRI ALER -
Note 2: The company is registered as a wholly Hiaxo - ZATRBERREREITM
foreign-owned enterprise under the laws N BE X -
of the PRC.
Note 3: The company is registered as a limited B3 - ZANTBEREEESMA
company under the laws of the PRC. AIRAT °
Note 4: For the fund partnership entities, the Hizt4 - HRESEB X, 85K
balance represents capital commitment REREBAHSBLEN
being made by limited partners to the B ARTRER o
partnership.
ERSHEBERAR
—B-BEEH 217



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

21

278

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Information about material non-controlling (b)
interest

The following table lists out the information
relating to YF Life, the only subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”)
as at 31 December 2020. The summarized
financial information presented below
represents the amounts including intangible
assets identified on acquisition date before
any inter-company elimination.

21 KB DRz s (4F)

FEREXRFERER 2EHR

TREJEEBREREBANESR -
RIBEZEF+-A=+—8H " Z
NARAEEH—EEEREER
EEWHEBAR - TREJM
ERMELAEERN D EEHIKH
FNEE(EERKBRAEENE
FREE) -

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
NCI percentage FERERNBE DL 30.2% 30.2%
Total assets EERE 81,442,764 71,464,563
Total liabilities EERE (63,462,915)  (55,473,888)
Total net assets EEFEAR 17,979,849 15,990,675
Net assets attributable to NCI TR ERENEEFE 5,429,915 4,829,184
Goodwill attributable to NCI IR AE R (A 531,276 531,276
Carrying amount of NCI RS 2 BREE 5,961,191 5,360,460
Net earned premium and fee WmHRERERWA SR
income 4,264,282 3,354,164
Profit for the year REEGEF 1,094,939 897,827
Total comprehensive income T HINRBE 1,989,174 1,644,261
Profit allocated to NCI PEEFERER 2R 330,672 359,131
Dividend paid to NCI T FHERERZRE - —
Cash flows from operating activities JE& ZEELNRERE 2,641,621 2,062,354
Cash flows from investing activities REFEELMNRERE (5,513,177) (8,454,453)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZEBELMNRERE 2,644,761 3,923,824

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE 22 BHERHMELEE
ASSETS
(a) Goodwill (a) mE
2020 2019
—ECZEF —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost BRI
At 1 January R—B—H 1,829,046 1,829,046
Additions = - _
Written off V% - _
At 31 December R+=—HB=+—H 1,829,046 1,829,046
Accumulated impairment loss ZFTREREE
At 1 January n—HBA—H 3,484 3,484
Charge for the year REEXH - —
Written off V%] - _
At 31 December ] Rt=A=+—-8R 3484 ¢ 3,484
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December BR+=BA=+—H 1,825,562 1,825,562

The recoverable amount of the cash
generating units containing goodwill or
intangible assets arose from the acquisition
of YF Life. was determined based on the
value-in-use calculation. This calculation
uses cash flow projection which represents
what management believes is the best
estimate of what the cash generating units
are able to achieve in their business life.
The Directors determined the cash flow
projection based on past performance and
its expectation for market development. The
Directors believed any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
Management of the Group determines
that there are no impairments of its cash
generating units containing goodwill and
intangible assets.

In respect of insurance business, the
recoverable amount was determined based
on YF Life appraisal value, which consists
of the adjusted net worth plus the present
value of inforce business and the new
business value after cost of capital.

EH S MEMARLT

7

TEFR

AUREERREMELENEERE
B EENREEEENTRE
SHENDRBERBEEETEETE - Z
STELTAEREBESRETER - A
BARPEEEBIARASCELENE
HEE TSP ABERNREM
o EESREBARBEREHT
%Jﬁﬂ’]?ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂifﬁ%mb§§ﬁmj
EEERA ZEBRRNEMEE
ARSI EEFREAEER
LTWE%@ rEEEEERTE
HEEHERBHKEENREESL
B AREERE °

RRBEBMS > TWEEEHEIR
BEEBRRILEEEE  HPE
BEARFENLAENERERER
MBREARAN RN EBEE -
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

280

(a)

Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill arises primarily in respect of the
Group’s insurance business. Goodwill is
tested for impairment by comparing the
carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit, including goodwill, to the recoverable
amount of that cash-generating unit. If the
recoverable amount of the unit exceeds the
carrying amount of the unit, the goodwill
allocated to that unit shall be regarded as
not impaired. The recoverable amount is
the value in use of the cash-generating unit
unless otherwise stated.

The value in use is determined by calculating
as an actuarially determined appraisal value,
based on embedded value of the business
and the present value of expected future
new business of the cash-generating unit.
The present value of expected future new
business, covering a ten year period (in line
with industry practice), is based on financial
budgets approved by management. The
financial budgets reflect management’s
best estimate of future profit based on
historical experience and best estimate
operating assumptions such as premium and
expenses.

The key assumptions used in the embedded
value calculations include risk discount rate,
investment returns, mortality, morbidity,
persistency, expenses and inflation. In the
majority of instances these assumptions
are aligned to those assumptions detailed
in Section “Embedded Value”. The present
value of expected future new business
is calculated based on a combination of
indicators which include, among others,
taking into account recent production mix,
business strategy, market trends and risk
associated with the future new business
projections. The risk discount rates that is
used in the embedded value of the business
and the present value of expected future
new business is 8.75% (2019: 9%).

22

BMEREMELEE @)

(a)

[k 16
2528 el 16 ) &

BMEIERAREENREER -
BRBEREEEEVNREEER
(BB RBZREELEMNT
W m £ EEAEITEL R - BB ETRE
BRI - MRZEBEANITHDEE R
BBRZEMNKREEER  BoEkA
ZENNEEREARBE- R3S
BHAN  THEESRAREEE
ExHEREHR -

EREERREEBHRNSEEM
REELEETWEPARRHELN
BE BBEIEABEEENNML
BEMBEN FEXBHNEEZE
REEEMENMBERE  BET
FHR(STEEMN)NRB K
Ko MBRERRT EEERERE
PREBMHSCLETEMNEALERR
E?_Ei EMhEH HARRFBOREM

RNEBENEFFEANEIERSRE
FERBITEE RERK kT
EBREEFEM BANBE
PR c ERZHBRT » BLER
B[N EEE IE D Pl §9 B LR
BB o FEHIRRIEBNIRER
RE-—RIEETESEN B
EEEE(EhEE)BIENEEA
- EXEE mHEBRURER
RETEKFERABBIRER o 2%
HASEBEMBEHRRFTELNWE
BEFRERNEKITIREREBE8.75%
(ZB—NE :9%)°
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

22 BERHEHMEBELEE (&)

(b) Other intangible assets (b) HMtEREE
Trading Club Computer
Trade name rights ~ membership software Total
i1 R58 Rédes EREH hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr Fér
(restated)
(Bit)
At cost BRHE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 78,910 6,550 2,930 42,311 130,701
Additions gE = = - 233 233
Written off and reclassified BERENE - (2.550) - - (2,550)
Exchange alignment PNERRIEER - - - (14) (14)
At 31 December 2019 and -hETZB=t1-A
1 January 2020 }1_2 £F-5-A 78,910 4,000 2,930 42,530 128,370
Additions e - - - 45 45
Writen off B - - - (31,291) (31,291)
Exchange alignment MBRENEER - - - 49 49
At31 December 2020 b W-B-BF-A=1-8 B0 e 20 o nss i
Accumulated amortisation and ~ EFHEEFAE :
impairment:
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H = 6,000 - 18,247 24,247
Charge for the year REELH - - - 8,627 8,827
Written off i - (2,500) - - (2,500)
Exchange alignment NEBRAEER - - = 4 @
At 31 December 2019 and EA ¢+ R=+-H
1 January 2020 ZE-f-H = 3,500 - 21,072 30,672
Charge for the year ﬂiﬁEiﬁ - - - 6,538 6,538
Written off i - - - (23,468) (23,468)
Exchange alignment ABRENEER - - - 14 14
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+-/=1-H = 3,500 - 10,156 13,656
Carrying amount B
At 31 December 2020 R-E-2E+A=1-A 78,910 500 2930 1177 83,517
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+=A=1-A 78,910 500 2930 15,458 97,798

EH S MEMARLT
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE

ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Other intangible assets (Continued)

282

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
two (2019: two) trading rights in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and one (2019: one) trading right
in the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”), of which one
trading rights in the Stock Exchange and
one trading right in the Futures Exchange
were fully amortised as at 31 December
2010. The Group has one (2019: one) club
membership with indefinite useful life similar
to the trading rights.

Trade name acquired in the acquisition of YF
Life, which is subject to annual impairment
test. The relief-from-royalty approach is
adopted to determine the fair value of trade
name. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group reassessed
the assumptions of this approach. As at
31 December 2020, the valuation of the
Chinese trade name is determined based on
the relevant value of new business estimated
by YF Life. The trade name is considered by
the management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trade name will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite.

22 BERHEHMEBELEE (&)

(b)

HiBREE (&)

BE-Z-_ZEF+-A=+—80"
AEEFE2EEBHERS AT (8
RFF)ZREE(ZZE—hE :2M/)
P1EEEBEHERZFAERQ T
(BRI Z2X5R(ZE—-HLE:
118)  EP BRI ERZER
HRXFAN1EXSZEE - —ZF
tZA=t—Bx2##E - A5EH
BE1AALTSEER(ZE—H
Fo1{E) HEAHRERZER
L o

WEEBRREHERNEE ALK
FERENSE KA ESHESR
THREEEENAAEBEE REHE
R AEBEEBEHTEZ
FENBHZR R-ZE-_=F+=-A
=+—HB FEBEENGEDRE
EBRRBRETTNEETERERE
EoAEEEEBRAZETEARS
ERFEAFER  EATEHESER
HiABRERANEHEELER - &
BEEHFASTEERERZAT
S -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23 VALUE OF BUSINESS ACQUIRED

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

23 WIRXKEE

2020 2019
—E-%F  —FAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January nH—H—H 10,057,446 11,075,662
Amortisation for the year IR RN (324,472) (135,208)
. 9,732,974 | 10,940,454
Effect of shadow accounting allocated HFE:2EWEDAEBER
to fair value reserve B E (720,403) (883,008)
At 31 December R+=-ZA=+—H 9,012,571 10,057,446
24 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS 24 BERBERERX
2020 2019
“Eo%F “EF
Insurance  Investment Insurance ~ Investment
contracts  contracts Total  contracts  contracts Total
RkEEE  RERR 4% RBER  RERR k]
HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FE7 FE7 FE7 FEn FEr FEn
Mldanary ] RoA-R e 4ot 1128980 224487 6002 280450
Amount deferred ELeH 1,534,394 26,131 1,560,525 1,307,194 28,797 1,335,991
Amortisation for the year AEERH (493,345) 983 (492,362) (287,772 494 (287,219)
I 104 27114 1068163 REAISSCERSEREI G
Effect of shadow accounting allocated ~ HF i REAAEERENZE
to fair value resenve (35395  (30550)  (265946)  (132390) (17809  (150,192)
At 31 December Rt=A=1-R 1,917,142 14,055 1,931,197 1,111,489 17,491 1,128,980

The amount of deferred acquisition costs
expected to be recognised as expense after
more than one year is HK$1,459,912,000 (2019:
HK$827,819,000).

EHEHEMERAT
—B-TEER

—_—

EEREESRA2EHEESR —F%
WA E H1,459,912,0008 T (= &
—h & : 827,819,000/87T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

25 INVESTMENTS 25 RE
At fair value At fair
through other  value through
comprehensive profit or Amortised
income loss cost Total

WOABEGE NAAEENE
BEEHFA  BHEEBHA

22 EhE i BERK g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2020 ZECEE
Debt securities: EHES
— Unlisted - Ftm 20,608,849 2,540,509 21,508,917 44,653,275
Mortgage loans BRER - - 6,420,273 6,420,273
R 20608849 2540509 27924190 51,073,948
Equity securities: Eiws
— Listed i - 287,363 - 287,363
- Unlisted frote @) kLR L O - 101,787
. 809 st - 389,150
Fund Investment and others: EeNERE
- Unlisted (rotef@) - - kenibEE) L - 51605
Unit trusts; BT
~Unlisted - o - grendot - 8787401
Total & 20,686,878 14,196,636 27,924,190 62,807,704
Market value of listed securities EiEsNTRE - 287,363 - 287,363

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
284 Annual Report 2020



25 INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
b B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 R&E#E)

At fair value
through other At fair
comprehensive  value through Amortised
income  profit or loss cost Total
URMEBETE UAAEEHER
EECTEVN ] D) \
Eft2ENE el BERx aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FEr FAT FEr
2019 “E-0E
Debt securiies: fEfES
— Unlisted ok i 16,040,615 2,571,245 18,511,569 37,123,429
Mortgage loans HRER - - 6,881,023 6,881,023
e UGG B ASRRRE LR
Equity securities: BEHS
B CELEQ) R R T AT
Fund Investment and others: ESAIEMRE:
. CRERREE) S L o A
Unit trusts: Bif5it
o R o ey o GEERl
Total EE 16,117,912 13,311,739 25,392,592 54,822,243
Market value of listed securities IhEENhAE - - - -

ERSRERERAT
—ETFFR
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

25

286

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In 2018, the Group has entered a strategic
fund management agreement with another well-
established financial institution. By sharing the
operating and financing decision making power
through the agreement, the Group is no longer
considered to be the principal of Majik Access USD
Fund 2 LP. As a result, the Group elects to measure
its 34.04% investment holding in Majik Access
USD Fund 2 LP held through a venture capital
organisation, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary,
at fair value through profit or loss as management
measures the performance of this jointly controlled
entity on a fair value basis and exempted from
applying the equity method. The valuation process
and fair value information for the joint venture
measured at fair value through profit or loss set
out in note 5. During the year, the Group has
made an injection of approximately HK$18,693,000
to the joint venture. As of 31 December 2020,
the carrying value of the jointly controlled entity
amounted to approximately HK$107,000,000 (2019:
HK$100,000,000).

Investments of HK$7,542,647,000 (2019:
HK$5,609,487,000) have been pledged in favour of
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to guarantee the
technical reserves in accordance with the Macau
Insurance Ordinance.

The portion of the investments that is expected to
be recoverable within one year is HK$11,517,210,000
(2019: HK$8,030,003,000) and the portion that is
expected to be recoverable after more than one year
is HK$51,290,494,000 (2019: HK$46,792,240,000).

25 R&E#E)

REZB—NF > AEFHES -REAN
SRKESSTERESETERE B
B, ERENUBAFE NEH
REBTBREABREETEL2BENES
A FHit - REBREBUAAEBENER
HB BT ABENA A ERBRERE AR
AR (BEE2ENBEAR)EEREAR
FEETHSOEN34.04%RE  BAE
BEUAABEEEGEZHREEHER
WEE HEGEEKRRERAES L&
ERENGEERAERAABEENUA

ESFE - RER AEECAGEEE
EHEH18,693,0008 L BE-T=-F
F+-A=t+—H K HEZEHEBHEE
E#4 % 107,000,000 T(=F — fL F:
100,000,000&7T) °

5 #7,542,647,00058 T(=F — 1L F :
5,609,487,000 & 7t ) {9 1% & B 3K 15 FAE Y
SHMEEF 0 UWRFBZRBCRFIREIGEH)
EEEMEES -

i —FRAATREBNEERD B
11,517,210,00058 T(= & — h & :
8,030,003,0007& t) » FEFt—F & A WKE
HE8 D £ 51,290,494,0008 T (ZE—
F 1 46,792,240,00038 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 R&E(#E)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (#)
(d)  The following table set out the credit quality analysis (d TREIITUQXAEBETEEEEEHTA
of financial assets measured at FVOCI (recycling) Hib2mE W= (TEE ) K AR A2
and at amortised cost. Unless specifically indicated, HNEMEENEEEEZ DI - RIFHIF B
the amounts in the table represent gross carrying S BRARPARESHEAREALE - HR
amounts. For explanations of the terms ‘12-month MizEl AR 12E B FAEHEHABL ] [EAE
ECL’, ‘lifetime ECL’ and ‘credit-impaired’, see note FEABHEABAINERESEARE
2(t). BEIN@ES RIfEE2(®) °
2020 2019
2203 22-1%
Investment grade Non-investment grade Investment grade Non-investment grade
RERH FRER RER #hEms
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL ~ Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL ~ Lifetime ECL
fmonth notcredit-  credt-  12-month notcredit- credit- 12-month notcredit-  creat-  12-month notcredt-  credit-
ECL  impared  impaired ECL impairment  impaired Total ECL  impaiment  impalred ECL  impaiment  impalred Total
BEREE  2EREN BEGEY  BERES BEGEE  2EEY BEGEE  2EES
BHEREX EARRER BHERE: BERRER RHERE% RORRER RHEREX ROEREZ
#R1BR  -ABE -BRE AR0BR -ARE -ER #R1BR  -ARE -BRE ARnBR ARt -2
BHRRB%  GRME  GAWE EARRE:  ERMME  GRME B BHCREX FREE GRME BHGREX  RREE  GRNE a8
HK$ 000 T7
Financial assetsat ~ HEHAA RS
amortised cost REE
Unlisted debt securites % L 1316317 - - 103,645 124,241 8447 21572620  18205,128 - - 255,666 55,04 597 18,521,870
Mortgage loan biti-E 5,286,860 - - 10578 103329 301 6436218 6,721,762 - - 161460 - - 688322
Gross camying amount - KEAE %802117 - 119318 21540 50748 28008838 24,926,885 - - e 55,004 597 25,405,092
Less: Loss dlowence . BXEE 35,901) - - (158 (10937) (36,226) (64,648) (7,38) - - (1,309) (2,697) (1,110) (12,500)
Motisdcost  BEAA 56276 - -G TGS BE0 N0 25850 - I AT 1)
Financial assetsat ~ HAAEENERR
FVOCI recycing) ~ BEFARHAE
hE(TER)NE
Ei i
Fancilassets et~ WAAEENERE
FVOCI fecycing) ~~ #BiFAZKAE
h&(TER)NE
Ei
Unlised debt secures % LR R5ER
1085 camying 48
amount 13,639,898 - - 2606625 208,559 62087 16,517,169 11,808,079 - - 408330 165,540 40068 16,067,007
Less: Loss alowance 5 EXER (31,169) - - nom (19919 (a5M)  (106,736) (3,736) - - 867 Q1569 (10910 (39,89
Motsedoost B 13608729 - - ONNS MBS0 M AN 1180438 = -GG 1B W 180
Cayngamout-  EEE-DAEE
fair value: 17,616,965 - - 2814067 230026 4901 20608849 11,797,538 - - 40087 164743 38512 16,040,615
EEREHEEERAR
S T
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®BE(#E)

288

Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (#)
(d)  (Continued) (dy (#&)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit — credit —
12-month ECL impairment impaired Total
2ERES 2EGES
AR12{8A EMEREX-  BHGREA-
EEERE:  AREGREE  CREGRAE EE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FiEr
Debt Securities at amortised cost; NESRRTENER RS
Balance as at 1 Jan 2019 RZB-NE-B-AMEE 17,556 2,179 = 19,73
Net (decrease)/increase in loss allowance BERDNBXERSFE(ED) /EE
recognised in current year, net of those NREERREINELE
derecognised upon settlement (11,063) 518 1,110 (9,435)
Balance as at 31 Dec 2019 REE-NFTZA=T-BER 6,493 2,697 1,110 10,300
Net (decrease)/increase in loss allowance EEEANERERSTE(HD) /BB
recognised in current year, net of those NBEERALEANERE
derecognised upon settlement 23,957 7,433 21,012 58,402
Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 R-E-SE+-A=1-BHEH 30,450 10,130 28,122 68,702
Mortgage loan at amortised cost: NESRRTENERER
Balance s at 1 Jan 2019 RZB-NE-B-ANEGE 1,114 - = 1,114
Net increase in loss allowance recognised in EERANBAERSENFE  NREER
current year, net of those derecognised upon KIBANEXE
settlement 1,086 - - 1,086
Balance as at 31 Dec 2019 REE-NF+ZA=t-BHER 2,200 = = 2,200
Net increase in loss allowance recognised in EERDNBAERSENTE  NREER
current year, net of those derecognised upon ALRANELE
settlement 4,833 807 8,106 13,746
Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 RZE-BETZA=T-ANER 7,083 807 8,106 15,946
Debt Securities at fair value through other NAREBHEEHSHTARBRENRN
comprehensive income EfES:
Balance as at 1 Jan 2019 RZE-NE-A-BHER 10,053 2,840 - 12,893
Net (decrease)/increase in loss allowance EERANERERSTE(HY) /ENE
recognised in current year, net of those NREERAEINELE
derecognised upon settlement (2,640) 18,729 10,910 26,999
Balance as at 31 Dec 2019 RZE-NFTZA=T+-BiER 7413 21,569 10,910 39,692
Net (decrease)/increase in loss allowance BEEINEXERSFEY) /EE
recognised in current year, net of those NBEERALEANERE
derecognised upon settlement 40,833 (1,650) 26,661 65,844
Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 RZZZBETZA=1-BHER 48,246 19,919 37,571 105,736
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®BE(#E)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (#)
(e) The maturity profile of the Group’s debt securities (e) AEEMNEBELFZRERREWRHZHE
and loans and receivables is as follows: BRWT -
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Fixed maturities due in [E] 7E 2 H 2R pR
— 1 year or less —1ERHEE 2,556,450 328,884
— 1 to 5 years = | ZEH4E 8,100,668 4,207,276
— 5to 10 years = 5% 10%E 11,017,351 11,157,433
— More than 10 years — 10F Lk 22,978,806 21,429,836
44,653,275 37,123,429
Mortgage loans due in 1R E R E B HA PR
— 1 year — 14 172,844 243,807
— 2 years — 2% 195,744 308,762
— 3 years — GjaE 778,944 202,481
— 4 years — 45 362,620 800,110
— 5 years — 54 724,418 364,593
— More than 5 years — 5F Bk 4,185,703 4,961,270
6,420,273 6,881,023
EHRSREEERAT
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

25

290

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Interests in collective investment schemes

(i

(i)

Included in financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss on the consolidated
statement of financial position are certain
investments in collective investment schemes
which have been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls these schemes.
These collective investment schemes include
investments in unit trusts and limited liability
partnership established by third parties. These
schemes provide the Group with a variety of
investment opportunities through managed
investment strategies.

Owing to the passive nature of these
investments, the maximum exposure to loss
from these interests is limited to the associated
equity price risk (see note 5) and the capital
commitments. The maximum exposure to loss,
which represents the maximum loss that the
Group could be required to report as a result of
its involvement with these collective investment
schemes regardless of the probability of
the loss being incurred, is equivalent to the
carrying amount of these investments (see note
5).

In addition, the Group’s subsidiary, YF Life
Trustees Limited is the sponsor of Mass
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (‘MPF
scheme’) as specified in the respective trust
deeds. Management fee and trustee fee
income that the Group recognised in profit or
loss in return for the administration services
provided to MPF Scheme that the Group
sponsored amounted to HK$28,452,000 (2019:
HK$26,334,000) for the year.

The policyholders invest directly into such MPF
scheme, as such, the Group did not transfer
any of its own assets into these schemes
during the reporting period. Management
actively monitor the compliance with the
respective regulation requirements in order to
minimize losses arising from reputational risk
and regulatory compliance risk.

25 R&E#E)

BaE - (4&)

(®

RESRETBINES

(i

(i)

EEEREMBRRRDUARE
EFfEEESHFARENEH
EEREEAREFETHELR
& EERENRAESRENE
PURERI R R ORTE AR 5 L5
MEBERE - ELEESREIE
BERE=ZFEINEMLEENER
EEERBLEENRE - BLESEE
BEEREXBRASEREHRZIER
aHE -

HRZERENEB T ELRE
B9 B K8 K B B i O 2 PR A AR BA Y
REEKERSEKNES) MEAR
B BERBXARREAEER
SHELEESREEMEAEZ RN
RREBX TNRAEEBRNAEE
TR ZRAEERELEREN
SREE (BBIMEES) o

o REBHMEBAT — BE
EEERATAHEERSTERZY AR
ezl Nl R K N = R
(RBESE DMWERA KNE
EEEETEANEEERZTA
ER FAFRARAEEREN
BESEREETHRREN DR
%28,452,0008 T(=Z & — 1L & :
26,334,000 5T) °

REFBAEERENZBEE
2 Bt AEBRERE AL E
BHEMEEEBREZSTE B
EEEAREEHEAREEERNG
BER UBERDEERRME
ERRAMERNEBE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®RE(#E)

Notes: (Continued) Kiat o (#)

(9) The unlisted equity security under FVOCI (non- (90 UAAREESTEEEZFHFAAHMEEK
recycling) is perpetual capital issued by China wH(FPAEE)MNELTRABSRERS
CITIC Bank International Limited registered in Hong MR ERTEENRERITHAERER
Kong and engaged in banking business. The Group AEKEBEER - REBKHEEKEERN
designated its investment in the perpetual capital at REEEAUARBESTTEEEEETA
FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held for Hih2EW= (R AER)  RAZRKRER
strategic purposes. Dividend of HK$3,294,000 was HAERENEEN - TR LEBERED
received on this investment during the year (2019: U BY iR £.3,294,000/8 T(=Z&F— N &F :
HK$3,334,000). 3,334,000787T) °

(h) At year end, the carrying amounts of the Group’s (hy RERK X REBEAZELFNENETEES
financial assets being accounted for under the FEENRMSEN TR °

overlay approach are shown as below.

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Financial assets measured at FVPL DARBEFEBEEEHTASE

HERNERERE
Unlisted equity/partnership fund FLHmER EEESRE
investment 1,814,439 1,569,168
Unlisted unit trust investment I EHEMNEFE 871,781 1,078,639
Unlisted debt securities FEmERES 2,547,879 2,544,432
Listed securities RS 287,363 =
5,621,462 5,192,239
EHRSREEERAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®BE(#E)

Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (#)

(h)  (Continued) (hy (#&)

HRUBELEREARNUQAAEBETE
BHEEZBFAZHERNEREE B2
NERFEEEMREEERAEBNER
T EEHFERFITHERANT :

For financial assets at FVPL being accounted under
the overlay approach, the amounts charged to the
consolidated income statements reported with and
without overlay adjustments for the year ended are

292

stated as below:

31 December 2020
R-Z-Z%F+-B=t-H

Overlay  Under HKFRS 9
approach (adjusted by Under
Under HKFRS 9 adjustments  overlay approach) HKAS 39
REZRHE
REEEHH BERALH REEREH
BEEREOH LS (BELHE) RRIE0F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK $°000
FE7 FET TE7 FE7
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) of fair ~ REEEAAAEEHEEEEDH ABREN
value through profit o loss financial asset SREENE/(BX)
under overlay adjustment on:
— Unlisted partnership fund investment - FLHRBESRE 62,982 (62,982) - -
— Unlisted unit trust investment and listed - FEmEERRLmES
securities 89,404 (89,404) - -
— Unlisted debt securities - ¥ LnERES (32,967) 32,967 - -
Total o 119,419 (119,419) - -
31 December 2019
RZF-NE+ZA=1-R
Overlay  Under HKFRS 9
approach (adjusted by Under
Under HKFRS 9 adjustments  overlay approach) HKAS 39
REZEHTHE
REZENHS FEEAER REEEST
BERAEIR BaiRt (&R EHE30%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK $:000
FA7 FiEn FA7 FAT
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) of fair ~ REZANAAEEHEARETH AR
value through profit or loss financial asset SRERNE/(BX):
under overlay adjustment on:
— Unlisted partnership fund investment - FLTABESRE (369) 369 - -
— Unlisted unit trust investment - ¥ EmEffEH 36,950 (36,950) -
— Unlisted debt securities - FEHERERS 57,085 (57,085) - -
Totel 3 93,666 (93,666 - -
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26 ADVANCE REINSURANCE PREMIUMS

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

26 ANBRERE

Analysis of movement in advance reinsurance B RERESH SN
premiums

2020 2019
—E-®F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
At 1 January R—A—H 1,455,458 10,652
Other movements H {52 &) (165,871) 1,444,806
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 1,289,587 1,455,458

Advance reinsurance premiums are expected to
be recovered within one year.

27 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE
RECEIVABLES

ANBREFRERH TR -FAKRE -

27 EWRERBREBEERER

2020 2019

—B-BF —F-N\E

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Loans to policyholders MREFEAEEHNER 2,795 2,014
Direct premium receivables W EERE 4,581 4,743
Reinsurance receivables FE K FE AR B BR X 3,748,377 1,572,786

3,755,753 1,679,543

At 31 December 2020, none of the insurance
and reinsurance receivables were past due or
impaired (2019: none).

At 31 December 2020, the amount of insurance
and reinsurance receivables expected to
be settled after more than one year is
HK$3,467,147,000 (2019: HK$1,231,388,000).

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

R-ZB-ZTFE+-ZH=+—H - EWRE
EXBRERRYABHIBE=ZZ
—NF :E) o

RZBE-ZZTFE+=-A=+—H ' BHR
—FREFNERRERBRBIERKN
& %8 53,467,147,000/8 T(=Z&F — N
£ :1,231,388,000/87T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

28

294

OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME

28 HttEWRARETIRA

2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other accounts receivable arising from ESELELENEM
securities brokerage: FEWERRR -
— Cash clients - BHeEF 71,074 50,200
— Margin clients - REEEF 10,673 11,386
— Clients for subscription of new — I TRRBHRNEF
shares in IPO 10,000 949
— Clearing house, brokers, fund — BEfT - BeE - ES
managers and dealers EEANRGE 60,560 52,908
152,307 115,443
Other accounts receivable arising from 53 & FERI RIS &= £ #Y
consultancy and advisory services H b FE UL BR TR 1,134 2,242
Other service fees receivables H b fE W iR 7% & 7,228 9,504
160,669 127,189
Less: allowance for credit losses B S|k (1,791) (2,743)
158,878 124,446

There is no balance of other accounts receivable
from consultancy and advisory services for on-
going advisory projects which have not been
billed.

The fair value of other accounts receivable
approximates its carrying amount.

BREERARNWITEAAEE NWEAR
BRI RFEBREBRRGEAE -

HibtBWIRAR 22 R BERER

%o

AR EAE
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28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis of other accounts
receivable

The ageing analysis of other accounts
receivable net of allowance for credit losses
as of the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

28 HttEWRR ST WA ()
(a) EAbFEWERM 2 MRk D AT

R 3R & B R 2 H i B U AR 7R (0 BR
FREX)REIMUT :

2020 2019
—EDEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Current o R® 154,912 RN 121,976
Less than 1 month past due BHE1EANUT 1,711 1,796
1 to 3 months past due BE1Z3MEA 2,033 74
More than 3 months past due EHI3MEA L 222 600
Amounts past due BHSEE 3,966 2,470
158,878 124,446

The Group has procedures and policies
to assess the client’s credit quality and
defines credit limits for each client. All client
acceptance and credit limit are approved
by designated approvers according to the
client’s credit worthiness.

Other accounts receivable which are past
due but not impaired

Included in the Group’s other accounts
receivable balance are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,965,000
(2019: HK$2,470,000) which are past due
at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not made provision for
impairment loss.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

AEBERBERFRBRFEEES
FrEEEE  UREREFZE
BRFE - IEEMEFZ2EERE
ERBAKEERRAKBEES
EzfEREd -

(b) BEMERBEZHEMERIRK

REE 2 HMEWRRBREEER
H#{E%3,965,000 8 T(=F— 1
£ 1 2,470,0008 7T ) < H ft fE UL Bk
o RERERBSHRCES
ézli%ﬁ?\liﬁﬁﬁtfﬁthﬁfﬁﬁﬂéﬁé
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B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)

296

(b) Other accounts receivable which are past

(c)

due but not impaired (Continued)

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
amount due from cash clients which are
past due but not impaired represented
client trades which are unsettled beyond the
settlement date.

No other accounts receivable from
corporate clients (2019: Nil) and amount
of HK$3,965,000 of other fee receivable
(2019: HK$2,470,000) which are past due
but not impaired represent other accounts
receivable arising from provision of
corporate finance, consultancy and advisory
services and other financial services which
have not yet been settled and aged by
their invoice date. No impairment loss was
provided for these balances as these clients
are trade counterparties with sound credit
rating and/or reputation.

Impairment of other accounts receivable

The Group has a policy for allowance
for credit losses which is based on the
evaluation of collectability, ageing analysis
of accounts and management’s judgement
including the creditworthiness, collaterals
and the past collection history of each
client.

28 HEWRA K EFTWAE)

(b)

(c)

€ 380 1B AR O B 2 EL £t FE AR K
(&)

BE-ZE-EF+-A=+t—-HBK
—E-hE+=-HA=+—-8" %A
RERSEFZOBBERRERE
WEER - RERSEF 2B EAE
RAEEBEREREREEBBRED
REEZEFER °

RERBLEEZEF2HMEWER
R(ZBE-NE - BEBR) B
3,965,00078 Tt WY © 3 HA 1B K R
BEHMERBR(ZZE - N F:
2,470,000/8 ) I8 IR I ERME
AR - BHARBREMESRREE
S EHMEWERR  HRZZHHEH
BEMASERCIE - BRZE
BEFACEFLER SBERFZ
TREF MU EMZSHEEH
REEBRE -

H At FE W BR AR 2 R (E

AEERBERERBEZEE
BRABRKR AW E T - BRIBZ
RRONMREEBRHEREFZE
B R B 1 UK R 8 2
RER -
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28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of other accounts receivable
(Continued)

The movement of the allowance for life time

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

28 HttEWRR ST WA ()
(c) EfbFEWRR ZmMIE (&)

FREEFEHAHERARLRZE

credit impaired losses during the year is as BEFRARERABREEZSOT ¢
follows:

2020 2019

—BEHF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At 1 January R—B—H 2,743 1,507
Provision for impairment loss ERERBEBE A

recognised 156 1,236

Amount recovered during the year S RIREEEE (550) =

Amount written off 2 EEE (558) —

At 31 December Rt+t=HA=+—H 1,791 2,743

Amount of HK$658,000 (2019: HK$502,000)
relates to credit impaired other accounts
receivable arising from the business of
dealing in securities. HK$1,134,000 (2019:
HK$2,241,000) relates to credit impaired
other accounts receivable arising from
the business of consultancy and advisory
services.

Balance with related parties

At 31 December 2020, the balance of
other service fee receivables includes
fund management fee of approximately
HK$2,337,000 (2019: HK$132,000) due from
a joint venture of the Group.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

658,000 (= & — i F:
502,0008 7T ) S R EFER 5 EK
MEENE BB KRERMERER
M ° 1,134,000 8 T (= — L F :
2,241,0007/8 ) 5 BB A ERE

HARBEERZAREEENE
fEN R BES ©

(d) EREEEEA L Z24&8R

R-ZZE-_EF+=-A=+—8"
HWEWREENEHRBELNA
2,337,000/ (= & — hu F:
132,000 BT ) WERAEE —REG
EhENESEEE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

29

298

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 29 HhEWRIE RERBARE
PREPAYMENT
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FET
Utility and rental deposits KEBREAZES (i) 46,549 42,662
Loans to agents and staff BREREIEENER 19,723 32,379
Accrued investment income FESTIRE WA 524,004 421,719
Other receivable from non- Hib W — KM E A a3k
controlling shareholders of a ERRRORIE
subsidiary 8,504 18,634
Prepayment, other deposits and FB{fFIE - Hthik & R FE
receivables WFRIE 265,483 107,744
Derivative financial instruments #7442/ T E 99,028 12,605
963,291 635,743
Less: provision for impairment & : Efth B GRIEREE
of other receivable BeEE (i) (8,652) (8,232)
954,639 627,511
Notes: Voizan
()  The amount of utility and rental deposits expected (i) KEEBREVAZRSTEHBER-—FE2KE

to be recovered after more than one year is
HK$37,575,000 (2019: HK$35,155,000).

(i)  Impairment of other receivables (ii)

Other receivable of HK$8,652,000 (2019:
HK$8,232,000) is fully impaired as the recoverability
of the balance is considered uncertain after credit
assessment performed by management.

&2 437,575,000 B T(=F— N F :
35,155,000 7T) °

HL{th W SR B3R B

A #8,652,000/8 t(= & — L &F:
8,232,000 8 5t ) M E M ENFRIBEE 2 EUR
B FRAEEBETEETGEERBHE
KR U= M R E ©

The movement of the allowance for credit losses FR2ZEHREREFHNT :
during the year is as follows:
2020 2019
—EEBH —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January H—HB—H 8,232 8,976
Provision of impairment loss recognised ERERREEEZEE 4,291 =
Amount written off [Ehiaki kot (3,900) (744)
Exchange impact EREE 29 —
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 8,652 8,232
(i)  Except for those mentioned above in (i), all of the (ii)y  BRESX()FRAtE I - FrE E MW FRTES

other receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

AE—FRRE o
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B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 RERBELEEEE - FEHRZ

BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK
BALANCE — TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS

R=

18 B B E R 1T FRAMRAT R

B - ERERBIRF

2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
k3 FET FET
Bank balance — trust and RITHE — FARBY
segregated accounts RE
Deposit with bank RITFER 747,995 478,619
Less: impairment allowance B OREZEE (iii) (154) (154)
(i) 747,841 478,465
Fixed bank deposits with REHRZN =P WRT
original maturity over EHFER
3 months
Deposit with bank RITER 236,733 385,417
Less: impairment allowance B R EEE (iii) - -
236,733 385,417
Cash and cash equivalent RERRESEEEE
Deposit with bank RITIER (i) 150 300
Fixed bank deposits with RERRD =8 A WiR1T
original maturity less than EHFER
3 months 2,522,058 524,567
Cash at bank and in hand IRITRFHEES 1,534,640 1,644,998
Less: impairment allowance B OREER (i) (114) (114)
Cash and cash equivalent in the #ZHREMBMRRAERATHES
statement of financial position REEZEEER 4,056,734 2,169,751
Notes: Kt

(i) The Group maintains segregated accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ money arising
from its normal course of business of the regulated
activities. The cash held on behalf of clients is
restricted and governed by the Securities and
Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

(i)  The Group has made deposit with a bank as security
deposit for bank overdraft facilities.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

()

(i)

AEERRURBHELBEIRS - UEE
HERZHRERDXEBBRENELEZEF
HRE - KBFFEZREZ(BERAE
HOIT 2R ERBE(FEFRE))RAUR
FIRHRE ©

AEMERRTEXEERREBLES
BT °
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B 7% 3 3% B &%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 RERBELEEEE - FEHRZ
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=ZERNERRITERMEITER
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK B — GEkBIRF(#E)

BALANCE — TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BtaE - (48)
(iliy During the period, the movement of 12-month ECL (i) HEAAARZK12{E B FEHERELREEZE N
provision is as follows: T
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 268 352
Reversal of impairment loss recognised AR EREZERE - (84)
Amount written off EHEEEE - =
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 268 268
(ivy The Group has pledged fixed deposits of (ivy ANEBECEH A 2309,648,0008 T(=F
HK$309,648,000 (2019: HK$269,250,000) to banks — L : 269,250,000 7Tt ) B E E 7 KX
in favour of the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to EHRBEMFSHEER  UWRIFRRBCR
guarantee the technical reserves in accordance with PR B A5 {51 M H 3 i (2 48 o

the Macau Insurance Ordinance.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED

BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL

MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK
BALANCE — TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(a)

Reconciliation to liabilities arising from
financing activities for disclosure purpose

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

30 RERREE

R=
B -

(a)

- REHRZ
;—7—(/1%*[] RITER

FEEH
18 B B EHRAT
FERBELK

HAREENHRBREETHELENE
BETHER

The table below details changes in the TRHFMAEEREMEZTHNEG
Group’s liabilities from financing activities EEE BERERIBRSE-
including both cash and non-cash changes. METHEEINEBARESRER
Liabilities arising from financing activities ARREREZELAEBNEER
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or ERERTI2EARETHR SR
future cash flows will be, classified in the ENEE -
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement
as cash flows from financing activities.
Policyholders’ Bank  Preference Lease Shareholder’s
deposit  borrowings shares liabilities loan Total
REKHA
W BT Bk HERE REER 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA7L TAT TAT FAT FAT FA7
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 38,013,370 1,198,226 315,588 15,254 - 39,542,438
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RR(BANBREEN)Z 165 - = - 308,301 - 308,301
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nE-B-H 38,013,370 1,198,226 315,588 323,555 - 39,850,739
Change from financing cash flow: E&RLHzEE :
Proceeds from issue of preference  MEBAARTELR2HES
share by a subsidiary - - 76,063 - - 76,063
Payment made to lease liabilitles ~ XAEEEEHE - - - (116,471) - (116,471)
Policyholders' account deposits for REFEAZBEREZEF RS
investment contracts 4,931,169 - - - - 4,931,169
Policyholders’ account withdrawals RESE Az REARZRFRR
for investment contracts (1,729,217) - - - - (1,729,217)
Drawdown of bank loans RRRTER = 1,406,800 = = - 1,406,800
Repayment of a bank loan BERTER - (1,106,800) - - - (1,106,800)
Other borrowing cost paid ENEMEERA - (65,484) - - = (65,484)
Total change in financing cash flows BEEER S22 HEE 3,201,952 234,516 76,063 (116,471) - 3,396,060
Drawndown of shareholder’s loan ~ ERIERAASENEENRRE
settled directly outside of the RO 4148
Group as disclosed in (note 41) - - - - 1,561,444 1,561,444
Net change in lease obligation BERENTED - - - 113,008 - 113,008
Finance charge and effective interest BEE B RERAIS T
expenses - 66,016 - 10,384 2,618 79,018
Fair value change MEESY = = (2,081) = - (2,081)
Interest credited to policyholders’  REHE ARFEE 25t FIS
account balances 2,690,237 - - - - 2,690,237
Cost of insurance charges REERAHA (632,696) - - - - (632,69)
Administrative fees THER (1,370,638) - - - - (1,370,638)
Other reserve changes EhipfEEs (26,885) - - - - (26,885)
Transfer to the other payable and  BAEMENHBERESER
accrual - - - (3,892) (2,618) (6,510)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 41,875,340 1,498,758 389,570 326,584 1,061,444 45,651,696
EEREHEEERAR
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30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 RERBELEEEE - FEHRZ
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=EZERANERRITERMBEITER
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK B — GEkBIRF(#E)

BALANCE — TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation to liabilities arising from (a) HABEENHBEZTHELENE
financing activities for disclosure purpose BEETHE(E)
(Continued)
Policyholders’ Bank  Preference Lease Shareholder's
deposit  borrowings Shares liabilities loan Total
REFEA

WER  RTER fih  EEAR  RREX 3]
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
FET FEL TET FET TET FET

At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NETZA=F-ARZ
1 January 2020 E2EE-f-H 41,875,340 1,498,758 389,570 326,584 1,561,444 45,651,696

Change from financing cash flow: BERLF 225 :

Payment made to lease liabilitles ~ XAEEEEHE - - - (133,839) - (133,839)
Policyholders’ account deposits ~ REZFAZEFHE 4,741,469 - - - - 474469
Policyholders’ account withdrawals RERH A 2EF £ (1,981,009) - - - - (1,981,003
Drawdown of bank loans REURTER - 843,300 - - - 843,300
Repayment of a bank loan BERTEN - (788,23) - - - (788,233)
Other borrowing cost paid EREMEERAR - (57,870) - - - (57,870)
Total change in financing cash flows BEEER ST 2 S E4E 2,760,466 (2,803) - (133,839) - 262382
Capitalisation of interest of RRERZFISER

shareholder’s loan - - - - 79,633 79,633
Net change in lease obligation ~ REBENEEH - - - 89,857 - 89,857
Finance charge and effective interest BEE AR ERAE it

expenses - 57,548 - 9,543 - 67,091
Fair value change MEEES = = (1,915) = = (1,919)
Interest credited to policynolders’  RERHE ARFEE 2 ExHHIE

account balances 2,784,500 - - - - 2,784,500
Cost of insurance charges RBERRA (647,173) - - - - (647,173)
Administrative fees e (1,384,904) - - - - (1,384,904)
Other reserve changes AhfEEE (10,604) - - - - (10,604)
Transfer to the other payable and ~ BAEMENFERES B

accrual - - - (5,733) - (5,733)
At 31 December 2020 e g oy 45,377,625 1,553,503 387,655 286,412 1,641,017 49,246,272
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30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED

BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK
BALANCE — TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Bank balances — trust and segregated
account

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course of
business of the regulated activities. The
Group has classified the “bank balances
- trust and segregated accounts” under
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to
respective clients and other institutions on
the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The
Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.
The cash held on behalf of customers is
restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. As at 31
December 2020, client money maintained
in segregated accounts amounted to
HK$747,841,000 (2019: HK$478,465,000).

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

30 RERBREEEEE - REHRS
R =18 B 89 = H R 17 7 A SR 1T BR
B — EERBYRF(#)

(b) RITERE — FERBARF

AEBRRAUKERIBLRS -
UEEBHEIESHETHERBRE
FEEZEFARE - AEECE#K
[$R1TERXE — EREREBEMYRF 1D
BAGESUERRAR A EEE
T WHEREFHRIE ZEAE KX
FAEWBRESMEREEZEN
FEERFREMEE IR - &
EET S ERAEFRALEEEE S
B REFEAECEEI(ES
FHEKRGAT2EERBE(RER
RENRBBRHERE - R=ZE=
EFE+"A=+—H RBIKF
BEENEFBR$A747,841,0008
(= & — S F : 478,465,0008
JT) °

31 INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS 31 REBEEEERSE
2020 2019
g g 223 —E-h1EF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FET
Policyholders’ deposits REEFEANEFER (i) 40,913,580 37,556,895
Future policyholders’ benefits ARREFEAGHN (ii) 13,358,343 8,639,426
Unearned revenue liability REHWAEE (iii) 215,853 259,553
54,487,776 46,455,874
ERSREBERAR
—S-BEFH 303



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

31 INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS 31 REEREGES(#E)
(Continued)
Notes: BiatE -
(i) Policyholders’ deposits (i) REEEANER
Analysis of movement in policyholders’ deposits REZEEANGEREE ST
2020 2019
—g-%%F —F-hE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January mn—B—H 37,556,895 33,927,093
Premiums received during the year FREKRRE 4,397,264 4,576,745
Net fees and charges deducted from IRESHRETINRNFEEN S H
account balances HER (1,977,403) (1,943,268)
Interest credited to account balances BRESREEZ ERTFI 2 2,567,262 2,478,583
Redemptions due for payment in FREENZEELE
current year (1,636,251) (1,465,536)
Others movements Hih g 5,813 (16,722)
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 40,913,580 37,556,895
(i)  Future policyholders’ benefits (i) RERREFEAGF
Analysis of movement in future policyholders’ RRREFEAGLNEE D
benefits
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—B—H 8,639,426 5,573,418
Movement during the year FREEF 4,718,917 3,066,008
At 31 December W+=B=+—H 13,358,343 8,639,426
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31 INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS 31 REBEEEEGE (&)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o (#E)
(iii) Unearned revenue liability (iii) REHBMBASEE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
L R-AZR 259,553 R
Amount deferred IEFE S8 780,168 812,177
Amortisation for the year allocated to KEEPBEHEWRAEETN
consolidated income statement sz (296,663) (146,455)
483,505 665,722

Effect of shadow accounting allocated to ARNEEEFEtDE

3
)
53
i
i

fair value reserve BN (527,205) (477,873)
At 31 December R+=B=+—H 215,853 259,553
(iv) The amount of insurance contract provisions (ivy REGEEESEHE—FRKENS
expected to be settled after more than one year is 207 51,289,009,000 8 T (=2 — L& :
HK$51,289,009,000 (2019: HK$43,136,864,000). 43,136,864,000/&7T) °
32 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 RESEER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wizt FHET FET
Policyholders’ deposits REFE ANER (i) 4,464,045 4,318,445
Future policyholders’ benefits RRREFEAGH (ii) 64,828 56,656
Unearned revenue liability REHWAEE (iii) (36,018) (10,501)

4,492,855 4,364,600

EHSREBARAT
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32 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 REARAE#E)
(Continued)
Notes: Wt
(i) Policyholders’ deposits (i) REEBEANER
Analysis of movement in policyholders’ deposits: REZFEANFEARER SN :
2020 2019
—F-%F e
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January m—B—H 4,318,445 4,086,277
Contributions received during the year FREWHERR 276,474 294,362
Net fee and charges deducted from BRESREPHBRNFEERMN
account balances TR (49,204) (55,043)
Interest credited to account balances IREEREEZ BT RIS 217,238 211,654
Redemptions due for payment in current  F R FEE 2 B E 58
year (302,584) (219,232)
Others movements Heh & F 3,676 427
At 31 December Hn+=—A=+—H 4,464,045 4,318,445
(i)  Future policyholders’ benefits (i) RRREIFHALH
Analysis of movement in future policyholders’ RRREFEALNEER D :
benefits:
2020 2019
e L
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
At 1 January H—B—H 56,656 45,946
Movement during the year FREE 8,172 10,710
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 64,828 56,656
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306 Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements
b B
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32 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 RECREBE#E)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o ()
(iii) Unearned revenue liability (iii) REHBAEFE
Analysis of movement in unearned revenue liability: RE UM AESEEE DT
2020 2019
i —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At1danuary ] RoAZR (1o501) - ¢ 3,824
Amount deferred EEE 43,244 50,284
Amortisation for the year allocated to KEESBESFEREERH
consolidated income statement ez (923) (358)
42,321 49,926

Effect of shadow accounting allocated to AFEEFF S oEBHEAAEE

fair value reserve RENE (67,838) (64,251)
At 31 December R+=A=+—8 (36,018) (10,501)
(iv) The amount of investment contract liabilities (iv) RECRAEGREBE—FRKENSE
expected to be settled after more than one year is #4,263,004,000% (= & — i F:
HK$4,263,004,000 (2019: HK$4,151,150,000). 4,151,150,0007&JT) °
ERSRERBRAR
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33 OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 33 RIREERK
2020 2019
—g-%f —2-hfE
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BRRAF BREAT
L ik k| ox 74 bk

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FEx FEx FET &R FET

Qutstanding claims RREH 150,414 (55,443) 94,971 124,526 (48,349) 76,177
Claims incurred but not ~ BEAEBAFKER
reported B 33,746 - 33,746 37,387 - 37,387
184,160 (55,443) 128,717 161,913 (48,349) 113,564
Amount expected to be TR - FREE
settled within one Wes
year 184,160 (55,443) 128,717 161,913 (48,349) 113,564
Analysis of movements in outstanding claims: RREBREE DN
2020 2019
—g-%f —2-hf
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BREAR BREAF
& ik BE k| ik e
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- A FEn TET THEr TEr
Balance at 1 January ~ R—A—HZ8E 161,913 (48,349) 113,564 123,823 (31,202) 92,621
Current year claims RERH 703,372 (314,666) 388,706 722,878 (246,116) 476,762
Current year claims RESHER
paid (593,110) 271,388 (321,722) (626,394) 207,461 (418,933)
Previous year claims ~ AFEAEH
paid (84,374) 36,184 (48,190) (63,797) 21,508 (42,289)
Movement inincurred ~ BEEBREER
but not reported HELE
reserve (3,641) - (3,641) 5,403 - 5,403
Balance at 31 R+TZA=t-H
December 2B 184,160 (55,443) 128,717 161,913 (48,349) 113,564
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Notes to the Financial Statements

REINSURANCE PREMIUM PAYABLES

All of the reinsurance premium payables are
expected to be settled within one year.

OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

34 ENBRRERE
FEENBEREREFEBITIR—FRE

=
B °

35 HAEMRMK

2020 2019
—E-%F  —FAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accounts payable FE{3 BR X

— Cash and margin clients — BEAREBESEF 851,095 554,471

— Clearing house, fund managers, — BE - EEEEA
brokers and dealers KA T 18,438 24,074
869,533 578,545

Included in accounts payable are amounts
payable to clients and other institutions in
respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and other
institutions in the course of conducting regulated
activities, which amount to HK$744,307,000
(2019: HK$496,572,000).

All of the accounts payable are aged and due
within one month or on demand.

Balance with related parties

At 31 December 2020, accounts payable
of approximately HK$15,606,000 (2019:
HK$15,549,000) and HK$20,734,000 (2019: Nil)
are payable to certain key management personnel
of the Company and companies controlled by
key management personnel of the Company
respectively on normal terms of brokerage and
wealth management business of the Group.

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

BNRABERRETZERETEBRE
PRAEPREMEBUREEER 2FER
RBMRITHEMEBNTF R A MR
ZFRIA 744,307,000 B T (= F— N F :
496,572,000 T) °

AR RRZRE SR —EA REH
PIREREE -

EEM L N

RZZBEZZBEF+-A=+—H ' &BEXE
B -—MELKREBEOERN — BRER
FE{$BR 7k =2 15,606,0008 T (== — N,
& 115,549,000/ 8 T ) BEMNE T AR
AEEEEAE ZFIEK 20,734,000 8
T(ZE-—NF B)EENETEAAH
FTEEEAESFTIEGAE ZFE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

36 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

310

36 HtiENRIBEMEEX

EXPENSES
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accrued staff costs FEstE TR 100,464 106,125
Commission payables EAEE 255,406 204,791
Derivative financial instruments TTE€mI A 151,788 20,366
Premium received in advance RATWEUR B 1,621,389 1,583,983
Other payables and accruals HtEN IR ESTE A 391,665 521,702

2,520,712 2,436,967

All of the commission and other payables and
derivative liabilities are expected to be settled
within one year.

Balance with related parties

(1)

At 31 December 2020, accounts payable
of approximately HK$22,507,000 (2019:
HK$22,299,000) are payable to MassMutual
International LLC (“MMI”) who is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and
its affiliates.

At 31 December 2020, interest accrual
of approximately HK$2,752,000 (2019:
HK$2,618,000) is due to Key Imagination
Limited (“KIL”) who is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

S R AL SRR AT 4 B AR
SERE TR — FREE o

=) g VE g o

1) R=-FE=-_EF+=-—A=+—H"
FE {4 BR FX =2 22,507,0008 jt(=
£ — N £ :22,299,000/%& JT )
AENAQAAI—BAEERRE —
MassMutual International LLC
(TMMI ) R EB&E N F) 2 FRIE

2 R=Z=_FF+=-HA=+—
B EMAARQEEZERRRKey
Imagination Limited ([KIL]) & f&
5t A B4 52,752,000 Tt (= &
— % 2,618,000 T) °
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37 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 37 BIEEMRRE TR 2 ATEH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Tax payable in the statement of financial (a) MBMRRERMARZEMAHERE :
position represents:
2020 2019
—B-%F —B-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits REEHRBREHER
Tax for the year 49,963 48,626
Provisional Profits Tax paid ENEHFER (36,881) (1,992)
13,082 46,634
Balance of Profits Tax provision U FEFESHREELES
relating to prior years - 4,913
13,082 51,547
Macau Complementary Tax B ERB
Balance of Complementary Tax REERAHEERE
provision for the year - =
Overseas Tax BN
Balance of overseas provision REEFINEEEREE
for the year 811 539
13,893 52,086
Amount of tax payable expected to FEHIN —F R & BHIESS
be settled within one year bR 13,893 52,086

Amount of taxation payable TN —FREFNEN
expected to be settled after more A
than one year - —

EHLBEBERAT
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37 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 37 MBRRRFATRZABH(#)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EERRELEHEEENERS
recognised:
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ RNEERFREHMBRRKRER ZIE
(assets) recognised in the consolidated AEFIBEE (EE)SHREE M
statement of financial position and the T :
movements during the year are as follows:
Fair value Fair value Net
Adjustment adjustmenton  Decelerated  unrealised
to assets investment tax on gain on
and liabilities at fair value expense/ available
relatedto  Accelerated through expected for sales
acquisition of tax Tax profitand  credit loss financial
subsidiaries  depreciation losses loss incurred  instruments Total
UAAEE
KEREAR itBEHAE
RBEER it ABEN e
BENAR RENDSL  WEER/ fREEY
BEAE  RARERE e i BESE RECRAX AERUETR L
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§'000
71 A1 &1 Fér Fér 77T A1
Deferred tax liabiliies/ AT &EE4 2 BEH
(assets) arising from: B8R/ (EE):
At 1 January 2019 RZE-1E-B-A 1,318,539 - - - (184) - 1,318,355
(Credited)/charged to profit  &E&(FA) /5%
or loss (51,155) - - - 140 - (51,01)
At31December2019  R=E-AE+=A
=13 1,067,384 - - - (44) - 1,267,340
At 1 January 2020 W-2_FE-5-§ 1,267,384 - - - (44) - 1,267,340
(Credited)/charged to profit  &E&(FA) /5%
orloss (47,067) (100) - - - - (47,167)
Exchange impact Enge - (6) - - - = 0)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-8ET25
=t-A 1,220,317 (106) - - (44) - 1,220,167
At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax asset R-EBE-_FEF+_A=+—H i
has been recognised in respect of the tax B IEEIE21.32E8 (==
losses of HK$2,132 million (2019: HK$1,736 —h&E 1736 BT)EREL
million) to the extent that it is not probable HIBEEE ARHEHBENRERERER
that future taxable profit against which KRBT K] Be 8 A K FE SR 156 2 Al
the losses can be utilised will be available (EREBEHEBELE) IR AZE
subject to the approval of respective tax BIKE - BIEFHE13.32F BT (=
authorities in the relevant tax jurisdiction. E—NF 1282 B ) IREBERT
The tax losses amounting to HK$1,332 M EBTEEm ©
million (2019: HK$1,282 million) do not
expire under current tax legislation.
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
312 Annual Report 2020



38 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

Notes to the F
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

38 n

REEFEBEESHTTARR

Ny
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS Wemas
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Designated at fair value through EEUAAREBEFTEAHESE
profit or loss Bt AEE
Preference share liability (note 1) BrEREEMET) 387,655 389,570
Third-party interests in consolidated MAGHEBNESH
funds (note 2) =S (E2) 230,906 240,999
618,561 630,569

Note:

By 31 December 2020, total number of 500,000
preference shares was issued under the agreement
for a total proceed of US$50,000,000. The subsidiary
is obliged to redeem all issued preference shares in
5 years starting from the initial issuance date of the
preference shares. At liquidation, after all creditors’
claim is satisfied, the asset of the subsidiary should
be first distributed to preference shareholders by
redeeming all issued shares together with any unpaid
preferred share dividends. The preference shares are
due for settlement after more than a year from 31
December 2020.

The third party interests in consolidated fund
consist of third-party unit holders’ interest in the
consolidated fund which is reflected as a liability as
the fund is to be dissolved and return all capital to
investor in seventh anniversary of the respective final
closing date of the respective funds. The end of term
of the consolidated fund is more than a year from 31
December 2020.

EHSREBARAT

=

E_TFFR

Hist :

RZZBE-ZZFF+-A=1+—R8 BEWH
BERITHELREZE 500,000 » A5t
50,000,000 T > MiB A A EHZKEE
SRR ETHESERNERAED #T
BER - BEE EAEBEEANERE
REBEEZ WEARNEEEELARABE
EFfECE#TRMOUREMRATHEL
BRESHEELRRERE - B=FT=ZF

T-RA=T-—HEBB-—F& BERE
P

n/ﬁ °

EOESHNE=FREEEE=FELR
BEARGHESHESR  ARZEEHK
BE - ARIIRREE TEREESR
REGSENELAFEMEERNRERR
& - SESNHRKLAR-ZE=-Z%
Ft+ZA=t—HE-—FUE-
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39

40

314

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group had obligations under contractual
maturities of the lease liabilities as follows:

39

31 December 2020
R-E-EF+-A=1-H

HERE

AEBNEEEAERENSRIIEA
FIEMT :

31 December 2019
R=ZE-NE+-A=t-H

Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease payment lease payment lease payment lease payment
SEHEMT SEEEMR  SEEANR  SEEAGH
ZBfE 2B ZBRE 1A%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx FEx TEx
Within one year 1ER 133,607 140,000 128,147 135,248
After one but within 2 years 15#&B25R 88,574 91,779 114,146 118,879
After 2 years but within 5 years 2ERBSER 61,901 64,388 81,970 84,554
Over 5 years B85 E 2,330 2,342 2,321 2,345
286,412 298,509 326,584 341,026
Less: finance cost A BERR (12,097) (14,442)
Present value lease liabilities HESERE 286,412 326,584

BANK BORROWINGS 40 SRITER

The bank loan was unsecured and repayable as
follows:

RITERBERREN - HEFBOT ¢

2020 2019

—E_EHF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within one year 15ER 1,553,503 —
After 1 year but within 2 years 15%EB2FR - 1,498,758

The Group’s banking facilities are subject to
the compliance of covenants including certain
financial ratios and negative pledge against
certain arrangement and transactions, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group breached any
of the covenants and negative pledge against
certain arrangement and transactions, the
outstanding bank loan would become immediate
due and payable. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
December 2020, the Group is in compliance with
the covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 5.

FNRSHEBITIYUNEREERE—
B AKRERTHEBAEEIZHNEZR
B BREUBLRURBELZYN
REZEHNRHIER - MRAEEER
EARZRBARAELEZ MR Z/EHD
FREVER - RERTERGLAE BRI
BEE AEBSEPRERRENET
R -R=-Z_FF+-A=+—-8"
AEBHEZFZRESHR - FHRAEER
;EJIEQEL B EE TENFE - HIIRK
at b °
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B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

41 SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN 41 RRERX
During the year, the term of the loan is extended REAFE  ERERERT=F BH
for 3 years and the amount of loan interest 79,633,000 8B T EGF ERFEER
accrual of HK$79,633,000 is capitalised as part EFRLEHERERtAEREAEH —IB
of the loan principal on loan extension date. It Do ZEMBREEEMFRERER
becomes due after 2 year but within 5 years from ZH - EFFER2ERAERZIERTE
the reporting date. The interest rate is determined EH - MAKE R BFFEERD
based on arm’s length terms. The Group has an BEBEE—FWERN  EHENERF
unconditional extension right to extend the due RBEAEBTERNSENSHFEGE
date for another year at the interest rate to be HFE ©
reset based on prevailing market condition at the
time of exercising the right.
42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 42 BEXNHE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) RO H
The reconciliation between the opening and AEBGEREZNEEAKIB DB
closing balances of each component of B EAHA R A SRV BR - |PIAE
the Group’s consolidated equity is set out 12 F 143 EMEREEHR-T
in the consolidated statement of changes FE A B E B FE 2= 42 A EB D TE
in equity from page 142 to 143. Details of FHEFARPEE S :
the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company ¥ NN
Shares held Share-
by share based
Share Capital award payment Accumulated
capital Reserve scheme reserve losses Total
&ﬁﬁm
\ iEEE  URGAER -
Bx BExffe Rt WxARE RitER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 Fhr FEr A Fhr FEr
At 1 January 2019 W=B-hE-B-A 9,828,591 64,000 (83,230) 28033 (1,022,003 8,814,401
Equity settled share- NEREZNUARGA
based transactions ERNR S - - - (6,541) - (6,541)
Total comprehensive AEERANGAE
income for the year - - - - (245,684) (245,684)
At 31 December 2019 W=Z-hE+ZA
and 1 January 2020 =+-AK=-E=
g5-A-H 9,828,591 64,000 (83,230) 21,492 (1,268,677) 8,562,176
Issue of subscription BIABRG
shares 2,043,589 - - - - 2,043,589
Equity settled share- NEREEHNUARG A
based transactions ERNR S - - - (12,019) - (12,019)
Total comprehensive AEERENELE
income for the year - - - - (409,130) (409,130)
At31December 2020 R-E-FF{=R
=t+-H 11,872,180 64,000 (83,230) 9,473 (1,677,807) 10,184,616
EEREHEEERAR
“ECERFFER SIS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

316

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share held by share award scheme
and share-based payment reserve

The Company’s shares held by Youyu
Share Award Scheme Nominee Limited,
TMF Trust (HK) Limited and Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited for the
share award schemes are presented as
a deduction in equity as shares held for
share award scheme.

Share-based payment reserve
represents the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company that has
been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose
on the revaluation of the trading rights
in the exchanges in Hong Kong in
prior years. The carrying value of the
trading rights have been fully amortised
in previous years. The remaining
revaluation reserve will be realised
when the Group disposes of the trading
rights.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note

2(y).

42 BEXRNHEE)
(b) REEZHEERAZRE

()

(i)

BR G R BFEZ KGR
URGBEEZ A 1FE

HEARMEBTENCEAS
ROTE - ERELRK(FE)
BRAARTBRITETLER
RAFBEZARARGIES—
BINRIBEE ERAED T2
] - MERLIR 0 R BT BT+
BzRAD e

LU0 B A 2 SR B T8
6 2% 2% B 18 & Xt i 14 AR AT 2
ZBREREHAM 2 RE
B HERBURGHERZ
RN 2 S 5T BERTER -

BEEWHE

EEEMREAREGBEFE
REBZRZMZRXZREE
o R5BZEREECRBE
FEXBEE - BRTEMMHE
BRAEEHERZEBE
B o

(iii) [E % f#E

ERFEEEIAREINEZE
BB HREEZELER -
ZEBREBEME2y) FEzE
ATRETUEE -
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

(d)

(Continued)
(iv) Statutory and capital reserve
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Company Law of the
PRC, in accordance with the relevant
subsidiary’s articles of association,
10% of the net profit of the relevant
subsidiary, determined in accordance
with the relevant accounting rules
and financial regulations applicable to
enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”),
is required to be transferred to the
statutory reserve until such time
when this reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the subsidiary
incorporated in PRC. The reserve
appropriated can be used for expansion
of business scale and capitalisation. If
the statutory reserve is capitalised into
registered capital, the remaining reserve
is required to be no less than 25%
of the subsidiary’s registered capital
before capitalisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arose to recognise
the difference between the fair value
and the issue price of Company’s share
in relation to the completion of the
acquisition of YF Life.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company
did not have any reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions
of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (2019: nil).

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil),
nor has dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period.

EH S MEMARLT

7

TEFR

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

42 BEXRNHEE)
(b) RHEZHERAER(E

REEFEXFE
EERE

BRE(FEZEAREANE QA
B BREBABEHREBEARIN A
AER ERNERARTELZE
B & B8 = 5t A8 B AN B 75 1% 4
(THhESTEL DEENSE
MEARFRMA10% @ B

ANEERHE  BEEZEEES
AR B S R B L Y B B A B B
& AH50% o Friss A&
Bo] ARNE R ERF B E A
e MRZEECRHEEATIME
Ko FpEBEER R LD
R B RARZEMERN25%

(iv)

B #E

WisEBRRE  BAXQT
RN AEEERITERZ
BNEZ=RMELEANHE -

Rz ™2k

RZB-ZEFE+-A=+—8 m
BHEB(ATKROIN(E622F)E
I AR X EHE - A D T I AR
AESRFAABDESZRR 2B
“E—NFEE)o

(c)

(d) BE

ai—7—7$+ ﬁ + El_u:
FE  ARATERMNHEIRRS
(ZZ-h%F: ﬁ)’ﬁﬁéiﬁ%,ﬁﬂiﬁ
B EZFRNTEMRE -
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 42 BAXRNRE (&)
(e) Share capital (e) BA&
Movements of the Company’s ordinary ARATEBRZ2EEFEHT|MNT -

shares are set out below:

2020 2019
ZECEf “E-nE

Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
OEE X RO#E £
HK$000 HK$'000
TET TEr

Issued and fully paid: BREIRAR

Balance brought forward RALR 3,223,326,394 9,829,094  3,223,326,394 9,829,094
Issue of subscription shares BTRBRS 644,665,279 2,043,589 = =
Balance carried forward rELs 3,867,991,673 11,872,683  3,223,326,394 9,829,094

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time
to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

Issue of subscription shares

As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 September 2020,
the Company entered into subscription
agreements with 1) Jade Passion in relation
to the subscription of 484,665,279 ordinary
shares in the share capital of the Company
at the subscription price of HK$3.17 per
ordinary share and 2) MMI in relation to the
subscription of 160,000,000 ordinary shares
in the share capital of the Company at the
Subscription Price of HK$3.17 per ordinary
share. At completion of the subscription
on 29 October 2020, total of 644,665,279
ordinary shares were issued and total
proceed of HK$2,043,588,934 was received
in October 2020.

318

BB R IR RS R WE A B SR BY iR
B WEAHAADRAKRS LEZR
BREAE-RAR-—ENLHSER
R IAEERED A D ARER
EESFHEERSES -

RITABIR G

URAABBEHAE-ZZSE-_ZFH
BtBZ2AERMKE - ZI-VAT,EEE)
Jade Passion&] 3 T 7 B8 7 &%
ANRBBEZEEERS. 17}%7_|:Zwﬂ§€f
FRE A N A B A § 484,665,279
BEBR  UK2) MMIFTIE TR
%%%’Waﬁﬁﬁéhsw%
TR BERBEARAATRAAH
160 ooo OOOREBEBR - R=Z=
iﬁﬂ-ﬁ + 1 B 7= KRR ﬂ%%lﬁ
B, H 3 17644,665,2790% X &
B% - ZI-VD\TBA_;_ EJrﬂLI&(
B9 BT 15 71 78 48 28 4 2,043,588,934
BT ©
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to meet its obligations and
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders,
by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of share capital and reserves as shown
in the statement of financial position. In
respect of the Group’s insurance operations
in Hong Kong and Macau, the regulators are
interested in ensuring that the subsidiary
maintains an appropriate solvency position
to meet its liabilities arising from claims
maturities and surrenders from its life
insurance contracts. Pursuant to the Hong
Kong Insurance Ordinance and the Macau
Insurance Ordinance, YF Life is required
to meet the requirements on solvency
margin. If YF Life fails to comply with the
requirements, the regulators may require
YF Life to submit a plan for the restoration
of a sound financial position or a short
term financial scheme as appropriate,
to the satisfaction of the regulators. YF
Life complied with the solvency margin
requirements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

42 BEXRNHEE)
(f) EXEE
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

On the other hand, certain subsidiaries
of the Group, Yunfeng Financial Markets
Limited (“YFFM?”), Yunfeng Securities Limited
(“YFSL”) and Yunfeng Asset Management
Limited (“YFAM?”), is subject to externally
imposed capital requirements. YFFM, YFSL
and YFAM are regulated by the Securities
and Futures Commission (the “SFC”)
and are required to comply with certain
minimum capital requirements according to
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
management monitors YFFM, YFSL and
YFAM’s liquid capital daily to ensure they
meet the minimum liquid capital requirement
in accordance with the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”)
adopted by the SFC. Under the FRR, YFAM,
YFFM and YFSL must maintain its liquid
capital in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of
their total adjusted liabilities whichever is
higher. The required information was filed
with SFC on a monthly or half yearly basis.
YFFM, YFSL and YFAM were in compliance
with the capital requirements imposed by
FRR during the current and prior year.

43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS

320

(i)

Share award scheme

On 17 October 2014, the board of directors
approved the adoption of the share award
scheme (the “2014 Share Award Scheme”).
The purpose of the 2014 Share Award
Scheme is to (i) encourage or facilitate
the holding of shares by the selected
participants; (ii) encourage and retain such
individuals to work with the Company
and the Group and (iii) provide additional
incentive for them to achieve performance
goals, and the share award scheme took
effect on 30 October 2014. The awarded
shares are awarded by issuing new ordinary
shares. Before vesting, the awarded shares
are held in a trust set up by the scheme.
During the year, there is neither new issue
nor outstanding share award under the 2014
Share Award Scheme.

42 EXMREE)

()

BEREE(F

E—FH'ARAETHE
= *fé%mﬁmiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj(ra
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BEEAETE SEEBRIBEXRES
R EHRBE (BBER)RA
(T ERFAD | SHEREES
mHmiE - ERREREREEZR
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E ZRSHTERERBTSFTS
/E iﬁ #53,000,000/8 TG E KA
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

43 EERODZH @)

R AD BT 8 (A7

(i) Share award scheme (Continued) (i)

With similar purpose of 2014 Share Award
Scheme, on 12 December 2016, the board
of directors approved the adoption of 2016
Share Award Scheme (the “2016 Share
Award Scheme”) and the Company issue
of 23,990,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company to TMF Trust (HK) Limited to be
granted to the Group A Participant (Group A
Grantees) as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 January 2017. The
share was issued at value of HK$5.4 per
share.

During the year, the Group did not
repurchase any Company ordinary share
through Bank of Communications for the
Group B Participant (Group B Grantees).

The fair value of 2016 Share Award Scheme
at the date of the grant are charged to
staff costs and related expenses over the
projected vesting period being the period
for which the services from the employees
are rendered with a corresponding credit to
employee share-based payment reserve.

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees,
the related cost of the shares are credited to
share held for share award scheme, and the
related fair value of the shares are debited
to share-based payment reserve.

BE2014F R EBSE B WA
L R=F—R"FE+=-H+=H"
EE2EBB2016FEER M E
BEtE(T2016 22 @5t 2 L) -
RBmMmBBAAE-_FT—t&— A
"+ HENAEREE  AQTE
EBREERK(EEB)BRABET
23,990,000 #FTEBEER » UEFA
HSEEAAERAN) FEER
LAEGMR5.4 BITRIT o
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FH(BAEERA) °
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

43 EERDZH 4@

(ii) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (i) BT AHEEA2016 FRR 7 LB
(to Group A Grantee) EIFE S
Number of
Number awarded Average
Date of approval Awarded  of shares shares fair value
by board Date of award sum issued awarded  per share Vesting period
frgakt ERTRGE  SRNE
EZEfERs BTAH oSk (] KEHE MEE BEHE
HK$000 HKS$
87 V- 23
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 525 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2017
“2-tE-ACtRA ZE-tF-A-TEA “R-tE-A-fMAZ
“E-t%1AMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 525 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2018
“E-t#-B-tMA ZE-tE-A=t@A “E-t5-A-1MAZ
“Z-\FRLAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 525 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2019
“E-t#-B-tMA ZE-tE-A=t@A “E-tE5-A-1MAZ
“E-nERAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 525 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2020
“E-t#-B-tMA ZE-tE-A=t@A ZE-tE-A-1MAZ
“ECZERAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2018
“Z-\EMA-+ER —E-\EMA=1EA “E-\fNA=TRAZ
“Z-\FRLAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2019
“Z-\EMA-+ER —E-\EMA=1EA “E-\§NA=TRAZ
“E-nERAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2020
“Z-\EMA-+ER —E-\EMA=1EA “E-\§NA=TRAZ
ot e LT
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2021
“Z-\EMA-+ER —E-\EMA=1EA “E-\FNA-TRAZ
ZE-ERAMA
Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme BFBARRA2016 FROEBT
(to Group B Grantee) EIF1E
Number of
Number awarded  Average fair
Date of approval Awarded of shares shares value per
by board Date of award sum  repurchased awarded share Vesting period
BRER cEIRAR ke
ESEHERS RFAH R74E 4 BYE MEE BEAH
HK$'000 HKS
TEn BT
26 January 2018 26 January 2018 5,786 950,000 950,000 6.09 26 January 2018 - 2 February 2018
“E-NE-BotRA ZE-NE-A-tiA ZE-)\F-BtRBE
“E-\¥ZAZA
21 May 2018 21 May 2018 94,298 19,050,000 19,050,000 4.95 21 May 2018 - 28 May 2018
“E-N\ERR-t-B  ZE-N\ERA-t-A “E-N\FLA=1-RZ
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
vested, cancelled and modification of

43

BERG LB @)

(iii) HBEAERZACEE » BUERE
R RS 1514 2 2016 PR 17 S By =t 2

service condition to Group A Grantee A
Grant date on 24 January 2017 #BFH: . —E—+F—HF=-+HH
Number of Number of
Number of Number of awarded awarded
awarded awarded shares share
shares shares cancelled and remains
awarded vested forfeited outstanding
ERTRA EEBRT CHRERRE HRTER
Vesting date HEAH REEAE ROBE BFRAEBE RTRHHE
A B G F=A-B-C
As of 31 December 2018 #HZ=-ZE—-N\F+=A
== 20,190,000 7,882,500 5,962,500 6,345,000
Movement for the year _—ZB-—HEEEEE
2019
4 May 2017 “E-tERAMA - - -
4 May 2018 “E-\FRAMA - - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERAMNA - — 1,662,500
4 May 2020 ZE"EFERAMA — - 1,637,500
As of 31 December 2019 HZE—% TLE‘I‘ A
4 May 2017 :i tﬁﬁﬂ L] =i 5,047,500 4,510,000 537,500 -
4 May 2018 “E-\FRAMNA 5,047,500 3,372,500 1,675,000 -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERANA 5,047,500 - 3,537,500 1,510,000
4 May 2020 “Z-ZERAMA 5,047,500 - 3,512,500 1,535,000
Total Bz 20,190,000 7,882,500 9,262,500 3,045,000
Movement for the year ~KEEZE
2020
4 May 2017 “E-—+FRAMNA - - -
4 May 2018 “E-\ERAMNA — — —
4 May 2019 “E-NERANA - - 1,262,500
4 May 2020 —Z-ZERAMA - - 1,287,500
As of 31 December 2020 HZ-Z-Z&5+=A
=Er=F
4 May 2017 “E-+ERAMNA 5,047,500 4,510,000 537,500 -
4 May 2018 —Z-N\ERAMNA 5,047,500 3,372,500 1,675,000 -
4 May 2019 i hiﬁﬁﬁ A 5,047,500 - 4,800,000 247,500
4 May 2020 —Z_ZEFRAMA 5,047,500 - 4,800,000 247,500
Total Fob 20,190,000 7,882,500 11,812,500 495,000
*%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
—ETFFR 323
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED 43 EERMDLH (&)

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (iii) EHEAHEEAZACEE  BUERE
vested, cancelled and modification of R AR #5544 =2 2016 IR 17 S B 51 &1
service condition to Group A Grantee 1B (E)

(Continued)
The awarded share remains outstanding due HRREEGEELE  ERFRMGE
to service condition modification. RITIE ©
Grant date on 25 April 2018 BFH:  —E-FOHAE=-+FEH
Number of Number of
Number of Number of awarded awarded
awarded awarded shares share
shares shares cancelled remains
awarded vested  and forfeited outstanding
BERFRA EEBRT EHERNE HARTHEE
Vesting date HEAS REHE RAEE R¥BRAEE R¥RAEE
A B C F=A-B-C
As of 31 December 2018 HZE=-Z-N\F+=fA
==F 2,850,000 712,500 37,500 2,100,000
Movement for the year —S—hEEEEH
2019
4 May 2018 ZZ-N\ERAMA = = =
4 May 2019 —E-hERAMA = = -
4 May 2020 —Z-ZERAMA - - -
4 May 2021 —Z2--FRAMA - - =
As of 31 December 2019 HZE-F-HNE+=A
=t-A
4 May 2018 ZE-N\FHLAMA 712,500 712,500 - -
4 May 2019 ZE ﬂiﬁﬁ L= 712,500 - 12,500 700,000
4 May 2020 ZE"EERAMA 712,500 - 12,500 700,000
4 May 2021 “E--FHAMNA 712,500 - 12,500 700,000
Total ok 2,850,000 712,500 37,500 2,100,000
Movement for the year ~KEEZE
2020
4 May 2018 —E-\FRANA = - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERAMNA — — 187,500
4 May 2020 ZE"EERAMA - - 187,500
4 May 2021 —E--FRANA = - 187,500
As of 31 December 2020 HZE-F=-ZF+=f
:+—E
4 May 2018 “E-N\FLAMEA 712,500 712,500 - —
4 May 2019 i Tlﬁfﬁﬁ L= 712,500 - 200,000 512,500
4 May 2020 ZECEFRAMNA 712,500 - 200,000 512,500
4 May 2021 :g: ERAMNA 712,500 — 200,000 512,500
Total ok 2,850,000 712,500 600,000 1,537,500
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED 43 EERHB LB (&)

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (iv) HEBAEZACEE BUERE
vested, cancelled and modification of R AR #5544 =2 2016 IR 17 S B 51 &1
service condition to Group B Grantee 2

Number of
Number of Number of Number of Number of awarded
awarded awarded awarded awarded share
shares shares shares shares remains
awarded vested cancelled forfeited  outstanding
BERTRA ERERT ER#ERT BEHERT MARTER
Vesting date BEAN L EE e g REBE RTRGEE
A B C D F=A-B-C-D
2 Feb 2018 “E-\EZAZH 950,000 950,000 - - -
28 May 2018 ZE-\FRAZTNH 19,050,000 19,050,000 - - -
As of 31 December HZE=Z—-\F+=8
2018 Er=f 20,000,000 20,000,000 - - -
There is no movement for 2016 Share Award REE » FFBAARKRAMN2016 F
Scheme to Group B Grantee for the year. B EEEETEIR HIREH) o
44 INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES 44 #HELEROES

Interest in consolidated structure entities BBt ERER
The Group had consolidated certain structured rEBHEEETEHARNEBLER
entities, mainly funds related to wealth TECGEANEEEEENESER
management operation. For those structured HRAEEEAEBEARKREENZS
entities where the Group is involved as manager HRLER AEEESRBEEBENESR
or as investor, the Group assesses the extent of ST BRI LIS -
controlling power according to relevant group
accounting policies.
As at 31 December 2020, the net assets of RZEBE-ZZEFE+=ZA=+—H ' %#EH
consolidated limited partnership fund entities as RERESER(FAMEF2)FEFEE
detailed in note 22 amounted to HK$673 million B673RABRL(ZE—NF :7.06 %8
(2019: HK$706 million) with net carrying interest ) AEBERBEEFEEAR4LMEBT
held by the Group being HK$442 million (2019: (ZE—NF 4.64E8T) °
HK$464 million).
Interests held by other investors in these HthREERFEEHEBILELNWE
consolidated structured entities, mainly fund wm  FEARAESER EHASHEMRR
entities were classified as financial liabilities kBB ALAARBREISEEEEFHT
at fair value through profit or loss of the AEBEENERMEE UAREBEFER
consolidated statements of financial position HEHT AEZNEREBE 2 A REE
with fair value change of financial liability at fair BHESESRERAIIR

value through profit or loss presented in the

consolidated income statement.

At year end, the Group reassessed the control RER AEBEFFHHERBILER

of structured entities and decided whether the FIES > WREAEBRERMAESA ©

Group is a principal.

ERSRERBRAR

—T-TEER

325



Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB B 5l 5R )

44

326

INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(Continued)

Interest in unconsolidated structure entities

Among those structured entities held by the
Group where the Group directly or indirectly
involves as investment manager or in equivalent
capacity, the Group regularly assesses and
determines whether:

o the Group is acting as an agent or a
principal in these investment funds;

o substantive removal rights held by other
parties may remove the Group as an
investment fund manager; and

° the investment interests held together
with its remuneration from servicing and
managing these structured entities create
significant exposure to variability of returns
in these investment funds.

In the opinion of the directors, the variable
returns that the Group to these structured entities
is not significant and the Group is primarily
acting as an agent. Therefore, the Group did not
consolidate these structured entities.

The Group classified its investment in those
unconsolidated entities as FVOCI investments
with minimal loss exposure due to small
investment amount involved.

44

mRcERNES @)

AEHEBICERES

BRASEAEBELIAARE(ERREE
BNEESEESRENREES K&
B E R R R E

e AXAEERBEAZEREESHAR
BHEEA

e HMERARABBEEURKRAEEE
AREHESEBABB2ELEER
R

s MEREEZERBRBREEZS
FRILERNTMEREREZEZRE
ETHEHAZERBCER -

EERA AEERZEERLERN
AEOMBETRER RAKETREE
RE-Ft - AEBELRESHELER
LB -

AEEBERKREHERNBREERA
UAREEFTEREESB T AREMER
WHEBRE BRI RREED BB
O JRRIK o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

45 COMMITMENTS 45 RiE

(a) Capital commitments (a) BEXEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
a total of HK$66.2 million (2019: HK$30.7
million) capital commitment contracted but
not provided for.

Investment commitments

(i) In the normal course of business,
the Group enters into commitments
to purchase certain investments and
capital contribution commitments
to third party managed fund
investment. The Group has investment
commitments contracted for
amounted to HK$947,663,000 (2019:
HK$1,575,509,000).

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
capital commitment to a joint venture
for an amount of US$20 million with
US$13.93 million has been contributed.

(i) As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 February
2016, YFFM (formerly known as
Reorient Financial Markets Limited),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement with Giant Investment Co.,
Ltd., and Jiangsu YuWell Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Limited”) on that day. As disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 29
April 2016, the joint venture agreement
was superseded and replaced by the
amended and restated joint venture
agreement entered among YFFM,
Hangzhou Dr. Herbs Electronics
Commerce Company Limited and
Jiangsu Limited on 13 April 2016.
Upon establishment of the joint venture
company after obtaining all necessary
approval as defined and disclosed in
the circular, YFFM is committed to
contribute RMB1,290,000,000 of the
registered capital of the joint venture
company.

BEZE-_Z_-_FTF+-A=+—8"
NEBEAEG20EBT(=ZF
—NE :3,070BBT)NERNE
RIGEB2 EAREIE -

REEE

() TFEEEXKBRES KAEBE
HIBEETRENAR UK
BE=FEEESLREELEH
BiEE o  AEBECITNNERE
RE FGE 5 947,663,000 7T
(ZE—N*F : 1,575,509,000
BIT) °

(i) AZEBE-ZEF+-A=1+-—
B AfEEEE—ReEd
EEHEARKIELE2,0008 %
gt BER1,393B X T

o

(i) BMW=T—XRF=HMHHE T
ZERBAEMEE RE
B AATANEZEMBLARE
#emmEERAR(EES
AmmiE ) (FIEEREm TS
BRATE) HEAKRERR
RAIRIHARBERERR
ARN(CIBHAR NDBELBREK
VEEBENBEARGE - H
M—ZE—-RFOA=-t+HhBR
ARBRHFEE  R-F—X
FHA+=H ZE#smmiE
HERMNAELTEFEHERD
AAREL)MIEHLD AR
VYEBRILEE BENKEE]
REH B AGBRIE RIK
BEERIEGECENZEAN
BoRUNBRAEERESE
ERSHTBESELERSE
FIEXNBHERREERE
HMEREENEESEAA
K #1,290,000,000 T °

EERTREEARATF
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

46 ERBABALRS

328

(a)

Transactions with key management
personnel

(a)

The remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group is as follows:

RBIREEAESNRS

AEEZETEEBEASMENT :

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits EHEEESRA 10,499 37,718
Post employment benefits BB 2 1R A 5,318 796
Equity compensation benefits S TTENE R - 5,368
15,817 43,882

Total remuneration is included in “staff
costs” in note 11(a) to the financial
statements.

During the year, no (2019: HK$356,000)
transaction and management fee related
to key management personnel’s securities
brokerage and wealth management
transaction is waived by the Group.

B & B E St A B |RMEE11(a)
[ETRA] -

KEER AEBREHRETE
BEAEERLELLNVEEERS
BHEMN(ZZ— N5 :356,000/8
TORZREEER -
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties

B RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

46 BEREBALRZ (@)

(b) EREMEABLINXS

2020 2019
—E_EHF —ZT-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Brokerage fee income (note (i) KABBWN (M () 1,180 35
Interest expense (note (i) FE W (M (i) - 247
Investment management fee paid SN IREEIEE (F2F (i)
(note (iii)) 84,202 71,553
Transitional services fee paid ETEERIEE (K (iv))
(note (iv)) 16,203 12,041
Policies endorsement fee paid S REHEE (HE (V)
(note (v)) 5,170 5,285
Management fee and advisory fee @A ETERZESLE DX
income from a joint venture and [REIENEEERERE
comanager of the joint venture Uz A 2,094 2,951
Premiums and fee income (note vi) RERE B A (K% (vi) - 1,343

Note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group provided brokerage services to (i)
companies where the Company’s chairman, Mr.
Yu Feng (“Mr. Yu”) is a director and substantial
shareholder and Mr. Huang Xin (“Mr. Huang”),
the executive director, is a director (ii) key
management of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group provided brokerage services to (i) a
company where the Company’s chairman, Mr.
Yu Feng (“Mr. Yu”) is a director and substantial
shareholder and Mr. Huang Xin (“Mr. Huang”),
the executive director, is a director (ii) key
management of the Company.

During the year, the Group incurred interest
expense for cash custodian transactions with
key management personnel.

The Group paid an investment management
fee to an affiliate of a substantial shareholder
who appointed a director to the board of the
Company, for management service provided to
YF Life’s investment portfolio.

EH S MEMARLT

7

TEFR

Bt -

(i

(i)

(iii)

R-E-_ZEF+-_A=+—HLE
B AEERP()BEAR (KRR E
FERLE(EXE | BEEREE
KR EE(EXEIAHTES)
Ei)AQANEREEASRER
LR ©

R-ZE-NF+ZA=1+—HILF
B AEEE ) —BAR(RAEE

EfEE((ELE BEERETE
BE ZBH(EXE |BHTES)
E)AQANEREESEASRMER
LR °

REAR AEEREEEEASE
TRETERZHELEFIEIH -

rEEREBARBINREASE
HNEERBEO-—BEZRR(ZME
AARREZSEFT)NBBELAX
NTREEESE -
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

330

(b) Transactions with other related parties
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The fee is paid to a substantial shareholder,
who appointed a director to the board of the
Company, for certain treasury and financial
reporting services relating to investment or
portfolio management and other information
technology related services to YF Life.

The fee is paid to an affiliate of a substantial
shareholder, who appointed a director to
the board of the Company, for the provision
of claims payment endorsement to the life
insurance outstanding policies of YF Life until
such policies mature.

During the year, the Group has not received
premium and fee income from a company
where the Company’s chairman, Mr. Yu is a
director and shareholder.

As of 31 December 2020, no investment
commitment (2019: US$1 million) is made
by key management personnel to the funds
managed or jointly managed by the Group.

46 BEREBALRZ (@)

(b) EREAMBEABLHNRZ(HF)

Hret - (&)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

REBRBABNRERREAS
BT & H B 5 i A8 B AR S Y R
LESHNUBRERYE —FE
ERR(ZERALRESSTES)
XNZEER -

AEBREBHASRERIRER
HERZAME  BEEZSERES
- a-2XER(ZEAELQT
ESEEI)N-—BELARNTZ
EEH -

RER AEERERERERAR
ARBE-—BRR(ARRAEFERLE
RZRBZEBRRR) °

R-ZB-_ZTE+-_A=+—-H £
EEBAEWAREAEBEESL
EEENESFEREMRERE (S
E—NFE 1008ET) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

47 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 47 R=E-EF+-A=+—-HA2AH
FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER [& T =z B 7 AR 00 3R &
2020
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
gz FAET FET
Assets EE
Interests in subsidiaries RPN A 11,729,265 10,050,744
Other receivable and prepayment E th fE Ut 7118 2 78 1+ 708 8,504 18,995
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER 640 90
Totalassets 1 HE®® 11,738,400 10,069,829
Liabilities a&
Accrued expenses and other EstE R R EMESRRIE
payables 290 8,895
Bank borrowings RITER 40 1,553,503 1,498,758
Total liabilities BEHEE 1,553,793 1,507,653
NET ASSETS EERE 10,184,616 8,562,176
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 42(a) 11,872,180 9,828,591
Reserves Ei] 42(a) (1,687,564) (1,266,415)
TOTAL EQUITY e 10,184,616 8,562,176
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board NoB-—FE-A-+BEES=SH

on 26 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Zhang Ke
R Al

Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

BITEE

THEMEBERAT
—E=Brrg

FIEERRITHAE

ERRETIRL AT HRRES

Executive Director

BITEE

Huang Xin

=E
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48

49

332

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate holding company
of the Company to be Yunfeng Financial Holdings
Limited which is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and beneficially owned as to 29.85%
and 70.15% by Mr. Ma Yun and Mr. Yu Feng,
respectively. Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited
does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance Contracts, which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

48

49

BEENGREER

ﬁi;l"%%ﬁﬁ%.%%&? 15%J§|§f$§
EHTRIZERER D F I E R E VKR
RUBELDBRALER -

EEMENRERE B85
T-A=+-BIEEEENNE
T FRE AR R 2 9 B
BEAPBHRKTEBD  BESHMA

SR T SIRBE R M(E B BR
SEAUFATHEINREBER | ZEEF
RFAEQ S RERARAB®RE - BL
ZABCBERETIARERNEERBAN
JHE o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
EUTHHARZE
BN S HIEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

(BB BHREZERDSE IFSET HH-SAELR 25/ 4t —E--%—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022
before Intended Use

(BEBETTERNE16RIEIT Y - MENRME  EZDNFEEARAFMERA —E--f—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Contract

(BBEERDNEITRET HBELEN — BTEHNZRA] —E--f—A—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

(BRI BREEL DN EEDE (2018 £2020 FEFH) —E-__f—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current

(BEETEANE1RET I RBEFRDEENE D —E-=%—A—H

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

(BEMBREERE17HEINREBERE —E-=%—A—H

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

AEBIEEFEELENBZCHADBKEKR
RYENEE BEEAAL  ~5E

MERMELETTAITEEHAEE
NGRSV BBRRELERTE -
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS 50
AND US GAAP

The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which
differ from certain aspects from US GAAP. The
effects of material differences between the
financial statements of the Group prepared under
HKFRSs and US GAAP are as follows:

(BERMBRBREENNRXBEARAE
J IJEI’\J¥\T,EE

REVBRRDRBEKEBUMBHREE
BERE - BEB ARSI ERNELR
HAE - REC(E B HIRELREX
B B AT Bl 4R I Y AN SR B B A ER R
MEREEZENMT

EI,:P

As at 31 December 2020

R-2-BE+-A=1-8
HKFRSs adjustments
(ERiBaLEN BE e
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances  Other difference Impairment EL DA+
reclassificationt! in accountlrg @ basis® EETHEH
Consolidated statement of e Rfpes WEE HK$'000
financial position GRuERRR ENAREN EEN EE0 TET
Assets &g
Property and equipment NERZHE 5,854 606,305
Statutory deposits EERR. 5,721
Deferred tax assets EEWREE 8 228
Investments in an associate RESNANRE 30,074
Goodwill and Intangible assets BERENEE 1,909,079
Deferred acquisition costs and value of ~ BEREESRARKEEKMN
business acquired R 447616 11,391,384
Investments RE (32,972) 48 841 62,823,573
Advance reinsurance premiums RUBRERE 1,289,567
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims KRB 2 BERBARNHE 55,443
Insurance and reinsurance receivables  EWRER BRI (63,119) 3,692,634
Other account receivable and accrued ~ EcftfE MRS R EZT A
income 158,878
Other receivables, deposit and prepayment EfbEINEIE - 4 RRFE (2,793) 2 951,868
Bank balance — Trust and segregated ~ R1THE — ERRELEP
accounts : 185 747,99
Fixed bank deposits with original maturity BEHRSR=MANETTH
over 3 months T 236,733
Cash and cash equivalents BERBESEER 115 4,056,849
Total assets BE4E 87,956,352
Liabilities ag
Insurance contract provisions REcEEES 4,503,078 58,990,854
Investment contract liabilities REcEAE (4,492,85) -
Qutstanding claims RREH 184,160
Reinsurance premium payables EARBRE X 321,989
Financial liability at fair value through A AEE 2 ERE BT AR
profit or loss, other account payable #NEMaE  HEAER
and lease liabilities RHESE 1,774,506
Other payables HfnE[38 311,184 2,831,896
Tax payable EfRE 13,803
Deferred tax liabilities ELnEaR 1,220,317
Bank borrowings RITE 1,663,503
Shareholder’s foan RREH 1,641,077
Total liabilities BEAE 68,532,195
Total net assets FEEAE 19,424,157
Capital and reserves EARGE
Share capital B 11,872,683
Reserves i 38,016 (13,334) 33235 1/565,811
Non-controlling interest FERER 22,281 (13,784) 15,975 5,985,663
Total equity BRAH 19,424,157
ERSRERBRAR
—E_EFFR BEE)
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS 50 (BEBMBRELZENNEXEAZS
AND US GAAP (Continued) =T /E Rl E BR ()
As at 31 December 2019
imt -3 pmd 4 s
HKFRSs adjustments
(5aHRECEY R o
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances Other difference Impairment EL DA
reclassification'” in accounting® hasis® EETHEE
Consolidated statement of REEBRE Rt BEEE HKS 000
financial position RRUBRRE EfAEY £g0 £g0 FA1
Assets iE
Property and equipment EJE] 8,657 503,985
Statutory deposits EERR 3,243
Deferred tax assets EERALE 18 122
Investments in an associate RNEEARNRE 27,860
Goodwill and Intangible assets HERENEE 1,023,360
Deferred acquisition costs and value of business B REEEAARKBEERNEE
acquired 11,644,004
Investments k& 457,578 (36,596) 12,499 54,798,146
Advance reinsurance premiums BHERRRE 1,455,458
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims FAERZBREATHE 48,349
Insurance and reinsrance receivables EURERERRER (65,997) 1,513,546
Other account receivable and accrued income EAERE RIS 124,446
Other receivables, deposit and prepayment HEUEE  REREATE (2281) 2 625,262
Bank balance — Trust and segregated accounts B - EXRBUEF 195 478620
Fived bank deposits with orighnal matuity over ~~ BB SR=BANEAEERR
3 months 385,417
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEEE 115 2,169,866
Total assets EEiE 75,101,674
Liailties 8f
Insurance contract provisions RREAERS 4,381,099 50,836,933
Investment contract iabities RECHER (4,364,600} -
Outstanding claims RABH 161,913
Reinsurance premium payables EfBRRRE 529,562
Financial liabilty at fai value through profitor loss,  WAAEBEBEEHF AEANERE
other account payable and lease liabilties £ AfEAERRAERE 1,535,698
Other payables EftEfE 331,299 2,768,266
Tax payable B8 62,086
Deferred tax fabiliies EERASE 1,267,384
Bank borrowings BRR 1,498,758
Shareholder's loan RRER 1,561,444
Total liabilties BRAE 60,212,044
Total net assets FEEEE 15,489,630
Capital and reserves Exfif
Share capita R 9,829,094
Reserves i 2492 (13,047) 7,869 292451
Non-controlling interest FEhER 16,617 (13,992) 5,000 5,368,085
Total equity EnlE 1,489,630

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS 50 (BEARAMBEREERNEEZF AR
AND US GAAP (Continued) sHERIAEBR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-3-RETAZT-BLER

HKFRSs adjustments Amounts
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances Other difference Impairment ELDEA )
reclassification'” in accounting® hasis® EETHEE
\ REAESE Rt BEEE HK$ 000
Consolidated income statement ek EffpR" 230 £3 &1
Income BA
Premiums and fee income RERERUA 7,723 441
Premiums ceded to reinsurer MHRE 320018 2.614951)
Net premium and fee income RERERKATE 5,108490
Change in uneamed revenue liabilty FHBNAEREE 64,389 (461,436)
Net eamed premium and feg income RHRERRAUAFE 4,647,054
Brokerage commission, interest and other senice  E£[E% - HEMANELEHUA
income 33,944
Subscription, management and rebate fee income 3% » EEEREREWA 5,432
Consultancy and advisory fee ERRZHE -
Net investment income and other income REWAHERKAFE (107,76) (140,899) 70,897 6,211,347
Overlay adjustment L+ 119419 -
Reinsurance commission and profi ERRASHER (10,591) 86,710
Totalincome b 10364487
Benefits, losses and expenses & BENER
Net policyholders benefit FREGH (15,984) (3,288,821)
Commission and related expenses fefRzER (1,349,851)
Management and other expenses ERRAMES \ (18,369) (2803) (96,218
Change in future policyholder benefts and deferral ~ XRRESE At - BERSEEARNE
and amortisation of deferred acquisition costs and ~ EXBBRUBERNEER
value of business acquired (118.247) (4,101,645)
Total benefits, losses and expenses Gt geAERREZ 0 (9,696,535
Finance cost HEAR (170,38)
Share of result of n associates I 0
Profit hefore taxation BetaaA 1,117,870
Tax credit HEgs (3,823)
Profit after taxation RE&EA 1,114,047
Profit attributable to: TR HEEER
Equity shareholders of the Company AATERRER 82,672 (16,685) 49,486 733,788
Non-controlling interests FehEs 35,768 (7592) 21411 380,259
1,114,047
ERSRERBRAR
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS 50 (BEMBHREREAEXIE ARG
AND US GAAP (Continued) =T /E Rl E BR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-S-NETAZT-ALEE
HKFRSs adjustments Amounts
(ERRHREEN)HE under US
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances Other difference Impairment ELDEA )
reclassification'” in accounting® hasis® EETHEE
\ REAESE Rt BEEE HK§ 000
Consolidated income statement ek EffpR" 230 £3 FAT
Income BA
Premiums and fee income RERERUA 6,016,075
Premiums ceded to reinsurer HRE 331972 (1,616,031)
Net premium and fee income RERERKATE 4,400,044
Change in uneamed revenue liabilty FHBNAEREE 11411 (704238)
Net earned premium and feg income RIREREAAARE 369,806
Brokerage commission, interest and other senice  E£[E% - HEMANELEHUA
income 18,566
Subscription, management and rebate fee income 3% » EEEREREWA 8,850
Consultancy and advisory fee ERRZHE 1,060
Net investment income and other income REWAREMNATE (228,671) (89,582) 18,566 4,614,645
Overlay adjustment L+ 93,666 -
Reinsurance commission and profi ERRASHER (10,946) 67,259
Totalincome . 8406,186
Benefits, losses and expenses i BRARR
Net policyholders benefit FREGH (17,370) (3213,922)
Commission and related expenses fefRzER (1,199,847)
Management and other expenses ERRAMES \ (17,022) (2310) (1,020,770)
Change in future policyholder benefts and deferral ~ XRRESE At - BERSEEARNE
and amortisation of deferred acquisition costs and ~ EXBBRUBERNEER
value of busingss acquired (27,706) (2,190,919)
Total benefits, losses and expenses Gt geAERREZ 0 (7625588)
Finance cost g (103.488)
Share of result of in associates ﬂﬁ*”"?%%ﬁ%ﬁ o (oey
Profit hefore taxation BetaaA 676,060
Tax oredit HEns 140 839
Profit after taxation RA&RA 676,899
Profit attributable to: MR HEEER
Equity shareholders of the Company RTERRR 25,002 3,040 11,248 294,907
Non-controling inerests FihER 16,667 (1,266) 7460 381,992
676,899
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS

AND US GAAP (Continued)

Notes:

[11  Major differences in relation to insurance-related
balance are summarised as follows: financial
reinsurance adjustments arising from different
classification of reinsurance contracts under HKFRS
and US GAAP; difference in value of business
acquired recognised under HKFRS and US GAAP
and corresponding differences on insurance contract
provisions; difference in measurement of deferred
acquisition costs and unearned revenue liability
due to different amortisation under HKFRS and
US GAAP; other miscellaneous differences due to
different accounting principles under HKFRS and US
GAAP.

[2] Difference arises from classification and
measurement of investments and lease accounting.

[8] Difference arises from different impairment
methodology and basis (expected credit loss model
vs. incurred loss model) under HKFRS and US GAAP.

51 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative disclosure notes have
been adjusted to conform with current year
presentation.

52 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019.

53 NON — ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
The bank borrowings of the Group amounted
to HK$1,553,503,000 as of 31 December 2020
was fully repaid in March 2021, with the funding
partially from the drawdown of a new bank
borrowing facility through refinancing, which
is unsecured and due 3 years after the facility
agreement date.
There is no other material non-adjusting event
after the reporting period.

*%%Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ

=
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEE ZE-NFE O ZE-NE  ZE+tF ZEB-RE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS £
Premiums and fee income RERERRA 7,723,441 6,016,075 761,673 - -
Brokerage commission, Lrefme  FEKAN
interest and other service HifRAEWA
income 33,944 18,566 7,118 6,163 3,846
Subscription, management R - EEER
and rebate fee income EREKA 5,432 8,850 9,978 3,791 =
Consultancy and advisory — FARIREAKA
income - 1,060 13,092 11,110 42,274
Profit/(loss) before taxation  BRBEA1ER],/ (E518) 952,810 614,051 (181,296) (378,168) (324,869)
Taxation BE (3,823) 699 41,791 (1,138) 8,327
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERR /(FE) 948,987 614,750 (139,505) (379,306) (316,542)
Attributable to: UT&AER
Equity shareholder of the RRARERRR
company 618,315 255,619 (195,612) (379,054) (316,688)
Non-controlling interest FERER 330,672 359,131 56,107 (252) 146
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF/ (FB) 948,987 614,750 (139,505) (379,306) (316,542)
Basic (loss)/earnings SREX(BB)/BF
per share (HK$) (#7) 0.19 0.08 (0.08) (0.16) (0.13)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EMAE
Property and equipment MERR 600,451 495,328 133,946 17,035 21,418
Goodwill and intangible HEREVEE
assets 1,909,079 1,923,360 1,932,016 36,110 21,512
Value of business acquired ~ WEEEBMNEE 9,012,571 10,057,446 11,075,662 = =
Interest in associates BN AR 30,074 27,860 64,846 = =
Investments ®E 62,807,704 54,822,243 43,632,718 898,134 310,123
Other assets HiEE 13,192,676 8,001,207 7,048,729 4,251,766 4,572,544
Total liabilities BfEEE (68,210,788)  (59,864,286) (48,533,891)  (1,063,713) (481,474)
19,341,767 15,463,158 15,354,026 4,139,332 4,444,123
Share capital R 11,872,683 9,820,094 9,829,094 4,629,094 4,499,548
Reserves i 1,507,893 273,604 (593,702) (489,762) (56,532)
13,380,576 10,102,698 9,235,392 4,139,332 4,443,016
Non-controlling interests FERER 5,961,191 5,360,460 6,118,634 - 1,107
Total equity i Eareks 19,341,767 15,463,158 15,354,026 4,139,332 4,444.123
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In the annual report, the following expressions shall
have the following meanings unless the context

required otherwise:

“Audit Committee”

“Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement”

“Board”

HCEOH

“CG Code”

“Chairman”

“Company”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Director(s)”

“Extension to the
Transitional Services
Agreement”

“Group”

“HKIA”

“Hong Kong”

nlon

“Jade Passion”

“Key Imagination”

“Listing Rules”

ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ
TEFR

_7_

the audit committee of the Company

the Fourth Amended and Restated
Investment Advisory Agreement dated
15 December 2017 and entered into by
and between Barings LLC and YF Life

the board of Directors

the chief executive officer of the
Company

the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

the chairman of the Board
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

the Companies Ordinance (“Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong, as it may be
amended from time to time)

the director(s) of the Company

the extension to the transitional services
agreement dated 15 November 2019
and entered into by and between YF
Life and MMI

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Insurance Authority,
whether the individual appointed under
the 10 or body corporate established
under the IO

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), as the case
may be, as it may be amended from
time to time

Jade Passion Limited

Key Imagination Limited

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange
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Definitions
E=

“MM'”
“MMLIC”

“Model Code”

“Nomination Committee”

“Policies Endorsement
Fee Agreement”

HPRCH

“Remuneration
Committee”

“SFC”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“Transitional Services
Agreement”

“Year”

“YF Life”

“YF Life Group”

“YFHL”

340

MassMutual International LLC

Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Company

the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the
Company

the policies endorsement fee agreement

dated 15 December 2017 and entered
into by and between MMLIC and YF Life

the People’s Republic of China

the remuneration committee of the
Company

the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as it may be amended from time
to time

ordinary share(s) of the Company

holder(s) of the Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

the transitional services agreement
dated 15 December 2017 and entered
into by and between YF Life and MMI
the year ended 31 December 2020

YF Life Insurance International Limited,
formerly known as MassMutual Asia
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company

YF Life and its subsidiaries

Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited
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